
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m. or as soon after the adjournment of the
Joint Common Council and Planning Commission meeting

Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael
Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson,
Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, and Scott Truehl

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM
(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend
the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email
lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:
 City’s 2016 Audit Report Presentation
 Utilities’ 2016 Audit Report Presentation

2. Minutes and Reports:
 Commission on Aging (4/4/2017), Redevelopment Authority (5/3/2017, 5/18/2017, &

5/23/2017), Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee (4/6/2017), Landmarks
Commission (5/11/2017), Planning Commission (5/8/2017), Utilities Committee (5/15/2017)
Parks & Recreation Committee (5/16/2017) and Public Works Committee (5/16/2017)

 Utilities Financial Reports
 Utilities Tax Stabilization Reports

3. Public Comment Period:

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. June 13, 2017 Council Minutes

B. R-95-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to adopt the American
Public Power Association (APPA) Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017. (Utilities Committee
approved 6-0 on June 19, 2017)

C. R-98-2017- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division request by Tom
Matson for property located at and adjacent to 1494 Pleasant Hill Road, Town of Dunkirk, Dane
County, Wisconsin. (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on June 12, 2017)

D. R-99-2017- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division request by
Bruce Sime and James Lapp for property located at and adjacent to 3333 State Highway 138,
Town of Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin. (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on June 12,
2017)

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA*** AMENDED
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin,

will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and

location given below.



E. R-102-2017- Confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointment of Todd Hubing to the
Stoughton Landmarks Commission (Landmarks Commission approved 6-0 on June 22,
2017)

OLD BUSINESS

NONE

NEW BUSINESS

5. R-93-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton
Utilities 2016 Audit Report and Management Letter. (Utilities Committee recommends
approval 6-0 on May 15, 2017)

6. R-94-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the 2016 City
of Stoughton Audit. (Finance Committee meets June 27, 2017)

7. R-96-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the
Stoughton Utilities 2016 Wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection
system 2016 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR). (Utilities Committee
approved 6-0 on June 19, 2017)

8. R-100-2017- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Laura Viney to operate a Group
Daycare at 320 Dvorak Court, Stoughton, Wisconsin. (Planning Commission approved
6-0 on June 12, 2017)

9. O-7-2017- Approving a General Development Plan for Outlot 1 and Lots 3 and 4, CSM
No. 14057, and Lots 5 and 7, CSM No. 14058. (Part of Kettle Park West Commercial
Center) (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on June 12, 2017)

FIRST READING

10. R-97-2017- Approving a Condominium Plat for Kettle Park West Commercial Center -
Lot 7(Planning Commission approved 6-0 on June 12, 2017)

11. R-101-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to work with
Wisconsin Department of Transportation Officials to incorporate certain items into the
State RAB (Roundabout) Project – ID 5845-01-06/07 at WIS 138 and Hoel/Silverado
Intersections (Public Works Committee approved 4-0 on June 20, 2017)

12. R-103-2017- Authorizing a reduction in the amount of the TIF Guarantee Letter of Credit
provided by McFarland State Bank (relating to the Kettle Park West commercial center)
Finance Committee meets June 27, 2017



13. ***R-104-2017- Approving an agreement relating to conveyance of real property and
payment of impact fees (Skaalen Sunset Home, INC) (Finance meets June 27, 2017)

14. Discussion and possible action of request by Alderperson Majewski to convene a
Committee of the Whole to discuss the possible creation of a Standing Planning
Committee

15. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For
information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley





Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time: Tuesday, June 27, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m. or as soon after the adjournment of the 


Joint Common Council and Planning Commission meeting 


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael 


Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, 


Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, and Scott Truehl  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 City’s 2016 Audit Report Presentation 


 Utilities’ 2016 Audit Report Presentation 


 


2.   Minutes and Reports:  


 Commission on Aging (4/4/2017), Redevelopment Authority (5/3/2017, 5/18/2017, & 


5/23/2017), Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee (4/6/2017), Landmarks 


Commission (5/11/2017), Planning Commission (5/8/2017), Utilities Committee (5/15/2017) 


Parks & Recreation Committee (5/16/2017) and Public Works Committee (5/16/2017) 


 Utilities Financial Reports 


 Utilities Tax Stabilization Reports 


 


3.      Public Comment Period:   


 


4.      CONSENT AGENDA 


A. June 13, 2017 Council Minutes 


 


B. R-95-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to adopt the American 


Public Power Association (APPA) Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017. (Utilities Committee 


approved 6-0 on June 19, 2017) 


 


C. R-98-2017- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division request by Tom 


Matson for property located at and adjacent to 1494 Pleasant Hill Road, Town of Dunkirk, Dane 


County, Wisconsin. (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on June 12, 2017) 


 


D. R-99-2017- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division request by 


Bruce Sime and James Lapp for property located at and adjacent to 3333 State Highway 138, 


Town of Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin. (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on June 12, 


2017) 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA*** AMENDED 


Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, 


will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and 


location given below. 


  


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





E. R-102-2017- Confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointment of Todd Hubing to the 


Stoughton Landmarks Commission (Landmarks Commission approved 6-0 on June 22, 


2017) 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


NONE 


  


NEW BUSINESS 


 


5. R-93-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton 


Utilities 2016 Audit Report and Management Letter. (Utilities Committee recommends 


approval 6-0 on May 15, 2017) 


 


6. R-94-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the 2016 City 


 of Stoughton Audit. (Finance Committee meets June 27, 2017)  


 


7. R-96-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the 


Stoughton Utilities 2016 Wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection 


system 2016 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR). (Utilities Committee 


approved 6-0 on June 19, 2017) 


 


8. R-100-2017- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Laura Viney to operate a Group 


Daycare at 320 Dvorak Court, Stoughton, Wisconsin. (Planning Commission approved  


6-0 on June 12, 2017) 


 


9. O-7-2017- Approving a General Development Plan for Outlot 1 and Lots 3 and 4, CSM 


No. 14057, and Lots 5 and 7, CSM No. 14058. (Part of Kettle Park West Commercial 


Center) (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on June 12, 2017)    


         FIRST READING 


 


10. R-97-2017- Approving a Condominium Plat for Kettle Park West Commercial Center - 


Lot 7(Planning Commission approved 6-0 on June 12, 2017)   


 


11. R-101-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to work with 


Wisconsin Department of Transportation Officials to incorporate certain items into the 


State RAB (Roundabout) Project – ID 5845-01-06/07 at WIS 138 and Hoel/Silverado 


Intersections (Public Works Committee approved 4-0 on June 20, 2017) 


 


12. R-103-2017- Authorizing a reduction in the amount of the TIF Guarantee Letter of Credit 


provided by McFarland State Bank (relating to the Kettle Park West commercial center) 


Finance Committee meets June 27, 2017 


 


 


 







13. R-104-2017- Approving an agreement relating to conveyance of real property and 


payment of impact fees (Skaalen Sunset Home, INC) (Finance meets June 27, 2017) 


 


14. Discussion and possible action of request by Alderperson Majewski to convene a 


Committee of the Whole to discuss the possible creation of a Standing Planning 


Committee 


 


15. ADJOURNMENT 


 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For 
information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley 








1


April COMMISSION ON AGING MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, April 4, 2017


Stoughton Room, Stoughton Area Senior Center


Present: Lou Havlik, Nancy Hoffman, Dennis Kittleson, Mary Onsager, Faith Schuck, Charlotte
Snow, Sue Wollin
Staff Present: Cindy McGlynn, Hollee Camacho
Absent & Excused: Bob Barnett, Ros Gausman, Don Mix, Jeanne Schwass-Long, David Sharpe,


Introductions: Our new staff, Marla Janssen and Erin Bleck stopped in to introduce themselves.


Call to order: C. McGlynn called the meeting to order at 11:07 AM.
March Minutes: Moved by D. Kittleson, seconded by N. Hoffman to approve; passed unanimously.


Director Comments


 We are now back to being fully staffed. Kelly Janda, our only current long-term Case
Manager has been busy with training the three new case managers and is doing a great job.
We no longer have a waiting list. New referrals are receiving call-backs within 1-2 days.


 D. Kittleson questioned what was Cindy’s wish list for staffing. Her response: 1) upgrade the
Volunteer/Program Coordinator position to full-time; 2) upgrade the part-time City Case
Manager position to full-time; 3) look at staffing needs to be able to run a full on-site kitchen
in hopes of increasing the meal’s nutritional value and attendance –as well as for programs.


 New tables and chairs have been ordered for the Mandt Room and we will soon have a demo
of a new interactive television.


 We have been short volunteers due to changes in schedules and abilities. We are especially
in need of help with the kitchen, reception, meal delivery and the Friendly Visitor program.
These are flexible positions. One may request a set day or time or simply serve as a sub.


 Stoughton will have its first Memory Café beginning in May, every 1st Tuesday, 9:30-11:30am
at the Library’s Carnegie Room. This is project we first initiated over three years ago and out
of the momentum of the Dementia Friendly Stoughton Community Coalition’s work, enough
talents have aligned to finally make it a reality. Watch for a Hub article coming soon…


 The Senior Center staff received official “Dementia Friendly” training (note purple angel
decal on our front door). “Dementia Friendly” training, also lead by the Dementia Friendly
Community Coalition is an effort to increase awareness and support of dementia so local
businesses and organizations may respond more appropriately to the needs of those with
dementia and their caregivers. The support helps reduce isolation and stigma, so affected
individuals and their caregivers can remain active and engaged in the community. Agencies
interested in this training may contact Hollee.


 The newest edition of our Stoughton Area Guide for Senior Services is now available. It’s a
FREE directory of services available to older adults in the Stoughton community. The guide
may be picked up at the Senior Center, or viewed under Community Resources on our
website at www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/senior.


 Four COA members (Lou Havlik, Dave Sharpe, Faith Schuck, and Jeanne Schwass-Long) will be
joining Hollee for the WASC Training in Appleton on April 21.







2


Survey Update:


 So far we’ve had 38 people complete the survey (36 online, 2 on paper). We expect to
have many more once the Tower Times is out later this week and more have viewed our
April newsletter. The survey was also advertised on our website, Facebook, by email and
an ad in the Hub. Hollee will send another email and Facebook post next week.


 S. Wollin suggested announcements could be made at programming events too.


 Anyone having trouble entering the $25 prize drawing should contact Hollee.


Annual Report:


 Distributed Annual Report draft for COA review. Does it make sense? Please contact
Hollee with any recommended changes.


 Once complete, Hollee will send an email copy, along with a breakdown of statistics by
City/Towns and age.


 N. Hoffman suggested a comparison of past year’s numbers could be added; F. Schuck
added this would especially be helpful to Pleasant Springs’ new Chair and Board members.


Committee Reports: Once committees have put together their action plans, Cindy asks members
to bring them to share and make sure there are no overlaps with other committees.


Fund Development: Lou Havlik Next meeting: April 27, 9:00AM
o An ad hoc committee will meet April 14 to look at hosting two fundraisers; S. Wollin noted


possible opportunities for fundraising during city-wide garage sales
o Updating a separate planned giving brochure to give to agencies that help with wills, etc.,


also considering an envelope option for funeral homes.
o Committee will assist staff with providing data to support the 2018 City Budget request to


increase hours for the Volunteer/Program Coordinator position.


Volunteer: Lou Havlik Next meeting: April 13, 9:30AM
o Devised a separate survey to evaluate different groups of Senior Center volunteer.


Committee will review the survey’s results next week.
o Working on monthly orientations for volunteers and new participants.
o Considering a “Day of Caring” event perhaps on Martin Luther King Jr. Day?
o Beginning to review/update/downsize the Volunteer Handbook.
o Discussing protocol for recruiting and retaining volunteers.


Program: Mary Onsager Next meeting: May 9, 10:00AM
o Faith Schuck has joined the Committee!
o Narrowed down and prioritized three action plans:


1) Develop “Bring a Buddy” events to encourage Center participants to bring new
participants and include drawings for locally supplied prizes as an incentive.


2) Advocate for and help implement in-home and Senior Center opportunities for adult
education (i.e MATC, online classes, webinars, WSTO).


3) Conduct some programs at sites wtihin the Towns instead of the SC.







3


o Mary Onsager is organizing local field trips to the Stoughton Center for Performing Arts,
Stoughton Village Players, the Youth Center, Milestone Assisted Living and the Tobacco
Warehouse. Stay tuned for dates/times…


o S. Wollin mentioned she would speak with the Rutland 4H groups to consider way they wat
to be involved with the Senior Center and suggested we promote theStoughton Fair book
and application in our newsletter.


Public Relations: Nan Hoffman Next meeting: May 2, 10:00AM
o Updating the Friendly Visitor brochure into a one-panel insert for easy insert into brochure.
o Requested assistance from a graphic artist to develop a Senior Center logo.
o Reviewed Annual Report draft; recommendations for cover and page 2 caption.


Evaluation: Hollee Camacho Next meeting: TBD
o COA members are encouraged to take the survey again so their responses are tallied.


A copy version is available at the front desk or you can take it online at:


www.surveymonkey.com/r/SASCSurvey
o Committee will meet to review survey results, likely by mid-May.


Committees, as you complete your action plans, please email them to Hollee to input in one list.


Legislative Update: Cindy McGlynn
No concrete budget updates. The State budget will affect the City more than us directly. The
County’s budget will affect us most; however we have not heard how anything will affect us now.


Meeting Adjourned: Moved by L. Havlik, seconded by M. Onsager to adjourn the meeting. Carried
unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 12:05 PM.


Next Meeting: Tuesday, May 2 at 11:00 AM







 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 3, 2017 – 5:30 p.m.  
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall 


Present:  
Peter Sveum, Scott Truehl, Regina Hirsch, Denise Durancyzk, Ron Christianson,  
Steve Sletten, Roger Springman and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde 
 


Absent: 
John Kramper 
 
Others Present: 
Gary Becker, Dave Porterfield, Sid Boersma, Greg Jenson, Derek Westby, Amber 
Levenhagen, Bill Livick, Paul Lawrence, Todd Nelson, Dennis Kittleson, Michael 
Engelberger, Stephen Mar-Pohl and Laura Trotter 
 
Call to order:  
LaBorde called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Introduction of new RDA members: 
LaBorde introduced the new members to the RDA committee.  Scott Truehl and Regina 
Hirsch will be the alderpersons representing Council.  Denise Durancyzk has been 
appointed as a citizen member.  John Kramper has been moved to a full voting member 
and Roger Springman has been appointed as the new alternate.  Welcome to all. 
 
Elect RDA Chair: 
LaBorde opened up nominations for Committee Chair.  Christianson nominated Sveum 
to serve as Committee Chair.  Hirsch nominated Truehl to serve as Committee Chair.  
No other nominations were made.  Sveum was elected Committee Chair 4-3.  Sveum 
took over the meeting as Chair. 
 
Elect RDA Vice Chair: 
Nominations were opened up for Committee Vice Chair.  Durancyzk nominated Truehl    
to serve as Committee Vice Chair.  Hirsch nominated Durancyzk to serve as Committee 
Vice Chair.  Durancyzk declined nomination. No other nominations were made.  Truehl 
was unanimously elected Committee Vice Chair. 
 


Communications: 
Sveum recognized past members Dan Kittleson and Brian Kahl.  He thanked them for 
their years of service.  Sveum also stated he will make it a practice this year to delegate 
work to other committee members to utilize their expertise in different areas.   
 
Sveum shared with the group a letter and pictures that Tom Selsor had dropped off for 
the RDA Committee.  Selsor had previously served on the Committee when he was an 
alderperson.  The content of the letter and pictures was of a project in Mishawaka, IN 
that was similar in part to what is being considered for the Riverfront Redevelopment 
area.   







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes  


May 3, 2017 


 


 


 


 
 
Approval of the April 12, 2017 RDA Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Truehl, seconded by Christianson, to approve the minutes of the April 12, 
2017 RDA meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Presentation and possible action regarding website:  Derek Westby: 
Derek Westby went thru the Cities and Chamber’s websites and what he envisioned for 
a new site for the RDA.  Discussion took place as to what the group wanted to see on 
the new site.  Calendar, pictures of success, agendas and links were all listed as items 
they wanted to be included in the new website. Westby will work with Isadex to transfer 
data from Chamber site and to get the domain names.  Sveum requested Durancyzk to 
work with Westby on developing the new website and to bring back something for the 
group to look at during our next meeting.   
 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area discussion and possible action regarding: 


a. Initiate rezone to Planned Development: 
Discussion took place on the rezoning of the Riverfront Redevelopment Area.  
Becker went thru the steps of the process of the Planned Development that will 
need to take place.  This is a long process and it would be in the best interest if 
we initiated the process as soon as possible.  Discussion included rezoning 
Eighth street and the little notch that the City owns as a part of the Planned 
Development.  Moved by Durancyzk, seconded by Springman, to request 
Council initiate the Planned Development process for properties located 
between Fourth Street and Eighth Street and south of E. South Street to the 
Yahara River, Stoughton, WI, excluding single-family residential along E. South 
St. and 7th St. according to the map.  Motion carried unanimously.    


b. Design charrette: 
 Review dates and schedule: 


Becker reported that the dates of June 4th-7th were not going to work for the 
developer.  Truehl suggested getting away from the work week and doing it on a 
weekend.  June 9-11th was suggested as first choice with June 23rd-25th as 
backup dates.  Becker will check with the design charrette team and the 
developers to see if they are available.   


 Assign responsibility for publicity: 
Discussion took place on how to publicize the design charrette.  Advertising on 
websites, billboards, posters, city wide mailing, cable station, opera house 
marquee sign and city speed board signs were all discussed as options.  Sveum 
requested that Hirsch spearhead the publicity aspect of the charrette. 


 Scheduling of stakeholder timeslots: 
This was tabled until we have firm dates and times for charrette. 


 Potluck logistics: 
Discussion took place as to where the potluck should be held.  The EMS 
conference room with their kitchen was brought up.  City staff will see if it is 
available and book for the June 9th-11th dates. 


c. Millfab demolition update: 
Becker reported the proposals for bids for demolition have been sent out and are 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 


May 3, 2017 


due at 1:00 p.m. on May 18th at City Hall.  There will be a special RDA meeting 
held on Thursday, May 18th at 3:30 p.m. to choose a contractor.  Becker has set 
up a site tour for any interested contractors on Tuesday, May 9th at 1:00 p.m.  
and for the design team to take a tour at 4:30 p.m. the same day.  All members 
are invited to attend either tour.   


d. Highway Trailer Building update: 
Stephen Mar-Pohl from InSite Consulting Architects addressed the committee 
about his findings on the Highway Trailer building in regards to structural 
concerns that he found while preparing a proposal to survey the Highway Trailer 
Building.  Top of his concerns are the roof that is open, letting water get in and 
further rotting the wood and the children that were documented playing on the 
property near the unstable building.  LaBorde will discuss his findings with the 
Mayor and the Cities Risk Manager, Gillingham.  Mar-Pohl presented a proposal 
to further evaluate the building at a cost of $8,768.  His proposal would include 
flying drones inside the building since it is not safe to enter and to further 
evaluate the building and the stability of the structure.  He will also be able to 
estimate how much it would cost to both take down the building and how much 
to save the blacksmith shop portion of the building. If the building has any 
historical significance that could also play a part in what is able to be demolished 
or saved. Discussion took place on the cost of the proposal and where funding 
would come from.  Moved by Christianson, seconded by Springman, to forward 
the proposal presented by InSite Consulting Architects for $8,768 to the Finance 
Committee for a decision on accepting the proposal.  Motion carried 
unanimously.    


e. Movin’ Out letter regarding site control and initiation of re-zone: 
Dave Porterfield from Movin’ Out addressed the Committee about his need for a 
letter from the RDA that he can submit to the grant committee he is applying to 
in regards to securing site control.  The letter would not bind the City or the RDA 
to any agreement if the RDA decides to go with a different developer.  Moved by 
Durancyzk, seconded by Springman, to authorize the RDA Chair, Peter Sveum, 
to sign the prepared letter that was in the packet.  Motion carried unanimously.   


f. Carpet Warehouse Building, 425 E South St – acquisition update: 
Becker reported he believed the contingencies were satisfied and the title came 
back clean.  LaBorde will check with the attorneys on a closing date. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding offer to purchase for Marathon 
Site, 314 West Main Street: 
Todd Nelson addressed the Committee about his proposal for the Marathon 
Site.  The site plan has changed very little from the last meeting when he 
presented the idea that he is looking to build (2)4 units consisting of 2 story – 
one bedroom, private entrances and covered garage units.  His intent is to have 
the exterior complement the exterior of the Livsreise building that is kitty corner 
to the site.  He is just in the beginning stages and has not brought anything to 
the Planning Commission or Council for approval at this time.   
 
Moved by Truehl, seconded by Christianson, to close the meeting per State 
Statute 19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 
properties; the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session; 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes  


May 3, 2017 


 


 


 


and then reopen for the regular course of business.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Time closed: 7:30 p.m. 
Moved by Truehl, seconded by Durancyzk, to reopen the meeting for the regular 
course of business at 7:51 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Discussion re:  RDA statutory authority, By-laws, other legal matters and 
administration: 
Sveum opened up the floor to questions from the members.  Springman stated 
he would like to look at the RDA’s By-laws and how they relate to the Council.  
He believes we need to strengthen them.  Durancyzk suggested every May we 
review the By-laws and ordinances.  Truehl inquired about the status of the 
CDA.  LaBorde stated the RDA and Housing Authority audits need to be 
completed first and that they were almost done before the City can move 
forward with the CDA.  LaBorde will provide an update at the next RDA meeting 
on the status of the CDA and Sveum requested Springman work on updating the 
By-laws and bring something back to the group to review. 
 
Discussion re:  RDA financial reports: 
Durancyzk requested financial reports be provided that included all expenses, 
revenue, grants received and property purchased.  LaBorde will work on 
providing reports that have this information. 
 
Update:  Revolving Loan fund: 
No new loans to report.  Sveum will request Kramper find ways to get 
information out about the RLF as he is a banker and that is usually the first point 
of contact for businesses looking to expand or remodel.  Laura Trotter from the 
Chamber will put information in their brochure when space is available. 
 
Future Agenda Items: 
Extending TIF  
Update on CDA 
Special Meeting 
Design Charrette 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area 
Website 
 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Springman, to adjourn at 8:20 p.m.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 


Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Aide 







 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, May 18, 2017 – 3:30 p.m.  
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall 


Present:  
Scott Truehl, Regina Hirsch, Denise Durancyzk, John Kramper, Ron Christianson 
and Roger Springman  
 


Absent: 
Peter Sveum and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde 
 
Others Present: 
Gary Becker and Sid Boersma 
 
Call to order:  
Truehl called meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding award of bid for demolition of Millfab 
site located in the Riverfront Redevelopment Area: 
Truehl provided an overview of the five bids that were received and the alternates from 
each bid.  Becker provided an update on the State grant.  Moved by Christianson, 
seconded by Hirsch, that the RDA recommend to the Council that Earth Construction be 
awarded the demolition contract once financing is arranged.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Discussion took place about the status of the charrette planning process and how to 
promote to the community.  Promotional ideas were discussed with more discussion to 
occur at future meetings. 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Durancyzk, seconded by Springman, to adjourn at 4:45 p.m.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 


Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Aide 







 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, May 23, 2017 – 5:30 p.m.  
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall 


Present:  
Peter Sveum, Regina Hirsch, Denise Durancyzk and Roger Springman  
 


Absent: 
Scott Truehl, John Kramper, Ron Christianson and Finance Director Tammy LaBorde 
 
Others Present: 
Gary Becker, Bill Livick and Amber Levenhagen 
 
Call to order:  
Sveum called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Stoughton Riverfront Redevelopment 
Master Plan Design Charrette being held June 9-11, 2017: 
Discussion took place about the Stakeholder’s letter.  Springman shared his changes he 
had made to Becker’s letter.  Becker will incorporate Springman’s suggestions and it 
was decided the potluck time should be 4:30-6:00 p.m. with presentation at 5:00 p.m. on 
Sunday.  Becker will add Movin’ Out and Stoughton Highway Trailers to the 
Stakeholder’s list.  Springman will hand deliver invites for the Charrette to the downtown 
business owners.  Becker will work on a mail listing that will include addresses from 
Main Street, Fourth Street, Railroad tracks and Dunkirk Street.  Gary will be the contact 
person for making appointments for the Charrette.   
 
Discussion took place about promotional materials.  Durancyzk is working with Richard 
MacDonald at the Library to use their digital display.  She has been working with Derek 
Westby on the website to have information included on the RDA’s site.  Hirsch is 
working on a poster to be used to promote the Charrette.  It was decided to go with ¼ 
page colored ads for 2 weeks in the Hub.   
 
Discussion took place about the potluck details.  It was decided to go with a pizza 
potluck, ordering pizza’s from Pizza Pit and then having a signup genie for salads and 
dessert for Council and City Staff to sign up for.  Hirsch and Durancyzk will work on the 
signup genie.  Durancyzk will handle purchasing paper products and drinks for event. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes  


May 23, 2017 


 


 


 


 
 
Discussion took place about the setup for Saturday.  Becker and Mark Geall need to be 
at the EMS facility for the virtual tours and meetings with Stakeholders.  RDA members 
will be needed to staff the booth.  Becker and Springman will provide tents and tables 
for the booth area.  Hirsch will work with Sylvia Lawrence to get a spot for a booth and 
Becker will contact John Cramper to see if he can get McFarland State Bank’s 
permission to use their parking lot after the Farmer’s Market for the tent and a booth. 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Springman, seconded by Durancyzk, to adjourn at 6:35 p.m.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 


Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Aide 







COMMUNITY AFFAIRS/COUNCIL POLICY MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, April 6, 2017, 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City of Stoughton, WI


Present: Alderpersons Greg Jenson, Tim Swadley, Kathleen Johnson and Matt Bartlett


Absent: Mayor Olson


Guests: Brian Hoops and Lisa Reeves


Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chairperson Jenson.


Communications:
None


Approval of March 2, 2017 Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee Minutes:


Motion by Swadley, to approve the March 2, 2017 Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee
Minutes, second by Bartlett. Motion carried 5-0.


Discussion and possible action on the proposed utilities policy regarding adding
notifications to the monthly billing:
Jenson noted that this comes forward as an ongoing effort to provide transparency to the citizens of
Stoughton. Brian Hoops explained the proposed policy regarding adding notifications to the utilities
monthly bill. He noted that the Public Service Commission did allow for inserts to be included with
the monthly utility bills as long as no costs associated with the insert were passed on to the tax
payer. He explained this policy would address what the City could include in an insert and would the
City would need to pay for in regards to the inserts.


Committee discussion included if the City needed to have a companion policy regarding what could
be included in the inserts. The Committee noted that they would like more time to review the
policy; possible to discuss it at the next meeting. Hoops explained that there wouldn’t be any issue
with waiting to discuss the policy, other than any individual could request something to be included
as an insert without any standards or procedures in place. Hoops explained that the inserts should
be created by a professional designer and would need to be approved by the Utilities Director at
least thirty days prior to its inclusion. Mayor Olson noted that she would like to see the policy allow
for four monthly mailings, versus three as outlined in the current policy.


Motion by Olson, to amend 9c of the proposed policy, to state that “No more than four bill inserts
not funded by ratepayers shall be included in the utility statement mailings during any calendar
year, unless approved by the Stoughton Utilities Committee on a case-by-case basis”, second by
Johnson. Motion carried 5-0.


The Community Affairs/ Council Policy committee directed staff to see if there are any other
communities that had any policies regarding the inclusion of inserts with the utilities’ billings.


Future Agenda Items:
-Proposed utilities policy regarding adding notifications to the monthly billing
-Dissolving of Holiday Fund


Adjournment


Motion by Swadley, to adjourn the meeting of the April 6, 2017 Community Affairs and Council
Policy meeting, second by Johnson. Motion carried 5-0. The meeting of the Community Affairs and
Council Policy Committee adjourned at 6:37 p.m.







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 5-11-17.docx


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes
Thursday, May 11, 2017 – 7:00 pm
City Hall, Hall of Fame Room, Lower Level, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Peggy Veregin, Chair; Kimberly Cook; Alan Hedstrom, Vice-Chair; Stephen
Mar-Pohl; Greg Pigarelli, Secretary and Tim Swadley
Absent: Michael Stacey
Guests: Todd Hubing; Greg Jenson


1. Call to order. Veregin called the meeting to order at 7:06 pm.


2. Elect Chair.
3. Elect Vice-Chair.
4. Elect Secretary.


Motion by Swadley to continue with current slate of officers, second by Mar-Pol. Motion carried
6 - 0. (Veregin, Chair; Hedstrom, Vice-Chair; Pigarelli, Secretary)


5. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of April 13, 2017.
Motion by Hedstrom to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Mar-Pohl. Motion carried 6
– 0.


6. Request by Phillip Knutson for approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness and for
Design Review to install new awnings at 110 E. Main Street.


Motion by Cook to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness as presented, 2nd by Mar-Pohl.
Motion carried 6 – 0.


Motion by Mar-Pohl to recommend the Planning Commission approve the Design of the
awnings as presented, 2nd by Hedstrom. Motion carried 6 – 0.


7. Review local landmark eligibility for the Highway Trailer Building (HTB).
The commission reviewed the eligibility of the building against the criteria set forth in the
Landmarks Ordinance. A report was recently completed for the RDA which evaluated the
historic significance of the property. The commission used the research compiled in this
report. The report evaluated the HTB complex as a whole and /or the foundry and blacksmith
shop by themselves. Our opinion is that the HTB complex is not eligible as a whole, but the
HTB meets four of the six criteria for local landmark eligibility. The individual building has
significance for architectural, social, cultural, and economic history. Mar-Pohl to reach out to
the preparer of the report and ask if she would be willing to reorganize the information into a
local landmark nomination. Designation as a local landmark would need to follow the process
outlined in the Landmarks Ordinance.
The next step: send the National Register Questionnaire to the State Historic Preservation
Office for evaluation of eligibility for the National Register of Historic Places. Swadley asked
Veregin to attend the next City Council meeting and update the Council to help keep them
informed.


Motion by Hedstrom to recommend Local Landmark nomination, 2nd by Mar-Pohl. Motion
carried 6 – 0.







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes
5/11/17
Page 2 of 2


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 5-11-17.docx


Mar-Pohl will contact Gail Kline (author of HTB Complex report/questionnaire) for assistance
with the local landmark nomination form.


8. Discuss local landmark mini-grants.
City staff sent out the letters the last week in April and have not yet heard from prospective
applicants.


9. Discuss preservation award nominations.
No update – deferred until next meeting.


10. Discuss proposed changes to city ordinances regarding demolition of a building in a
historic district.
Veregin plans to meet with Attorney Dregne in May to outline what is planned to be amended.
Veregin will bring the proposed amendments to the Commission for review and comment.
Report, outline and action plan to follow at future Landmarks meeting.


11. Discuss status of the 1892 High School.
Survey is closed, focus groups have finished and analysis is underway.
Veregin to meet w/ Stoughton School District Superintendent and school board member-Steve
Jackson, next week regarding proposed UW-Madison senior-level engineering course project to
evaluate potential re-use options for the 1892 High School.


Swadley reports that the Stoughton Community Foundation to act as the 501 (c) (3) for the 1892
High School Coalition during fundraising campaign. The School Board Facilities Committee
will meet in May and Swadley asked Veregin to come to the meeting and update the Committee
regarding the 1892 High School Coalition’s progress.


12. Discuss status of the Milfab/Highway Trailer/Power Plant development.
Tabled until next meeting.


13. Discuss CLG grant application.
Nothing in the works at this time, deferred to June Landmarks meeting.


Ideas: Survey mid-century neighborhoods.


14. Commission Reports/Calendar.
Budget request to city council: Commission has questions about what the timing is of next
budget request.


15. Future agenda items.
None discussed


16. Adjournment. Motion by Hedstrom to adjourn at 9:23 pm, 2nd by Cook. Motion carried 6 -
0.


Respectfully Submitted,
Greg Pigarelli







PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday May 16, 2017
6:00 PM
Ed Overland Room


Present: Alderpersons: Regina Hirsch, Lisa Reeves, Matt Bartlett, Mayor Donna Olson and Parks
and Recreation Director Tom Lynch
Guests: Eileen Kelly
Absent: Kittleson


1. Call to Order
Meeting called to order by Hirsch at 6:05 PM


2. Approval of the Minutes from April 26, 2017
Motion by Olson, seconded by Bartlett, to approve the minutes of April 26, 2017 as presented.
Motion carried 4-0.


3. Communications
King Property


Lynch shared that Kris Krentz of the Rotary Club felt his group was all in to continue
fundraising and development if the King Property was to be purchased for expanded
Rotary Parkland.


Old Business
4. Seeking Approval for the Nordic Ridge Park Plan
Hirsch talked about the importance of making the park shelter sustainable by using solar panels
and environmentally friendly materials for the building. Bartlett suggested a cost analysis be done
before plans are created for the building. Lynch will contact Cory Neely with Stoughton Utilities
about the analysis.


Motion made by Hirsch, seconded by Reeves to direct staff to work with WPPI on a cost analysis
for solar panels and sustainable building materials on the Nordic Ridge Park shelter, to help offset
operation costs for the shelter and park. Motion passed 4-0.


Motion by Bartlett, seconded by Reeves to recommend to Council to accept the conceptual layout
and items to be included in the parkland in the Nordic Ridge Development. Motion passed 4-0.


5. Fair Contract
Motion made by Olson, seconded by Bartlett to go into closed session on this item pursuant to
Wis. Stat. sec 19.85(1)(e) to work on possible modifications to the Mandt Park lease agreement
between the City and Stoughton Fair Association. Motion passed 4-0.


Motion made by Bartlett seconded by Reeves to re-open the public meeting. Motion passed 4-0.


Mayor Olson left the meeting at 8:30 PM


New Business
6. Rec Center Feasibility Study Review
There were two proposals summited for a feasibility of the Friluftsliv Building in Mandt Park. One
proposal contained two desirable components that were not asked for in the proposal request.
The committee asked Lynch to solicit the request again with the two items included.


Motion made by Bartlett, seconded by Hirsch to direct staff re-request proposals from the two
companies to include a pre and post meeting and two schematic conceptual building layouts with
the previous request.


7. Re-development Site Considerations
Hirsch asked the committee to support the inclusion of a fish ladder in the plans for the RDA re-
development area. Lynch agreed in that it would enhance the access for canoes, kayaks and
tubes from above the dam to the future whitewater park in Mandt Park. Lynch will carry this
message to the RDA upcoming charrette.







Motion made by Reeves, seconded by Bartlett to direct staff to encourage the RDA on behalf of
the Parks and Recreation Committee to include a fish ladder in the re-development area (formally
known as Milfab/Stoughton Trailers). Motion passed 3-0.


8. Future Agenda Items
Stoughton Fair Contract
Park Development Fund
Fish Ladder discussion with Dunkirk Representative
Nordic Ridge Shelter Solar Analysis
Criddle Park Project
Rotary Park Vision
The Value of Stoughton Recreation


Adjournment
Motion made by Hirsch, seconded by Bartlett at 9:15 PM. Motion passed 3-0.







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 5-8-17.docx


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, May 8, 2017 at 6:00 pm
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson Chair; Scott Truehl; Todd Barman; Michael Engelberger;
Matt Hanna; and Matt Bartlett
Members Absent: Todd Krcma
Staff: Director of Planning & Development, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael
Stacey
Guests: Jeff Stowe; Josh Stanz; Bob Feller; Jackie Mich; Mike Slavney; Craig Whitehead; Mark
Lambert; Dean Sutton; Tom Pientka; John Hallinan; Kevin Yeska; Todd Nelson and Roger
Springman.


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Elect Vice-Chair.


Engelberger nominated Truehl as Vice-Chair. There were no other nominations. Nomination
approved 5 – 0.


Barman arrived at 6:02 pm


3. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of April 10, 2017.
Motion by Truehl to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 6 – 0.


4. Council Representative Report. Truehl stated the Aldi CSM was approved including the ETJ
requests.


5. Status of Developments. Scheel gave an overview of the status of developments as outlined
in the packet of materials. There were no questions.


6. Request by Craig Whitehead, Crown Group for a conditional use permit to allow an
outdoor display use including site plan approval for Tractor Supply Inc. at 1800 US
Highway 51 & 138 (Former Walmart site).
Scheel gave an overview of the request.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Craig Whitehead explained the future plans for the property.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
5/8/17
Page 2 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 5-8-17.docx


Jeff Stowe gave an architectural overview of the façade improvements including the transition
from the old façade to the improved façade for the middle vacant area which will be improved
once a tenant is attained. The façade improvements including paint will wrap around the
building.


Bartlett questioned the outdoor speaker use. Craig Whitehead stated there will be one speaker
on the west side and one on the front or south side which will be controlled so as to not create a
disturbance for neighboring properties.


Barman questioned how the site will meet the parking requirements once a tenant is found.
Craig Whitehead stated the parking is used jointly and parking has never been an issue on the
site.


Stacey stated parking will be re-evaluated once an additional tenant is attained.


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the CUP resolution as
presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 6 – 0


A discussion took place regarding the landscaping updates with Hanna and Barman in favor of
adding some shade or small trees to add height, scale and streetscape.


There are currently no changes planned for lighting.


Further discussion about adding trees to the front landscaped area. Craig Whitehead stated he
will look into adding small trees though he is not in favor of trees in front of shopping centers.


Motion by Truehl to approve the site plan resolution as presented, 2nd by Barman. Motion
carried 6 - 0


7. Request by Bob Feller, Iconica for a conditional use permit to allow an institutional
residential use including site plan approval for a Senior Assisted Living Apartment at
2600 Jackson Street (Kettle Park West Lot 16).
Tom Pientka gave an overview of the project.


Josh Stanz gave an overview of the exterior design.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


A discussion took place regarding market demand, mix of care, parking, unit sizes and price
ranges.


Kevin Yeska gave an overview of the landscaping plan and bufferyard.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
5/8/17
Page 3 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 5-8-17.docx


Motion by Hanna to recommend the Common Council approve the CUP resolution as
presented, 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 6 – 0


The group discussed courtyard fencing, plan for holiday parking, pedestrian connections to
adjacent properties and development timing.


Motion by Hanna to approve the site plan resolution as presented, 2nd by Truehl. Motion
carried 6 - 0


8. Request by Forward Development Group to amend the General Development Plan for
the Kettle Park West Commercial Center.
Mayor Olson explained the applicant has requested to remove this agenda item from
consideration but the public hearing has been noticed so we’ll proceed with the public hearing.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak at the public hearing.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


The agenda item was removed from consideration since the applicant will come back with a
new proposal in the future.


9. Request by Claudia Romero for approval of a shed installation at Head Start, 315 Mandt
Parkway.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Engelberger to approve the shed installation resolution as presented, 2nd by Hanna.
Motion carried 6 - 0


10. Request by the City of Stoughton for approval of parking and pedestrian improvements
at Troll Beach, 401 Mandt Parkway.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Truehl to approve the site plan resolution as presented, 2nd by Engelberger.
Hanna suggested more bike spaces be added.


Bartlett questioned when lighting would be added. Scheel stated they are planning for the
future by running conduits to island locations as part of this project.


Motion carried 6 – 0







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
5/8/17
Page 4 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 5-8-17.docx


11. Comprehensive Plan Rewrite
Scheel introduced Jackie Mich and Mike Slavney of Vandewalle and Associates.


Jackie Mich explained where we are at in the process.


Mayor Olson opened the meeting for public comment.


Roger Springman would like to see an infill analysis done for development purposes; would
like to see a population growth analysis; boundary on a map for 20 years of growth; school data
and mapping; a commuter parking lot and a new vision for the northwest development area.


Jackie Mich gave an overview of the comments received as follows:
 Amount of growth is a concern
 Emphasis should be on redevelopment and infill
 Need for more bike and pedestrian trails
 Interest in commuter assistance and regional transit


Jackie explained the recommended changes as outlined in the provided memo.


Truehl discussed community concerns about the number of acres shown and phasing of
development


Scheel explained the map helps the City control areas close to the border through extra-
territorial jurisdiction and noted property needs to be contiguous to annex to the City.


Hanna agrees with Scheel about planning for the future and using extra-territorial jurisdictional
controls.


Engelberger stated indicated all of the areas that are undevelopable which leads to more area
being shown on the map. The map is used as a guide for the future.


Mike Slavney stated the State originally required 5 year growth interval plans but removed that
requirement due to false expectations. Slavney stated the Urban Service Area Amendment
(USAA) line is a phasing line of sorts since it takes about 6 months to go through the process to
have it considered for change. Slavney noted they can include language on the map regarding
steps to amend the USAA line and add a paragraph in the text explaining why the amount of
acres is used in long range planning.


Hanna suggested changing the northwest corner of US Highway 51 East and Pleasant Hill Road
to Planned Mixed Use.


Engelberger questioned what are the next steps in the process?


Jackie Mich stated a joint public hearing with the Common Council and Planning Commission
possibly for June 27th where the Planning Commission would hold the public hearing and







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
5/8/17
Page 5 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 5-8-17.docx


provide a resolution of recommendation to Council. The Council could then approve the plan
by ordinance.


Motion by Engelberger to recommend proceeding with the public hearing with the
recommended changes being implemented in the final draft document.


Scheel questioned what to do with all the comments such as those at the public hearing tonight.


Mike Slavney stated they could show locations of undeveloped infill parcels on the map; not
every parcel but major undeveloped areas.


John Hallinan stated the plan should be for no more than 20 years of growth and separate areas
that are undevelopable.


The motion was 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 6 – 0.


12. Future agenda items
KPW GDP amendment


13. Adjournment
Motion by Hanna to adjourn at 8:10 pm, 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 6 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted,


Michael Stacey







Public Works Committee
Tuesday, May 16, 2017 @ 6:00 PM
Hall of Fame Room, 381 E Main St


Members Present: Alderpersons Pat O’Connor, Sid Boersma, Greg Jenson and Michael
Engelberger


Absent/Excused: Mayor Olson


Staff: Director of Public Works Brett Hebert, Planning Director Rodney Scheel, Street Supervisor
John Halverson and Vickie Erdahl


Guests: Charles Vervoot, Pete Slagsvold and Michael McLaughlin


Call to Order: Jenson called the meeting to order


1) Communications: Hebert reported:


 That the Urban Forester Randy Nelson was no longer working with the City of Stoughton
 Update work on Giles St from Henry to Morris – more extensive work for water & sewer by


Stoughton Utilities.
 Riverside Park – work by the dam is being held off until after the Stoughton Fair. At that time


the walking path will be more defined and a parking area developed.
 350 trees were planted by Olson-Toon. These trees are to replace the ash trees being


removed, developer plantings (which they paid for) and a few replacement trees thorough out
the city that crews have cut down.


A question was asked about recruiting for a new Arborist. Hebert is currently updating the job
description which then needs to go to Human Resources/Personnel.


Boersma asked if the City was doing anything to support Nordic Ridge and the Parade of
Homes which will take place in June. Hebert stated that we are working with Bob Dvorak to
plant 20 trees on Markens Gate Rd and Peterson Dr.


2) Reports: Erdahl stated there has been an average amount of street openings for this time of
the year and that 575 permits have been sold since the opening of the site.


Old Business:


3) Sidewalks on Main St (Stamped or Brushed): Hebert stated that two crosswalks downtown
(@ Forrest St and Division St) were in need of replacement and wanted to know if they should
be redone with the same stamped pattern that is currently in place or replace with a brushed
concrete with the red color. Cost are approximately:


 Brushed $5 to $8 per square foot
 Stamped Concrete $8 to $12 per square foot.


The stamped concrete collects salt which deteriorates the concrete faster. A question arose if
there was a difference in safety which there wasn’t really any difference. The downtown was
upgraded to this type of product in 1999/2000 for ecstatic’s reasons. Multiple members of the
committee want to continue with the stamped product for continuity. It was also noted that the
stamped sidewalks are very slippery.







Motion by Boersma, seconded by Engelberger to do the crosswalk project with the
stamped concrete and determine where the funds will come from. Motion carried 3-1
(Jenson voting no for safety reasons).


4) Public Works Facility Update: Hebert and Scheel met with the city attorney, then met with
Angus Young to discuss the edits to the contract for architectural design. Angus Young
accepted the changes and when the contract is returned, it will go to Finance then to Council
for approval.


New Business:


5) Approve April 18, 2017 Meeting Minutes: Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Boersma to
approve the minutes. Motion carried 4-0.


6) Designation of Public Works Committee Member to Tree Commission and the Cemetery
Board: Boersma offered to remain on the Tree Commission and Jenson offered to be on the
Cemetery Board.


7) Sidewalk Installation Policy/Ordinance Discussion and Possible Action:


Discussion started from some residents attending the meeting: who wanted to discuss issues
with Wilson St, problems from the 2016 reconstruction and needed repairs. Scheel stated that
the contractors needed to do restoration in the area and had just returned on Tuesday
(5/16/17) to begin the process and will be held accountable for the work until it is completed to
the satisfaction of the city. Monies have been withheld until this happens. Hebert stated that
the work also has to meet the DOT specifications and that he would be meeting with
contractor on site on Wednesday (5/17/17). Scheel also noted that the type of dirt used in the
terrace had settled more than usual causing more restoration.


Boersma left meeting at 700 pm


Sidewalk discussion began: Boersma stated that he has talked with multiple residents that
sidewalks are installed on both sides of the street when it isn’t necessary and the extra costs
involved.


Scheel stated that the city adopted a policy in 1997 regarding the curb/gutter and sidewalks.
Scheel also stated that certain circumstances can be discussed and the Council has the
authority to change what happens on a project after engineering is done and reviewed –
example the city deviated from the sidewalk installation on Clyde St.


Currently the policy states that the homeowner and city are responsible equally at 50/50% for
curb/gutter and sidewalks. Aprons which are replaced are charges 100% to the homeowner
as they are considered private infrastructure. If retaining walls are necessary when sidewalks
are installed, the homeowner pays for the first four feet and the city is responsible after that.


Scheel stated that there had been questions in regard to funding curb/gutter from the
stormwater account, but there is not enough funds to support this idea.


Resident Vervoot stated for the record that Mr. Scheel has bent over backwards to
accommodate the residents and feels he does an outstanding job in the community.







Motion by Engelberger, seconded by O’Connor to leave the current policy and
ordinances as they are written and report this decision to Council. Motion carried 3-0.


8) Future Agenda Items: PW Facility Update


Moved by Engelberger, seconded by O’Connor to adjourn the meeting at 7:19 pm.
Motion carried 3-0. Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant –
5/17/17







FINAL STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday, May 15, 2017 – 5:30 p.m.
Stoughton, WI
Page No. 1


Location: Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office
600 South Fourth Street
Stoughton, Wisconsin


Members Present: Alderperson Matt Bartlett, Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Citizen
Member David Erdman, Citizen Member John Kallas, Alderperson Pat
O’Connor, and Citizen Member Alan Staats


Excused: Mayor Donna Olson


Absent: None


Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager Jamin Friedl, CPA, Stoughton
Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Director
Robert Kardasz, P.E., and Bethany Ryers, CPA of Baker Tilly Virchow
Krause, LLP


Call to Order: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz called the Regular Stoughton Utilities
Committee Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.


Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda: Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager Jamin
Friedl, Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert
Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting Consent Agenda
items. Discussion Followed. Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded
by Citizen Member David Erdman, to approve the following consent agenda items as presented:
Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List, Draft Minutes of the April 17, 2017 Regular Stoughton
Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities March 2017 Financial Summary, Stoughton Utilities
April 2017 Activities Report, Utilities Committee Annual Calendar, and Communications. The
motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.


Election of the Utilities Committee Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson: Motion by Alderperson
Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member John Kallas, to nominate Mayor
Donna Olson to the position of Stoughton Utilities Committee Chairperson. Discussion followed.
The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.


Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, the motion seconded by Citizen Member John Kallas, to
nominate Alderperson Michael Engelberger to the position of Stoughton Utilities Committee Vice-
Chairperson. Discussion followed. The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.


Election of the Utilities Committee Liaison and Alternate Liaison to the Stoughton Common
Council: Motion by Alderperson Pat O’Connor, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David
Erdman, to nominate Alderperson Matt Bartlett to the position of Utilities Committee Liaison to the
Stoughton Common Council. Discussion followed. The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.







FINAL STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday, May 15, 2017 – 5:30 p.m.
Stoughton, WI
Page No. 2


Motion by Alderperson Matt Bartlett, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David Erdman, to
nominate Alderperson Pat O’Connor to the position of Alternate Liaison to the Stoughton Common
Council. Discussion followed. The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.


Selection of the Utilities Committee date and time: Motion by Alderperson Pat O’Connor, the
motion seconded by Citizen Member Alan Staats, to designate the monthly meeting date to remain
as the Monday after the first regularly scheduled meeting of the Stoughton Common Council at
5:00 p.m. Discussion followed. The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.


Status of The Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) To The Stoughton
Common Council: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the
following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were approved and placed on file by
the Stoughton Common Council:


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report


 Stoughton Utilities Committee March 20, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes


 Stoughton Utilities February 2017 Financial Summary


 Stoughton Utilities March 2017 Statistical Information


 Stoughton Utilities Billing Statement Messages and Inserts Policy


Stoughton Utilities 2016 Audit Reports and Management Letter: Stoughton Utilities Finance
Manager Jamin Friedl introduced Bethany Ryers from Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP who
presented the Stoughton Utilities 2016 Audit Reports and Management Letter. Discussion
followed. Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, the motion seconded by Citizen Member John
Kallas, to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2016 Audit Reports and Management Letter and
recommend them to the Stoughton Common Council for approval and adoption of the
corresponding resolution on June 13, 2017. The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.


Proposed Electric and Water Tax Stabilization Dividends: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert
Kardasz, Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, and Stoughton Utilities Finance
Manager Jamin Friedl presented and discussed proposed electric and water tax stabilization
dividends of $12,698 and $3,743 respectively. Discussion followed. Motion be Citizen Member
David Erdman, the motion seconded by Citizen Member Alan Staats, to Table until the June 19,
2017 Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting. The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.


Anticipated 2017 Fund Transfers to the City of Stoughton: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert
Kardasz, Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager Jamin Friedl, and Stoughton Utilities Assistant
Director Brian Hoops presented and discussed the following anticipated transfers to the City of
Stoughton in 2017:


Payment in lieu of taxes $764,640


Rent: Stoughton Utilities Administration Building $89,000


Administration Charges $55,000







FINAL STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday, May 15, 2017 – 5:30 p.m.
Stoughton, WI
Page No. 3


Police Department Emergency Contact Service $9,000


Stormwater Management Fee $7,508


Economic Development Contribution $1,000


Total: $926,148


Discussion followed.


Declarations of Official Intent Nos. 2017-3 through 2017-5: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert
Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented and the following
Declarations:


Declaration No. 2017-3 Electric Digger-Derrick for $240,570


Declaration No. 2017-4 Electric Bucket Truck for $207,928


Declaration No. 2017-5 Forklift Truck for $24,900


Discussion followed. Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, the motion seconded by Citizen
Member John Kallas, to approve Declarations of Official Intent Nos. 2017-3, 2017-4, and 2017-5.
The Motion Carried Unanimously 6 to 0.


Electrical Infrastructure Improvements Adjacent to Riverfront Development Area: Stoughton
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops discussed
electrical infrastructure improvements in the Riverfront Development Area and surrounding areas
emphasizing funding, planning, and the establishment of appropriate grades. Discussion followed
regarding potential funding sources, timelines, feasibility, and pole attachments.


Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items: Electric and Water Tax Stabilization
Dividends.


Adjournment: Motion by Alderperson Pat O’Connor, the motion seconded by Citizen Member
David Erdman, to adjourn the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting at 6:43 p.m. The
motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.


Respectfully submitted


Brian R. Hoops
Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director





		4-2017 COA Minutes.pdf

		05-03-17 RDA Meeting Minutes.pdf

		05-18-17 RDA Meeting Minutes.pdf

		05-23-17 RDA Meeting Minutes.pdf

		April 6, 2017 CACP Minutes.pdf

		Landmarks Minutes 5-11-17.pdf

		PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 5-16-17 Approved.pdf

		Planning Minutes  5-8-17.pdf

		PW Min May 16, 2017.pdf

		Utilities-5-15-17 Regular Committee Meeting Minutes.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Resolution Authorizing and Directing the proper city official(s) to acknowledge receipt of the 2016 City
of Stoughton Audit


Committee Action: Finance Committee meets June 27, 2017


File Number: R-94-2017 Date Introduced: June 27, 2017


WHEREAS, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP has prepared the City of Stoughton Audit Report for
2016, and


WHEREAS, your Finance Committee met on June 27, 2017 to consider, approve and recommend the
approval of the 2016 City of Stoughton Audit and the adoption of the corresponding resolution, now
therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby authorized and directed to acknowledge receipt of the 2016 City of Stoughton Audit.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







CITY OF STOUGHTON
Stoughton, Wisconsin


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Including Independent Auditors' Report


As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016







CITY OF STOUGHTON


TABLE OF CONTENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Page(s)


Independent Auditors' Report i - ii


Required Supplementary Information


Management's Discussion and Analysis iii - xiv


Basic Financial Statements


Government-Wide Financial Statements


Statement of Net Position 1


Statement of Activities 2 - 3


Fund Financial Statements


Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 4 - 7


Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of
Net Position 8


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds 9 - 10


Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 11


Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds 12 - 15


Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary
Funds 16 - 17


Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 18 - 21


Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds 22


Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds 23


Index to Notes to Financial Statements 24


Notes to Financial Statements 25 - 76


Required Supplementary Information


Detailed Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - General Fund 77 - 79


Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 80


Schedule of Employer Contributions 80


Notes to Required Supplementary Information 81


Supplementary Information


Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 82 - 87


Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 88 - 92


Combining Statement of Net Position - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 93


Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position -
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 94


Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 95







INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT


To the City Council
City of Stoughton
Stoughton, Wisconsin


Report on the Financial Statements


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Stoughton's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.


Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.


Auditors' Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City of Stoughton's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Stoughton's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.


Page i







To the City Council
City of Stoughton


Opinions


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Stoughton,  Wisconsin, as of December 31, 2016 and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.


Other Matters


Required Supplementary Information


Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary
information as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.


Supplementary Information


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Stoughton's basic financial statements. The supplementary information as listed in the table
of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.


Madison, Wisconsin
June 21, 2017


Page ii







Page iii 


 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 


 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 
 
 


 
As management of the City of Stoughton, we offer readers of the City of Stoughton's financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Stoughton for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2016. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with the city's financial statements. 


 


FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 


When revenues exceed expenses, the result is an increase in net position. When expenses exceed 
revenues, the result is a decrease in net position. You can think of this relationship between revenues 
and expenses as the city's operating results and the net position, as measured in the Statement of Net 
Position, as one way to measure the city's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases and 
decreases in the city's net position, as measured by the Statement of Activities, are one indicator of 
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, the city's goal is to provide services 
that improve the quality of life of our residents, not to generate profits as companies do. For this reason, 
you will need to consider many other non-financial factors, such as the condition of our roads, or the 
quality of our services, in assessing the overall health of our city. 
 


 The assets and deferred outflows of the City of Stoughton exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows by $79,451,662 (net position). Of this amount, $19,381,379 is considered unrestricted net 
position, $5,060,895 is restricted for specific purposes (restricted net position), and $55,009,388 is 
net investment in capital assets. 


 
 The city's total net position increased by $2,472,135 Governmental activities net position 


decreased by $448,039 while business-type net position increased by $2,920,174. 
 
 On December 31, 2016, the city's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of 


$14,248,722, an increase of $419,904 from 2015. Unassigned fund balance was $2,565,550 at year-
end. 


 
 The City of Stoughton's total debt increased by $6,377,823 (18%) during 2016. 


 


OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 


This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the city's basic financial 
statements. These financial statements consist of two parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis (this 
section) and the basic financial statements. The basic financial statements include two kinds of 
statements that present different views of the city: 
 


 The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and 
short-term information about the city's overall financial status. 


 
 The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of city 


government, reporting the city's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page iv 


 


OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) 
 


 
These financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial 
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. 
 
The government-wide statements report information about the city as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the 
government’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. All of 
the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of 
when cash is received or paid. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the city’s net position and how they have changed. Net 
position – the city’s assets plus deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources – is one way to measure the city’s financial health, or position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the city’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. To assess the overall health of the city you need to consider additional non-financial factors 
such as changes in the city’s property tax base and the condition of the city’s roads. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, revenue and 
expenses reported in this statement for some items will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The city, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the 
funds of the city can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows 
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing 
requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page v 


 


OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.) 
 


 
The city maintains thirty-four individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund, and construction fund, all of which are 
considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided 
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
The city adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement 
has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 
Proprietary Funds – The city maintains five different proprietary funds, all of which are enterprise funds. 
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. Proprietary fund financial statements present the same type of 
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. 
 
Internal Service Fund – The internal service fund is used to account for and report the financing of goods 
or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the city, on a cost-
reimbursement basis. 
 
Fiduciary Funds – Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because 
the resources of those funds are not available to support the city’s own programs. The accounting used 
for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Other Information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, required 
supplementary information presents a detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund to 
demonstrate compliance with the budget, followed by the city’s pension related information. The 
combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented 
immediately following the required supplementary information. 
 


 


FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 
 


 
An analysis of the city’s financial position begins with a review of the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. These two statements report the city’s 
net position and changes therein. It should be noted that the financial position could also be affected by 
non-financial factors, including economic conditions, population growth and new regulations. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page vi 


 


FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
A summary of the city’s Statement of Net Position is presented below. 
 


Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position


2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Current and other assets 27,148,573$   25,180,866$      18,735,100$     16,078,338$      45,883,673$    41,259,204$    
Capital assets 38,471,938     36,005,803        51,017,100       48,704,011        89,489,038      84,709,814      


Total Assets 65,620,511     61,186,669        69,752,200       64,782,349        135,372,711    125,969,018    


Pension related amounts 3,103,229       865,833             1,066,540         293,480             4,169,769        1,159,313        
Total Deferred Outflows
of Resources 3,103,229       865,833             1,066,540         293,480             4,169,769        1,159,313        


Long-term liabilities 27,238,629     22,888,649        17,387,561       14,992,807        44,626,190      37,881,456      
Other liabilities 2,493,603       1,254,652          1,617,810         1,596,851          4,111,413        2,851,503        


Total Liabilities 29,732,232     24,143,301        19,005,371       16,589,658        48,737,603      40,732,959      


Unearned revenue 10,944,230     9,413,884          408,985            1,961                 11,353,215      9,415,845        
Total Deferred Inflows
  of Resources 10,944,230     9,413,884          408,985            1,961                 11,353,215      9,415,845        


Net investment in 
capital assets 19,190,712     20,218,136        36,484,386       34,727,832        55,009,388      54,200,088      


Restricted 1,969,261       2,484,622          3,091,634         3,149,076          5,060,895        5,633,698        
Unrestricted 6,887,305       5,792,559          11,828,364       10,607,302        19,381,379      17,145,741      


Total Net Position 28,047,278$   28,495,317$     51,404,384$    48,484,210$     79,451,662$    76,979,527$   


Governmental Business Type Totals
Activities Activities


 
The largest portion of the city’s net position (71%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any debt used to acquire 
those assets that is still outstanding. The city uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the city’s investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this 
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate 
these liabilities. 
 
An additional portion of the city’s net position (8%) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position (21%) may be 
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligation to citizens and creditors. 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page vii 


 


FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
A summary of the city’s Statement of Activities is presented below. 
 


Table 2
Condensed Statement of Revenues,


Expenses and Changes in Net Position


2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015


REVENUES
Program Revenues


Charges for services 2,883,638$     2,473,272$    20,328,506$     19,892,731$   23,212,144$     22,366,003$  
Operating grants and 
   contributions 1,728,580       1,900,671      36,747                29,812             1,765,327          1,930,483      
Capital grants and


contributions 55,913             1,008,676      1,741,957          1,050,684        1,797,870          2,059,360      
General Revenues


Property taxes 8,662,381       8,215,063      -                           -                         8,662,381          8,215,063      
Other taxes 134,647          122,478          -                           -                         134,647             122,478          
Intergovernmental 856,350          817,074          -                           -                         856,350             817,074          
Other 590,062          471,257          122,793             172,333           712,855             643,590          
      Total Revenues 14,911,571     15,008,491    22,230,003        21,145,560     37,141,574        36,154,051    


EXPENSES
General government 2,092,522       1,458,670      -                           -                         2,092,522          1,458,670      
Public safety 4,101,812       4,387,246      -                           -                         4,101,812          4,387,246      
Public works 3,227,449       2,845,848      -                           -                         3,227,449          2,845,848      
Culture, education and
   recreation 3,793,485       2,963,438      -                           -                         3,793,485          2,963,438      
Conservation and development 1,725,503       540,734          -                           -                         1,725,503          540,734          
Water -                        -                       1,559,150          1,381,539        1,559,150          1,381,539      
Sewer -                        -                       1,964,246          1,975,595        1,964,246          1,975,595      
Electric -                        -                       14,577,775        14,364,258     14,577,775        14,364,258    
EMS -                        -                       665,127             630,083           665,127             630,083          
Storm sewer -                        -                       469,033             397,907           469,033             397,907          
Interest and fiscal charges 493,337          533,342          -                           -                         493,337             533,342          


     Total Expenses 15,434,108     12,729,278    19,235,331        18,749,382     34,669,439        31,478,660    


Income Before Transfers (522,537)         2,279,213      2,994,672          2,396,178        2,472,135          4,675,391      


Transfers 74,498             (331,385)        (74,498)              331,385           -                           -                       


Change in Net Position (448,039)         1,947,828      2,920,174          2,727,563        2,472,135          4,675,391      


Beginning Net Position 28,495,317     26,547,489    48,484,210        45,756,647     76,979,527        72,304,136    


ENDING NET POSITION 28,047,278$  28,495,317$  51,404,384$     48,484,210$   79,451,662$     76,979,527$  


Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Totals


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page viii 


 


FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
As previously noted, the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net position. 
The specific nature or source of these changes then becomes more evident in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as shown above in Table 2.  
 
Governmental Activities – Revenues 
 
Governmental activities decreased the city’s net position by $448,039. This decrease is primarily a result 
of reduction in grants and contributions and increase in expenditures. 
 
Program revenues are those revenues that can be directly related to a particular activity, whereas general 
revenues represent revenues that are not directly related to one specific function. General revenues 
include state aids and investment income. Charges for services are primarily made up of licenses, 
permits, public charges for services such as library, garbage, recycling, park, and recreation fees. 
Operating grants are mainly from state resources received for highway maintenance and recycling 
programs. Capital grants fluctuate annually and are received to assist the city in capital asset purchases. 
 
Property taxes are the largest revenue source for the governmental activities accounting for 58% of total 
revenues. 
 


Governmental Activities by Revenue Source 


Charges for 
services
19%


Operating grants 
and contributions


12%


Capital grants and 
contributions


0%


Property taxes
58%


Other taxes
1%


Intergovernmental
6%


Other
4%


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page ix 


 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 


 
 
Governmental Activities – Expenses 
 
Governmental activities expenses are broken down into various functions. General government includes 
administrative type costs including Council, Clerk, Finance, Legal and Assessment services. Costs 
associated with the city's Police Department and Fire services are shown within the public safety function. 
The public works function includes expenses for street and sidewalk maintenance, winter and forestry 
operations, and refuse and recycling efforts. Health and human services include the senior center, parks, 
recreation, cemetery and cable television. Conservation and development are the expenses of the 
planning department and TIF funds. 
 
 Governmental Activities Expenses Shown by Function 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page x 


 


FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
Business Type Activities 
 
Business-type activities increased the City of Stoughton's net position by $2,920,174. The net investment 
in capital assets increased by approximately 5% or $1,756,554. This is due primarily to the fact that each 
of the utilities had more capital asset additions than debt issued to acquire capital assets. 
 
As shown on the following chart, the major source of revenues for the business-type activities is charges 
for services; other revenues include grants, contributions and investment income. 
 


Revenues by Source - Business Type Activities 
 


Capital grants and 
contributions


8%


Operating grants 
and contributions


0%


Charges for 
services
91%


Other
1%







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page xi 


 


FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 
Operating Expenses and Revenues - Business-type Activities 
 


 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
The focus of the City of Stoughton’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the city’s 
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
At December 31, 2016, the city’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $14,248,722. 
Approximately 18% of this amount, $2,565,550, constitutes the unassigned fund balance, which is available 
to meet the city’s current and future needs. An additional $10,622,202 is included in the restricted, 
committed, or assigned category which has been designated for specific projects or expenditures. The 
remaining $1,060,970 is non-spendable for prepaid expenditures, long-term receivables, non-current 
assets, or CVMIC equity. 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page xii 


 


FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (cont.) 
 


 


General Fund 
 
The city’s general fund is the chief operating fund of the city. Total fund balance in the general fund 
increased $103,141 or 2%. These changes are primarily due to an overall savings in the 2016 operating 
budget. See the following General Fund Budgetary Highlights section for further details. 
 
The city has a formal minimum fund balance policy. That policy is to maintain an unassigned general fund 
balance within a range of 20% to 25% of general fund annual budgeted expenditures. The unassigned 
general fund balance at year end was $3,364,758 or 26.6% of 2016 general fund budgeted expenditures. 
 
Debt Service Fund 
 
The city’s debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, general long-
term debt principal, interest and related costs. The entire fund balance of $3,427,418, which is an 
increase of $3,258,190 from the prior year mainly because of crossover refunding proceeds, is restricted 
for future debt service. 
 
Construction Capital Projects Fund 
 
The city’s construction capital projects fund accounts for the funds accumulated for the purpose of 
obtaining capital assets or for capital projects and other expenditures that are unique and are not normal 
operating or maintenance type expenditures reportable within the general fund or other governmental 
funds. The total fund balance as of December 31, 2016 is $1,833,745, all of which is assigned for the 
completion of projects that were begun but were not fully complete by year end. 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 7 
 
TID No. 7 was created in 2015. The entire fund balance of $1,055,847, which is a decrease of 
$3,298,969 mainly because of proceeds that were spent on TID projects, is restricted for future TID 
projects. 
 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 
Fund balance of all other governmental funds is $2,506,103, an increase of $96,666 from the prior year. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The City of Stoughton’s proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Factors concerning the finances of these 
funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the city’s business-type activities. 
 
Internal Service Fund 
 
In December 2011, the city paid off its Wisconsin Retirement System Unfunded Actuarial Accrued 
Liability. The city borrowed money from the Electric Utility to pay off its portion of liability. This advance 
has been recorded in the Retirement Fund, which is an Internal Service Fund that the city created for this 
purpose. The internal service fund had a deficit of $376,653 as of December 31, 2016, which represents 
the amount to be paid to the Electric Utility and funded through future years’ charges to governmental 
funds.  







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page xiii 


 


GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 


 
The General Fund budget had total appropriations, including those for transfers out, of $12,636,498. Actual 
expenditures and transfers out were $12,612,546, resulting in a $23,952 favorable variance. Total revenues 
and other sources were $12,715,687, $152,710 more than the budget. Further details can be found in the 
budget to actual section of this report and the city’s year-end budget to actual report. 


 


CAPITAL ASSETS 
 


 
At the end of 2016, the city had invested a total of $89,489,038 in capital assets. This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. 
 


2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015


Land and other assets


   not being depreciated 12,277,840$ 11,257,259$ 1,378,406$       1,433,009$    13,656,246$ 12,690,268$ 


Buildings & improvements 15,609,683    15,482,520    1,240,308         1,240,308      16,849,991    16,722,828    


Machinery & equipment 10,141,858    9,798,098      842,543             841,123         10,984,401    10,639,221    


Infrastructure 29,168,741    28,096,459    -                          -                       29,168,741    28,096,459    


Utility plant -                       -                       79,908,979       75,317,683    79,908,979    75,317,683    


      Total Capital Assets 67,198,122    64,634,336    83,370,236       78,832,123    150,568,358 143,466,459 


Less: Accumulated depreciation (28,726,184)  (28,628,533)  (32,353,136)      (30,128,112)  (61,079,320)  (58,756,645)  


NET CAPITAL ASSETS 38,471,938$ 36,005,803$ 51,017,100$     48,704,011$ 89,489,038$ 84,709,814$ 


Governmental Business Type Totals


Activities Activities


 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 
Governmental Activities 
 


 Infrastructure reconstruction projects of sidewalks throughout the city and street reconstruction on 
Williams Drive, Williamson, Clyde, and Van Buren Streets.  


 Various equipment purchases. 
 
Business-type Activities 
 


 Business-type activities capital assets increased mainly due to additions and replacements to utility 
plant. 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
(Unaudited) 


As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 


Page xiv 


 


LONG-TERM DEBT 
 


 
At December 31, 2016, the city had $42,047,920 of long-term bonds and notes outstanding. $14,351,787 of 
this is revenue debt, $4,775,000 is note anticipation notes, and the rest relates to general obligation issues. 
Total long-term bonds and loans outstanding at December 31, 2016 increased by $6,377,823. In 
accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the city may not exceed 5% 
of the equalized value of taxable property within the city's jurisdiction. The debt limit as of December 31, 
2016 was $50,039,825. Total general obligation debt outstanding at year end was $22,921,133. Therefore, 
the city was at 46% of the legal debt limit. 
 


 


CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS/ECONOMIC CONDITIONS 
 


 
All currently known facts and economic conditions were considered in preparing the 2017 city budget. 
None of these conditions are anticipated to change the overall financial position of the city. 
 


 


REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 


 
The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the city’s finances. If you have questions about this report or need any additional information, 
contact the City of Stoughton Finance Director. 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2016


Governmental
Activities


Business-type
Activities Totals


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 11,512,206 $ 10,333,886 $ 21,846,092
Receivables (net) 10,604,986 3,061,998 13,666,984
Internal balances 521,067 (521,067) -
Inventories and prepaid items 70,038 203,245 273,283
Investment in mutual insurance company 257,805 - 257,805
Restricted cash and investments 3,207,367 5,246,597 8,453,964
Other assets - 410,441 410,441
Land held for resale 975,104 - 975,104
Capital Assets


Capital assets not being depreciated 12,277,840 1,378,406 13,656,246
Capital assets net of depreciation 26,194,098 49,638,694 75,832,792


Total Assets 65,620,511 69,752,200 135,372,711


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 3,103,229 1,066,540 4,169,769


Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,103,229 1,066,540 4,169,769


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,429,168 1,410,107 3,839,275
Deposits 64,435 106,064 170,499
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds - 1,346,072 1,346,072
Accrued interest - 101,639 101,639


Noncurrent Liabilities
Due within one year 5,773,534 318,409 6,091,943
Due in more than one year 21,465,095 15,723,080 37,188,175


Total Liabilities 29,732,232 19,005,371 48,737,603


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue 9,753,757 - 9,753,757
Pension related amounts 1,190,473 408,985 1,599,458


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 10,944,230 408,985 11,353,215


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 19,190,712 36,484,386 55,009,388
Restricted for


Debt service 107,262 1,995,346 2,102,608
Equipment replacement - 1,096,288 1,096,288
TID activities 1,315,382 - 1,315,382
Library 202,444 - 202,444
Impact fees 337,799 - 337,799
Grants 6,374 - 6,374


Unrestricted 6,887,305 11,828,364 19,381,379


TOTAL NET POSITION $ 28,047,278 $ 51,404,384 $ 79,451,662


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 1







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Program Revenues


Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for


Services


Operating
Grants and


Contributions


Capital 
Grants and


Contributions


Governmental Activities
General government $ 2,092,522 $ 159,648 $ 153,445 $ -
Public safety 4,101,812 574,370 155,136 55,913
Public works 3,227,449 973,799 661,206 -
Culture, recreation and education 3,793,485 1,069,879 736,076 -
Conservation and development 1,725,503 105,942 - -
Interest and fiscal charges 493,337 - 22,717 -


Total Governmental Activities 15,434,108 2,883,638 1,728,580 55,913


Business-type Activities
Water 1,559,150 2,001,124 - 756,373
Wastewater 1,964,246 2,036,002 - 660,959
Electric 14,577,775 15,116,204 - 324,625
EMS 665,127 630,317 30,638 -
Storm sewer 469,033 544,859 6,109 -


Total Business-type Activities 19,235,331 20,328,506 36,747 1,741,957


Total $ 34,669,439 $ 23,212,144 $ 1,765,327 $ 1,797,870


General Revenues
Taxes


Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for TIF districts
Other taxes


Intergovernmental revenues not restricted to specific programs
Investment income
Miscellaneous


Total General Revenues
Transfers


Change in net position


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 2







Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position


Governmental
Activities


Business-type
Activities Totals


$ (1,779,429) $ - $ (1,779,429)
(3,316,393) - (3,316,393)
(1,592,444) - (1,592,444)
(1,987,530) - (1,987,530)
(1,619,561) - (1,619,561)


(470,620) - (470,620)
(10,765,977) - (10,765,977)


- 1,198,347 1,198,347
- 732,715 732,715
- 863,054 863,054
- (4,172) (4,172)
- 81,935 81,935
- 2,871,879 2,871,879


(10,765,977) 2,871,879 (7,894,098)


7,914,655 - 7,914,655
747,726 - 747,726
134,647 - 134,647
856,350 - 856,350
54,685 122,613 177,298


535,377 180 535,557


10,243,440 122,793 10,366,233
74,498 (74,498) -


(448,039) 2,920,174 2,472,135


28,495,317 48,484,210 76,979,527


$ 28,047,278 $ 51,404,384 $ 79,451,662


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 3







CITY OF STOUGHTON


BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As of December 31, 2016


General Debt Service


Construction
Capital
Projects


TIF District
No. 7 Capital


Projects


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 3,433,467 $ - $ 1,912,938 $ 2,295,774
Receivables (net)


Taxes 8,875,594 - - 242,013
Delinquent personal property tax 43,797 - - -
Accounts 271,404 - 5,699 107,757
Special assessments - - - -
Delinquent special assessments 6,636 - - -
Leases - 74,128 - -
Loans - - - -
Other - - - -


Due from other funds 1,262,782 251,717 16,407 -
Advances to other funds 618,427 - - -
Other investments 257,805 - - -
Prepaid items - - - -
Restricted cash and investments - 3,207,367 - -


TOTAL ASSETS $ 14,769,912 $ 3,533,212 $ 1,935,044 $ 2,645,544


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 4







Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds Totals


$ 3,870,027 $ 11,512,206


810,590 9,928,197
- 43,797


27,146 412,006
89,312 89,312


- 6,636
- 74,128


50,000 50,000
910 910


- 1,530,906
- 618,427
- 257,805


70,038 70,038
- 3,207,367


$ 4,918,023 $ 27,801,735


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 5







CITY OF STOUGHTON


BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As of December 31, 2016


General Debt Service


Construction
Capital
Projects


TIF District
No. 7 Capital


Projects


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 199,416 $ - $ 101,299 $ 1,317,685
Accrued liabilities 270,358 - - -
Deposits 1,436 - - 29,999
Other liabilities - - - -
Due to other funds 25,243 31,666 - -
Due to other governments 12,105 - - -
Advances from other funds - - - -


Total Liabilities 508,558 31,666 101,299 1,347,684


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 8,835,745 - - 242,013
Unavailable revenues - 74,128 - -


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,835,745 74,128 - 242,013


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable for prepaid items - - - -
Nonspendable for long-term receivables 682,857 - - -
Nonspendable for non-current assets 50,433 - - -
Nonspendable for CVMIC Equity 257,805 - - -
Restricted - 3,427,418 - 1,055,847
Committed - - - -
Assigned 1,069,756 - 1,833,745 -
Unassigned (deficit) 3,364,758 - - -


Total Fund Balances 5,425,609 3,427,418 1,833,745 1,055,847


TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND
BALANCES $ 14,769,912 $ 3,533,212 $ 1,935,044 $ 2,645,544


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 6







Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds Totals


$ 100,161 $ 1,718,561
14,549 284,907
33,000 64,435


226,678 226,678
576,277 633,186


- 12,105
618,427 618,427


1,569,092 3,558,299


675,999 9,753,757
166,829 240,957
842,828 9,994,714


69,875 69,875
- 682,857
- 50,433
- 257,805


1,811,999 6,295,264
767,475 767,475
655,962 3,559,463


(799,208) 2,565,550
2,506,103 14,248,722


$ 4,918,023 $ 27,801,735


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 7







CITY OF STOUGHTON


RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


As of December 31, 2016


Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 14,248,722


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:


Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. See Note II. A. 38,471,938


Land held for resale. 975,104


Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as unavailable
revenues in the fund financial statements but are recognized as revenue when
earned in the government-wide statements. 240,957


The net pension liability does not relate to current financial resources and is not
reported in the governmental funds. (556,063)


Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions do not relate to current financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds. 3,103,229


Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions do not relate to current financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds. (1,190,473)


Internal service funds are reported in the statement of net position as governmental
activities. (376,653)


Some liabilities, including long-term debt, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. See Note  II. A. (26,869,483)


NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 28,047,278


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 8







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


General Debt Service


Construction
Capital
Projects


TIF District
No. 7 Capital


Projects


REVENUES
Taxes $ 7,968,616 $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 1,629,115 22,717 15,124 -
Licenses and permits 233,079 - - -
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 135,588 - - -
Public charges for services 1,393,649 - - -
Intergovernmental charges for services 55,536 48,783 - -
Special assessments 12,855 - - -
Investment income 26,183 - 8,973 10,200
Miscellaneous 464,732 58,596 - -


Total Revenues 11,919,353 130,096 24,097 10,200


EXPENDITURES
Current


General government 1,843,239 - - -
Public safety 3,814,855 - - -
Public works 1,995,483 - - -
Culture, recreation and education 1,236,683 - - -
Conservation and development - - - 850


Capital Outlay - - 2,746,591 3,308,319
Debt Service


Principal - 2,544,421 - -
Interest and fiscal charges - 554,501 54,500 -


Total Expenditures 8,890,260 3,098,922 2,801,091 3,309,169


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 3,029,093 (2,968,826) (2,776,994) (3,298,969)


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issued - 3,210,000 2,620,000 -
Premium on debt - 132,351 - -
Property sales - - - -
Transfers in 796,334 2,884,665 417,870 -
Transfers out (3,722,286) - - -


Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,925,952) 6,227,016 3,037,870 -


Net Change in Fund Balances 103,141 3,258,190 260,876 (3,298,969)


FUND BALANCES - Beginning of Year 5,322,468 169,228 1,572,869 4,354,816


FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 5,425,609 $ 3,427,418 $ 1,833,745 $ 1,055,847


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 9







Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds Totals


$ 828,412 $ 8,797,028
333,038 1,999,994


- 233,079
- 135,588


899,453 2,293,102
- 104,319


161,154 174,009
9,329 54,685


564,140 1,087,468
2,795,526 14,879,272


4,425 1,847,664
27,501 3,842,356


- 1,995,483
2,032,459 3,269,142


164,705 165,555
1,705,963 7,760,873


- 2,544,421
- 609,001


3,935,053 22,034,495


(1,139,527) (7,155,223)


850,000 6,680,000
- 132,351


16,695 16,695
1,913,759 6,012,628


(1,544,261) (5,266,547)
1,236,193 7,575,127


96,666 419,904


2,409,437 13,828,818


$ 2,506,103 $ 14,248,722


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 10







CITY OF STOUGHTON


RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
 AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 419,904
  
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:


Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
net position the cost of these assets is capitalized and they are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense in the statement of activities.


Capital outlay is reported as an expenditure in the fund financial statements but is
capitalized in the government-wide financial statements 7,760,873


Some items reported as capital outlay were not capitalized (2,822,222)
Depreciation is reported in the government-wide financial statements (1,703,900)
Net book value of assets retired (97,033)


Capital assets contributed to business-type activities are reported as capital outlay in the
fund financial statements. (671,583)


Property held for resale recorded as an asset in the government-wide statements but
reported as a capital outlay in the fund financial statements. 750,531


Receivables not currently available are reported as revenue when collected or currently
available in the fund financial statements but are recognized as revenue when earned in
the government-wide financial statements.


Special assessments 21,104
Loan activity 50,000
Lease activity (55,000)


Debt issued provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt
increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of debt principal
is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position.


Debt issued (6,680,000)
Principal repaid 2,544,421


Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 


Compensated absences 341,662
Net pension asset/liability (1,379,925)
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 2,237,396
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (1,184,668)
Accrued interest on debt (16,687)


Internal service funds are used by management to charge self insurance costs to individual
funds. The change in net position of the internal service fund reported with governmental
activities 37,088


CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ (448,039)


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 11







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
As of December 31, 2016


Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


ASSETS
Current Assets


Cash and investments $ 412,856 $ 1,333,682 $ 6,951,441
Receivables


Other receivables 237,248 212,282 1,688,079
Interest receivable 3,858 1,921 49,995
Current portion of special assessments 50,103 34,359 -


Due from other funds 70,394 49,361 15,289
Current portion of advance to other funds - - 39,190
Inventories 34,812 - 163,294
Prepaid items 828 1,035 3,276
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 267,550 365,599 486,538
Total Current Assets 1,077,649 1,998,239 9,397,102


Noncurrent Assets
Restricted Assets


Reserve account 244,677 - 649,338
Depreciation account 25,000 33,283 25,000
Replacement account - 1,096,288 -
Construction account 213,127 123 1,840,074


Capital Assets
Land and land rights 430,131 - 220,797
Construction in progress 80,638 94,791 189,399
Plant in service 21,549,377 28,879,140 28,069,197
Property held for future use - - 352,664
Less: Accumulated depreciation (6,778,559) (10,250,053) (14,429,881)


Other Assets
Special assessments 400,824 274,874 -
Plant and maintenance reserve account 328,378 - 508,914
Sick leave reserve account 96,587 120,910 171,811
Advance to other funds - - 337,463
Investment in ATC - - 361,850
Non-utility property (net of amortization) 30,638 - 17,953


Total Noncurrent Assets 16,620,818 20,249,356 18,314,579


Total Assets 17,698,467 22,247,595 27,711,681


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 206,806 227,166 575,914


Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 206,806 227,166 575,914


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 12







Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Fund


$ 409,307 $ 9,107,286 $ -


108,455 2,246,064 -
- 55,774 -
- 84,462 -


85,769 220,813 -
- 39,190 -
- 198,106 -
- 5,139 -


- 1,119,687 -
603,531 13,076,521 -


- 894,015 -
- 83,283 -
- 1,096,288 -
- 2,053,324 -


9,986 660,914 -
- 364,828 -


3,494,116 81,991,830 -
- 352,664 -


(894,643) (32,353,136) -


- 675,698 -
- 837,292 -
- 389,308 -
- 337,463 -
- 361,850 -
- 48,591 -


2,609,459 57,794,212 -


3,212,990 70,870,733 -


56,654 1,066,540 -


56,654 1,066,540 -


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 13







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
As of December 31, 2016


Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities


Accounts payable 75,473 66,855 1,068,767
Accrued liabilities 10,938 17,496 107,051
Public benefits - - 26,651
Deposits - - 106,064
Due to other funds 403,264 9,073 462,554
Current portion of general obligation debt 51,000 34,000 -
Current portion of advance - - -
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 322,677 413,395 610,000
Accrued interest 8,230 22,761 70,648


Total Current Liabilities 871,582 563,580 2,451,735


Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-Term Debt


Customer advances for construction - - 27,141
Revenue bonds payable 2,620,747 4,744,968 5,640,000
Unamortized premium on bond refunding 35,638 - 131,571
General obligation debt payable 423,000 282,000 -
Compensated absences 86,587 120,910 171,811
Net pension liability 36,404 40,825 103,350
Advances from other funds - - -


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,202,376 5,188,703 6,073,873


Total Liabilities 4,073,958 5,752,283 8,525,608


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 77,947 87,394 221,246


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 77,947 87,394 221,246


NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capital assets 12,041,652 13,249,638 9,860,679
Restricted for


Debt service 528,997 376,121 1,090,228
Equipment replacement - 1,096,288 -


Unrestricted (deficit) 1,182,719 1,913,037 8,589,834


TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT) $ 13,753,368 $ 16,635,084 $ 19,540,741


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 14







Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Funds


14,983 1,226,078 -
21,893 157,378 -


- 26,651 -
- 106,064 -


243,642 1,118,533 -
233,409 318,409 -


- - 39,190


- 1,346,072 -
- 101,639 -


513,927 4,400,824 39,190


- 27,141 -
- 13,005,715 -
- 167,209 -


1,216,618 1,921,618 -
31,039 410,347 -
10,471 191,050 -


- - 337,463
1,258,128 15,723,080 337,463


1,772,055 20,123,904 376,653


22,398 408,985 -


22,398 408,985 -


1,332,417 36,484,386 -


- 1,995,346 -
- 1,096,288 -


142,774 11,828,364 (376,653)


$ 1,475,191 $ 51,404,384 $ (376,653)


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 15







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


OPERATING REVENUES $ 2,001,124 $ 2,036,002 $ 15,116,204


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 1,012,205 1,020,298 13,329,607
Depreciation 428,084 796,285 996,954


Total Operating Expenses 1,440,289 1,816,583 14,326,561


Operating Income 560,835 219,419 789,643


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 25,029 2,485 92,308
Interest and fiscal charges (74,001) (147,663) (148,952)
Miscellaneous expenses (4,280) - (3,080)
Debt issuance costs (47,812) - (110,140)
Interest subsidy - - -
Amortization of premium on bond refunding 2,952 - 10,958
Miscellaneous revenue - - -
Intergovernmental grants - - -


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (98,112) (145,178) (158,906)


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 462,723 74,241 630,737


CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Contributions in aid of construction 756,373 660,959 324,625
Capital contributions - municipal 215,803 185,879 269,901
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out (390,267) - (397,998)


Total Contributions and Transfers 581,909 846,838 196,528


Change in Net Position 1,044,632 921,079 827,265


NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - Beginning of Year 12,708,736 15,714,005 18,713,476


NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $ 13,753,368 $ 16,635,084 $ 19,540,741


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 16







Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Fund


$ 1,175,176 $ 20,328,506 $ 49,500


944,489 16,306,599 -
147,355 2,368,678 -


1,091,844 18,675,277 -


83,332 1,653,229 49,500


2,791 122,613 -
(42,316) (412,932) (12,412)


- (7,360) -
- (157,952) -


7,978 7,978 -
- 13,910 -


4,460 4,460 -
28,769 28,769 -
1,682 (400,514) (12,412)


85,014 1,252,715 37,088


- 1,741,957 -
- 671,583 -


81,054 81,054 -
(38,870) (827,135) -
42,184 1,667,459 -


127,198 2,920,174 37,088


1,347,993 48,484,210 (413,741)


$ 1,475,191 $ 51,404,384 $ (376,653)


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 17







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from customers $ 2,000,726 $ 2,027,899 $ 14,973,046
Received from municipality for services - - -
Received for street lighting - - 129,286
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (600,919) (579,463) (12,486,322)
Paid to employees for services (379,268) (381,206) (760,474)


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,020,539 1,067,230 1,855,536


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments sold and matured 222,122 469,943 1,893,138
Investment income 15,172 18,582 49,135
Investments purchased (200,000) (825,095) (1,926,705)
Dividends from ATC - - 15,064


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 37,294 (336,570) 30,632


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (356,604) - (370,260)
Received from municipality principal on Wisconsin Retirement


UAAL advance - - 37,088
Received from municipality interest on Wisconsin Retirement


UAAL advance - - 12,412
Transfers to other funds (2,412) - (21,213)
Paid to utilities principal on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL advance - - -
Paid to utilities interest on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL advance - - -
Advances from other funds - - -


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (359,016) - (341,973)


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES


Debt retired (1,399,957) (434,390) (2,215,000)
Interest paid (79,101) (150,466) (112,620)
Debt issuance costs (47,812) - (110,140)
Premium received 38,590 - 93,666
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,497,384) (745,230) (1,196,807)
Capital contributions received 586,352 277,552 374,680
Proceeds from debt issue 2,520,000 - 4,005,000


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 120,688 (1,052,534) 838,779


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 819,505 (321,874) 2,382,974


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 259,711 2,355,598 4,285,700


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 1,079,216 $ 2,033,724 $ 6,668,674


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 18







Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal Service
Fund


$ 1,198,804 $ 20,200,475 $ -
- - 49,500
- 129,286 -


(353,529) (14,020,233) -
(557,650) (2,078,598) -
287,625 4,230,930 49,500


- 2,585,203 -
2,791 85,680 -


- (2,951,800) -
- 15,064 -


2,791 (265,853) -


- (726,864) -


- 37,088 -


42,184 54,596 -
- (23,625) -
- - (37,088)
- - (12,412)


29,817 29,817 -
72,001 (628,988) (49,500)


(233,409) (4,282,756) -
(45,446) (387,633) -


- (157,952) -
- 132,256 -


(412,880) (3,852,301) -
6,109 1,244,693 -


- 6,525,000 -
(685,626) (778,693) -


(323,209) 2,557,396 -


732,516 7,633,525 -


$ 409,307 $ 10,190,921 $ -


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 19







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income $ 560,835 $ 219,419 $ 789,643
Nonoperating revenue (expense) - - (3,080)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Flows


From Operating Activities
Depreciation 428,084 796,285 996,954
Depreciation charged to other funds 31,606 - 45,600


Changes in assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred
inflows


Customer accounts receivable (31,717) (14,000) (77,030)
Other accounts receivable 14,969 7,568 66,161
Due from other funds (2,841) 1,559 (8,637)
Due to other funds - - 46,468
Inventories (4,981) - (33,889)
Prepaid items (277) (334) (741)
Accounts payable 8,963 14,153 (29,236)
Accrued wages 4,029 - -
Compensated absences (6,495) 15,088 1,728
Customer deposits (1,615) - 8,714
Other current liabilities - 4,985 (5,004)
Public benefits - - 563
Pension related deferrals and liabilities 19,979 22,507 57,322


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,020,539 $ 1,067,230 $ 1,855,536


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS


Cash and investments $ 412,856 $ 1,333,682 $ 6,951,441
Restricted cash and investments


Redemption account 267,550 365,599 486,538
Reserve account 244,677 - 649,338
Depreciation account 25,000 33,283 25,000
Construction account 213,127 123 1,840,074
Plant and maintenance reserve account 328,378 - 508,914
Sick leave reserve account 96,587 120,910 171,811
Replacement account - 1,096,288 -
Total Cash and Investments 1,588,175 2,949,885 10,633,116
Less:  Noncash equivalents (508,959) (916,161) (3,964,442)


  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 1,079,216 $ 2,033,724 $ 6,668,674


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Unrealized loss on investments $ (8,367) $ (26,717) $ (37,560)


Contributed capital assets $ 352,096 $ 563,389 $ -


ATC earnings allocated $ - $ - $ 10,016


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 20







Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal Service
Fund


$ 83,332 $ 1,653,229 $ 49,500
35,098 32,018 -


147,355 2,368,678 -
- 77,206 -


(7,129) (129,876) -
- 88,698 -


(4,341) (14,260) -
- 46,468 -
- (38,870) -
- (1,352) -


(2,168) (8,288) -
- 4,029 -


31,039 41,360 -
- 7,099 -


1,090 1,071 -
- 563 -


3,349 103,157 -


$ 287,625 $ 4,230,930 $ 49,500


$ 409,307 $ 9,107,286 $ -


- 1,119,687 -
- 894,015 -
- 83,283 -
- 2,053,324 -
- 837,292 -
- 389,308 -
- 1,096,288 -


409,307 15,580,483 -
- (5,389,562) -


$ 409,307 $ 10,190,921 $ -


$ - $ -


$ - $ -


$ - $ -


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 21







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS


As of December 31, 2016


Pension Trust Agency Fund


ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 770,493 $ 11,758,362
Receivables 86 -
Tax roll receivable - 3,204,121


Total Assets 770,579 14,962,483


LIABILITIES
Due to other taxing units - 14,962,483


Total Liabilities - 14,962,483


NET POSITION


Held in trust for pension benefits $ 770,579 $ -


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 22







CITY OF STOUGHTON


STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Pension Trust


ADDITIONS
Contributions


Employer $ 36,671
Total Contributions 36,671


Investment income 2,351
Total Additions 39,022


Change in Net Position 39,022


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 731,557


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 770,579


See accompanying notes to financial statements.
Page 23







CITY OF STOUGHTON


INDEX TO NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE Page


I Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25
A. Reporting Entity 25
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 26
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement


Presentation 29
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of


Resources, and Net Position or Equity 31
1. Deposits and Investments 31
2. Receivables 32
3. Inventories and Prepaid Items 33
4. Restricted Assets 33
5. Capital Assets 33
6. Land Held for Resale 34
7. Other Assets 35
8. Deferred Outflows of Resources 35
9. Compensated Absences 35
10. Long-Term Obligations 36
11. Deferred Inflows of Resources 36
12.  Equity Classifications 37
13.  Pension 39
14.  Basis for Existing Rates 39


II Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 39
A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance


Sheet and the Statement of Net Position 39


III Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 40
A. Budgetary Information 40
B. Excess Expenditures and Other Financing Uses Over Appropriations 40
C. Deficit Balances 41
D. Limitations on the City's Tax Levy 41


IV Detailed Notes on All Funds 42
A. Deposits and Investments 42
B. Receivables 46
C. Restricted Assets 47
D. Capital Assets 48
E. Interfund Receivables/Payables, Advances and Transfers 54
F. Long-Term Obligations 57
G. Lease Disclosures 65
H. Net Position/Fund Balances 65


V Other Information 68
A. Employees' Retirement System 68
B. Risk Management 73
C. Commitments and Contingencies 74
D. Subsequent Events 76
E. Effect of New Accounting Standards on Current-Period Financial Statements 76


Page 24







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES


The accounting policies of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles is the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).


A. REPORTING ENTITY


This report includes all of the funds of the city. The reporting entity for the city consists of the primary
government and its component unit. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the
primary government is financially accountable or other organizations for which the nature and significance
of their relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading. The primary government is financially accountable if (1) it
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and it is able to impose its will on that
organization, (2) it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and there is a potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the
primary government, (3) the organization is fiscally dependent on and there is a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary
government. Certain legally separate, tax exempt organizations should also be reported as a component
unit if all of the following criteria are met: (1) the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component
units, or its constituents; (2) the primary government or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability
to access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization; and (3) the
economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the primary government, or its
component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to the primary
government.


Component units are reported using one of two methods, discrete presentation or blending. Generally,
component units should be discretely presented in a separate column in the financial statements. A
component unit should be reported as part of the primary government using the blending method if it
meets any one of the following criteria: (1) the primary government and the component unit have
substantively the same governing body and a financial benefit or burden relationship exists, (2) the
primary government and the component unit have substantively the same governing body and
management of the primary government has operational responsibility for the component unit, (3) the
component unit serves or benefits, exclusively or almost exclusively, the primary government rather than
its citizens, or (4) the total debt of the component unit will be paid entirely or almost entirely from resources
of the primary government.


Blended Component Units


The Stoughton Redevelopment Authority (RDA) serves all the citizens of the government and is governed
by a board of seven Commissioners. The rates for user charges and bond issuance authorizations are
approved by the government's council and the government is legally obligated to provide resources in
case there are deficiencies in debt service payments and resources are not available from other remedies.
The Authority is reported as a special revenue fund. The Authority does not issue separate financial
statements.  


Page 25







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


In February 2015, the GASB issued statement No. 72 - Fair Value Measurement and Application. This
statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. It
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. This standard was
implemented January 1, 2016. 


Government-Wide Financial Statements


The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or
services. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.


The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. The city does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of
activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment. Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are reported as general
revenues. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues.


Fund Financial Statements


Financial statements of the city are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a separate
accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts,
which constitute its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net
position/fund balance, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. 


Page 26







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)


Fund Financial Statements (cont.)


Funds are organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and proprietary
statements. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A
fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the city or meets the following criteria:


a. Total assets/deferred outflows of resources, liabilities/deferred inflows of resources, revenues,
or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10% of
the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and 


b. The same element of the individual governmental or enterprise fund that met the 10% test is at
least 5% of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.


c. In addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the city believes is particularly
important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.


Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.


The city reports the following major governmental funds:


General Fund - accounts for the city's primary operating activities. It is used to account for and
report all financial resources except those accounted for and reported in another fund.


Debt Service Fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for the payment of general long-term debt principal,
interest, and related costs, other than TID or enterprise debt.


Construction capital project fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the
acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.


Tax Incremental District (TID) No. 7 Capital Projects Fund - used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures outlined in the
TID project plan.


The city reports the following major enterprise funds:


Water Utility - accounts for operations of the water system
Wastewater Utility - accounts for operations of the wastewater system
Electric Utility - accounts for operations of the electric system


Page 27







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)


Fund Financial Statements (cont.)


The city reports the following nonmajor governmental and enterprise funds:


Special Revenue Funds - used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes (other than debt
service or capital projects).


Library Food Pantry
Ambulance Landmarks
Opera House Fire Department Special
Opera House Repair Senior Center Wood Shop
Township Outreach Senior Center Special
Tourism Economic Development
Seniors in Need Redevelopment Authority
Holiday Special Assessments
CDBG K9 Unit
Cemetery Tree Commission


Capital Projects Funds - used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.


Fire Equipment TIF District No. 3
Park Acquisition TIF District No. 4
River Trail TIF District No. 5
Building Maintenance TIF District No. 6
Equipment Replacement
Outlay


Enterprise Funds - used to account for and report any activity for which a fee is charged to
external uses for goods or services, and must be used for activities which meet certain debt or
cost recovery criteria.


EMS Storm Sewer


In addition, the city reports the following fund types:


Internal Service Fund - used to account for and report the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the city, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.


Retirement fund


Page 28







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)


Fund Financial Statements (cont.)


Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Fund - used to account for and report resources
that are required to be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries of defined benefit pension
plans, defined contribution plans, other postemployment benefit plans, or other employee benefit
plans.


Firemen's Pension Trust


Agency Fund - used to account for and report assets held by the city in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, and/or other governmental units.


Tax Collections Fund


C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION


Government-Wide Financial Statements


The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is
incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from
exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Taxes receivable for the following year
are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met. Special assessments are recorded as
revenue when earned. Unbilled receivables are recorded as revenues when services are provided.


As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the city's water, wastewater, and electric
utilities and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.


Fund Financial Statements


Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they are both
measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the city considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long-term debt,
claims, judgments, compensated absences, and pension expenditures, which are recorded as a fund
liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources.


Page 29







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (cont.)


Fund Financial Statements (cont.)


Property taxes are recorded in the year levied as receivables and deferred inflows. They are recognized
as revenues in the succeeding year when services financed by the levy are being provided.


Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenues in the period the city is entitled the
resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the city which are not available are recorded
as receivables and unavailable revenues. Amounts received before eligibility requirements (excluding time
requirements) are met are recorded as liabilities. Amounts received in advance of meeting time
requirements are recorded as deferred inflows.


Special assessments are recorded as revenues when they become measurable and available as current
assets. Annual installments due in future years are reflected as receivables and unavailable revenues.
Delinquent special assessments being held by the county are reported as receivables and unavailable
revenues.


Revenues susceptible to accrual include property taxes, miscellaneous taxes, public charges for services,
special assessments and interest. Other general revenues such as fines and forfeitures, inspection fees,
recreation fees, and miscellaneous revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable
and available under the criteria described above. 


Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements (other than agency funds) are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as described previously in
this note. Agency funds follow the accrual basis of accounting, and do not have a measurement focus.


The proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
water, wastewater, storm sewer, electric utility funds and EMS fund are charges to customers for sales
and services. Special assessments are recorded as receivables and contribution revenue when levied.
Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.


All Financial Statements


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.


Page 30







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY


1. Deposits and Investments


For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the city considers all highly liquid investments with an initial
maturity of three months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents.


Investment of city funds is restricted by Wisconsin state statutes. Available investments are limited to:


a. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturing in three years or
less.


b. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town, or
school district of the state. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition district, a local professional
baseball park district, a local professional football stadium district, a local cultural arts district, the
University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority, or the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority.


c. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.


d. The local government investment pool.


e. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest rating
category of a nationally recognized rating agency.


f. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust, subject to
various conditions and investment options.


g. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.


The city has adopted an investment policy. That policy follows the state statute for allowable investments,
and does not address the risks disclosed in Note IV.A.


Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on methods and inputs as outlined in
Note IV. A. No investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments
at fair value are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income.
Investment income on commingled investments of municipal accounting funds is allocated based on
average balances. The difference between the bank statement balance and carrying value is due to
outstanding checks and/or deposits in transit.


The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF), and
is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw
their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2016, the fair value of the city 's share of the
LGIP's assets was substantially equal to the amount as reported in these statements.


Page 31







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


1. Deposits and Investments (cont.)


PMA Financial Network, Inc. is the administrator for the Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative
(WISC). The investment manager for WISC is PMA Financial Network, Inc. The WISC is not registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of
the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in WISC are valued at WISC’s share price, the price
for which the investments could be sold. At December 31, 2016 the city's share of the WISC's assets was
substantially equal to the amount reported in these statements.


See Note IV. A. for further information. 


2. Receivables  


Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. In addition to
property taxes for the city, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state and county governments as
well as the local school district and technical college district. Taxes for all state and local governmental
units billed in the current year for the succeeding year are reflected as receivables and due to other taxing
units on the accompanying statement of net position - fiduciary funds.


Property tax calendar - 2016 tax roll:


Lien date and levy date December 2016
Tax bills mailed December 2016
Payment in full, or January 31, 2017
First installment due January 31, 2017
Second installment due July 31, 2017
Personal property taxes in full January 31, 2017
Tax sale - 2016 delinquent real estate taxes October 2019


Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Delinquent real
estate taxes as of July 31 are paid in full by the county, which assumes the collection thereof. No provision
for uncollectible accounts receivable has been made for the water, wastewater, and electric utilities
because they have the right by law to place substantially all delinquent bills on the tax roll, and other
delinquent bills are generally not significant. 


During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds. Short-term interfund loans are reported as "due to and from other funds." Long-term
interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as "advances from and to other funds." Interfund
receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the statement of
net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the governmental-wide financial statements as internal balances.


Page 32







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


2. Receivables (cont.)


In the governmental fund financial statements, advances to other funds are offset equally by a
nonspendable fund balance account which indicates that they do not constitute expendable available
financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation or by a restricted fund balance
account, if the funds will ultimately be restricted when the advance is repaid.


It is the city's policy to record unavailable revenue for the net amount of the receivable balance. As loans
are repaid, revenue is recognized. When new loans are made from the repayments, expenditures are
recorded. Interest received from loan repayments is recognized as revenue when received in cash. Any
unspent loan repayments at year end are presented as restricted fund balance in the fund financial
statements.


3. Inventories and Prepaid Items  


Governmental fund inventory items are charged to expenditure accounts when purchased. Year-end
inventory was not significant. Proprietary fund inventories are generally used for construction and/or for
operation and maintenance work. They are not for resale.    They are valued at cost based on weighted
average, and charged to construction and/or operation and maintenance expense when used.


Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.


4. Restricted Assets  


Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such segregations are required by
bond agreements and other external parties. Current liabilities payable from these restricted assets are so
classified. The excess of restricted assets over current liabilities payable from restricted assets will be
used first for retirement of related long-term debt. The remainder, if generated from earnings, is shown as
restricted net position.


5. Capital Assets  


Government-Wide Statements


Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial cost of more than
$5,000 for general capital assets and $15,000 for infrastructure assets, and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual
amounts are unavailable. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
donation. 


Page 33







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


5. Capital Assets (cont.)


Government-Wide Statements (cont.)


Additions to and replacements of capital assets of business-type activities are recorded at original cost,
which includes material, labor, overhead, and an allowance for the cost of funds used during construction
when significant. For tax-exempt debt, the amount of interest capitalized equals the interest expense
incurred during construction netted against any interest revenue from temporary investment of borrowed
fund proceeds. No interest was capitalized during the current year. The cost of renewals and betterments
relating to retirement units is added to plant accounts. The cost of property replaced, retired or otherwise
disposed of, is deducted from plant accounts and, generally, together with removal costs less salvage, is
charged to accumulated depreciation.


Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the statement of
activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. Depreciation is
provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The range of estimated
useful lives by type of asset is as follows:


Buildings 15-75 Years
Land Improvements 15-30 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3-15 Years
Utility System 5-100 Years
Infrastructure 30-75 Years


Fund Financial Statements


In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary
fund operations are accounted for the same way as in the government-wide statements.


6.  Land Held for Resale 


Land held for resale consists of land and improvements and is valued at cost of acquisition, demolition,
and site improvement. Properties include both land intended for resale and land designated as a public
area. Land held for resale is recorded at historical cost.


Page 34







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


7.  Other Assets  


These accounts include costs related to the utility's investment in American Transmission Company
("ATC") and non-utility property.


The electric utility is a member of ATC. ATC was formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan, construct,
maintain, monitor and own electric transmission facilities in Wisconsin. The utility owns less than 1/2 of 1
percent of ATC. The investment earns dividends quarterly, some of which is paid in cash and some of
which is required to be reinvested. From time to time, the utility has the option to contribute additional
funds to maintain their proportionate share of ownership. The asset is valued at original cost plus
additional contributions and reinvested dividends.


The water and electric utilities have plant and maintenance reserve accounts.  Monthly deposits are made
into this account and made available for routine capital projects and other large operating expenses.


The water, wastewater, and electric utilities have sick leave reserve accounts. Upon retirement, these
funds are used for insurance coverage for utility employees.


Non-Utility Property


Electric utility non-utility property consists of the city dam with a balance of $84,212 and leasehold rental
property with a balance of $91,458 at December 31, 2016. Water utility non-utility property consists of a
park shelter with a balance of $107,000 at December 31, 2016. The costs are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over their useful life.


8.  Deferred Outflows of Resources 


A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position/fund balance that applies to a
future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that future
time.


9. Compensated Absences  


Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacations in varying amounts. Only
benefits considered to be vested are disclosed in these statements. 


All vested vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide  and proprietary
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements, and are payable with
expendable resources. 


Page 35







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


9.  Compensated Absences (cont.)


Payments for vacation and sick leave will be made at rates in effect when the benefits are used.
Accumulated vacation and sick leave balances at December 31, 2016 are determined on the basis of
current salary rates and include salary related payments.


The city provides post-employment health insurance benefits for all eligible employees who chose to
convert accumulated sick leave benefits to post-employment health insurance. The benefits are based on
contractual agreements with employee groups, local ordinances, or employee benefit policies.  Employees
may convert 100% of accumulated sick leave to pay for health care premiums. The cost of those
premiums is recognized as an expenditure as the premiums are paid. The entire cost is paid by the city.
Funding for those costs is provided out of the general fund. Total expenditures for premiums during the
year were $164,555. Six participants were eligible during 2016 to receive benefits. There is no amount
outstanding at year end to be paid in the future. The city does not incur an implicit rate subsidy on these
benefits.


10. Long-Term Obligations   


All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as
liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term obligations consist primarily of notes and
bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.


Long-term obligations for governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund financial
statements. The face value of debts (plus any premiums) are reported as other financing sources and
payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures. The accounting in proprietary funds is the
same as it is in the government-wide statements.


For the government-wide statements and proprietary fund statements, bond premiums and discounts are
amortized over the life of the issue using the effective interest method. The balance at year end is shown
as an increase or decrease in the liability section of the statement of net position.


11. Deferred Inflows of Resources  


A deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position/fund balance that applies to a
future period and therefore will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that future time.


Page 36







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


12.  Equity Classifications  


Government-Wide Statements


Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:


a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances (excluding unspent
debt proceeds) of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.


b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by 1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or, 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.


c. Unrestricted net position - All other net positions that do not meet the definitions of "restricted" or
"net investment in capital assets."


The net position section includes an adjustment for capital assets owned by the business-type activities
column, but financed by the debt of the governmental activities column. The amount is a reduction of "net
investment in capital assets", and an increase in "unrestricted" net position, shown only in the total
column. A reconciliation of this adjustment is as follows:


Governmental
Activities


Business-type
Activities Adjustment Total


Net investment in capital assets $ 19,190,712 $ 36,484,386 $ (665,710) $ 55,009,388
Unrestricted 6,887,305 11,828,364 665,710 19,381,379


When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the city's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.


Fund Statements


Governmental fund balances are displayed as follows:


a.  Nonspendable - Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because they are
not in spendable form or because legal or contractual requirements require them to be
maintained intact.


b.  Restricted - Consists of fund balances with constraints placed on their use either by 1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.


Page 37







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


12.  Equity Classifications (cont.)


Fund Statements (cont.)


c.  Committed - Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are
internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of decision
making authority. Fund balance amounts are committed through a formal action (resolution) of
the City Council. This formal action must occur prior to the end of the reporting period, but the
amount of the commitment, which will be subject to the constraints, may be determined in the
subsequent period. Any changes to the constraints imposed require the same formal action of
the City Council that originally created the commitment.


d.  Assigned - Includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific
purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. The City
Council has, by resolution, adopted a financial policy authorizing the finance director to assign
amounts for a specific purpose. Assignments may take place after the end of the reporting
period.


e.  Unassigned - Includes residual positive fund balance within the general fund which has not been
classified within the other above mentioned categories. Unassigned fund balance may also
include negative balances for any governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned for those purposes.


Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.


The city considers restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance
is available unless there are legal documents / contracts that prohibit doing this, such as in grant
agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the city would first use committed, then
assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.


The city has a formal minimum fund balance policy. That policy is to maintain an unassigned general fund
balance within a range of 20% to 25% of general fund annual budgeted expenditures. The unassigned
general fund balance at year end was $3,364,758 or 26.6% of 2016 general fund budgeted expenditures.


See Note IV. H. for further information.


Fiduciary fund equity is classified as held in trust for pension benefits on the statement of fiduciary net
position. Various donor restrictions apply, including authorizing and spending trust income, and the city
believes it is in compliance with all significant restrictions. Net appreciation of $39,022 was available for
the year ended.


Page 38







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (cont.)


13.  Pension  


For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and additions to/deductions from WRS' fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by WRS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.


14.  Basis for Existing Rates  


Current water rates were approved by the PSCW effective May 1, 2016.


Current electric rates were approved by the PSCW on September 1, 2015.


Current wastewater rates were approved by the utilities committee effective January 1, 2015.


NOTE II - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


A. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE


SHEET AND THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
position. The details of this reconciliation include the following items.


Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in
the funds.


Capital assets not being depreciated $ 12,277,840
Capital assets, net of depreciation 26,194,098


Combined Adjustment for Capital Assets $ 38,471,938


Page 39







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE II - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)


A. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE


SHEET AND THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (cont.)


Long-term liabilities applicable to the city's governmental activities are not due and payable in the current
period, and accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in
governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities-both current and
long-term-are reported in the statement of net position.


Bonds and notes payable $ 25,456,106
Compensated absences 1,226,460
Accrued interest 186,917


Combined Adjustment for Long-Term
Liabilities $ 26,869,483


NOTE III - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY  


A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION


A budget has been adopted for the general, construction, opera house, library, outlay, EMS and storm
sewer funds. A budget has not been formally adopted for any other funds. Wisconsin Statute 65.90
requires that an annual budget be adopted for all funds.


B. EXCESS EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES OVER APPROPRIATIONS  


Funds
Budgeted


Expenditures
Actual


Expenditures


Excess
Expenditures Over


Budget


Opera House $ 726,699 $ 955,876 $ 229,177
Library 825,063 880,981 55,918


The city controls expenditures at the object level. Some individual line items experienced expenditures
which exceeded appropriations. The detail of those items can be found in the city's year-end budget to
actual report.


Page 40







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE III - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (cont.)


C. DEFICIT BALANCES  


Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of individual funds that have deficit balances
at year end.


As of December 31, 2016, the following individual funds held a deficit balance:


Fund Amount Reason


Special revenue - Opera House $ 177,967 Expenditures in excess of revenues
Special revenue - Economic


Development
6,746 Expenditures in excess of revenues


Special revenue - Redevelopment
Authority


65,843 Expenditures in excess of revenues


Special revenue -  Special
Assessments


39,902 Expenditures in excess of revenues


Special revenue - River Trail 359 Expenditures in excess of revenues
Capital projects - TIF District No. 5 419,916 Expenditures in excess of revenues
Capital projects - TIF District No. 6 18,600 Expenditures in excess of revenues


TIF district deficits are anticipated to be funded with future incremental taxes levied over the life of the
districts, which is 27 years for the districts created before October 1, 1995, and 23 years for districts
created thereafter through September 30, 2004. Beginning October 1, 2004, the life of new districts varies
by type of district (20-27 years) and may be extended in some cases. Other fund deficits are anticipated to
be funded with future contributions, general tax revenues, or long-term borrowing.


D. LIMITATIONS ON THE CITY'S TAX LEVY  


Wisconsin law limits the city's future tax levies. Generally the city is limited to its prior tax levy dollar
amount (excluding TIF Districts), increased by the greater of the percentage change in the city's equalized
value due to new construction or zero percent. Changes in debt service from one year to the next are
generally exempt from this limit with certain exceptions. The city is required to reduce its allowable levy by
the estimated amount of fee revenue it collects for certain services, if those services were funded in 2013
by the property tax levy. Levies can be increased above the allowable limits if the amount is approved by
referendum.


Page 41







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS  


A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS


The city's deposits and investments at year end were comprised of the following:


Carrying
Value


Statement
Balances Associated Risks


Deposits $ 16,881,380 $ 13,497,957 Custodial credit
US agencies - implicitly guaranteed 1,713,738 1,713,738 Credit, custodial credit,


concentration of credit,
interest rate


Mutual funds - bond funds 44,713 44,713 Credit
LGIP 1,408,680 1,408,680 Credit
Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,643,412 2,643,412 Credit, custodial credit,


concentration of credit,
interest rate


State and local bonds 1,029,196 1,029,196 Credit, custodial credit,
concentration of credit,
interest rate


Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative 15,898,624 15,900,163 Credit, interest rate
U.S. treasuries 3,207,367 3,207,367 Custodial credit, interest


rate
Petty cash 1,801 - N/A


Total Deposits and Investments $ 42,828,911 $ 39,445,226


Reconciliation to financial statements


Per statement of net position
Unrestricted cash and investments $ 21,846,092
Restricted cash and investments 8,453,964


Per statement of net position - fiduciary
funds


Pension Trust 770,493
Agency Fund 11,758,362


Total Deposits and Investments $ 42,828,911


Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for time and
savings accounts (including NOW accounts) and $250,000 for demand deposit accounts (interest-bearing
and noninterest-bearing). In addition, if deposits are held in an institution outside of the state in which the
government is located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the combined amount
of all deposit accounts.Deposits in the credit union are insured by the National Credit Union Administration
in the amount of $250,000 for all share draft accounts and $250,000 for all share certificate and regular
share accounts.


Page 42







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)


Bank accounts and credit unions are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund in the amount of
$400,000. However, due to the nature of this fund, recovery of material principal losses may not be
significant to individual municipalities. This coverage has not been considered in computing custodial
credit risk.


The Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC), created by the Securities Investor Protection Act of
1970, is an independent government-sponsored corporation (not an agency of the U.S. government).


SIPC membership provides account protection up to a maximum of $500,000 per customer, of which
$100,000 may be in cash. $500,000 of the city's investments are covered by SIPC. 


The city maintains collateral agreements with its banks. At December 31, 2016, the banks had pledged
various government securities in the amount of $4,848,162 to secure the city's deposits.


The city categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.


The valuation methods for recurring fair value measurements are as follows:


 Market approach


December 31, 2016


Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total


Negotiable certificates of deposit $ - $ 2,643,412 $ - $ 2,643,412
US agencies - implicitly guaranteed - 1,713,738 - 1,713,738
State and local bonds - 1,029,196 - 1,029,196


Total $ - $ 5,386,346 $ - $ 5,386,346


Custodial Credit Risk 


Deposits


Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the city's deposits may not
be returned to the city.


As of December 31, 2016, $6,503,157 of the city's total bank balances were exposed to custodial credit
risk as follows:


Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 6,503,157


Total $ 6,503,157


Page 43







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)


Custodial Credit Risk (cont.)


Investments


For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
city will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party.


U.S. Agencies


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 1,713,738


State and local bonds


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 1,029,196


U.S. Treasuries


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 3,207,367


Credit Risk 


Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.


As of December 31, 2016, the city's investments were rated as follows:


Investment Type
Standard &


Poors


Moody's
Investors
Services Morning-Star


U.S. Agencies AAA Aa
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Not rated
Mutual Fund - Fidelity Puritan 5 star
State and local bonds AA Aa1 - Aa2
Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative AAAm


The city also held investments in the following external pool which is not rated:


Local Government Investment Pool


Page 44







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)


Interest Rate Risk


Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the value of an investment.


As of December 31, 2016, the city's investments were as follows:


Maturity (In Years)


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-3 3 or more


US treasuries $ 3,207,367 $ 3,207,367 $ - $ -
US agencies 1,713,738 - - 1,713,738
State and local bonds 1,029,196 - - 1,029,196
Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,643,412 682,461 1,960,951 -


Totals $ 8,593,713 $ 3,889,828 $ 1,960,951 $ 2,742,934


The average maturity of investments at Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative is not available. 


See Note I.D.1. for further information on deposit and investment policies.


Page 45







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


B. RECEIVABLES  


Receivables as of year end for the government's individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:


General
Fund


Debt
Service Construction


TIF District
No. 7


Water
Utility


Wastewater
Utility


Electric
Utility


Nonmajor
Funds Totals


Receivables
Taxes $8,875,594 $ - $ - $ 242,013 $ - $ - $ - $ 810,590 $ 9,928,197
Delinquent personal


property tax 43,797 - - - - - - - 43,797
Accounts 271,404 - 5,699 107,757 237,248 212,282 1,688,079 158,271 2,680,740
Special assessments - - - - 450,927 309,233 - 89,312 849,472
Interest - - - - 3,858 1,921 49,995 - 55,774
Loans - - - - - - - 50,000 50,000
Delinquent special


assessments 6,636 - - - - - - - 6,636
Leases - 74,128 - - - - - - 74,128
Other - - - - - - - 910 -


Gross receivables 9,197,431 74,128 5,699 349,770 692,033 523,436 1,738,074 1,109,083 13,688,744


Less:  Allowance for
uncollectibles - - - - - - - (22,670) (22,670)


Net Total
Receivables $9,197,431 $ 74,128 $ 5,699 $ 349,770 $ 692,033 $ 523,436 $ 1,738,074 $ 1,086,413 $13,666,074


Amounts not expected
to be collected within
one year $ 50,433 $ 15,167 $ - $ - $ 400,824 $ 274,874 $ - $ 139,312 $ 880,610


Governmental funds report unavailable or unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues
that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Property taxes levied for
the subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received,
but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unavailable revenue
and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:


Unearned Unavailable


Property taxes receivable for subsequent year $ 9,753,757 $ -
Special assessments not yet due - 116,829
Lease receivable - 74,128
Loans receivable - 50,000


Total Unearned/Unavailable Revenue for
Governmental Funds $ 9,753,757 $ 240,957


Page 46







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


C. RESTRICTED ASSETS  


The following represent the balances of the restricted assets:


Long-Term Debt Accounts


Redemption - Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the
next twelve months.


Reserve - Used to report resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies in
the redemption account.


Depreciation - Used to report resources set aside to fund plant renewals and replacement or
make up potential future deficiencies in the redemption account.


Construction - Used to report proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are restricted for use in
construction.


Equipment Replacement Account


The Wastewater utility established an equipment replacement account to be used for significant
mechanical equipment replacement as required by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.


Following is a list of restricted assets at December 31, 2016: 


Restricted
Assets


Liabilities
Payable from


Restricted
Assets


Restricted Net
Position


Bond redemption account $ 1,119,687 $ 101,639 $ 1,018,048
Bond reserve account 894,015 - 894,015
Bond depreciation account 83,283 - 83,283
Construction account 2,053,324 - n/a
Equipment replacement account 1,096,288 - 1,096,288


Total $ 5,246,597 $ 101,639 $ 3,091,634


Additionally, $3,207,667 is restricted for debt service refunding for governmental activities. 


Page 47







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS  


Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016, was as follows:


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated


Land $ 9,439,210 $ - $ - $ 9,439,210
Construction in progress 441,630 1,040,479 19,898 1,462,211
Inexhaustible portion of streets 1,376,419 - - 1,376,419


Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 11,257,259 1,040,479 19,898 12,277,840


Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 15,482,520 168,875 41,712 15,609,683
Machinery and equipment 9,798,098 860,431 516,671 10,141,858
Streets 15,661,564 2,067,913 944,312 16,785,165
Storm sewers 5,673,610 - 180,436 5,493,174
Street lighting 227,551 - - 227,551
Bridges 845,989 - - 845,989
Sidewalks 4,682,774 149,268 20,151 4,811,891
Traffic signals 411,974 - - 411,974
Dams 592,997 - - 592,997


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 53,377,077 3,246,487 1,703,282 54,920,282


Total Capital Assets 64,634,336 4,286,966 1,723,180 67,198,122


Less:  Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements (6,252,982) (403,308) 34,988 (6,621,302)
Machinery and equipment (7,035,118) (431,942) 426,362 (7,040,698)
Streets (9,665,112) (558,946) 944,312 (9,279,746)
Storm sewers (2,778,211) (182,923) 180,436 (2,780,698)
Street lighting (41,159) (3,034) - (44,193)
Bridges (188,046) (11,280) - (199,326)
Sidewalks (2,467,816) (96,238) 20,151 (2,543,903)
Traffic signals (158,579) (10,299) - (168,878)
Dams (41,510) (5,930) - (47,440)


Total Accumulated Depreciation (28,628,533) (1,703,900) 1,606,249 (28,726,184)


Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 24,748,544 1,542,587 97,033 26,194,098


Total Governmental
Activities Capital Assets,
Net of Accumulated
Depreciation $ 36,005,803 $ 2,583,066 $ 116,931 $ 38,471,938


Page 48







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:


Governmental Activities
General government $ 96,708
Public safety 349,485
Public works, which includes the depreciation of infrastructure 1,048,865
Culture, recreation and education 208,842


Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense $ 1,703,900


Business-type Activities


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Water
Capital assets not being depreciated


Land and land rights $ 430,131 $ - $ - $ 430,131
Construction in progress 106,478 883,885 909,725 80,638


Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 536,609 883,885 909,725 510,769


Capital assets being depreciated
Source of supply 595,730 - - 595,730
Pumping 1,468,520 20,920 - 1,489,440
Treatment 90,763 - - 90,763
Transmission and distribution 16,766,589 1,827,934 66,782 18,527,741
Administrative and general assets 843,272 2,431 - 845,703


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 19,764,874 1,851,285 66,782 21,549,377


Total Capital Assets 20,301,483 2,735,170 976,507 22,060,146


Less:  Accumulated depreciation for
Source of supply (352,437) (17,276) - (369,713)
Pumping (1,214,858) (43,630) - (1,258,488)
Treatment (88,203) (437) - (88,640)
Transmission and distribution (3,999,252) (316,262) 86,457 (4,229,057)
Administrative and general assets (747,883) (84,778) - (832,661)


Total Accumulated  Depreciation (6,402,633) (462,383) 86,457 (6,778,559)


Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 13,362,241 1,388,902 (19,675) 14,770,818


Net Water Capital Assets $ 13,898,850 $ 2,272,787 $ 890,050 $ 15,281,587


Page 49







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Business-type Activities (cont.)


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Wastewater
Capital assets not being depreciated


Construction in progress $ 61,100 $ 39,244 $ 5,553 $ 94,791
Total Capital Assets Not Being


Depreciated 61,100 39,244 5,553 94,791


Capital assets being depreciated
Collection system 10,363,837 868,844 18,028 11,214,653
Collection system pumping 401,065 332,454 - 733,519
Treatment and disposal 15,554,351 - - 15,554,351
Administrative and general assets 1,314,953 61,664 - 1,376,617


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 27,634,206 1,262,962 18,028 28,879,140


Total Capital Assets 27,695,306 1,302,206 23,581 28,973,931


Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Wastewater (9,483,326) (796,285) 29,558 (10,250,053)


Total Accumulated Depreciation (9,483,326) (796,285) 29,558 (10,250,053)


Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 18,150,880 466,677 (11,530) 18,629,087


Net Wastewater Capital
Assets $ 18,211,980 $ 505,921 $ (5,977) $ 18,723,878


Page 50







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Business-type Activities (cont.)


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Electric
Capital assets not being depreciated


Land and land rights $ 220,797 $ - $ - $ 220,797
Construction in progress 251,853 187,437 249,891 189,399
Property held for future use 352,664 - - 352,664


Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 825,314 187,437 249,891 762,860


Capital assets being depreciated
Transmission 15,019 - - 15,019
Distribution 22,777,607 1,251,311 91,267 23,937,651
Administrative and general assets 4,109,842 6,685 - 4,116,527


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 26,902,468 1,257,996 91,267 28,069,197


Total Capital Assets 27,727,782 1,445,433 341,158 28,832,057


Less:  Accumulated depreciation for
Transmission (19,366) - - (19,366)
Distribution (10,731,691) (845,302) 91,267 (11,485,726)
Administrative and general assets (2,727,478) (197,311) - (2,924,789)


Total Accumulated Depreciation (13,478,535) (1,042,613) 91,267 (14,429,881)


Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 13,423,933 215,383 - 13,639,316


Net Electric Capital Assets $ 14,249,247 $ 402,820 $ 249,891 $ 14,402,176


Page 51







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Business-type Activities (cont.)


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Stormwater
Capital assets not being


depreciated/amortized
Land $ 9,986 $ - $ - $ 9,986


Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated/Amortized 9,986 - - 9,986


Capital assets being depreciated
Storm Sewer 1,016,135 395,130 - 1,411,265


Total Capital Assets Being depreciated 1,016,135 395,130 - 1,411,265


Total Capital Assets 1,026,121 395,130 - 1,421,251


Less:  Accumulated depreciation for
Storm Sewer (69,983) (47,042) - (117,025)


Total Accumulated Depreciation (69,983) (47,042) - (117,025)


Net Capital Assets Being
depreciated 946,152 348,088 - 1,294,240


Net Stormwater Capital
Assets $ 956,138 $ 348,088 $ - $ 1,304,226


EMS
Capital assets being depreciated


Buildings and improvements $ 1,240,308 $ - $ - $ 1,240,308
Equipment 841,123 17,750 16,330 842,543


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 2,081,431 17,750 16,330 2,082,851


Less:  Accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements (254,560) (25,226) - (279,786)
Equipment (439,075) (75,087) 16,330 (497,832)


Total Accumulated Depreciation (693,635) (100,313) 16,330 (777,618)


Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 1,387,796 (82,563) - 1,305,233


Net Other Enterprise Capital
Assets $ 1,387,796 $ (82,563) $ - $ 1,305,233


Business-type Capital Assets, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation $ 48,704,011 $ 3,447,053 $ 1,133,964 $ 51,017,100


Page 52







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:


Business-type Activities
Water $ 428,084
Waste water 796,285
Electric 996,954
Storm sewer 47,042
EMS 100,313


Total Business-type Activities Depreciation Expense $ 2,368,678


Depreciation expense may be different from business-type activity capital asset additions because of joint
metering, salvage, cost of removal, internal allocations, or cost associated with the disposal of assets.


Page 53







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS   


Interfund Receivables/Payables


The following is a schedule of interfund receivables and payables including any overdrafts on pooled cash
and investment accounts:


Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount


Amount Not
Due Within One


Year


General Tourism $ 4,069 $ -
General TIF District No. 4 360,802 -
General Water Utility 387,855 -
General Electric Utility 376,785 -
General Special Assessments 37,175 -
General Redevelopment Authority 64,071 64,071
General Debt Service 31,666 -
Construction Water Utility 10,564 -
Construction Wastewater Utility 5,843 -
Debt Service Water Utility 4,845 -
Debt Service Wastewater Utility 3,230 -
Debt Service EMS 243,642 -
Water Utility General 5,260 -
Wastewater Utility General 4,694 -
Electric Utility General 15,289 -
General River Trail 359 359
Storm Sewer Electric Utility 85,769 -
Water Utility Special Assessments 65,134 -
Wastewater Utility Special Assessments 44,667 -


Total - Fund Financial Statements 1,751,719


Less:  Fund eliminations (853,999)


Less:  Interfund advances (376,653)


Total Internal Balances - Government-Wide Statement of
Net Position $ 521,067


Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount


Governmental Activities Business-type Activities $ 1,032,764
Business-type Activities Governmental Activities (511,697)


Total Government-Wide Financial Statements $ 521,067


Page 54







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (cont.)


Interfund Receivables/Payables (cont.)


The principal purpose of these interfunds is to fund ongoing operations.  All remaining balances resulted
from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable
expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between
funds are made.


Advances


The general fund is advancing funds to the TIF District Nos. 5 and 6 capital project funds. The amount
advanced is determined by the deficiency of revenues over expenditures and other financing sources
since the district's inception. A repayment schedule has not been established.


In December 2011, the Electric Utility provided an advance to the Internal Service Fund for the purpose of
full payment of the Wisconsin Retirement System Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. The Internal
Service Fund will repay the Electric Utility over a period of fourteen years at 3%. A repayment schedule
has been established.


The following is a schedule of interfund advances:


Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount


Amount Not
Due Within One


Year


General Fund TIF District No. 5 $ 598,427 $ 598,427
General Fund TIF District No. 6 20,000 20,000
Electric Utility Internal service fund 376,653 337,463


Total - Fund Financial Statements 995,080


Less:  Fund eliminations (618,427)


Total - Interfund Advances $ 376,653


Internal Service Fund Advance


Years Principal Interest


2017 $ 39,190 $ 11,300
2018 41,375 10,124
2019 43,646 8,883
2020 46,007 7,573
2021 48,459 6,193
2022-2025 157,976 9,726


Totals $ 376,653 $ 53,799


Page 55







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (cont.)


Advances (cont.)


For the statement of net position, interfund advances which are owed within the governmental activities or
business-type activities are netted and eliminated.


Transfers


The following is a schedule of interfund transfers:


Fund Transferred To Fund Transferred From Amount Principal Purpose


General Tourism $ 8,069 Room tax revenue


General Water utility 390,267
Payment in lieu of taxes and


dividend


General Electric utility 397,998
Payment in lieu of taxes and


dividend
Debt service General 2,337,231 Payments on non-TID debt
Debt service TIF District No. 3 439,529 Payments on TIF District debt
Debt service TIF District No. 4 107,905 Payments on TIF District debt
Construction Storm Sewer 38,870 Fund capital projects
Construction Special Assessments 279,000 Fund capital projects
Construction Building Maintenance 30,000 Fund capital projects
Construction Park Acquisition 70,000 Fund capital projects
EMS General 81,054 Fund operations
Library General 560,495 Fund annual operations
Opera house General 143,506 Fund capital projects
Outlay General 200,000 Fund capital projects
Outlay Building Maintenance 101,758 Fund capital projects
Outlay Equipment replacement 508,000 Fund capital projects
Equipment Replacement General 400,000 Fund capital projects


Total - Fund Financial Statements 6,093,682


Less:  Fund eliminations (5,347,601)


Capital assets contributions from governmental
activities to business-type activities (671,583)


Total Transfers - Government-Wide Statement
of Activities $ 74,498


Page 56







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES, ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (cont.)


Transfers (cont.)


Fund Transferred To Fund Transferred From Amount


Governmental Activities Business-type Activities $ 827,135
Business-type Activities Governmental Activities (752,637)


Total Government-wide Financial Statements $ 74,498


Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that collects them to the fund that the
budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the
receipts to the debt service fund, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS  


Long-term obligations activity for the year ended December 31, 2016, was as follows:


Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases


Ending
Balance


Amounts Due
Within One


Year


Governmental Activities
Bonds and Notes Payable


General obligation debt $ 16,545,527 $ 6,680,000 $ 2,544,421 $ 20,681,106 $ 5,773,534
Bond anticipation notes 4,775,000 - - 4,775,000 -


Sub-totals 21,320,527 6,680,000 2,544,421 25,456,106 5,773,534


Other Liabilities
Compensated absences (Note


I.D.9) 1,568,122 - 341,662 1,226,460 -
Net pension liability (Note V.A) - 556,063 - 556,063 -


Total Other Liabilities 1,568,122 556,063 341,662 1,782,523 -


Total Governmental
Activities Long-Term
Liabilities $ 22,888,649 $ 7,236,063 $ 2,886,083 $ 27,238,629 $ 5,773,534


Page 57







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases


Ending
Balance


Amounts Due
Within One


Year


Business-type Activities
Bonds and Notes Payable


General obligation debt $ 2,553,436 $ - $ 313,409 $ 2,240,027 $ 318,409
Revenue bonds 11,796,134 6,525,000 3,969,347 14,351,787 1,346,072
Unamortized premium on


bonds 48,863 132,256 13,910 167,209 -


Sub-totals 14,398,433 6,657,256 4,296,666 16,759,023 1,664,481


Other Liabilities
Vested compensated


absences 368,987 75,231 33,871 410,347 -
Net pension liability - 191,050 - 191,050 -
Customer advances for


construction 225,387 175,808 374,054 27,141 -


Total Other Liabilities 594,374 442,089 407,925 628,538 -


Total Business-type
Activities Long-Term
Liabilities $ 14,992,807 $ 7,099,345 $ 4,704,591 $ 17,387,561 $ 1,664,481


In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the city may not exceed
5% of the equalized value of taxable property within the city's jurisdiction. The debt limit as of December
31, 2016, was $50,039,825. Total general obligation debt outstanding at year end was $22,921,133. 


Page 58







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


General Obligation Debt 


All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the city. Notes and
bonds in the governmental funds will be retired by future property tax levies or tax increments
accumulated by the debt service fund. Business-type activities debt is payable by revenues from user fees
of those funds or, if the revenues are not sufficient, by future tax levies.


Governmental Activities


General Obligation Debt
Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2016


2008 General Obligation
Notes 2/13/08 2/1/18 3.00 - 3.50% $ 485,000 $ 115,000


2008 General Obligation
Notes 2/13/08 2/1/18 2.85 - 3.40 1,005,000 235,000


2008 General Obligation
Bonds 2/13/08 4/1/26 3.25 - 3.75 5,530,000 3,475,000


2009 General Obligation
Refunding Notes 4/14/09 3/1/19 1.60 - 3.85 5,060,000 865,000


2010 General Obligation
Notes 4/13/10 3/1/20 1.25 - 4.40 3,000,000 1,595,000


2010 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds 4/13/10 3/1/20 1.00 - 3.25 3,095,000 1,385,000


2012 General Obligation
Notes 4/15/12 3/1/22 0.40 - 2.00 2,759,000 1,824,973


2013 State Trust Fund
Loan 6/23/13 3/15/20 2.75 1,400,000 826,133


2014 General Obligation
Notes 6/1/14 4/1/24 2.00 - 2.25 2,755,000 2,295,000


2015 General Obligation
Notes 7/9/15 4/1/25 2.00 - 2.25 1,545,000 1,385,000


2016 General Obligation
Notes 5/26/16 4/1/26 3.25 - 3.75 5,830,000 5,830,000


2016 State Trust Fund
Loan 12/28/16 3/15/36 3.5 850,000 850,000


Total Governmental Activities - General Obligation Debt $ 20,681,106


Page 59







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


General Obligation Debt (cont.)


Business-type Activities


General Obligation Debt
Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2016


2010 General Obligation
Notes 4/13/10 3/1/20 1.25 - 4.40% $ 1,015,000 $ 510,000


2012 General Obligation
Notes 4/15/12 3/1/22 0.40 - 2.00 661,000 430,027


2014 General Obligation
Notes 6/1/14 4/1/24 2.00 - 2.25 280,000 230,000


2015 General Obligation
Notes 7/9/15 4/1/25 2.00 - 2.25 1,180,000 1,070,000


Total Business-type Activities - General Obligation Debt $ 2,240,027


Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:


Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
General Obligation Debt General Obligation Debt


Years Principal Interest Principal Interest


2017 $ 5,773,534 $ 409,716 $ 324,676 $ 52,762
2018 2,684,119 310,588 330,970 43,948
2019 2,445,602 240,730 342,289 34,549
2020 2,401,095 180,971 348,635 24,602
2021 1,371,014 138,784 215,007 17,360
2022-2026 5,486,408 351,452 678,450 27,609
2027-2031 237,383 74,886 - -
2032-2036 281,951 30,316 - -


Totals $ 20,681,106 $ 1,737,443 $ 2,240,027 $ 200,830


Revenue Debt


Business-type activities revenue bonds are payable only from revenues derived from the operation of the
water, wastewater and electric utilities. 


Page 60







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Revenue Debt (cont.)


The utilities have pledged future  revenues to repay revenue bonds issued between 1999-2016. Proceeds
from the bonds provided financing for the utility construction, improvements, and additions. The bonds are
payable solely from utility revenues and are payable through 2036. Annual principal and interest payments
on the bonds are expected to require 2%, 12% and 17%, respectively of electric, water and wastewater
gross revenues. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $16,681,014.
Principal and interest paid for the current year and total customer gross revenues were $1,390,959 and
$19,273,152, respectively.


Revenue debt payable at December 31, 2016, consists of the following:


Business-type Activities Revenue Debt


Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2016


Water Utility


2010 Water Utility Revenue
Bonds 1/27/10 5/1/29 2.67% $ 575,018 $ 423,424


2016 Water Utility Revenue
Bonds 5/26/16 5/1/26 1.00 - 2.75 2,520,000 2,520,000


Total Water Utility 2,943,424


Wastewater Utility


1999 Wastewater Utility
Clean Water Fund Loan 12/22/99 5/1/19 3.049% $ 623,465 120,341


2000 Wastewater Utility
Clean Water Fund Loan 7/12/00 5/1/20 3.049 1,116,259 280,959


2003 Wastewater Utility
Clean Water Fund Loan 9/10/03 5/1/23 2.766 1,670,624 695,113


2007 Wastewater Utility
Clean Water Fund Loan 6/27/07 5/1/27 2.475 1,539,762 1,015,168


2014 Wastewater Utility
Clean Water Fund Loan 11/1/14 5/1/34 2.625 3,305,713 3,046,782


Total Wastewater Utility 5,158,363


Page 61







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Business-type Activities Revenue Debt (cont.)


Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2016


Electric Utility


2013 Electric Utility
Revenue Bonds 4/1/13 4/1/23 2.00 - 2.25% $ 3,170,000 $ 2,245,000


2016 Electric Utility
Revenue Bonds 5/26/16 4/1/36 2.00 - 3.00 4,005,000 4,005,000


Total Electric Utility 6,250,000


Total Business-type Activities - Revenue Debt $ 14,351,787


Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:


Business-type Activities
Revenue Debt


Years Principal Interest


2017 $ 1,346,072 $ 344,400
2018 1,353,118 284,929
2019 1,370,495 256,850
2020 1,405,628 228,089
2021 1,346,722 199,390
2022-2026 4,419,539 630,125
2027-2031 1,768,893 305,146
2032-2036 1,341,320 80,298


Totals $ 14,351,787 $ 2,329,227


Note Anticipation Notes 


Note anticipation notes at December 31, 2016, consist of the following:


Governmental Activities


Notes Anticipation Notes
Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2016


2015 Note Anticipation
Notes 10/21/15 10/1/18 1.250% $ 4,775,000 $ 4,775,000


Total Governmental Activities Bond Anticipation Notes $ 4,775,000


Page 62







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Bond Anticipation Notes (cont.)


Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:


Governmental Activities
Bond Anticipation Notes


Years Principal Interest


2017 $ - $ 59,688
2018 4,775,000 59,688


Totals $ 4,775,000 $ 119,376


Capital Leases 


Refer to Note IV.H.


Other Debt Information  


Estimated payments of compensated absences are not included in the debt service requirement
schedules. The compensated absences liability, other post employment benefits obligation, and net
pension obligation attributable to governmental activities will be liquidated primarily by the general fund. 


A statutory mortgage lien upon the city's system and any additions, improvements and extensions thereto
is created by Section 66.0621 of the Wisconsin Statutes as provided for in the ordinances creating the
revenue bond issue. The city's system and the earnings of the system remain subject to the lien until
payment in full of the principal and interest on the bonds.


The water and electric mortgage revenue bond ordinances require segregation of the proceeds of the
bond issues and the creation and continual funding of several funds from operating revenues. The city
was in compliance with funding requirements in all material respects at December 31, 2016.


Crossover Refunding


On May 26, 2016, the city issued $5,830,000 in general obligation bonds with an average coupon rate of
1.7% to advance refund $3,180,000 of outstanding bonds with an average coupon rate of 3.25-3.75% and
to provide $2,620,000 of proceeds to fund capital projects. $3,210,000 of net proceeds along with existing
funds of the city were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an
account to provide for future debt service payments on the new bonds until the crossover date. The bonds
are not considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds as well as the escrow account are
recorded in the financial statements. This type of advance refunding is commonly called a crossover
refunding.


Page 63







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Crossover Refunding (cont.)


The cash flow requirements on the refunded debt prior to the advance refunding was $4,199,213 from
2017 through 2026. The cash flow requirements on the refunding bonds are $3,911,368 from 2017
through 2026. The advance refunding resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present
values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $271,770. 


Current Refunding


On May 26, 2016, the water utility issued $2,520,000 in revenue bonds with an average coupon rate of
1.77% to refund $1,175,000 of outstanding bonds with an average coupon rate of 3.77% and provide
$1,320,000 of proceeds to fund new construction. $1,200,000 of the net proceeds along with existing
funds of the water utility were used to prepay the outstanding debt.


The cash flow requirements on the refunded debt prior to the current refunding was $1,396,625 from 2017
through 2023. The cash flow requirements on the  refunding bonds are $1,269,531 from 2017 through
2023. The current refunding resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present values of the
debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $122,199. 


On May 26, 2016, the electric utility issued $4,005,000 in revenue bonds with an average coupon rate of
2.20% to refund $1,725,000 of outstanding 2006 bonds with an average coupon rate of 3.71% and provide
$2,445,000 of proceeds to fund new construction. $1,560,000 of the net proceeds along with existing
funds of the electric utility were used to prepay the outstanding debt.


The cash flow requirements on the refunded debt prior to the current refunding was $2,058,000 from 2017
through 2023. The cash flow requirements on the  refunding bonds are $1,685,833 from 2017 through
2023. The current refunding resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present values of the
debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $157,590. 


Page 64







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


G.   LEASE DISCLOSURES


Lessor - Capital Leases


In 2007, the city amended the original 1998 lease agreement with the Mandt Community Center, Inc.
(MCCI). Under terms of the lease, the city is to receive monthly payments ranging from $4,490 to $5,113
from MCCI for the use of the ice arena. The lease payments received by the city approximately equal the
annual debt service requirements of the corresponding city general obligation debt for the ice arena.
Differences between the lease payments and debt payments are due to the timing difference between
lease and debt payments. The lease payments may only be used to pay debt service on the city notes.
Ownership of the property reverts to MCCI upon full payment of the outstanding debt. The term of the
lease is from April 1, 1998 through March 1, 2018.  Lease payments to maturity are as follows:


Governmental Activities


Years Principal Interest Total


2017 $ 58,961 $ 1,964 $ 60,925
2018 15,167 352 15,519


Totals $ 74,128 $ 2,316 $ 76,444


H. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES


Net position reported on the government wide statement of net position at December 31, 2016, includes
the following:


Governmental Activities


Net Investment in Capital Assets
Land $ 9,439,210
Construction in progress 1,462,211
Inexhaustible portion of streets 1,376,419
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 26,194,098
Less:  Related long-term debt outstanding (excluding unspent capital related


debt proceeds) (19,281,226)


Total Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 19,190,712


Page 65







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


H. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (cont.)


Governmental Funds


Governmental fund balances reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2016, include the
following:


General
Fund


Debt
Service Construction


TIF District
No. 7


Nonmajor
Funds Totals


Fund Balances


  Nonspendable:
Delinquent items $ 50,433 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 50,433
Prepaid items - - - - 69,875 69,875
Noncurrent interfunds 682,857 - - - - 682,857
CVMIC equity 257,805 - - - - 257,805


 Restricted for:
Debt service - 3,427,418 - - - 3,427,418
Library - - - - 202,444 202,444
Impact fees - - - - 337,799 337,799
TID activities - - - 1,055,847 1,265,382 2,321,229
CDBG - - - - 6,374 6,374


  Committed to:
Food pantry - - - - 141,425 141,425
Landmarks - - - - 1,182 1,182
Fire department special - - - - 30,883 30,883
Ambulance - - - - 16,684 16,684
Opera house repair - - - - 6,447 6,447
Township outreach - - - - 5,498 5,498
Tourism - - - - 23,823 23,823
Seniors in need - - - - 38,616 38,616
Holiday - - - - 4,786 4,786
Senior center wood shop - - - - 3,221 3,221
Senior center special - - - - 440,558 440,558
K9 unit - - - - 18,677 18,677
Tree commission - - - - 2,703 2,703
Cemetery - - - - 32,972 32,972


Page 66







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


H. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (cont.)


Governmental Funds (cont.)


General
Fund


Debt
Service Construction


TIF District
No. 7


Nonmajor
Funds Totals


 Assigned to:
Utility payment in lieu of taxes $ 764,640 $ - $ - - $ - $ 764,640
Safety camp 23,470 - - - - 23,470
Youth gift 15,952 - - - - 15,952
Bryant grant 85,104 - - - - 85,104
Pool sinking fund 14,333 - - - - 14,333
Shop with a cop 4,733 - - - - 4,733
Police federal grants 9,775 - - - - 9,775
Budget appropriation 80,000 - - - - 80,000
Liability insurance loss 70,000 - - - - 70,000
Arts council 1,749 - - - - 1,749
Capital projects - - 1,833,745 - - 1,833,745
Capital outlay - - - - 223,727 223,727
Fire equipment - - - - 20,226 20,226
Equipment replacement - - - - 142,022 142,022
Building replacement - - - - 269,987 269,987


  Unassigned (deficit): 3,364,758 - - - (799,208) 2,565,550


Total Fund Balances
(Deficit) $ 5,425,609 $ 3,427,418 $ 1,833,745 $ 1,055,847 $ 2,506,103 $ 14,248,722


Business-type Activities


Net Investment in Capital Assets
Land $ 660,914
Construction in progress 364,828
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 49,991,358
Less:  Related long-term debt outstanding (16,591,814)
Plus:  Unspent capital related debt proceeds 2,226,309
Less: Unamortized debt premium (167,209)


Total Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 36,484,386


Page 67







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION 


A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM


Plan description. The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. WRS
benefits and other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Benefit terms
may only be modified by the legislature. The retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin
Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of
Wisconsin, local government and other public employees. All employees, initially employed by a
participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1200 hours a year and
expected to be employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the
WRS. 


ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which can be found at
http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.


Vesting. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively
employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a
retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998, and prior to July 1,
2011, are immediately vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011,
must have five years of creditable service to be vested. 


Benefits provided. Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupation employees, 62
for elected officials and State executive participants) are entitled to receive an unreduced retirement
benefit. The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service,
and (3) a formula factor.


Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest years' earnings. Creditable service
is the creditable current and prior service expressed in years or decimal equivalents of partial years for
which a participant receives earnings and makes contributions as required. The formula factor is a
standard percentage based on employment category.


Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupation employees) and receive reduced benefits.
Employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may
withdraw their contributions and forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefits. 


The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.


Page 68







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Post-retirement adjustments. The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adjust annuity
payments from the retirement system based on annual investment performance in accordance with s.
40.27, Wis. Stat. An increase (or decrease) in annuity payments may result when investment gains
(losses), together with other actuarial experience factors, create a surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, as
determined by the system’s consulting actuary. Annuity increases are not based on cost of living or other
similar factors. For Core annuities, decreases may be applied only to previously granted increases. By
law, Core annuities cannot be reduced to an amount below the original, guaranteed amount (the “floor”)
set at retirement. The Core and Variable annuity adjustments granted during recent years are as follows:


Year
Core Fund
Adjustment


Variable Fund
Adjustment


2006    0.8%    3%


2007 3.0 10


2008 6.6 0


2009 (2.1) (42)


2010 (1.3) 22


2011 (1.2) 11


2012 (7.0) (7)


2013 (9.6) 9


2014 4.7 25


2015 2.9 2


Contributions. Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in accordance with
Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution is one-half of the actuarially
determined contribution rate for General category employees and Executives and Elected Officials.
Required contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general employees. Employers are
required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The employer may not
pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining agreement.


During the reporting period, the WRS recognized $463,123 in contributions from the city.


Page 69







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Contribution rates as of December 31, 2016 are:


Employee Category Employee Employer


General 6.6% 6.6%


Executives & Elected Officials 6.6% 6.6%


Protective with Social Security 6.6% 9.4%


Protective without Social Security 6.6% 13.2%


Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions


At December 31, 2016, the city reported a liability of $747,113 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2015, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December
31, 2014 rolled forward to December 31, 2015. No material changes in assumptions or benefit terms
occurred between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date. The city’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on the city’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
contributions of all participating employers. At December 31, 2015, the city’s proportion was
0.04597674%, which was an increase of 0.00111181% from its proportion measured as of December 31,
2014.


For the year ended December 31, 2016, the city recognized pension expense of $909,254.


At December 31, 2016, the city reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of


Resources


Differences between expected and actual experience $ 126,390 $ 1,572,287


Changes in assumptions 522,713 -


Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 3,058,895 -


Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 27,171


Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 461,771 -


Totals $ 4,169,769 $ 1,599,458


Page 70







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


$461,771 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the WRS Employer’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:


Year Ended 
December 31:


Deferred Outflows
of Resources


Deferred Inflows
of Resources


2017 $ 962,740 $ 387,392


2018 962,740 387,392


2019 962,740 387,392


2020 803,052 386,303


2021 16,726 50,979


Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:


Actuarial Valuation Date: December 31, 2014


Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability (Asset) December 31, 2015


Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age


Asset Valuation Method: Fair Market Value


Long-Term Expected Rate of Return: 7.2%


Discount Rate: 7.2%


Salary Increases:


    Inflation


    Seniority/Merit


3.2%


0.2% - 5.6%


Mortality: Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table


Post-retirement Adjustments*: 2.1%


* No post-retirement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment
return, actuarial experience and other factors. 2.1% is the assumed annual adjustment based on the
investment return assumption and the post-retirement discount rate.


Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2012 using experience from
2009 – 2011. The total pension liability for December 31, 2015 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability
calculated from the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation. 


Page 71







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Long-term expected return on plan assets. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:


Core Fund Asset Class
Current Asset
Allocation %


Destination
Target Asset
Allocation %


Long-Term
Expected


Nominal Rate
of Return %


Long-Term
Expected Real


Rate of Return %


U.S. Equities    27%    23%    7.6%    4.7%


International Equities 24.5 22 8.5 5.6


Fixed Income 27.5 37 4.4 1.6


Inflation Sensitive Assets 10 20 4.2 1.4


Real Estate 7 7 6.5 3.6


Private Equity/Debt 7 7 9.4 6.5


Multi-Asset 4 4 6.7 3.8


Total Core Fund 107 120 7.4 4.5


Variable Fund Asset Class


U.S Equities 70 70 7.6 4.7


International Equities 30 30 8.5 5.6


Total Variable Fund 100 100 7.9 5.0


New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (Inflation) Forecast: 2.75%
Asset Allocations are managed within established ranges, target percentages may differ from actual monthly
allocations


Page 72







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Single discount rate.  A single discount rate of 7.20% was used to measure the total pension liability.
This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.20%
and a long term bond rate of 3.56%. Because of the unique structure of WRS, the 7.20% expected rate of
return implies that a dividend of approximately 2.1% will always be paid. For purposes of the single
discount rate, it was assumed that the dividend would always be paid. The projection of cash flows used to
determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
(including expected dividends) of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.


Sensitivity of the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the
discount rate. The following presents the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
calculated using the discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the city’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(6.20 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate: 


1% Decrease to
Discount Rate


(6.20%)
Current Discount


Rate (7.20%)


1% Increase to
Discount Rate


(8.20%)
City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) $5,240,266 $747,113 $(2,762,119)


Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in separately issued financial statements available at http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.


At December 31, 2016, the city reported a payable to the pension plan which represents contractually
required contributions outstanding as of the end of the year.


The city has a defined benefit pension plan for fire department employees. The amount paid to retirees
each year is based on the years of service at the time of retirement and the position the retiree held while
a member of the department. Historically, the investment earnings of the pension fund are sufficient to
cover annual pension payments. As of December 31, 2016, the balance in the Firemen's Pension Fund is
$770,493 and is recorded as a pension trust fund of the city. The plan has not had an actuarial valuation.


B. RISK MANAGEMENT  


The city is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; workers compensation; and health care of its employees. The city participates in a
public entity risk pool called  to provide coverage for losses from theft of, damage to, or destruction of
assets and workers compensation. However, other risks, such as (torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction
of assets; errors and omission; workers compensation; and health care of its employees) are accounted
for and financed by the city in the general fund.


Page 73







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


B. RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)


Public Entity Risk Pool


Wisconsin Municipal Insurance Commission (WMIC)
Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC)


The WMIC is an intergovernmental cooperation commission created by contract under Section 66.30 of
the Wisconsin Statutes. It was created in August, 1987 for the purpose of facilitating the organization,
establishment and capitalization of the CVMIC, and has numerous cities and villages as members.


The CVMIC is a municipal mutual insurance company established on September 14, 1987 under Section
611.23 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The CVMIC provides liability insurance coverage to the cities and
villages which make up the membership of the WMIC.


The CVMIC is self-insured up to a maximum of $2,000,000 of each insurance risk. Losses paid by CVMIC
plus administrative expenses will be recovered through premiums to the participating pool of
municipalities. The city's share of such losses is approximately less than 1%.


Management of each organization consists of a board of directors or officers comprised of representatives
elected by each of three classes of participants based on population. The city does not exercise any
control over the activities of the agencies beyond the election of the officers and board.


Financial statements of WMIC and CVMIC can be obtained directly from CVMIC's offices.


The initial investment in WMIC is refundable upon withdrawal from the commission and has been reported
at the original amount of $257,805 in the general fund.


The city pays an annual premium to CVMIC for its general liability insurance, which provides coverage up
to $5,000,000 per occurrence, less the city's retained liability. The city's retained liability is limited to
$25,000 per occurrence and an annual aggregate limit of $100,000. An actuarially determined estimate
shows that there is no liability or claims incurred but not reported at December 31, 2016. Total claims
incurred during 2016 were $21,644. Claims paid during 2016 were substantially the same as claims
incurred. Total claims incurred and paid during 2015 were $94,955.


C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  


Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements are met. The liability and expenditure for claims and judgments are
only reported in governmental funds if it has matured. Claims and judgments are recorded in the
government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses when the related liabilities are incurred.


From time to time, the city is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the outcome
of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and the city attorney
that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the
city's financial position or results of operations. 


Page 74







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (cont.)


The city has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by
the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agency for
expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. Management believes such disallowances, if any,
would be immaterial.


The city has active construction projects as of December 31, 2016. Work that has been completed on
these projects but not yet paid for (including contract retainages) is reflected as accounts payable and
expenditures.


Long-Term Contracts - WPPI Energy


The electric utility is one of 51 WPPI Energy member municipalities located throughout the State of
Wisconsin. On December 1, 1989, each initial WPPI Energy member commenced purchasing electric
service from WPPI Energy under a long-term Power Supply Contract for Participating Members (long-term
contract). Under the long-term contract, WPPI Energy is obligated to provide and sell, and each member
is obligated to take and pay for, the electric power and energy required for the operation of each member's
electric utility. 


The long-term contract requires all WPPI Energy members to pay for power and energy requirements
supplied or made available by WPPI Energy at rates sufficient to cover WPPI Energy's revenue
requirement including power supply costs, administrative expenses and debt service. WPPI Energy's
subsequent year's operating budget and rates are approved annually by its Board of Directors, consisting
of representatives from each member. The members have agreed to charge rates to retail customers
sufficient to meet their WPPI Energy obligations. The long-term contract provides that all payments to
WPPI Energy constitute operating expenses of the utility payable from any operating and maintenance
fund established for that system.


In 2015, a majority of WPPI Energy members ratified an eighteen year extension to their existing
contracts. All but two of the remaining members ratified the same extension in 2016. The new contract
expires at midnight on December 31, 2055.


WPPI Energy's outstanding debt service obligation to be paid by its members through their wholesale
power charges through the remainder of the long-term contract was $411 million as of December 31,
2016.


Developer Agreements


The city has entered into a developer agreement where the city shall reimburse developer for off-site
public improvements in the amount of $4,427,044. The city has reimbursed $3,763,230 as of December
31, 2016.


The city has entered into a developer agreement where the city shall construct the city improvements and
provide a development incentive grant in the amount of $377,000. Grant disbursement and construction is
expected to be completed in 2017.


Page 75







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)


D. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  


The PSCW provided authorization for the electric utility to construct a new substation and five feeders on
the west side of the City of Stoughton in order to reliably serve planned and expected load growth. The
estimated cost of the project is $2.77 million.


New electric rates were approved by the PSCW effective April 1, 2017. The new rates are designed to
earn a 5% rate of return.


On June 08, 2017 the city issued general obligation promissory notes in the amount of $7,660,000 with an
interest rate of 2.0194%. This amount will be used for capital projects.


E. EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ON CURRENT-PERIOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  


The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved the following:


 Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That


Are Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of


GASB Statements 67 and 68


 Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension


Plans


 Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other


Than Pensions


 Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units - an Amendment of


GASB Statement No. 14


 Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements


 Statement No. 82, Pension Issues - an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and


No. 73


When they become effective, application of these standards may restate portions of these financial
statements.


Page 76







R E Q U I R E D   S U P P L E M E N T A R Y   I N F O R M A T I O N







CITY OF STOUGHTON


DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Original and
Final Budget Actual


Variance with
Final Budget


REVENUES


TAXES
Taxes $ 7,969,655 $ 7,968,616 $ (1,039)


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
Intergovernmental 1,616,654 1,629,115 12,461


LICENSES AND PERMITS
Business and occupational licenses 37,800 36,879 (921)
Dog and cat licenses 4,000 5,849 1,849
Building permits 143,000 190,351 47,351


Total Licenses and Permits 184,800 233,079 48,279


FINES, FORFEITURES AND PENALTIES
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 110,000 135,588 25,588


PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Public charges for services 1,371,021 1,393,649 22,628


INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES
Intergovernmental charges for services 52,000 55,536 3,536


SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
Special assessments 10,000 12,855 2,855


INVESTMENT INCOME
Investment income 36,000 26,183 (9,817)


MISCELLANEOUS
Miscellaneous 385,047 464,732 79,685


Total Revenues 11,735,177 11,919,353 184,176


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
Page 77







CITY OF STOUGHTON


DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Original and
Final Budget Actual


Variance with
Final Budget


EXPENDITURES


GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Council/Board $ 47,005 $ 45,915 $ 1,090
Legislative and executive 100,152 98,034 2,118
Judicial 63,095 56,902 6,193
General administration 168,462 215,116 (46,654)
Financial administration 864,176 797,493 66,683
Legal 91,500 110,990 (19,490)
Personnel 129,393 130,312 (919)
City buildings 69,242 45,739 23,503
Assessor 47,500 44,000 3,500
Contingency 80,000 - 80,000
Other general government - 205,569 (205,569)
Health insurance - 93,169 (93,169)


Total General Government 1,660,525 1,843,239 (182,714)


PUBLIC SAFETY
Police department 2,798,811 2,974,142 (175,331)
Fire department 480,326 491,004 (10,678)
Planning/Inspection 308,857 349,709 (40,852)


Total Public Safety 3,587,994 3,814,855 (226,861)


PUBLIC WORKS
Highway and street maintenance and construction 106,751 119,140 (12,389)
Highway and street maintenance for local 1,024,921 1,040,545 (15,624)
Snow and ice control 80,000 45,932 34,068
Other sanitation 715,000 697,813 17,187
Buildings and grounds operations 123,796 92,053 31,743


Total Public Works 2,050,468 1,995,483 54,985


CULTURE, RECREATION AND EDUCATION
Park maintenance 209,157 119,019 90,138
Senior Center 525,289 479,597 45,692
Culture 351,565 272,967 78,598
Recreation 324,468 324,459 9
Cemetery 36,000 38,323 (2,323)
Cable television 2,000 2,318 (318)


Total Culture, Recreation and Education 1,448,479 1,236,683 211,796


Total Expenditures 8,747,466 8,890,260 (142,794)


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
Page 78







CITY OF STOUGHTON


DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Original and
Final Budget Actual


Variance with
Final Budget


Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 2,987,711 3,029,093 $ 41,382


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 827,800 796,334 (31,466)
Transfers out (3,889,032) (3,722,286) 166,746


Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,061,232) (2,925,952) 135,280


Net Change in Fund Balance (73,521) 103,141 176,662


FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 5,322,468 5,322,468 -


FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 5,248,947 $ 5,425,609 $ 176,662


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
Page 79







Proportionate
Share of the Net Plan Fiduciary


Proportion Proportionate Pension Liability (Asset) Net Position
of the Net Share of the as a Percentage as a Percentage


Fiscal Pension Net Pension Covered of Covered of the Total
Year Ending Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll Payroll Pension Liability


12/31/16 0.04597674% 747,113$            6,169,077$     12.11% 98.20%
12/31/15 0.04486493% (1,102,005)          5,696,627       19.34% 102.74%


Contributions in
Relation to the Contributions


Contractually Contractually Contribution as a Percentage
Fiscal Required Required Deficiency Covered of Covered


Year Ending Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll


12/31/16 461,771$        461,771$            -$                    7,032,737$                      6.57%
12/31/15 465,913          465,913              -                      6,169,077                        7.55%


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) - 


SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM


CITY OF STOUGHTON


WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
Page 80







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


BUDGETARY INFORMATION


Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented using the same basis
of accounting for each fund as described in Note I. C.


Department heads submit budget requests by mid-August. The mayor and finance director produce the
executive budget, which is reviewed with the finance committee in mid-September. The city council then
reviews the budget and holds a public hearing. Council adoption of the budget follows the public hearing,
usually in November. Department heads have the authority to make budget transfers within their own
department, except for wage accounts and capital outlay items. Council action is required for adjustments
to wage and outlay accounts, and to change a department's total budget.


Appropriations lapse at year end unless specifically carried over. Carryovers to the following year were
$5,000.  Budgets are adopted at the department level of expenditure. 


WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM


The amounts determined for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end and occurred
within the fiscal year.


The city is required to present the last ten years of data; however accounting standards allow the
presentation of as many years as are available until ten fiscal years are presented.


Changes in benefit terms. There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating employer in the
Wisconsin Retirement System.


Changes in assumptions. There were no changes in assumptions.


See independent auditors' report.
Page 81







S U P P L E M E N T A R Y   I N F O R M A T I O N







CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


As of December 31, 2016


Special Revenue Funds


Library Ambulance Opera House
Opera House


Repair


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 214,400 $ 17,868 $ 9,852 $ 6,447
Receivables (net)


Taxes - - - -
Accounts 210 - - -
Special assessments - - - -
Loans - - - -
Other - - - -


Prepaid items 163 - 69,875 -


TOTAL ASSETS $ 214,773 $ 17,868 $ 79,727 $ 6,447


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,397 $ 1,117 $ 27,466 $ -
Accrued liabilities 10,932 67 3,550 -
Deposits - - - -
Other liabilities - - 226,678 -
Due to other funds - - - -
Advances from other funds - - - -


Total Liabilities 12,329 1,184 257,694 -


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues - - - -
Unavailable revenues - - - -


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - -


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable - - 69,875 -
Restricted 202,444 - - -
Committed - 16,684 - 6,447
Assigned - - - -
Unassigned (deficit) - - (247,842) -


Total Fund Balances (deficit) 202,444 16,684 (177,967) 6,447


TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND
BALANCES $ 214,773 $ 17,868 $ 79,727 $ 6,447


Page 82







Special Revenue Funds


Township
Outreach


Fund Tourism
Seniors in


Need Holiday Food Pantry Landmarks


Fire
Department


Special


$ 5,498 $ 25,803 $ 38,616 $ 4,786 $ 137,563 $ 1,182 $ 30,373


- - - - - - -
- 20,896 - - 5,980 - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - 910
- - - - - - -


$ 5,498 $ 46,699 $ 38,616 $ 4,786 $ 143,543 $ 1,182 $ 31,283


$ - $ 18,807 $ - $ - $ 2,118 $ - $ 400
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- 4,069 - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- 22,876 - - 2,118 - 400


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


5,498 23,823 38,616 4,786 141,425 1,182 30,883
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


5,498 23,823 38,616 4,786 141,425 1,182 30,883


$ 5,498 $ 46,699 $ 38,616 $ 4,786 $ 143,543 $ 1,182 $ 31,283


Page 83







CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


As of December 31, 2016


Special Revenue Funds


Senior Center
Wood Shop


Senior Center
Special Fund


Economic
Development


Fund
Redevelop-


ment Authority


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 3,297 $ 440,558 $ 26,204 $ -
Receivables (net)


Taxes - - - -
Accounts - - 60 -
Special assessments - - - -
Loans - - - -
Other - - - -


Prepaid items - - - -


TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,297 $ 440,558 $ 26,264 $ -


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 76 $ - $ 10 $ 1,772
Accrued liabilities - - - -
Deposits - - 33,000 -
Other liabilities - - - -
Due to other funds - - - 64,071
Advances from other funds - - - -


Total Liabilities 76 - 33,010 65,843


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues - - - -
Unavailable revenues - - - -


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - -


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable - - - -
Restricted - - - -
Committed 3,221 440,558 - -
Assigned - - - -
Unassigned (deficit) - - (6,746) (65,843)


Total Fund Balances (deficit) 3,221 440,558 (6,746) (65,843)


TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND
BALANCES $ 3,297 $ 440,558 $ 26,264 $ -


Page 84







Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds


Special
Assessments CDBG K9 Unit


Tree
Commission Cemetery


Fire
Equipment


Park
Acquisition


$ - $ 6,374 $ 18,927 $ 2,703 $ 32,972 $ 20,226 $ 337,799


137,318 - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


89,312 - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


$ 226,630 $ 6,374 $ 18,927 $ 2,703 $ 32,972 $ 20,226 $ 337,799


$ - $ - $ 250 $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


146,976 - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


146,976 - 250 - - - -


2,727 - - - - - -
116,829 - - - - - -
119,556 - - - - - -


- - - - - - -
- 6,374 - - - - 337,799
- - 18,677 2,703 32,972 - -
- - - - - 20,226 -


(39,902) - - - - - -
(39,902) 6,374 18,677 2,703 32,972 20,226 337,799


$ 226,630 $ 6,374 $ 18,927 $ 2,703 $ 32,972 $ 20,226 $ 337,799


Page 85







CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


As of December 31, 2016


Capital Projects Funds


River Trail
TIF District


No. 3
TIF District


No. 4
TIF District


No. 5


ASSETS
Cash and investments $ - $ 310,201 $ 1,315,983 $ 178,511
Receivables (net)


Taxes - 492,440 180,832 -
Accounts - - - -
Special assessments - - - -
Loans - - 50,000 -
Other - - - -


Prepaid items - - - -


TOTAL ASSETS $ - $ 802,641 $ 1,546,815 $ 178,511


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ - $ -
Accrued liabilities - - - -
Deposits - - - -
Other liabilities - - - -
Due to other funds 359 - 360,802 -
Advances from other funds - - - 598,427


Total Liabilities 359 - 360,802 598,427


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues - 492,440 180,832 -
Unavailable revenues - - 50,000 -


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - 492,440 230,832 -


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable - - - -
Restricted - 310,201 955,181 -
Committed - - - -
Assigned - - - -
Unassigned (deficit) (359) - - (419,916)


Total Fund Balances (deficit) (359) 310,201 955,181 (419,916)


TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND
BALANCES $ - $ 802,641 $ 1,546,815 $ 178,511


Page 86







Capital Projects Funds


TIF District
No. 6 Outlay


Equipment
Replacement


Building
Maintenance


Total
Nonmajor


Governmental
Funds


$ 2,213 $ 269,662 $ 142,022 $ 269,987 $ 3,870,027


- - - - 810,590
- - - - 27,146
- - - - 89,312
- - - - 50,000
- - - - 910
- - - - 70,038


$ 2,213 $ 269,662 $ 142,022 $ 269,987 $ 4,918,023


$ 813 $ 45,935 $ - $ - $ 100,161
- - - - 14,549
- - - - 33,000
- - - - 226,678
- - - - 576,277


20,000 - - - 618,427
20,813 45,935 - - 1,569,092


- - - - 675,999
- - - - 166,829
- - - - 842,828


- - - - 69,875
- - - - 1,811,999
- - - - 767,475
- 223,727 142,022 269,987 655,962


(18,600) - - - (799,208)
(18,600) 223,727 142,022 269,987 2,506,103


$ 2,213 $ 269,662 $ 142,022 $ 269,987 $ 4,918,023


Page 87







CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES


NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Special Revenue Funds


Library Ambulance
Opera
House


Opera
House
Repair


Township
Outreach


Fund


REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 238,568 - - - 7,136
Public charges for services 27,127 - 787,962 - -
Special assessments - - - - -
Investment income 695 - 44 35 -
Miscellaneous 61,130 3,389 3,874 - -


Total Revenues 327,520 3,389 791,880 35 7,136


EXPENDITURES
Current


General government - - - - -
Public safety - 9,904 - - -
Culture, recreation and


education 880,981 - 955,876 5,853 4,819
Conservation and


development - - - - -
Capital Outlay - - - - -


Total Expenditures 880,981 9,904 955,876 5,853 4,819


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (553,461) (6,515) (163,996) (5,818) 2,317


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt issued - - - - -
Property sales - - - - -
Transfers in 560,495 - 143,506 - -
Transfers out - - - - -


Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) 560,495 - 143,506 - -


Net Change in Fund Balances 7,034 (6,515) (20,490) (5,818) 2,317


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - Beginning
of Year 195,410 23,199 (157,477) 12,265 3,181


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
END OF YEAR $ 202,444 $ 16,684 $ (177,967) $ 6,447 $ 5,498


Page 88







Special Revenue Funds


Tourism
Seniors in


Need Holiday Food Pantry Landmarks


Fire
Department


Special


Senior
Center


Wood Shop


Senior
Center
Special
Fund


$ 80,686 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- 81 39 163 5 71 - 483
- 27,593 3,996 100,971 - 57,760 956 6,461


80,686 27,674 4,035 101,134 5 57,831 956 6,944


- - - - - - - -
- - - - - 16,819 - -


86,534 23,228 9,571 60,422 260 - 1,941 2,875


- - - - - - - -
- - - - - 45,975 - -


86,534 23,228 9,571 60,422 260 62,794 1,941 2,875


(5,848) 4,446 (5,536) 40,712 (255) (4,963) (985) 4,069


- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -


(8,069) - - - - - - -


(8,069) - - - - - - -


(13,917) 4,446 (5,536) 40,712 (255) (4,963) (985) 4,069


37,740 34,170 10,322 100,713 1,437 35,846 4,206 436,489


$ 23,823 $ 38,616 $ 4,786 $ 141,425 $ 1,182 $ 30,883 $ 3,221 $ 440,558


Page 89







CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES


NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Special Revenue Funds


Economic
Development


Fund


Redevelop-
ment


Authority
Special


Assessments CDBG K9 Unit


REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Public charges for services - - - - -
Special assessments - - 161,154 - -
Investment income 73 149 355 - -
Miscellaneous - 9,498 - - 7,130


Total Revenues 73 9,647 161,509 - 7,130


EXPENDITURES
Current


General government - - - - -
Public safety - - - - 778
Culture, recreation and


education - - - - -
Conservation and


development 17,888 87,648 - - -
Capital Outlay - - - - -


Total Expenditures 17,888 87,648 - - 778


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (17,815) (78,001) 161,509 - 6,352


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)


Debt issued - - - - -
Property sales - - - - -
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - (279,000) - -


Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) - - (279,000) - -


Net Change in Fund Balances (17,815) (78,001) (117,491) - 6,352


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
Beginning of Year 11,069 12,158 77,589 6,374 12,325


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
END OF YEAR $ (6,746) $ (65,843) $ (39,902) $ 6,374 $ 18,677


Page 90







Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds


Tree
Commission Cemetery


Fire
Equipment


Park
Acquisition River Trail


TIF District
No. 3


TIF District
No. 4


TIF District
No. 5


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 487,847 $ 259,879 $ -
- - - - - 4,007 2,977 39,117
- - - 67,873 - 16,491 - -
- - - - - - - -
- 119 28 893 1 567 4,135 36


906 - - 52,782 - 52,805 - 18,877
906 119 28 121,548 1 561,717 266,991 58,030


- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -


- 99 - - - - - -


800 - - - - - 51,500 -
- - 15,710 - 1,969 7,608 1,383 752,173


800 99 15,710 - 1,969 7,608 52,883 752,173


106 20 (15,682) 121,548 (1,968) 554,109 214,108 (694,143)


- - - - - - - 850,000
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - (70,000) - (439,529) (107,905) -


- - - (70,000) - (439,529) (107,905) 850,000


106 20 (15,682) 51,548 (1,968) 114,580 106,203 155,857


2,597 32,952 35,908 286,251 1,609 195,621 848,978 (575,773)


$ 2,703 $ 32,972 $ 20,226 $ 337,799 $ (359) $ 310,201 $ 955,181 $ (419,916)


Page 91







CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES


NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Capital Projects Funds


TIF District
No. 6 Outlay


Equipment
Replacement


Building
Maintenance


Total
Nonmajor


Governmental
Funds


REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 828,412
Intergovernmental - 41,233 - - 333,038
Public charges for services - - - - 899,453
Special assessments - - - - 161,154
Investment income - 98 1,049 210 9,329
Miscellaneous - - - 156,012 564,140


Total Revenues - 41,331 1,049 156,222 2,795,526


EXPENDITURES
Current


General government - - - 4,425 4,425
Public safety - - - - 27,501
Culture, recreation


and education - - - - 2,032,459
Conservation and


development 6,869 - - - 164,705
Capital Outlay - 881,145 - - 1,705,963


Total Expenditures 6,869 881,145 - 4,425 3,935,053


Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (6,869) (839,814) 1,049 151,797 (1,139,527)


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)


Debt issued - - - - 850,000
Property sales - 16,695 - - 16,695
Transfers in - 809,758 400,000 - 1,913,759
Transfers out - - (508,000) (131,758) (1,544,261)


Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - 826,453 (108,000) (131,758) 1,236,193


Net Change in Fund Balances (6,869) (13,361) (106,951) 20,039 96,666


FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) -
Beginning of Year (11,731) 237,088 248,973 249,948 2,409,437


FUND BALANCES
(DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $ (18,600) $ 223,727 $ 142,022 $ 269,987 $ 2,506,103


Page 92







CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS


As of December 31, 2016


Storm Sewer EMS


Total Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds


ASSETS
Current Assets


Cash and investments $ 94,164 $ 315,143 $ 409,307
Receivables 825 107,630 108,455
Due from other funds 85,769 - 85,769


Total Current Assets 180,758 422,773 603,531


Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets


Land 9,986 - 9,986
Property and equipment 1,411,265 2,082,851 3,494,116
Less: Accumulated depreciation (117,025) (777,618) (894,643)


Total Noncurrent Assets 1,304,226 1,305,233 2,609,459


Total Assets 1,484,984 1,728,006 3,212,990


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts - 56,654 56,654


Total Deferred Outflows of Resources - 56,654 56,654


LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities


Accounts payable 10,478 4,505 14,983
Accrued liabilities 6,403 15,490 21,893
Due to other funds - 243,642 243,642
Current portion of general obligation debt 118,409 115,000 233,409


Total Current Liabilities 135,290 378,637 513,927


Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-Term Debt


General obligation debt payable 821,618 395,000 1,216,618
Net pension liability - 10,471 10,471
Unused sick leave - 31,039 31,039


Total Liabilities 956,908 815,147 1,772,055


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts - 22,398 22,398


Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
- 22,398 22,398


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 475,453 856,964 1,332,417
Unrestricted 52,623 90,151 142,774


TOTAL NET POSITION
$ 528,076 $ 947,115 $ 1,475,191


Page 93







CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Storm Sewer EMS


Total Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds


OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 544,859 $ 630,317 $ 1,175,176


Total Operating Revenues 544,859 630,317 1,175,176


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 401,062 543,427 944,489
Depreciation expense 47,042 100,313 147,355


Total Operating Expenses 448,104 643,740 1,091,844


Operating Income (Loss) 96,755 (13,423) 83,332


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 2,074 717 2,791
Interest and fiscal charges (20,929) (21,387) (42,316)
Interest subsidy - 7,978 7,978
Intergovernmental grants 6,109 22,660 28,769
Miscellaneous - 4,460 4,460


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (12,746) 14,428 1,682


Net Income (Loss) Before Contributions and
Transfers 84,009 1,005 85,014


TRANSFERS
Transfers in - 81,054 81,054
Transfers out (38,870) - (38,870)


Total Transfers (38,870) 81,054 42,184


Change in Net Position 45,139 82,059 127,198


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 482,937 865,056 1,347,993


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 528,076 $ 947,115 $ 1,475,191


Page 94







CITY OF STOUGHTON


COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Storm Sewer EMS Totals


CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from customers $ 529,822 $ 668,982 $ 1,198,804
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (171,457) (182,072) (353,529)
Paid to employees for services (226,861) (330,789) (557,650)


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 131,504 156,121 287,625


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income 2,074 717 2,791


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 2,074 717 2,791


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers (38,870) 81,054 42,184
Advances from other funds - 29,817 29,817


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (38,870) 110,871 72,001


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES


Debt retired (118,409) (115,000) (233,409)
Interest paid (22,651) (22,795) (45,446)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (395,130) (17,750) (412,880)
Contribution received for construction 6,109 - 6,109


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities (530,081) (155,545) (685,626)


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (435,373) 112,164 (323,209)


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 529,537 202,979 732,516


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 94,164 $ 315,143 $ 409,307


RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income (loss) $ 96,755 $ (13,423) $ 83,332
Nonoperating revenue - 35,098 35,098
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash


Flows From Operating Activities
Depreciation 47,042 100,313 147,355


Changes in assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred
inflows


Customer accounts receivable (10,696) 3,567 (7,129)
Due from other funds (4,341) - (4,341)
Compensated absences - 31,039 31,039
Accounts payable 2,744 (4,912) (2,168)
Other current liabilities - 1,090 1,090
Pension related deferrals and liabilities - 3,349 3,349


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 131,504 $ 156,121 $ 287,625


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


Cash and investments $ 94,164 $ 315,143 $ 409,307


  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 94,164 $ 315,143 $ 409,307


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
None


Page 95







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
COMMUNICATION TO THOSE CHARGED  
WITH GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 


 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016 


 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 


Page No. 
 
 
Required Communication of Internal Control Related Matters Identified in the 
Audit to Those Charged with Governance   1 


 
 Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 2 
 
 Internal Control Environment 2 – 3 
 
Other Communications to Those Charged with Governance 
 
 Two Way Communication Regarding Your Audit  4 – 5 
 
Communication of Other Control Deficiencies, Recommendations and Informational Points 
to Management that are not Material Weaknesses or Significant Deficiencies 6 – 8 


 
Required Communications by the Auditor to Those Charged with Governance 9 – 13 
 
 Management Representations 
 
 
 







REQUIRED COMMUNICATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL RELATED MATTERS 
IDENTIFIED IN THE AUDIT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 







 


Page 1 


To the City Council 
City of Stoughton 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Stoughton as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2016, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, we considered its internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of its internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of its internal control. 
 
A separate report on Internal Control was issued to the Utility Commission. The information contained in that 
report is not included with this report. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the following 
deficiencies in the city’s internal control to be material weaknesses: 
 


> Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 


> Internal Control Environment 
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the city management, the city council, and 
others within the organization and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties.  
 


 
 
Madison, Wisconsin 
June 21, 2017 
 







 


Page 2 


Auditing standards require that we perform procedures to obtain an understanding of your government 
and its internal control environment as part of the annual audit. This includes an analysis of significant 
transaction cycles and an analysis of the city’s year-end financial reporting process and preparation of 
your financial statements. 
 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  
 
Properly designed systems of internal control provides your organization with the ability to process and 
record accurate monthly and year end transactions and prepare annual financial reports. 
 
Our audit includes a review and evaluation of the city’s internal controls relating to financial reporting. 
Common attributes of a properly designed system of internal control for financial reporting are as follows: 
 


> There is adequate staffing to prepare financial reports throughout and at the end of the year. 


> Material misstatements are identified and corrected during the normal course of duties. 


> Complete and accurate financial statements, including footnotes, are prepared. 


> Financial reports are independently reviewed for completeness and accuracy. 
 
Our evaluation of the city’s internal controls relating to financial reporting has identified control 
deficiencies that are considered material weakness surrounding the preparation of financial statements 
and footnotes, adjusting journal entries identified by the auditors, and an independent review of financial 
reports. 
 
Management has not prepared financial statements that are in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. In addition, material misstatements in the general ledger were identified during the 
financial audit. 
 
This level of internal control over financial reporting can be a difficult task for governments that operate 
with only enough staff to process monthly transactions and reports, and often rely on their auditors to 
prepare certain year-end audit entries and financial statements.  
 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT 
 
A properly designed system of internal control includes adequate staffing as well as policies and 
procedures to properly segregate duties. This includes systems that are designed to limit the access or 
control of any one individual to your government’s assets or accounting records, and to achieve a higher 
likelihood that errors or irregularities in the city’s accounting processes would be discovered by your staff 
in a timely manner.  
 
At this time, due to staffing and financial limitations, the city does not have proper internal controls in 
place to achieve adequate segregation of duties. As a result, errors or irregularities could occur as part of 
the financial process that may not be discovered by the city. Therefore, we are reporting a material 
weakness related to the city’s internal control environment.  
 
There are also certain controls that are not currently in place related to significant transaction cycles. As a 
result, there is a risk that erroneous or unauthorized transactions or misstatements could occur without 
the knowledge of management or the governing body. Our recommendations for strengthening controls 
are listed below. 
 


CONTROLS OVER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE/DISBURSEMENTS 
 


There should be controls in place surrounding the identification, recording, and review of retainages 
and encumbrances at year end. 







 


Page 3 


 
INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT (cont.) 


 
CONTROLS OVER PAYROLL  


 
Changes made to the payroll system should be reviewed by someone independent of processing 
payroll transactions. 


 
CONTROLS OVER PROPERTY TAXES 


 
Bank reconciliations should be performed by someone independent of the tax collection process. 


 
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 


 
Account reconciliations should be performed by someone independent of the processing of 
transactions in the account. 


 
We recommend that a designated employee review the segregation of duties, risks, and these potential 
controls and determine whether additional controls should be implemented. This determination should 
take into consideration a cost/benefit analysis. 
 
 







 


 


OTHER COMMUNICATIONS TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 
 







 


Page 4 


 
TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REFARDING YOUR AUDIT  
 
As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the 
audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisting 
the auditor and you with more information relevant to the audit. 
 
As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have learned to begin the planning process for next 
year’s audit. It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our 
next audit: 
 


a. We address the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, through 
our detailed audit procedures. 


b. We will obtain an understanding of the five components of internal control sufficient to assess the 
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud, and to 
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient 
understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design of controls 
relevant to an audit of financial statements and to determine whether they have been 
implemented. We will use such knowledge to:  


 Identify types of potential misstatements. 


 Consider factors that affect the risks of material misstatement. 


 Design tests of controls, when applicable, and substantive procedures. 


We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or 
compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant programs.  


c. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate, 
are important for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles while other matters are not important. In performing the audit, we are 
concerned with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the 
financial statements. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance that material misstatements, whether caused by errors or fraud, are detected. 


d. Your financial statements contain components, as defined by auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of American, which we also audit. 


 
We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here: 
 


a. We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise. 


b. We understand that the city council has the responsibility to oversee the strategic direction of 
your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity. Management has the 
responsibility for achieving the objectives of the entity. 


c. We need to know your views about your organization’s objectives and strategies, and the related 
business risks that may result in material misstatements. 


d. Which matters do you consider warrant particular attention during the audit, and are there any 
areas where you request additional procedures to be undertaken? 


e. Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies? 


f. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements? 







 


Page 5 


 
TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REFARDING YOUR AUDIT (cont.) 
 
Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness, and actions of the city 
concerning: 
 


a. The city’s internal control and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with 
governance oversee the effectiveness of internal control? 


b. The detection or the possibility of fraud? 
 
We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws, 
accounting standards, governance practices, or other related matters, or in response to previous 
communications with us. 
 
With regard to the timing of our audit, here is some general information. If necessary, we may do 
preliminary audit work during the months of October-December, and sometimes early January. Our final 
fieldwork is scheduled during the spring to best coincide with your readiness and report deadlines. After 
fieldwork, we wrap up our audit procedures at our office and may issue drafts of our report for your 
review. Final copies of our report and other communications are issued after approval by your staff. This 
is typically 6-12 weeks after final fieldwork, but may vary depending on a number of factors. 
 
Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the 
audit, it does not change the auditor’s sole responsibility to determine the overall audit strategy and the 
audit plan, including the nature, timing, and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence. 
 
We realize that you may have questions on what this all means, or wish to provide other feedback. We 
welcome the opportunity to hear from you. 
 
 







 


 


COMMUNICATION OF OTHER CONTROL DEFICIENCIES, RECOMMENDATIONS 
AND INFORMATIONAL POINTS TO MANAGEMENT THAT ARE NOT 


MATERIAL WEAKNESSES OR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 







 


Page 6 


 
PRIOR YEAR POINTS 
 
 COLLATERAL FOR BANK DEPOSITS (PER 12/31/08 LETTER)  


Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 40 requires disclosures about various 
risks associated with the city’s deposits and investments. These disclosures can be found in Note IV.A of 
the financial statements.  
 
One of the required disclosures is custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of 
a financial institution failure, the city’s deposits may not be returned. To address this risk, the city has 
collateral agreements with its primary bank to cover deposits in excess of the FDIC limits. However, a 
portion of the city’s deposits and investments was exposed to custodial credit risk because the collateral 
was insufficient to cover all city deposits. In addition, the current collateral agreement in place with the 
city’s primary bank allows for the collateral to be held in the trust department of this bank. GASB No. 40 
states that this type of custodial arrangement exposes the city to greater risk than if the collateral was 
held by an independent third party custodian. 
 
We recommend that the city evaluate its current collateral situation to determine if adjustments are desired. 
 
   Status (12/31/16) 


A total of $12,453,458 of deposits and investments were exposed to some level of custodial credit risk as 
of December 31, 2016. 
 
 
INFORMATIONAL POINTS 
 
 PENSION TRUST FUND 


The city has a Firemen’s Pension Trust fund which was set up several years ago to provide pension 
benefits to the firemen. GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and 
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of 
GASB Statements 67 and 68, extend the approach of GASB 68 to all pensions (with some modifications). 
 
The city will have to evaluate if GASB Statement No. 73 will be applicable to the Firemen’s Pension Trust. 
If applicable, the pension plans are required to implement the new standard effective December 31, 2017. 
An actuarial study would be required if GASB 73 is effective for the City’s Firemen’s Pension Trust Fund. 
 
We are available to further discuss this standard, the timing, and impact on your government.  
 
 DECENTRALIZED CASH COLLECTIONS  


As part of our annual audit process, we focus our efforts on the primary accounting systems, internal 
controls, and procedures used by the city. This is in keeping with our goal to provide an audit opinion 
which states that the financial statements of the city are correct in all material respects. 
 
In some cases, the primary system of accounting procedures and controls of the city are supported by 
smaller systems which are decentralized, and reside within a department or outside location. Specifically 
for the City of Stoughton, there are departments that collect cash and periodically remit those collections 
to city hall. Examples include the recreation department and senior center, among others. 
 
Generally, the more centralized a function is, the easier it is to design and implement accounting controls 
that provide some level of checks and balances. That is because you are able to divide certain tasks over 
the people available to achieve some segregation of duties. For those tasks that are decentralized, it is 
usually very difficult to provide for proper segregation of duties. Therefore, with one person being involved 
in most or all aspects of a transaction, you lose the ability to rely on the controls to achieve the 
safeguarding of assets and reliability of financial records. 







 


Page 7 


 
INFORMATIONAL POINTS (cont.) 
 
 DECENTRALIZED CASH COLLECTIONS (cont.) 
 
As auditors, we are required to communicate with you on a variety of topics. We believe it is appropriate 
to make sure that you are informed about the risks that can occur with decentralized cash collections. 
 
 CONTROLS OVER INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
 
As part of our audit, we evaluated the information technology controls as they relate to financially 
significant applications. Our procedures primarily focused on documenting and evaluating general 
computer controls, including: 
 


 Logical access to data and applications 
 Change and incident management 
 Systems development and deployment 
 Data backup and recovery 


 
The following points contain suggestions for strengthening internal controls in these areas. 
 


 Passwords should be changed every 90 days, require a minimum of 6 characters, require strong 
(complex) passwords, and password history should be remembered so users can’t reuse recent 
(3-6) previous passwords. Additionally, users should lock after 3-5 failed login attempts. 


 The operating system, database, and applications should be monitored to identify any security 
violations. The company should proactively monitor both internal access on the network and 
financial application as well as external access. In addition there should be a procedure to 
resolve or escalate any security violations. 


 
We recommend that a designated employee review the risks and these potential controls and determine 
whether additional controls should be implemented. This determination should take into consideration a 
cost / benefit analysis.  
 


CYBER SECURITY  
 
It’s no surprise that cyber security continues to be a top concern for management and those charged with 
governance across governments of all sizes and types. Protecting citizens’ data is critical for any 
government. In addition, there have been several incidents of critical malware or ransomware threats to 
communities of various sizes.  
 
We recommend performing a cyber-risk assessment to identify the types and location of data on your 
system as well as considering the sensitivity or potential regulations associated with your data. This will 
allow you to make informed decisions about spending on cyber-risk mitigation. 
 
Our professionals are also available to assist with your cyber security questions, assessments, and 
programs. 
 
 GOVERNMENT FRAUD PREVENTION AND DETECTION: NOW IS THE TIME TO ACT  
 
When it comes to preventing and detecting fraud in government, being proactive is critical. In fact, 
government is the second most likely industry to be impacted by fraud. According to the audit standards, 
the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with 
governance of the entity and management. To get started, your government should conduct a fraud risk 
assessment to identify where and how fraud might occur and what individuals may be in a position to 
commit fraud. Once you’ve identified your entity’s fraud risk areas, the next step is to develop a fraud risk 
assessment and investigation policy.  







 


Page 8 


 


 
INFORMATIONAL POINTS (cont.) 


 
 GOVERNMENT FRAUD PREVENTION AND DETECTION: NOW IS THE TIME TO ACT (cont.) 
 
As you begin your fraud risk assessment or develop tools to prevent and detect fraud, it is important to 
keep in mind the following information provided by the Association of Certified fraud Examiners: 
 


> Misappropriation of assets accounts for 80 percent of fraud 


> The primary internal control weaknesses observed are lack of internal controls, lack of 
management review, override of existing internal controls and poor tone at the top 


> A tip is the most effective tool to catch a fraudster followed by management review 


> The professional requirements and objectives of a financial audit are different than a forensic 
audit. Due to the nature of a financial audit, less than 10 percent of frauds have been discovered 
as a result of a financial audit conducted by an independent accounting firm. 


 
Your government has not gone through a fraud risk assessment or does not have a plan to prevent and 
detect fraud, we recommend that this be done and then updated on a regular basis. We are available to 
assist you with this process.  
 


WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND GASB NO. 68 


As you begin your second year reporting your pension activity under the requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 68, let’s review how this information affects your financial statements. 
 
Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) pension information is reported on a one-year lag in your financial 
statements, so current year balances are the WRS amounts reported for the plan year ended 
December 31, 2015. The following is a summary of the status of the WRS for the current and previous 
year (amounts are in billions). 
 


 Current  
Year 2015 


 Previous Year 
2014 


  
Change 


 


    
Total Pension Liability $ 90.1 $ 89.7  $ 0.4 
Net Assets Available for Benefits 88.5  92.1   (3.6) 
     
 Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 1.6 $ (2.4 ) $ 4.0 


 
As noted above, for the current year, WRS reports a net pension liability compared to a net pension asset 
for the previous year. Although 2015 contributions to WRS from employers and employees was 
consistent with the 2014 amounts, net investment income for 2015 decreased from $4.9 billion to a net 
loss of $0.7 billion, a $5.6 billion swing. This decrease in net investment income was primarily due to 
declines in investment returns and market values as a result of the 2015 market closing at its lowest point 
since 2008. In addition, benefit payments increased $0.3 billion or 6.3% from 2014 to 2015 partially as a 
result of an additional 6,200 retirees receiving benefits. Your government’s proportionate share of the 
current year net pension liability is reported in your government-wide financial statements.  
 
It should be noted that since the net pension liability (asset) is heavily dependent upon the market value 
of the net assets available for benefits, increases and decreases in the market can and will significantly 
change the amounts reported on your financial statements in the future. 
 
 


 







 


 


REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS BY THE AUDITOR TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 


 







 


Page 9 


To the City Council 
City of Stoughton 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
 
Thank you for using Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP as your auditor. 
 
We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the City of Stoughton for the year ended 
December 31, 2016 and have issued our report thereon dated June 21, 2017. This letter presents 
communications required by our professional standards. 
 


OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED  
STATES OF AMERICA 


 
The objective of a financial statement audit is the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. We 
conducted the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
These standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are free of 
material misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud. Our audit included examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. Our audit does not relieve management or the city council of their responsibilities. 
 
As part of the audit we obtained an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, 
timing and extent of further audit procedures. The audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal 
control or to identify deficiencies in internal control. 
 


OTHER INFORMATION IN DOCUMENTS CONTAINING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Our responsibility does not extend beyond the audited financial statements identified in this report. We do not 
have any obligation to and have not performed any procedures to corroborate other information contained in 
client prepared documents, such as official statements related to debt issues. 
 
 PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT  
 
We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our 
management letter about planning matters dated June 7, 2016, and our meeting with the finance committee 
and council on June 14, 2016. 
 
 







To the City Council 
City of Stoughton 
 
 
 


Page 10 


 QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY’S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES 
 
  Accounting Policies 
 
Management is responsible for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the 
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies 
and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the City of Stoughton are described in Note I 
to the financial statements. As described in Note I to the financial statements, the City of Stoughton changed 
accounting policies related to investments by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards 
(GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. Accordingly, the accounting change has 
been applied to current periods presented; no retrospective application was necessary. We noted no 
transactions entered into by the City of Stoughton during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of 
which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. 
 
  Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future 
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 
 


1. Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible EMS receivables is based on historical 
collections.  


2. Management’s estimate of the net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources is based on technical information obtained from the Wisconsin Retirement System. 
 


We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that they 
are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
  Financial Statement Disclosures 
 
The disclosures in the notes to the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
 DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit. 
 
 CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatement identified during the audit, 
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
 







To the City Council 
City of Stoughton 
 
 
 


Page 11 


 CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS (cont.) 
 
There was one prior year uncorrected financial statement misstatement related to sick leave accrual in a 
nonmajor enterprise fund resulting in an overstatement of expenditures for the EMS fund in the amount of 
$22,092. Management has determined that the effect of this uncorrected misstatement is immaterial to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. The following is a summary of material financial statement 
misstatements (audit adjustments): 
 
   Amount 
   
 Record payables  $ 1,307,596
 Record adjustments to special assessments  869,962
 Record debt proceeds for crossover refunding  3,261,867
 Record EMS and storm sewer fund debt activity  559,432
 Record retirement fund activity  426,153
 Record capital assets activity for storm  837,302
 
In addition, we prepare GASB No. 34 conversion entries which are summarized in the “Reconciliation of the 
Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position” and the “Reconciliation of the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the 
Statement of Activities” in the financial statements. 
 
 DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
 CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has 
all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
 MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter. This letter follows this required communication. 
 
 INDEPENDENCE  
 
We are not aware of any relationships between Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP and the city that, in our 
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. 
 







To the City Council 
City of Stoughton 
 
 
 


Page 12 


 INDEPENDENCE (cont.) 
 
Relating to our audit of the financial statements of the City of Stoughton for the year ended December 31, 2016, 
Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP hereby confirms that we are, in our professional judgment, independent with 
respect to the city in accordance with the Code of Professional Conduct issued by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. We provided no services to the city other audit services provided in connection 
with the audit of the current year's financial statements and nonaudit services which in our judgment do not 
impair our independence: 
 


 Financial Statement Preparation 


 Adjusting Journal Entries 


 Compiled TIF Financial Statements 


 Compiled Regulatory Reports 


 Maintenance of capital asset records 


 Accounting assistance 
 
None of these nonaudit services constitute an audit under generally accepted auditing standards, including 
Government Auditing Standards. 
 
 OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS OR ISSUES 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City of Stoughton’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 
 
 OTHER MATTERS 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the 
basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
RSI. 
 
We were engaged to report on the supplementary information which accompanies the financial statements but 
is not RSI. With respect to the supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and 
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information 
complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of 
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation 
to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves. 
 







To the City Council 
City of Stoughton 
 
 
 


Page 13 


 RESTRICTION ON USE 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the city council and management and is not intended to be, 
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. We welcome the opportunity to discuss 
the information included in this letter and any other matters. Thank you for the opportunity to work with you. 
 


 
 
Madison, Wisconsin 
June 21, 2017 
 
 







 


 


MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS 



























CITY OF STOUGHTON 
TAX INCREMENTAL 


DISTRICTS NO. 3, NO. 4, NO. 5, NO. 6 AND NO. 7 
 


COMPILED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


 
Including Accountant’s Compilation Report 


 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016 and 


From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016 
 
 







 CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS NO. 3, NO. 4, NO. 5, NO. 6 and NO. 7 
 
 COMPILED 
 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 From the Dates of Creation Through December 31, 2016 
 
 
 
 
Accountants' Compilation Report 1 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 3 – Compiled Balance Sheet 2 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 3 – Compiled Historical Summary of Project Costs,  
  Project Revenues, and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments 3 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 3 – Compiled Historical Summary of Sources,  
  Uses, and Status of Funds 4 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 4 – Compiled Balance Sheet 5 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 4 – Compiled Historical Summary of Project Costs, 
  Project Revenues, and Net Cost Recovered Through Tax Increments 6 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 4 – Compiled Historical Summary of Sources, 
  Uses, and Status of Funds 7 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 5 – Compiled Balance Sheet 8 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 5 – Compiled Historical Summary of Project Costs, 
  Project Revenues, and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments 9 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 5 – Compiled Historical Summary of Sources 
  Uses, and Status of Funds 10 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 6 – Compiled Balance Sheet 11 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 6 – Compiled Historical Summary of Project Costs, 
  Project Revenues, and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments 12 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 6 – Compiled Historical Summary of Sources 
  Uses, and Status of Funds 13 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 7 – Compiled Balance Sheet 14 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 7 – Compiled Historical Summary of Project Costs, 
  Project Revenues, and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments 15 
 
Tax Incremental District No. 7 – Compiled Historical Summary of Sources 
  Uses, and Status of Funds 16 
 
Compiled Notes to Financial Statements 17 – 24







 


Page 1 


 ACCOUNTANTS' COMPILATION REPORT 
 
 
 
To the City Council 
City of Stoughton 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
 
Management is responsible for the accompanying Balance Sheet, Historical Summary of Project Costs, Project 
Revenues and Net Cost to be Recovered Through Tax Increments and Historical Summary of Sources, Uses, 
and Status of Funds of the City of Stoughton's Tax Incremental Districts No. 3, No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, and No. 7 
(“the districts”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 and from the date of creation through 
December 31, 2016, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. We have performed a compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We did not audit or review the financial statements nor were 
we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by 
management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on 
these financial statements. 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the transactions of the districts and do not purport 
to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Stoughton as of December 31, 2016, and the 
changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such 
missing information, although not a required part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economical, or historical context.  
 


 
 
Madison, Wisconsin 
June 14, 2017 







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3


COMPILED
BALANCE SHEET


As of December 31, 2016


Capital
Projects


Fund


ASSETS
    Cash and investments 310,201$      
    Taxes receivable 492,440        


            TOTAL ASSETS 802,641$      


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE
    Deferred Inflows of Resources
       Unearned revenues 492,440$      


          Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 492,440        


    Fund Balance
       Restricted 310,201        


              TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE 802,641$      


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 2







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3


COMPILED
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF PROJECT COSTS, PROJECT REVENUES,


AND NET COST TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH TAX INCREMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


and From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


PROJECT COSTS
    Capital expenditures -$                   5,571,359$    
    Professional services - planning, engineering, other 7,608             137,976         
    Debt issuance cost -                     20,162           
    Interest on long-term debt 46,699           1,332,021      
    Contributions to other districts -                     1,106,252      


        Total Project Costs 54,307           8,167,770      


PROJECT REVENUES
    Tax increments 487,847         4,245,750      
    Intergovernmental 4,007             19,681           
    Developer guarantees 16,491           32,495           
    Public charges for services -                     12,942           
    Contribution from other district -                     742,340         
    Transfer from other funds -                     181,304         
    Investment income 567                55,162           
    Land sales 52,805           1,383,920      
    Miscellaneous revenues -                     148,244         


        Total Project Revenues 561,717         6,821,838      


            NET COST (RECOVERED) TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH
              TIF INCREMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2016 (507,410)$      1,345,932$    


RECONCILIATION OF RECOVERABLE COSTS
    General obligation debt 1,656,133$    
    Fund balance (310,201)        


 
            NET COSTS TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH
              TAX INCREMENTS – DECEMBER 31, 2016 1,345,932$    


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 3







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 3


COMPILED
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF SOURCES, USES, AND STATUS OF FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
and From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


SOURCES OF FUNDS
    Tax increments 487,847$       4,245,750$    
    Intergovernmental 4,007             19,681           
    Developer guarantees 16,491           32,495           
    Public charges for services -                     12,942           
    Contribution from other district -                     742,340         
    Transfers from other funds -                     181,304         
    Investment income 567                55,162           
    Land sales 52,805           1,383,920      
    Miscellaneous revenues -                     148,244         
    Long-term debt issued -                     6,257,496      


        Total Sources of Funds 561,717         13,079,334    


USES OF FUNDS
    Capital expenditures -                     5,571,359      
    Professional services - planning, engineering, other 7,608             137,976         
    Debt issuance cost -                     20,162           
    Contribution to other district -                     1,106,252      
    Interest on long-term debt 46,699           1,332,021      
    Principal on long-term debt 392,830         4,601,363      


        Total Uses of Funds 447,137         12,769,133    


            Excess of sources of funds over uses of funds 114,580         310,201         


    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 195,621         -                     


             ENDING FUND BALANCE 310,201$       310,201$       


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 4







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 4


COMPILED
BALANCE SHEET


As of December 31, 2016


Capital
Projects


Fund


ASSETS
    Cash and investments 1,315,983$    
    Taxes receivable 180,832         
    Loans receivable 50,000           


            TOTAL ASSETS 1,546,815$    


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 
AND FUND BALANCE


    Liabilities
        Advance from city general fund 360,802$       


            Total Liabilities 360,802         


    Deferred Inflows of Resources
        Unearned revenues 180,832         
        Unavailable revenues 50,000           


            Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 230,832         


    Fund Balance
        Restricted 955,181         


               TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
                 RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 1,546,815$    


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 5







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 4


COMPILED
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF PROJECT COSTS, PROJECT REVENUES,


AND NET COST RECOVERED THROUGH TAX INCREMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


and From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


PROJECT COSTS
    Capital expenditures -$                   2,309,568$    
    Revolving loan fund 51,500           51,500           
    Professional services - planning, engineering, other 1,383             75,919           
    Debt issuance costs -                     26,075           
    Interest on long-term debt 12,905           778,315         


        Total Project Costs 65,788           3,241,377      


PROJECT REVENUES
    Tax increments 259,879         2,104,137      
    Intergovernmental 2,977             137,529         
    Contribution from other districts -                     1,405,024      
    Miscellaneous revenues -                     48,691           
    Investment income 4,135             111,177         


        Total Project Revenues 266,991         3,806,558      


            NET COST (RECOVERED) THROUGH
              TIF INCREMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2016 (201,203)$      (565,181)$      


RECONCILIATION OF RECOVERED COSTS
    General obligation debt 390,000$       
    Fund balance (955,181)        


 
            NET COSTS RECOVERED THROUGH
              TAX INCREMENTS – DECEMBER 31, 2016 (565,181)$      


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 6







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 4


COMPILED
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF SOURCES, USES, AND STATUS OF FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
and From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


SOURCES OF FUNDS
    Tax increments 259,879$       2,104,137$    
    Intergovernmental 2,977             137,529         
    Contribution from other districts -                     1,405,024      
    Miscellaneous revenues -                     48,691           
    Investment income 4,135             111,177         
    Long-term debt issued -                     3,160,750      


        Total Sources of Funds 266,991         6,967,308      


USES OF FUNDS
    Capital expenditures -                     2,309,568      
    Revolving loan fund 51,500           51,500           
    Professional services - planning, engineering, other 1,383             75,919           
    Debt issuance costs -                     26,075           
    Interest on long-term debt 12,905           778,315         
    Principal on long-term debt 95,000           2,770,750      


        Total Uses of Funds 160,788         6,012,127      


            Excess of sources of funds over uses of funds 106,203         955,181         


    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 848,978         -                     


             ENDING FUND BALANCE 955,181$       955,181$       


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 7







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 5


COMPILED
BALANCE SHEET


As of December 31, 2016


Capital
Projects


Fund


ASSETS
Cash and investments 178,511$    


            TOTAL ASSETS 178,511$    


LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
    Liabilities


Advance from city general fund 598,427$    


            Total Liabilities 598,427      


    Fund Balance
        Unassigned (deficit) (419,916)     


               TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 178,511$    


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 8







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 5


COMPILED
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF PROJECT COSTS, PROJECT REVENUES,


AND NET COST TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH TAX INCREMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


and From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


PROJECT COSTS
   Capital expenditures 750,531$       1,707,517$    


    Professional services - planning, engineering, other 1,642             46,833           
   Interest on advances -                     96,965           


        Total Project Costs 752,173         1,851,315      


PROJECT REVENUES
    Tax increments -                     30,147           
    Transfer from other funds -                     100,000         
    Intergovernmental 39,117           243,231         
    Developer guarantees 18,877           90,353           
    Investment income 36                  52                  
    Land sales -                     116,616         
    Miscellaneous revenues -                     1,000             


        Total Project Revenues 58,030           581,399         


            NET COST TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH
              TIF INCREMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2016 694,143$       1,269,916$    


RECONCILIATION OF RECOVERABLE COSTS
    General obligation debt 850,000$       
    Fund balance 419,916         


 
            NET COSTS TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH
              TAX INCREMENTS – DECEMBER 31, 2016 1,269,916$    


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 9







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 5


COMPILED
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF SOURCES, USES, AND STATUS OF FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
and From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


SOURCES OF FUNDS 
    Tax increments -$                   30,147$         
    Transfers from other funds -                     100,000         
    Intergovernmental 39,117           243,231         
    Developer guarantees 18,877           90,353           
    Investment income 36                  52                  
    Land sales -                     116,616         
    Miscellaneous revenues -                     1,000             
    Note proceeds 850,000         850,000         


        Total Sources of Funds 908,030         1,431,399      


USES OF FUNDS 
    Capital expenditures 750,531         1,707,517      
    Professional services - planning, engineering, other 1,642             46,833           
    Interest on advance -                     96,965           


        Total Uses of Funds 752,173         1,851,315      


            Excess (deficiency) of sources of funds over uses of funds 155,857         (419,916)        


    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) (575,773)        -                     


             ENDING FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) (419,916)$      (419,916)$      


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 10







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 6


COMPILED
BALANCE SHEET


As of December 31, 2016


Capital
Projects


Fund


ASSETS
    Cash and investments 2,213$          


            TOTAL ASSETS 2,213$          


LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
    Liabilities
       Accounts payable 813$             
       Advances from city general fund 20,000          


          Total Liabilities 20,813          


    Fund Balance
        Unassigned (deficit) (18,600)         


              TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) 2,213$          


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 11







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 6


COMPILED
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF PROJECT COSTS, PROJECT REVENUES,


AND NET COST TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH TAX INCREMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


and From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


PROJECT COSTS


    Professional services - planning, engineering, other 6,869$           18,600$         


        Total Project Costs 6,869             18,600           


PROJECT REVENUES -                     -                     


            NET COST RECOVERABLE THROUGH
              TIF INCREMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2016 6,869$           18,600$         


RECONCILIATION OF RECOVERABLE COSTS
     Deficit 18,600$         


 
            NET COSTS TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH
              TAX INCREMENTS – DECEMBER 31, 2016 18,600$         


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 12







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 6


COMPILED
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF SOURCES, USES, AND STATUS OF FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
and From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


SOURCES OF FUNDS -$                   -$                   


USES OF FUNDS


    Professional services - planning, engineering, other 6,869             18,600           


        Total Uses of Funds 6,869             18,600           


            (Deficiency) of sources of funds over uses of funds (6,869)            (18,600)          


    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) (11,731)          -                     


             ENDING FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) (18,600)$        (18,600)$        


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 13







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 7


COMPILED
BALANCE SHEET


As of December 31, 2016


Capital
Projects


Fund


ASSETS
    Cash and investments 2,295,774$   
    Tax roll receivable 242,013        
    Accounts receivable 107,757        


            TOTAL ASSETS 2,645,544$   


LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
    Liabilities
       Deposits 29,999$        


       Accounts payable 1,317,685     


          Total Liabilities 1,347,684     


    Deferred Inflows of Resources
       Unearned revenues 242,013        


          Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 242,013        


    Fund Balance
       Restricted 1,055,847     


              TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,  
                 AND FUND BALANCE 2,645,544$   


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 14







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 7


COMPILED
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF PROJECT COSTS, PROJECT REVENUES,


AND NET COST TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH TAX INCREMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


and From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


PROJECT COSTS
    Capital expenditures 3,308,319$    3,689,079$    
    Professional services - planning, engineering, other 850                4,213             
    Debt issuance cost -                     45,926           


        Total Project Costs 3,309,169      3,739,218      


PROJECT REVENUES
    Premium on debt -                     9,120             
    Investment income 10,200           10,945           


        Total Project Revenues 10,200           20,065           


            NET COST TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH
              TIF INCREMENTS - DECEMBER 31, 2016 3,298,969$    3,719,153$    


RECONCILIATION OF RECOVERABLE COSTS
    Long term debt  4,775,000$    
    Fund balance (1,055,847)     


 
            NET COSTS TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH
              TAX INCREMENTS – DECEMBER 31, 2016 3,719,153$    


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 15







CITY OF STOUGHTON
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 7


COMPILED
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF SOURCES, USES, AND STATUS OF FUNDS


For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
and From the Date of Creation Through December 31, 2016


Year From Date
Ended of Creation


SOURCES OF FUNDS
    Investment income 10,200$         10,945$         
    Premium on debt -                     9,120             
    Long-term debt issued -                     4,775,000      


        Total Sources of Funds 10,200           4,795,065      


USES OF FUNDS
    Capital expenditures 3,308,319      3,689,079      
    Professional services - planning, engineering, other 850                4,213             
    Debt issuance cost -                     45,926           


        Total Uses of Funds 3,309,169      3,739,218      


            Excess (deficiency) of sources of funds over uses of funds (3,298,969)     1,055,847      


    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,354,816      -                     


             ENDING FUND BALANCE 1,055,847$    1,055,847$    


See accompanying notes to financial statements and accountants' compilation report.
Page 16







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS NO. 3, NO. 4, NO. 5, NO. 6, AND NO. 7 


 
COMPILED 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
From the Dates of Creation Through December 31, 2016 


 


 Page 17 


 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of the City of Stoughton's Tax Incremental Districts No. 3, No. 4, No. 5, No. 6 and 
No. 7 (the "districts") conform to accounting principles as applicable to governmental units and as defined 
by Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.1105. 
 
The City of Stoughton has implemented accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America to the extent they apply in determining the scope of the activity of Tax Incremental Districts No. 
3, No. 4 No. 5, No. 6, and No. 7. The accompanying financial statements reflect all the significant 
operations of the City of Stoughton’s Tax Incremental Districts No. 3, No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, and No. 7. The 
accompanying financial statements do not include the full presentation of the City of Stoughton.  
 
 A.  DESCRIPTION OF FUND AND ACCOUNT GROUP STRUCTURE 
 
This report contains the financial information of the City of Stoughton's Tax Incremental Districts No. 3, 
No. 4, No. 5, No. 6, and No. 7. The summary statements were prepared from data recorded in the 
following funds and the city’s long-term debt: 
 
     Debt Service Fund 
     Capital Projects Fund 
 
Detailed descriptions of the purpose of these funds and long-term debt can be found in the City of 
Stoughton's basic financial statements. 
 
The data was consolidated for purposes of this report. Therefore, the amounts shown in the 
accompanying statements will not directly correlate with amounts shown in the basic financial statements. 
 
The districts were created under the provisions of Wisconsin Statute Section 66.1105. The purpose of 
that section is to allow a municipality to recover development and improvements costs in a designated 
area from the property taxes generated on the increased value of the property after the creation date of 
the districts. The tax on the increased value is called a tax increment. 
 
The statutes allow the districts to collect tax increments until the net project cost has been fully recovered, 
or until 27 years, for TID Nos. 3, 4, and 5 and 20 years for TID Nos. 6 and 7, after the creation date, 
whichever occurs first. Project costs uncollected at the dissolution date are absorbed by the City of 
Stoughton. Project costs may be incurred up to five years before the unextended termination date of the 
districts. 
 
Original Project Plan 


 Creation  Last Date to Incur  Last Year to 
 Date  Project Costs  Collect Increment
      
TID No. 3 1-1-1993  11-24-2014  2020 
TID No. 4 1-1-1999  3-23-2021  2026 
TID No. 5 1-1-2010  3-12-2032  2037 
TID No. 6 1-1-2015  9-29-2030  2036 
TID No. 7 1-1-2015  11-11-2029  2035 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS NO. 3, NO. 4, NO. 5, NO. 6, AND NO. 7 


 
COMPILED 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
From the Dates of Creation Through December 31, 2016 


 


 Page 18 


 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 


 
 A.  DESCRIPTION OF FUND AND ACCOUNT GROUP STRUCTURE (cont.) 
 
Plan Amendments 


 Adoption     
 Date     
      
TID No. 3 Amendment No. 1 10-23-2007     
TID No. 3 Amendment No. 2 10-23-2012     
TID No. 4 Amendment No. 1 9-26-2006     
TID No. 4 Amendment No. 2 1-12-2010     


 
 B.  BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The modified accrual basis of accounting was followed in the preparation of these statements. Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both 
measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter 
to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Project costs, other than interest on long-term debt, are 
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. 
 
District increments are recorded as revenues in the year due. Intergovernmental aids and grants are 
recognized as revenues in the period the related expenditures are incurred, if applicable, or when the city 
is entitled to the aids. 
  
Special assessments are recorded as revenues when collected. Annual installments due in future years 
are accounted for as receivables and unavailable revenues. There are no special assessments 
receivables as of the date of this report. 
 
Other general revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable and available under 
the criteria described above.  
 
 C.  USE OF ESTIMATES 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS NO. 3, NO. 4, NO. 5, NO. 6, AND NO. 7 


 
COMPILED 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
From the Dates of Creation Through December 31, 2016 


 


 Page 19 


 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.) 
 
 D.  MEASUREMENT FOCUS 
 
The measurement focus of all governmental funds is the funds flow concept. Under the funds flow 
concept, sources and uses of financial resources, including capital outlays, debt proceeds and debt 
retirements are reflected in operations. Resources not available to finance expenditures and 
commitments of the current period are recognized as unavailable or unearned revenue or as 
nonspendable fund equity. Liabilities for claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension 
contributions which will not be currently liquidated using expendable available financial resources are 
shown in the long-term debt footnote disclosure. The related expenditures are recognized when the 
liabilities are liquidated. 
 
 E.  PROJECT PLAN BUDGETS 
 
The estimated revenues and expenditures of the districts are adopted in the project plans. Those 
estimates are for the entire life of the districts, and may not be comparable to interim results presented in 
this report.  
 
 F. LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Short-term liabilities are recorded as fund liabilities. All other long-term liabilities are shown in the 
long-term debt footnote disclosure.  
 
Proceeds of long-term debt issues not recorded as fund liabilities are reflected as "Sources of Funds" in 
the operating statement of the recipient fund. Retirement of these issues is reported as expenditure in the 
year in which the debt matures or is repaid, whichever is earlier.  
 
 G. CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS 
 
Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board pronouncements are met. The liability and expenditure for claims and judgments is only 
reported in governmental funds if it has matured. Claims and judgments are disclosed in the long-term 
debt footnote when the related liabilities are incurred.  
 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS 
 
The districts invest their funds in accordance with the provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes 66.0603(1m) 
and 67.11(2). 
 
Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted market prices. No 
investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value 
are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income. 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS NO. 3, NO. 4, NO. 5, NO. 6, AND NO. 7 


 
COMPILED 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
From the Dates of Creation Through December 31, 2016 


 


 Page 20 


 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS (cont.) 
 
The districts, as funds of the city, maintain separate and common cash and investment accounts at the 
same financial institutions utilized by the city. Federal depository insurance and the State of Wisconsin 
Guarantee fund insurance apply to the City of Stoughton as an individual municipality, and, accordingly, 
the amount of insured funds is not determinable for the districts. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
 A.  GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT 
 
All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the City of 
Stoughton. Notes and bonds borrowed to finance the districts' expenditures will be retired by tax 
increments accumulated by the TIF District funds. If those revenues are not sufficient, payments will be 
made by future tax levies or utility revenues, as applicable. 
 


 Original    
 Amount   Balance 
 Borrowed Repaid  12-31-16 
TIF District No. 3      
 03/18/93 Promissory Note – 6.00% $ 189,950 $ 189,950 $ -
 10/01/93 Promissory Note – 4.40-6.00% 1,980,000 1,980,000 -
 05/01/02 Promissory Note – 3.50-4.375% 80,483 80,483 -
 09/16/02 Refunding Bonds – 3.00-3.75% 
 06/26/13      State Trust Fund Loan – 2.75%        


1,382,063
1,400,000


 
 


1,382,063
573,867


 -
826,133


 06/01/14      Promissory Note – 2.00% 1,225,000 395,000 830,000
  
  Totals $ 6,257,496


 
$ 4,601,363


 
$ 1,656,133


 
Aggregate maturities of all long-term debt relating to the district are as follows: 
 


Calendar      
  Year     Principal  Interest  Totals 


2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 


$ 403,210
408,661
419,262
425,000


 $ 37,269
27,718
17,967


8,029


 $ 440,479
436,379
437,229
433,029


    Totals $ 1,656,133 $ 90,983  $ 1,747,116
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS NO. 3, NO. 4, NO. 5, NO. 6, AND NO. 7 


 
COMPILED 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
From the Dates of Creation Through December 31, 2016 


 


 Page 21 


 
NOTE 3 – LONG-TERM DEBT (cont.) 
 
 A.  GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT (cont.) 
 


 Original     
 Amount    Balance 
 Borrowed  Repaid  12-31-16 
TIF District No. 4      
 02/23/99 State Trust Fund Loan – 5.25% $ 162,000 $ 162,000 $ -
 08/09/00 State Trust Fund Loan – 5.25% 355,080 355,080 -
 06/01/01 Promissory Note – 4.10-4.60% 1,025,000 1,025,000 -
 06/01/01 Promissory Note – 4.10-4.60% 154,427 154,427 -
 06/15/03 Promissory Note – 3.0 – 3.375% 292,105 292,105   -
 06/22/04 State Trust Fund Loan – 4% 213,746 213,746 -
     04/14/09       Promissory Note – 1.60 – 3.85%    163,392 163,392 -
 04/13/10 G.O. Refunding Bonds1.0 – 3.25% 795,000 405,000 390,000


  Totals $ 3,160,750 $ 2,770,750 $ 390,000
 
Aggregate maturities of all long-term debt relating to the district are as follows: 
 


Calendar      
  Year       Principal  Interest  Totals 
      


2017 $ 95,000 $ 10,483 $ 105,483
2018 
2019 


95,000
100,000


 7,775
4,800


 102,775
104,800


2020 100,000 1,625 101,625
      
    Totals $ 390,000 $ 24,683  $ 414,683


 
 Original     
 Amount    Balance 
 Borrowed  Repaid  12-31-16 
TIF District No. 5      
 12/28/16 State Trust Fund Loan – 3.5% $ 850,000 $ - $ 850,000


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS NO. 3, NO. 4, NO. 5, NO. 6, AND NO. 7 


 
COMPILED 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
From the Dates of Creation Through December 31, 2016 


 


 Page 22 


 
NOTE 3 – LONG-TERM DEBT (cont.) 
 
 A.  GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT (cont.) 
 


TIF District No. 5 (cont.) 
 


Aggregate maturities are as follows: 
 


Calendar      
  Year       Principal  Interest  Totals 
      


2017 $ - $ - $ -
2018 26,428 36,026 62,454
2019 33,629 28,825 62,454
2020 34,730 27,724 62,454
2021 36,021 26,433 62,454
2022-2026 199,858 112,412 312,270
2027-2031 237,383 74,886 312,269
2032-2036 281,951 30,315 312,266
      
    Totals $ 850,000 $ 336,621  $ 1,186,621


 
 B.  NOTE ANTICIPATION NOTES  
 


 Original     
 Amount    Balance 
 Borrowed  Repaid  12-31-16 
TIF District No. 7      
 10/21/15 Note Anticipation Notes – 1.250% $ 4,775,000 $ - $ 4,775,000


  Total $ 4,775,000 $ - $ 4,775,000
 
Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:  
 


Calendar      
  Year       Principal  Interest  Totals 
      


2017 $ - $ 59,688 $ 59,688
2018 4,775,000 59,688 4,834,688
      
    Totals $ 4,775,000 $ 119,376  $ 4,894,376


 
 
NOTE 4 – ADVANCES FROM/DUE TO CITY GENERAL FUND 
 
The general fund is advancing funds to TIF Districts No. 4, No. 5, and No. 6. The amount advanced is 
determined by the deficiency of revenues over expenditures and other financing sources since the 
district's inception. A repayment schedule has not been established.  







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS NO. 3, NO. 4, NO. 5, NO. 6, AND NO. 7 


 
COMPILED 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
From the Dates of Creation Through December 31, 2016 


 


 Page 23 


 
NOTE 5 – INCREMENT SHARING  
 
As allowable under TIF statutes, the city may share positive TIF increments. In 1998, and again in 2003, 
the city and joint review board approved sharing increments from TIF District No. 2 (donor district, 
subsequently closed) to TIF District No. 3 (donee district). Such transfers are reflected as recoverable 
costs in the donor district, and as project revenues in the donee district. TIF increment sharing was valid 
for a five year period, and was extended for an additional five years by the joint review board. Transfers 
between districts are subject to various conditions in the statutes. 
  
In 2006, the city and joint review board approved sharing increments from TIF District No. 2 (donor 
district, subsequently closed) to TIF District No. 4 (donee district). Transfers were approved to begin in 
2007. State statutes limit the number of years a district may share increments to ten. Since TIF District 
No. 2 had been sharing increments with TIF District No. 3, the increment sharing with TIF District No. 4 
was allowable for years 2007 through 2009. TIF District No. 2 was closed in 2009. 
 
In 2007, the city and joint review board approved sharing increments from TIF District No. 3 (donor 
district) to TIF District No 4 (donee district). Transfers began in 2007 and were valid for a five year period.  
 
 
NOTE 6 – TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 
 
The city has transferred funds to TIF Districts No. 3 and No. 5 to cover deficits over the years. It is the 
intent of the city to have TIF Districts No. 3 and No. 5 repay the general fund for these transfers 
contingent upon future availability of funds. The following is a historical summary of transfers for TIF 
District No. 3: 
 


1993 $ 30,000
1997 30,212
1998 104,150
2001 10,451
2002 6,491
 
    Totals $ 181,304


 
The following is a historical summary of transfers for TIF District No. 5: 
 


2010 $ 100,000
 
 
NOTE 7 – LOANS RECEIVABLE 
 
At December 31, 2016, TIF District No. 4 had outstanding loans receivable totaling $50,000. The loans 
are recorded as receivables and unavailable revenue. All repayments are current. The loans are 
considered to be project costs and are reflected in the recoverable cost schedule. 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICTS NO. 3, NO. 4, NO. 5, NO. 6, AND NO. 7 


 
COMPILED 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
From the Dates of Creation Through December 31, 2016 


 


 Page 24 


 
NOTE 8 – DEVELOPER AGREEMENTS 
 
TIF District No. 6 has entered into a developer agreement where the city shall construct the city 
improvements and provide a development incentive grant in the amount of $377,000. Grant disbursement 
and construction is expected to be completed in 2017. 
 
TIF District No. 7 has entered into a developer agreement where the TID shall reimburse developer for 
off-site public improvements in the amount of $3,763,230. The TID has reimbursed $3,763,230 as of 
December 31, 2016.  
 
 
NOTE 9 – DEVELOPER PAYMENTS  
 
No developer payments were made by TIF 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 for 2016. 
 
 
NOTE 10 – GUARANTEED REVENUE  
 
TIF District No. 3 has entered into a development agreement with Nelson Global Products, Inc. (the 
“developer”). The agreement guarantees the city will receive a tax increment equal to the annual 
applicable mill rate multiplied by $3,750,000. The developer shall pay the difference between the 
guaranteed tax increment and the tax increment actually levied. The developer’s guarantee obligation 
shall terminate when the city has collected from the tax increment generated from the district or paid 
under the agreement not less than $320,600, or when TIF District No. 3 has terminated, whichever occurs 
first. TIF guarantee payment received in 2016 was $16,491. 
 
TIF District No. 5 has entered into a development agreement with Movin’ Out Development, LLC (the 
“developer”). The agreement guarantees that the developer shall pay the difference between the 
guaranteed tax increment and the tax increment actually levied. The guarantee obligation shall terminate 
when the city has collected from the tax increment generated from the district or been paid under this 
agreement the full amount of the project costs of not less than $610,753 plus 5 percent interest accruing 
from January 1, 2012. TIF guarantee payment received in 2016 was $18,877. 
 
TIF District No. 6 has entered into a development agreement with North American Fur Auction (“NAFA”). 
The agreement guarantees the assessed value of NAFA’s property will be not less than $1,100,000, 
$3,500,000 and $5,000,000 by January 1, 2018, 2019 and 2021 respectively. Beginning calendar year 
2019, NAFA shall pay the difference between the guaranteed tax increment on the assessed values and 
the tax increment actually levied. The agreement shall continue until TIF District No. 6 has terminated. 
There was no guarantee payment due or received in 2016. 





		6a-R-94-2017- City 2016 Audit Resolution.pdf

		6b-Stoughton, City of - FS - FINAL.pdf

		Prop CFS

		Proprietary CFS

		Proprietary CFS

		Proprietary CFS

		Proprietary CFS

		Proprietary CFS

		Proprietary CFS

		Prop CFS

		Proprietary CFS

		Proprietary CFS

		Proprietary CFS

		Proprietary CFS

		Index to Notes

		Notes

		TOC NOTE I.D.8

		note2

		note2

		TOC NOTE IV.E. interfunds

		General Fund IS Budget to Actual

		S1A

		S1A



		6c-Stoughton, City of - ML - FINAL.pdf

		6d-Stoughton, City of - TIFS - FINAL.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2016 Wastewater
treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system 2016 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
(CMAR).


Committee Action: Approved 6-0


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R-96-2017 Date Introduced: June 27, 2017


WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City of Stoughton for Stoughton Utilities to operate a
wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system to serve customers within the City of
Stoughton, and


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has prepared a 2016 CMAR in conformance with Chapter NR 208 of
the Wisconsin Administrative Code, and


WHEREAS, Annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form (eCMAR) is required to be completed
annually no later than June 30, and


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Utilities Committee met on June 19, 2017 to consider and approve the
Stoughton Utilities 2016 CMAR and recommends approval, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2016 CMAR as attached hereto as part
of this resolution and transmit the resolution and report to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







 
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


  


Date:   
  


June 14, 2017   


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Brian G. Erickson  


Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  Wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system 2016 Compliance 


Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) 


Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) requirements have been in existence since 1987.  The 


attached CMAR has been completed as required by Chapter NR 208 of the Wisconsin Administrative 


Code.  Annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form (eCMAR) is required to be completed no later than 


June 30.   


The CMAR is a self-evaluation tool that promotes the owner's awareness and responsibility for wastewater 


collection and treatment needs, measures the performance of a wastewater treatment works during a 


calendar year, and assesses its level of compliance with permit requirements. 


The purpose of the CMAR is to evaluate the wastewater treatment system for problems or deficiencies.  


Management, operation, and maintenance activities are described.  Owners identify proposed actions to 


prevent violations of WPDES permits and water quality degradation.  The CMAR program also 


encourages actions that: 


 Promote the owners’ awareness and responsibility for wastewater collection and treatment needs. 


 Maximize the useful life of wastewater treatment systems through improved operation & 


maintenance. 


 Initiate formal planning, design and construction for system upgrades. 


It is requested that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approve the report, and recommend it 


and the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on June 27, 2017. 


Encl. 


 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 19, 2017 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  2 


Electrical infrastructure improvements adjacent to riverfront development area:   Stoughton 
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented 
and discussed electrical infrastructure improvements in the Riverfront Development Area and 
surrounding areas, emphasizing funding, planning, and the establishment of appropriate grades.  
Discussion followed. 


Overhead to underground electrical service upgrades:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented and discussed overhead 
to underground electrical service upgrades.  Discussion followed. 


Wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system 2016 Compliance 
Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and 
discussed the 2016 CMAR.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the 
motion seconded by Alderperson Matt Bartlett, to approve the 2016 CMAR and recommend the 
approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on 
June 27, 2017.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Current City of Stoughton licensing agreement for communications attachments to utility 
poles:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian 
Hoops presented and discussed the agreement.  Discussion followed. 


Wisconsin Assembly Bill 348 proposed legislation, which limits local government authority 
over pole attachment regulation:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton 
Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented and discussed Assembly Bill 348.  Discussion 
followed. 


Adoption of the American Public Power Association (APPA) Safety Manual 16th Edition, 
2017:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian 
Hoops present and discussed the APPA Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017.  Discussion followed.  
Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David 
Erdman, to adopt the APPA Safety Manual, 16th Edition, 2017, and recommend the adoption of the 
manual and the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on June 27, 2017.  
The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Utilities Committee future agenda items:  None.  


Adjournment:  Motion by Citizen Member Alan Staats, the motion seconded by Citizen Member 
David Erdman, to adjourn the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting at 6:18 p.m.  The 
motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Respectfully submitted 


Brian R. Hoops 
Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 



bhoops

Highlight







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Influent Flow and Loading


1. Monthly Average Flows and (C)BOD Loadings
1.1 Verify the following monthly flows and (C)BOD loadings to your facility.


Outfall No.
701


Influent Monthly
Average Flow, MGD


x Influent Monthly
Average (C)BOD


Concentration mg/L


x 8.34 = Influent Monthly
Average (C)BOD
Loading, lbs/day


January 0.9395 x 268 x 8.34 = 2,099
February 0.9164 x 276 x 8.34 = 2,108


March 0.9896 x 212 x 8.34 = 1,747
April 1.0218 x 286 x 8.34 = 2,437
May 0.9799 x 245 x 8.34 = 2,002
June 0.9716 x 304 x 8.34 = 2,462
July 1.0308 x 259 x 8.34 = 2,227


August 1.0384 x 282 x 8.34 = 2,445
September 1.0360 x 264 x 8.34 = 2,278


October 1.0042 x 270 x 8.34 = 2,257
November 0.9737 x 292 x 8.34 = 2,372
December 0.9589 x 235 x 8.34 = 1,877


2. Maximum Monthly Design Flow and Design (C)BOD Loading
2.1 Verify the design flow and loading for your facility.


Design Design Factor x % = % of Design
Max Month Design Flow, MGD 2.06 x 90 = 1.854


x 100 = 2.06
Design (C)BOD, lbs/day 2655 x 90 = 2389.5


x 100 = 2655


2.2 Verify the number of times the flow and (C)BOD exceeded 90% or 100% of design, points
earned, and score:


Months
of


Influent


Number of times
flow was greater


than 90% of


Number of times
flow was greater


than 100% of


Number of times
(C)BOD was greater
than 90% of design


Number of times
(C)BOD was greater
than 100% of design


January 1 0 0 0 0
February 1 0 0 0 0


March 1 0 0 0 0
April 1 0 0 1 0
May 1 0 0 0 0
June 1 0 0 1 0
July 1 0 0 0 0


August 1 0 0 1 0
September 1 0 0 0 0


October 1 0 0 0 0
November 1 0 0 0 0
December 1 0 0 0 0


 Points per each 2 1 3 2
 Exceedances 0 0 3 0
 Points 0 0 9 0


 Total Number of Points 9


9







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


3. Flow Meter
3.1 Was the influent flow meter calibrated in the last year?


Yes Enter last calibration date (MM/DD/YYYY)
04/21/2016


No
If No, please explain:


4. Sewer Use Ordinance
4.1 Did your community have a sewer use ordinance that limited or prohibited the discharge of
excessive conventional pollutants ((C)BOD, SS, or pH) or toxic substances to the sewer from
industries, commercial users, hauled waste, or residences?


Yes
No


If No, please explain:


4.2 Was it necessary to enforce the ordinance?
Yes
No


If Yes, please explain:


Industry surcharging for high strength dischargers. Lateral repairs, sump pump inspections and
corrections, Amalgam separator inspections and grease trap enforcement.


5. Septage Receiving
5.1 Did you have requests to receive septage at your facility?
Septic Tanks Holding Tanks Grease Traps


Yes Yes Yes


No No No


5.2 Did you receive septage at your faclity? If yes, indicate volume in gallons.
Septic Tanks


Yes gallons


No
Holding Tanks


Yes gallons


No
Grease Traps


Yes gallons


No
5.2.1 If yes to any of the above, please explain if plant performance is affected when receiving
any of these wastes.


6. Pretreatment
6.1 Did your facility experience operational problems, permit violations, biosolids quality concerns,
or hazardous situations in the sewer system or treatment plant that were attributable to
commercial or industrial discharges in the last year?


Yes
No


If yes, describe the situation and your community's response.







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


6.2 Did your facility accept hauled industrial wastes, landfill leachate, etc.?
Yes
No


If yes, describe the types of wastes received and any procedures or other restrictions that were
in place to protect the facility from the discharge of hauled industrial wastes.


Total Points Generated 9
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 91


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD)


1. Effluent (C)BOD Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for BOD or
CBOD


Outfall No.
001


Monthly
Average


Limit (mg/L)


90% of
Permit Limit
> 10 (mg/L)


Effluent Monthly
Average (mg/L)


Months of
Discharge


with a Limit


Permit Limit
Exceedance


90% Permit
Limit


Exceedance
January 25 22.5 4 1 0 0
February 25 22.5 5 1 0 0


March 25 22.5 4 1 0 0
April 25 22.5 6 1 0 0
May 25 22.5 5 1 0 0
June 25 22.5 5 1 0 0
July 25 22.5 4 1 0 0


August 25 22.5 2 1 0 0
September 25 22.5 3 1 0 0


October 25 22.5 4 1 0 0
November 25 22.5 3 1 0 0
December 25 22.5 3 1 0 0


* Equals limit if limit is <= 10


Months of discharge/yr 12
Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge 7 3
Exceedances 0 0
Points 0 0


Total number of points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to state waters, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge. Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months
of the year, the multiplication factor is 12/6 = 2.0


1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?


0


2. Flow Meter Calibration
2.1 Was the effluent flow meter calibrated in the last year?


Yes Enter last calibration date (MM/DD/YYYY)
04/21/2015


No 
If No, please explain:


3. Treatment Problems
3.1 What problems, if any, were experienced over the last year that threatened treatment?


None


4. Other Monitoring and Limits
4.1 At any time in the past year was there an exceedance of a permit limit for any other pollutants
such as chlorides, pH, residual chlorine, fecal coliform, or metals?


Yes  
No 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


If Yes, please explain:


4.2 At any time in the past year was there a failure of an effluent acute or chronic whole effluent
toxicity (WET) test?


Yes  
No 


If Yes, please explain:


We failed our first WET test and found that a near by industry was discharging toxic waste into
the stream.


4.3 If the biomonitoring (WET) test did not pass, were steps taken to identify and/or reduce
source(s) of toxicity?


Yes  
No 
N/A 


Please explain unless not applicable:


We passed the second WET test after we worked with the local industry to eliminate the toxic
discharge. We also are making this industry install flow monitoring and sampling equipment to
monitor there discharge. We will also be invoicing this industry monthly for discharge strengths
above the limits outlined in our sewer use ordinance.


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Total Suspended Solids)


1. Effluent Total Suspended Solids Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for TSS:


Outfall No.
001


Monthly
Average


Limit (mg/L)


90% of
Permit Limit
>10 (mg/L)


Effluent Monthly
Average (mg/L)


Months of
Discharge


with a Limit


Permit Limit
Exceedance


90% Permit
Limit


Exceedance
January 30 27 9 1 0 0
February 30 27 12 1 0 0


March 30 27 12 1 0 0
April 30 27 14 1 0 0
May 30 27 12 1 0 0
June 30 27 9 1 0 0
July 30 27 11 1 0 0


August 30 27 5 1 0 0
September 30 27 6 1 0 0


October 30 27 8 1 0 0
November 30 27 7 1 0 0
December 30 27 10 1 0 0


* Equals limit if limit is <= 10


Months of Discharge/yr 12
Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge: 7 3
Exceedances 0 0
Points 0 0


Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to state waters, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge.
 Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months of the year, the multiplication
factor is 12/6 = 2.0


1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?


0


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus)


1. Effluent Phosphorus Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for Phosphorus


Outfall No. 001 Monthly Average
phosphorus Limit


(mg/L)


Effluent Monthly
Average phosphorus


(mg/L)


Months of
Discharge with a


Limit


Permit Limit
Exceedance


January 1.3 0.6 1 0
February 1.3 0.8 1 0


March 1.3 0.8 1 0
April 1.3 0.7 1 0
May 1.3 0.7 1 0
June 1.3 0.5 1 0
July 1.3 0.7 1 0


August 1.3 0.4 1 0
September 1.3 0.5 1 0


October 1.3 0.5 1 0
November 1.3 0.5 1 0
December 1.3 0.6 1 0


 Months of Discharge/yr 12
 Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge: 10
 Exceedances 0


 Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to waters of the state, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge.
Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months of the year, the multiplication factor
is 12/6 = 2.0


1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?


0


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Biosolids Quality and Management


1. Biosolids Use/Disposal
1.1 How did you use or dispose of your biosolids? (Check all that apply)


Land applied under your permit
Publicly Distributed Exceptional Quality Biosolids
Hauled to another permitted facility
Landfilled
Incinerated
Other


NOTE: If you did not remove biosolids from your system, please describe your system type such
as lagoons, reed beds, recirculating sand filters, etc.
1.1.1 If you checked Other, please describe:


2. Land Application Site
2.1 Last Year's Approved and Active Land Application Sites
2.1.1 How many acres did you have?
2008.60 acres


2.1.2 How many acres did you use?
67 acres


2.2 If you did not have enough acres for your land application needs, what action was taken?


2.3 Did you overapply nitrogen on any of your approved land application sites you used last year?
Yes (30 points)
No


2.4 Have all the sites you used last year for land application been soil tested in the previous 4
years?


Yes
No (10 points)


N/A


0


3. Biosolids Metals
Number of biosolids outfalls in your WPDES permit:


3.1 For each outfall tested, verify the biosolids metal quality values for your facility during the last
calendar year.


Outfall No. 002 - SLUDGE
Parameter 80%


of
Limit


H.Q.
Limit


Ceiling
Limit


Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 80%
Value


High
Quality


Ceiling


Arsenic 41 75 3 0 0
Cadmium 39 85 1 0 0
Copper 1500 4300 390 0 0
Lead 300 840 33 0 0


Mercury 17 57 <.63 0 0
Molybdenum 60 75 8.5 0 0


Nickel 336 420 16 0 0
Selenium 80 100 8.7 0 0


Zinc 2800 7500 740 0 0


3.1.1 Number of times any of the metals exceeded the high quality limits OR 80% of the limit for
molybdenum, nickel, or selenium = 0
Exceedence Points


0     (0 Points)







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


1-2   (10 Points)
> 2   (15 Points)


3.1.2 If you exceeded the high quality limits, did you cumulatively track the metals loading at
each land application site? (check applicable box)


Yes
No (10 points)


N/A - Did not exceed limits or no HQ limit applies (0 points)
N/A - Did not land apply biosolids until limit was met (0 points)


3.1.3 Number of times any of the metals exceeded the ceiling limits = 0
Exceedence Points


0     (0 Points)
1     (10 Points)
> 1   (15 Points)


3.1.4 Were biosolids land applied which exceeded the ceiling limit?
Yes (20 Points)
No  (0 Points)


3.1.5 If any metal limit (high quality or ceiling) was exceeded at any time, what action was taken?
Has the source of the metals been identified?


0


4. Pathogen Control (per outfall):
4.1 Verify the following information. If any information is incorrect, use the Report Issue button
under the Options header in the left-side menu.


Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit:
Sample Dates: 01/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
Density:
Sample Concentration Amount:
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: Yes
Process: Anaerobic Digestion
Process Description: Mixed anaerobic digestion tanks at 95 degrees F


for more than 15 day.


4.2 If exceeded Class B limit or did not meet the process criteria at the time of land application.
4.2.1 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application?


Yes (40 Points)
No


If yes, what action was taken?


0


5. Vector Attraction Reduction (per outfall):
5.1 Verify the following information. If any of the information is incorrect, use the Report Issue
button under the Options header in the left-side menu.







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 12/31/2016
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: Yes
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):


5.2 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application?
Yes (40 Points)
No


If yes, what action was taken?


0


6. Biosolids Storage
6.1 How many days of actual, current biosolids storage capacity did your wastewater treatment
facility have either on-site or off-site?


>= 180 days (0 Points)
150 - 179 days (10 Points)
120 - 149 days (20 Points)
90 - 119 days (30 Points)
< 90 days (40 Points)
N/A (0 Points)


6.2 If you checked N/A above, explain why.


0


7. Issues
7.1 Describe any outstanding biosolids issues with treatment, use or overall management:


None


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants)


1. Plant Staffing
1.1 Was your wastewater treatment plant adequately staffed last year?


Yes
No


If No, please explain:


Could use more help/staff for:


We are looking into adding additional staff in 2018 or 2019.


1.2 Did your wastewater staff have adequate time to properly operate and maintain the plant and
fulfill all wastewater management tasks including recordkeeping?


Yes
No


If No, please explain:


2. Preventative Maintenance
2.1 Did your plant have a documented AND implemented plan for preventative maintenance on
major equipment items?


Yes (Continue with question 2) 

No (40 points)



If No, please explain, then go to question 3:


2.2 Did this preventative maintenance program depict frequency of intervals, types of lubrication,
and other tasks necessary for each piece of equipment?


Yes
No (10 points) 


2.3 Were these preventative maintenance tasks, as well as major equipment repairs, recorded and
filed so future maintenance problems can be assessed properly?


Yes


Paper file system
Computer system
Both paper and computer system


No (10 points)


0


3. O&M Manual
3.1 Does your plant have a detailed O&M and Manufacturer Equipment Manuals that can be used
as a reference when needed?


Yes
No


4. Overall Maintenance /Repairs
4.1 Rate the overall maintenance of your wastewater plant.


Excellent
Very good
Good
Fair
Poor


Describe your rating:







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


We work off a 20 year CIP plan for equipment replacement. We have very few malfunctions with
our existing equipment. All equipment is entered into the maintenance software database
according to the manufactures recommendations. Maintenance logs and parts are entered into
the database as well.


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Operator Certification and Education


1. Operator-In-Charge
1.1 Did you have a designated operator-in-charge during the report year?


Yes (0 points) 
No  (20 points) 


Name:
BRIAN G ERICKSON


Certification No:
28016


0


2. Certification Requirements
2.1 In accordance with Chapter NR 114.56 and 114.57, Wisconsin Administrative Code, what level
and subclass(es) were required for the operator-in-charge (OIC) to operate the wastewater
treatment plant and what level and subclass(es) were held by the operator-in-charge?


Sub
Class


SubClass Description WWTP OIC
Advanced OIT Basic Advanced


A1 Suspended Growth Processes X X
A2 Attached Growth Processes
A3 Recirculating Media Filters
A4 Ponds, Lagoons and Natural
A5 Anaerobic Treatment Of Liquid
B Solids Separation X X
C Biological Solids/Sludges X X
P Total Phosphorus X X
N Total Nitrogen
D Disinfection X X
L Laboratory X X
U Unique Treatment Systems
SS Sanitary Sewage Collection X NA NA NA


2.2 Was the operator-in-charge certified at the appropriate level and subclass(es) to operate this
plant? (Note: Certification in subclass SS, N and A5 not required in 2016; subclass SS is basic level
only.)


Yes (0 points) 
No  (20 points) 


0


3. Succession Planning
3.1 In the event of the loss of your designated operator-in-charge, did you have a contingency plan
to ensure the continued proper operation and maintenance of the plant that includes one or more
of the following options (check all that apply)?


One or more additional certified operators on staff 
An arrangement with another certified operator 
An arrangement with another community with a certified operator 
An operator on staff who has an operator-in-training certificate for your plant and is expected to
be certified within one year
A consultant to serve as your certified operator 
None of the above (20 points) 


If "None of the above" is selected, please explain:


0


4. Continuing Education Credits







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


4.1 If you had a designated operator-in-charge, was the operator-in-charge earning Continuing
Education Credits at the following rates?
OIT and Basic Certification:


Averaging 6 or more CECs per year. 
Averaging less than 6 CECs per year. 


Advanced Certification:
Averaging 8 or more CECs per year. 
Averaging less than 8 CECs per year. 


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Financial Management


1. Provider of Financial Information
Name:  


Jamin Friedl


Telephone:
608-877-7415 (XXX) XXX-XXXX


E-Mail Address
(optional):


jfriedl@stoughtonutilities.com


2. Treatment Works Operating Revenues
2.1 Are User Charges or other revenues sufficient to cover O&M expenses for your wastewater
treatment plant AND/OR collection system ?


Yes (0 points) 

No (40 points)


If No, please explain:


2.2 When was the User Charge System or other revenue source(s) last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:


2015
0-2 years ago (0 points) 

3 or more years ago (20 points)

N/A (private facility) 


2.3 Did you have a special account (e.g., CWFP required segregated Replacement Fund, etc.) or
financial resources available for repairing or replacing equipment for your wastewater treatment
plant and/or collection system?


Yes (0 points) 


No (40 points) 


0


REPLACEMENT FUNDS [PUBLIC MUNICIPAL FACILITIES SHALL COMPLETE QUESTION 3]
3. Equipment Replacement Funds
3.1 When was the Equipment Replacement Fund last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:


2015
1-2 years ago (0 points)

3 or more years ago (20 points)

N/A


If N/A, please explain:


3.2 Equipment Replacement Fund Activity


3.2.1  Ending Balance Reported on Last Year's CMAR $ 1,129,916.00


3.2.2 Adjustments - if necessary (e.g. earned interest,
audit correction, withdrawal of excess funds, increase
making up previous shortfall, etc.)


- $ 35,329.00


3.2.3 Adjusted January 1st Beginning Balance $ 1,094,587.00


3.2.4 Additions to Fund (e.g. portion of User Fee,
earned interest, etc.) + $ 1,701.00







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


3.2.5 Subtractions from Fund (e.g., equipment
replacement, major repairs - use description box
3.2.6.1 below*) - $ 0.00


3.2.6 Ending Balance as of December 31st for CMAR
Reporting Year $ 1,096,288.00


All Sources: This ending balance should include all
Equipment Replacement Funds whether held in a
bank account(s), certificate(s) of deposit, etc.


3.2.6.1 Indicate adjustments, equipment purchases, and/or major repairs from 3.2.5 above.


3.3  What amount should be in your Replacement Fund? $ 1,110,991.00
Please note: If you had a CWFP loan, this amount was originally based on the Financial
Assistance Agreement (FAA) and should be regularly updated as needed. Further calculation
instructions and an example can be found by clicking the SectionInstructions link under Info
header in the left-side menu.


3.3.1 Is the December 31 Ending Balance in your Replacement Fund above, (#3.2.6) equal to, or
greater than the amount that should be in it (#3.3)?


Yes
No


If No, please explain.


Investments that matured during 2016 were not replaced. SU will properly fund account
immediately.


0


4. Future Planning
4.1 During the next ten years, will you be involved in formal planning for upgrading, rehabilitating,
or new construction of your treatment facility or collection system?


Yes  -  If Yes, please provide major project information, if not already listed below.

No


Project
#


Project Description Estimated
Cost


Approximate
Construction


Year
1 Phase II Ammonia Removal Project:


This project might be permit driven and will include additional aeration and
anaerobic tanks along with new blowers.


2000 2022


2 West St sewer project. 253000 2022
3 Phase II Vernon St project and South St project. 720000 2020
4 Addtional sludge storage tank project. 900000 2024
5 Page St sewer project 168000 2022
6 Phosphorus Reduction Project. 906000 2024
7 Main Building / Garage Addition and Remodel 1640000 2020
8 2019 Sewer project. Lowell St. From Monroe to Page 228000 2019
9 2019 Sewer Project. Monroe from Jefferson to Lowell 248000 2019
10 2020 Sewer Project. Prospect St. From Page to Grant 129000 2020
11 2020 Slip Lining project. Jefferson, Monroe alley and Mandt Park Way 100000 2020
12 2017 Sewer replacement of mains and manholes. Brickson, Manilla, Franklin, Giles


and Henry.
350000 2017


13 2018 Vernon St Project: Replace sewer main and manholes from Henry to Franklin
Street including dead ends on Henry, Morris and Franklin. 2 spot repairs on Franklin
1150 feet of sewer mains.


250000 2018


14 2018 Main Street sewer project Phase I: From Page to Madison Street 190000 2018
15 2019 Main Street project phase II: From Madison Street to Van Buren Street. 260000 2019







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


5. Financial Management General Comments


ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND USE
6. Collection System
6.1 Energy Usage
6.1.1 Enter the monthly energy usage from the different energy sources:


COLLECTION SYSTEM PUMPAGE: Total Power Consumed
Number of Municipally Owned Pump/Lift Stations: 5


Electricity Consumed
(kWh)


Natural Gas Consumed
(therms)


January 1,915 0


February 2,086 0


March 1,868 0


April 1,842 0


May 1,623 3


June 1,339 0


July 1,036 0


August 1,082 0


September 1,164 1


October 1,097 0


November 1,271 1


December 1,298 0


Total 17,621 5
Average 1,468 2


6.1.2 Comments:


We had a new Lift Station come on line in January of this year. The kWh hours will be higher
for next years comparisons.


6.2 Energy Related Processes and Equipment
6.2.1 Indicate equipment and practices utilized at your pump/lift stations (Check all that apply):


Comminution or Screening
Extended Shaft Pumps
Flow Metering and Recording
Pneumatic Pumping
SCADA System
Self-Priming Pumps
Submersible Pumps
Variable Speed Drives
Other:


6.2.2 Comments:







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


6.3 Has an Energy Study been performed for your pump/lift stations?
No
Yes


Year:


By Whom:


Describe and Comment:


6.4 Future Energy Related Equipment


6.4.1 What energy efficient equipment or practices do you have planned for the future for your
pump/lift stations?


None at this time.


7. Treatment Facility
7.1 Energy Usage
7.1.1 Enter the monthly energy usage from the different energy sources:


TREATMENT PLANT: Total Power Consumed/Month
Electricity
Consumed


(kWh)


Total Influent
Flow (MG)


Electricity
Consumed/


Flow
(kWh/MG)


Total Influent
BOD (1000 lbs)


Electricity
Consumed/


Total Influent
BOD


(kWh/1000lbs)


Natural Gas
Consumed
(therms)


January 60,383 29.12 2,074 65.07 928 1,858


February 66,156 26.58 2,489 61.13 1,082 2,334


March 58,695 30.68 1,913 54.16 1,084 2,522


April 59,354 30.65 1,937 73.11 812 1,648


May 58,516 30.38 1,926 62.06 943 873


June 63,388 29.15 2,175 73.86 858 159


July 60,190 31.95 1,884 69.04 872 98


August 64,475 32.19 2,003 75.80 851 84


September 66,266 31.08 2,132 68.34 970 116


October 63,267 31.13 2,032 69.97 904 327


November 60,768 29.21 2,080 71.16 854 661


December 57,704 29.73 1,941 58.19 992 2,328


Total 739,162 361.85 801.89 13,008


Average 61,597 30.15 2,049 66.82 929 1,084


7.1.2 Comments:


7.2 Energy Related Processes and Equipment
7.2.1 Indicate equipment and practices utilized at your treatment facility (Check all that apply):


Aerobic Digestion
Anaerobic Digestion
Biological Phosphorus Removal







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Coarse Bubble Diffusers
Dissolved O2 Monitoring and Aeration Control
Effluent Pumping
Fine Bubble Diffusers
Mechanical Sludge Processing
Nitrification
SCADA System
UV Disinfection
Variable Speed Drives
Other:


7.2.2 Comments:


7.3 Future Energy Related Equipment


7.3.1 What energy efficient equipment or practices do you have planned for the future for your
treatment facility?


Switching our lighting over to LED.


8. Biogas Generation


8.1 Do you generate/produce biogas at your facility?
No
Yes


If Yes, how is the biogas used (Check all that apply):
Flared Off
Building Heat
Process Heat
Generate Electricity
Other:


9. Energy Efficiency Study


9.1 Has an Energy Study been performed for your treatment facility?
No
Yes


Entire facility
Year:


By Whom:


Describe and Comment:







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Part of the facility
Year:


2006
By Whom:


Focus on energy
Describe and Comment:


Look at our blower operations.


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems


1. Capacity, Management, Operation, and Maintenance (CMOM) Program
1.1 Do you have a CMOM program that is being implemented?


Yes
No


If No, explain:


1.2 Do you have a CMOM program that contains all the applicable components and items
according to Wisc. Adm Code NR 210.23 (4)?


Yes
No (30 points)
N/A


If No or N/A, explain:


1.3 Does your CMOM program contain the following components and items? (check the
components and items that apply)


Goals [NR 210.23 (4)(a)]
Describe the major goals you had for your collection system last year:


Clean 30% of the sewer system, Televise 10% of the system, Inspect 10% of manholes,
Replace 10 manholes, Replace 2000 lineal feet of sewers, Replace 20 laterals, Root removal
1000 feet, flow monitoring 5%.


Did you accomplish them?
Yes
No


If No, explain:


Not all items above were completed. We may have over estimated some of the quantities that
we are able to accomplish. We want to try to meet these goals in 2017 before we scale back
on the quantities.


Organization [NR 210.23 (4) (b)]

Does this chapter of your CMOM include:


Organizational structure and positions (eg. organizational chart and position descriptions)
Internal and external lines of communication responsibilities
Person(s) responsible for reporting overflow events to the department and the public


Legal Authority [NR 210.23 (4) (c)]
What is the legally binding document that regulates the use of your sewer system?
Municipal Code of Ordinance
If you have a Sewer Use Ordinance or other similar document, when was it last reviewed and
revised? (MM/DD/YYYY) 12/9/2014
Does your sewer use ordinance or other legally binding document address the following:


Private property inflow and infiltration
New sewer and building sewer design, construction, installation, testing and inspection
Rehabilitated sewer and lift station installation, testing and inspection
Sewage flows satellite system and large private users are monitored and controlled, as
necessary
Fat, oil and grease control
Enforcement procedures for sewer use non-compliance


Operation and Maintenance [NR 210.23 (4) (d)]
Does your operation and maintenance program and equipment include the following:







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Equipment and replacement part inventories
Up-to-date sewer system map
A management system (computer database and/or file system) for collection system
information for O&M activities, investigation and rehabilitation
A description of routine operation and maintenance activities (see question 2 below)
Capacity assessment program
Basement back assessment and correction
Regular O&M training


Design and Performance Provisions [NR 210.23 (4) (e)]

What standards and procedures are established for the design, construction, and inspection of
the sewer collection system, including building sewers and interceptor sewers on private
property?


State Plumbing Code, DNR NR 110 Standards and/or local Municipal Code Requirements
Construction, Inspection, and Testing
Others:


Consulting engineer reviews all of our sanitary sewer plans. We are working with our
engineers on the sewer use ordinance. We are making significant changes to comply with the
CMOM rules.


Overflow Emergency Response Plan [NR 210.23 (4) (f)]

Does your emergency response capability include:


Responsible personnel communication procedures
Response order, timing and clean-up
Public notification protocols
Training
Emergency operation protocols and implementation procedures


Annual Self-Auditing of your CMOM Program [NR 210.23 (5)]

Special Studies Last Year (check only those that apply):


Infiltration/Inflow (I/I) Analysis
Sewer System Evaluation Survey (SSES)
Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Managment Plan (SECAP)
Lift Station Evaluation Report
Others:


0


2. Operation and Maintenance
2.1 Did your sanitary sewer collection system maintenance program include the following
maintenance activities? Complete all that apply and indicate the amount maintained.
Cleaning 22   % of system/year


Root removal 1   % of system/year


Flow monitoring 0   % of system/year


Smoke testing 0   % of system/year


Sewer line
televising 8   % of system/year


Manhole
inspections 10   % of system/year


Lift station O&M 24   # per L.S./year


Manhole
rehabilitation 1   % of manholes rehabbed


Mainline
rehabilitation







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


1   % of sewer lines rehabbed


Private sewer
inspections 0   % of system/year


Private sewer I/I
removal 0   % of private services


River or water
crossings 100   % of pipe crossings evaluated or maintained


Please include additional comments about your sanitary sewer collection system below:


We continue to work with our consulting engineers on sanitary sewer projects throughout the
city. With televising reports, City planned street projects, water main replacements and our
system study that is done every 5 years we have a long range strategic plan in place to replace
our aging infrastructure.


3. Performance Indicators
3.1 Provide the following collection system and flow information for the past year.


39.32 Total actual amount of precipitation last year in inches


34.48 Annual average precipitation (for your location)


58 Miles of sanitary sewer


6 Number of lift stations 


0 Number of lift station failures 


0 Number of sewer pipe failures


5 Number of basement backup occurrences


24 Number of complaints


.988 Average daily flow in MGD (if available)


1.480 Peak monthly flow in MGD (if available) 


Peak hourly flow in MGD (if available)


3.2 Performance ratios for the past year:
0.00 Lift station failures (failures/year)


0.00 Sewer pipe failures (pipe failures/sewer mile/yr)


0.00 Sanitary sewer overflows (number/sewer mile/yr)


0.09 Basement backups (number/sewer mile)


0.41 Complaints (number/sewer mile)


1.5 Peaking factor ratio (Peak Monthly:Annual Daily Avg)


0.0 Peaking factor ratio (Peak Hourly:Annual Daily Avg)


4. Overflows


LIST OF SANITARY SEWER (SSO) AND TREATMENT FACILITY (TFO) OFERFLOWS REPORTED **
Date Location Cause Estimated


Volume (MG)


 None reported


** If there were any SSOs or TFOs that are not listed above, please contact the DNR and stop work
on this section until corrected.


5. Infiltration / Inflow (I/I)
5.1 Was infiltration/inflow (I/I) significant in your community last year?


Yes







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


No
If Yes, please describe:


5.2 Has infiltration/inflow and resultant high flows affected performance or created problems in
your collection system, lift stations, or treatment plant at any time in the past year?


Yes
No


If Yes, please describe:


5.3 Explain any infiltration/inflow (I/I) changes this year from previous years:


Continue to replace sewer mains and manholes. Follow our CMOM goals as outlined in our
program.


5.4 What is being done to address infiltration/inflow in your collection system?


We continue to televise the collection system looking for I/I, Sump pump inspections, and
sanitary sewer replacement projects that include lateral , manhole and sewer main replacements.


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Grading Summary
WPDES No: 0020338


SECTIONS LETTER GRADE GRADE POINTS WEIGHTING
FACTORS


SECTION
POINTS


 Influent A 4 3 12
 BOD/CBOD A 4 10 40
 TSS A 4 5 20
 Phosphorus A 4 3 12
 Biosolids A 4 5 20
 Staffing/PM A 4 1 4
 OpCert A 4 1 4
 Financial A 4 1 4
 Collection A 4 3 12


 TOTALS 32 128
 GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA) = 4.00


Notes:
A = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
B = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
C = Recommendation Range (Response Required)
D = Action Range (Response Required)
F = Action Range (Response Required)







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


5/16/2017 2016


Resolution or Owner's Statement


 


Name of Governing
Body or Owner:


Date of Resolution or
Action Taken:


Resolution Number:


Date of Submittal:  
 


ACTIONS SET FORTH BY THE GOVERNING BODY OR OWNER RELATING TO SPECIFIC CMAR
SECTIONS (Optional for grade A or B. Required for grade C, D, or F):
Influent Flow and Loadings: Grade = A


Effluent Quality: BOD: Grade = A


Effluent Quality: TSS: Grade = A


Effluent Quality: Phosphorus: Grade = A


Biosolids Quality and Management: Grade = A


Staffing: Grade = A


Operator Certification: Grade = A


Financial Management: Grade = A


Collection Systems: Grade = A
(Regardless of grade, response required for Collection Systems if SSOs were reported)


ACTIONS SET FORTH BY THE GOVERNING BODY OR OWNER RELATING TO THE OVERALL
GRADE POINT AVERAGE AND ANY GENERAL COMMENTS
(Optional for G.P.A. greater than or equal to 3.00, required for G.P.A. less than 3.00)
G.P.A. = 4.00





		8a-R-96-2017-Resolution-CMAR.pdf

		8b-Utilities-CMAR.pdf

		2017-06-13 5.3- CMAR Report.pdf

		Influent Flow and Loading

		Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD)

		Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Total Suspended Solids)

		Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus)

		Biosolids Quality and Management

		Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants)

		Operator Certification and Education

		Financial Management

		Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems

		Grading Summary

		Resolution or Owner's Statement










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Laura Viney to operate a Group Daycare at 320 Dvorak
Court, Stoughton, Wisconsin.


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommend Council approval 6 – 0


Fiscal Impact: None.


File Number: R-100-2017 Date Introduced: June 27, 2017


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:


WHEREAS, on June 12, 2016 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing and
reviewed the proposed conditional use permit request by Laura Viney, for property located at 320 Dvorak
Court, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and


WHEREAS, the conditional use permit is requested to operate a Group Daycare (9 or more children); and


WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined:


 The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony
with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive
Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan;


 The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result
in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood,
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-
way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this
chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under
consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction
to guide development;


 The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property;


 The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by
public agencies serving the subject property;


 The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse
impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and
any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use
permit will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a
whole; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request for
Laura Viney to operate a Group Daycare at 320 Dvorak Court, Stoughton, Wisconsin is hereby approved
contingent on:


 Site plan and CSM approval







Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Mayor Donna Olson Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Viney 320 Dvorak Court CUP.doc







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2017\6-12-17\Planning Info\Viney Memo 6-17.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 5, 2017


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the June 12, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting
Agenda Item for the June 27, 2017 Common Council Meeting


Request by Laura Viney for a conditional use permit (CUP) approval to allow a group
daycare at 320 Dvorak Court.
This request is to convert a historically vacant property to a group daycare. We are still waiting for
site plan and CSM information but can move forward with the conditional use permit
review/approval. The resolution and submittal materials are provided. The 3 lots will need to be
combined by CSM. The site plan and CSM review will likely be at the July 10th meeting. A public
hearing and recommendation to Council are necessary. Staff recommends approval of the
conditional use contingent on the CSM and site plan approval.







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, June 12, 2017 at
6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers, Public Safety
Building, 321 South Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a proposed
Conditional Use Permit Application by Laura Viney, for a Group Daycare at 320 Dvorak Court,
Stoughton, Wisconsin. The property at 320 Dvorak Court is currently owned by LUTHERAN
SOCIAL SERVICES OF WI & UPPER MICH INC, and is more fully described as follows:


Parcel Numbers: 281/0511-063-4280-6, 281/0511-063-4295-9, and 281/0511-063-4310-9


Dvorak’s Addition: Outlots 7, 8 and 9


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421


Michael P Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published May 25, 2017 Hub
Published June 1, 2017 Hub


S:\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\Viney - 320 Dvorak Court CUP Notice17.doc



























 


Planning
Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, Intermap, increment P Corp.,
GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL,
Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong),
swisstopo, MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the


Tax Parcels
June 7, 2017


0 0.1 0.20.05 mi


0 0.15 0.30.075 km


1:4,473


 
 



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line











CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


May 24, 2017


Laura Viney
2236 US Highway 12 & 18
Cottage Grove, WI. 53527


Dear Ms. Viney:


I have completed a preliminary review of the proposed request for a conditional use permit and site
plan review for a Group Daycare at 320 Dvorak Court, Stoughton. A detailed fully dimensioned plan
will need to be submitted for final review.


1. The property at 320 Dvorak Court is zoned I – Institutional. A Group Daycare is permitted as a
conditional use within the Institutional district. The conditional use process includes a public
hearing at a Planning Commission meeting and Common Council approval/denial with or without
conditions. The public hearing is scheduled for June 12, 2017 of which you will receive notice.
You and or a representative will need to attend the Planning Commission meeting. The
Common Council should make a decision on June 27, 2017.


2. The Comprehensive Plan, Planned Land Use Map depicts this property as Planned Business which
is consistent with the proposed use. The Comprehensive Plan Rewrite proposes to change the
Future Land Use Map as Planned Mixed Use for this location which will be consistent with
the use and zoning.


3. The institutional district requires a minimum lot area of 20,000 square feet, minimum street
frontage of 50 feet, and minimum lot width of 100 feet. The site meets these requirements.


4. A Group Daycare (nine or more children) is described as follows:
Group day care centers are land uses in which qualified persons provide child care services for nine
or more children. Examples of such land uses include day care centers and nursery schools. Such
land uses shall not be located within a residential building. Such land uses may be operated on a
for-profit or a not for profit basis. Such land uses may be operated in conjunction with another
principal land use on the same environs, such as a church, school, business, or civic organization.
In such instances, group day care centers are not considered as accessory uses and therefore require
review as a separate land use. The use meets this description.


5. The parking requirement for a Group Daycare is one space per five students, plus one space for
each employee on the largest work shift. We will need details to confirm this requirement.


6. The regulations pertaining to a Group Daycare are as follows:
• The facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .50 along property


borders abutting residentially zoned property (See zoning code section 78-610).







There are no abutting residentially zoned properties.
• Property owner’s permission is required as part of the conditional use permit application.


We will need a letter from the current owner.


6. The 3 lots will need to be combined by a certified survey map and approved by the City
Council. This can run in conjunction with this request. A CSM would need to be provided
by June 29 including the $160 fee to make the June 12th agenda.


7. The additional parking will need to be part of the site design. We’ll also need details related
to the proposed fencing. There is a 12-foot easement along the west/rear property line and a
6-foot easement along the north side lot line which will need to be delineated on the plan since
fencing is not allowed there.


6. The minimum paved surface setback is 5 feet from a side or rear lot line and ten feet from a right-
of-way. We’ll need details to confirm this requirement.


7. The required aisle width for the proposed 90 degree parking area is 24 feet. We’ll need details to
confirm this requirement.


8. The landscaping requirements for paved areas is 60 points per 20 parking stalls or 10,000 square
feet of parking area whichever is greater. See additional requirements in section 78-604.


9. Handicapped parking spaces shall be provided at a size, number, location and with signage as
specified by state and federal regulations. Expected.


10. Required off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall not be used for snow storage.
Expected.


11. Per section 78-704 (13) (a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile parking
space requirement. We’ll need details to confirm this requirement.


12. There are bufferyard requirements according to Section 78-610 as follows:
• Along the southern side lot line: 0.1 opacity which requires a minimum of a 10-foot


bufferyard width including potentially fencing and landscaping or 91 points of landscaping
to eliminate the fencing requirement.


This requirement may already be met with existing landscaping. Details will need to be
provided.


13. Article VII of the city zoning code provides the following requirements related to lighting:
“Parking and traffic circulation areas serving 6 or more vehicles shall be lit so as to ensure the safe
and efficient use of said areas during the hours of use. An illumination level of between 0.4 and
1.0 footcandles is recommended for said areas, and said illumination shall not exceed 0.5
footcandles measured at the property lines.” Section 78-707, Exterior lighting standards, requires a
maximum average on-site lighting of 2.4 footcandles. Exterior lighting shall be oriented so that the
lighting element is not visible from a property located within a residential district. A photometric
plan is necessary to verify these requirements. Lighting will likely need to be added.







14. A gated trash enclosure may be required with 6-foot fencing/screening. An enclosure shall be
constructed of some or all of the materials used on the main building. We will need details for
how trash will be handled.


15. All proposed signage must meet the requirements of ArticleVIII. A plan will need to be provided
and a zoning permit issued prior to placement of any signage.


16. A stormwater management and erosion control plan, application and fee are required for this
proposed redevelopment. Dane County Land and Water Resources, the City’s consultant, will
review the plans and perform inspections. The plans, applications and fees shall be submitted to
the Department of Planning & Development office at City Hall. Expected.


17. Contact the Brett Hebert, Public Works Director at 608-873-6303 to discuss terrace tree
requirements. A building permit cannot be issued until this requirement is met.


18. State approved building plans may be necessary and City building permits are required before
interior construction. Contact Building Inspector Steve Kittelson regarding these
requirements.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Michael P. Stacey


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


s:\planning\mps\property log folder\320 dvorak court\viney daycare\viney review cup letter 17.doc





		13a-R-100-2017-Viney 320 Dvorak Court CUP.pdf

		13b-Viney Group Daycare CUP - 320 Dvorak Court.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approving a General Development Plan for Outlot 1 and Lots 3 and 4, CSM No. 14057, and
Lots 5 and 7, CSM No. 14058.


(Part of Kettle Park West Commercial Center)
Committee Action: Planning Commission recommends approval 6 - 0


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: O-7-2017 Date Introduced:


Second Reading:


June 27, 2017


July 11, 2017


RECITALS


A. Kettle Park West, LLC ("the Applicant") has requested approval of a new General
Development Plan for Outlot 1 and Lots 3 and 4 of Certified Survey Map No. 14057,
and Lots 5 and 7 of Certified Survey Map No. 14058 (the “Property”).


B. The Property is currently zoned Planned Development and is subject to a previously
approved General Development Plan that includes the Property and other lands in the
Kettle Park West Commercial Center Development.


C. The Zoning Administrator has determined, pursuant to Section 78-914(1)(a) of the
City of Stoughton Municipal Code (the "City Code"), that the most comparable
standard zoning district applicable to the proposed Planned Development is Planned
Business (PB).


D. The Applicant has submitted a proposed General Development Plan (the "GDP")
attached as Exhibit A to this Ordinance.


E. On June 12, 2017, the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing
regarding the application to approve the GDP, which was preceded by the publication
of a class 2 notice under chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes.


F. On June 12, 2017, the Planning Commission recommended approving the GDP.


G. The Common Council determines that approving the GDP is consistent with the spirit
and intent of the City’s Zoning Code, has the potential for producing significant
community benefits in terms of environmental and aesthetic design, promotes the
public health, safety and general welfare of the City, and allows appropriate use of
the Property.







ORDINANCE


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain
as follows:


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if
set forth in full.


2. The General Development Plan is approved pursuant to section 78-914 of the City
Code and Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(d).


3. Neither this ordinance nor the GDP constitute City approval of any plans or
specifications for any public improvements referred to in the GDP, including utility
improvements, street improvements, and other public improvements. Plans and
specifications for all public improvements to be constructed within the Property shall
be approved by the City, separately from the approval of the GDP, and in accordance
with the City's ordinances and policies relating to the design, approval and
construction of public improvements.


4. No part of the Property may be developed until a Specific Implementation Plan (SIP)
has been submitted and approved for that part of the Property. Specific
Implementation Plans may be approved in phases, for parts of the Property.
However, Planned Development zoning and the GDP, and any approved SIP, shall
expire for any part of the Property that is not fully developed within ten years of the
date of adoption of this ordinance, and the zoning classification of such property shall
revert to RH District.


5. The Property shall be developed and used in full compliance with all standards and
requirements in Chapter 78 of the City Code that apply to lands zoned Planned
Business, except those standards and requirements that are expressly modified in the
approved GDP, or that are expressly modified in an approved Specific
Implementation Plan for all or part of the Property. Chapter 78 of the City Code, the
GDP, and approved SIPs, constitute the zoning regulations for the Property, and may
be enforced as any other zoning regulation in the City of Stoughton. A copy of the
General Development Plan and any approved Specific Development Plan shall be
maintained and kept on file by the City Clerk.


6. This ordinance shall take effect upon publication.


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\KPW GDP Ordinance Attorney Dregne approved 6-12-17.doc







Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
City Clerk


Attachment: Exhibit A – General Development Plan







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 1


Kettle Park West Commercial Center


Planned Development District (PD)


General Development Plan (GDP)
for Sites 3, 4, 5 and 7


May 31, 2017


Exhibit A







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 2


Table of Contents Page


Table of Contents
2


Statement of Intent
3


Compatibility with City Plans
4


" 51 x 138 Westside Detailed Neighborhood Plan
" City 2012 Comprehensive Plan
" Key Planning Considerations for the Kettle Park West Commercial Center


Project Description
12


" General Description
" Management and Maintenance
" Development Sequence and Phasing


" Descriptive Statistics and Development Parameters
" Treatment of Natural Features
" Relationship to Adjoining Properties and Street Network
" Rationale for PD Zoning
" Proposed Site Development Restrictions and Standards


" Land Use
" Density and Intensity Standards
" Bulk Standards
" General Site and Landscaping Guidelines


o Principles
o Site and Building Guidelines
o Landscaping Guidelines


Exhibits


Kettle Park West Commercial Center Master Plan for Lots 3, 4, 5 and 7 Dated 05-05-2017 (11 x 17)


Map showing GDP Boundary and Property Owners within 300 feet.


Street Frontage Planting Exhibit







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 3


Statement of Intent


The Kettle Park West Commercial Center (KPWCC) is a 37-acre development on the west side of the City
of Stoughton at the northwest corner of US Highway 51 (USH 51) and State Highway 138 (STH 138). The
intent of this General Development Plan (GDP) is to outline the land uses that comprise the remaining
undeveloped lands within the Commercial Center (Lots 3, 4, 5 and 7), to provide a rationale for the Planned
Development District zoning, and to describe the development (zoning) standards that will be applied within
the District. These zoning requirements provide the framework for effectively implementing the City’s
Comprehensive Plan and address land use, building intensity, site development, architectural design
standards, and public spaces and amenities. The end goal is to create development parcels that will be
attractive for new business investment into the community.


Background


Planning for the Kettle Park West Master Plan began in fall of 2009 and was the impetus for the creation of
the 51 x 138 Westside Detailed Neighborhood Plan that covers the surrounding 295+ acre area west of
USH 51 and Hoel Avenue. In 2012, the Neighborhood Plan was adopted as part of the City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan. The Westside neighborhood is planned to include a community scale commercial
center, lots for business and employment opportunities, a diverse mix of housing opportunities supported
by a new City park and a neighborhood retail center, and over 40 acres of naturalized open space. The
KPWCC General Development Plan was adopted for the 37-acre Commercial Center in 2013, amended in
2014, and the first commercial sites have begun to develop within the KPWCC.


Rationale for Amendments


This GDP is based on the current GDP for the entire Commercial Center, approved in Ordinance O-29-
2014 adopted by the Stoughton City Council on 25 November 2014, with some modifications. The
objectives of this GDP are (1) to update the GDP standards for the remaining undeveloped sites (3, 4, 5
and 7) based on lessons learned over the first few years of the project, (2) provide a clearer, more readable
document, and (3) establish effective zoning standards for the remaining undeveloped sites within the







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 4


Planned Development. (This GDP excludes the Walmart and Kwik Trip sites, which have already been
approved).


For the remaining undeveloped sites within the KPWCC, this GDP provides clarity to how City zoning
standards will be applied to smaller-scale developments and sites with multiple buildings, based on the
developer’s experience with SIP submittals over the first three years of the project.


Due to the scale of the site and in consideration of the potential for changing economic conditions in the
real estate market, KPW LLC has prepared this GDP with a degree of flexibility to allow for adaptation to
new products and consumer expectations. It is anticipated that changes to the GDP may be warranted
over time. It is recognized however, that such future amendments will become effective only after review
and approval by the City.


This document has been prepared to satisfy the requirements of the Stoughton City Code Section 78-914
(7) pertaining to General Development Plans. The proposed development will be compatible with current
City and State regulatory standards and administrative policy directives. (Note: The required location map,
legal description and listing of adjoining Property Owners are included in the Exhibits Section.)


Compatibility with City Plans


As the project has progressed through development, the vision for the neighborhood has evolved to be the
cornerstone of the planned mixed-use neighborhood located on the west side of the City of Stoughton.


51 x 138 Westside Detailed Neighborhood Plan


The Neighborhood Plan articulates the framework to guide the planning and design for development of this
key gateway location. The development in this area is planned to be predominantly commercial in character
along the highway frontages, and transitioning to residential land uses as distance from the highways
increases. The table below summarizes the general land uses approved for the Westside neighborhood.


Xefpi#4#


84#|#46<#[iwx#Wmhi#Rimklfsvlssh#Tper#


## # # # ##


Kirivepm~ih#Perh#Ywi# # Egviw# # (#


## # # # ##


Viwmhirxmep#Rimklfsvlsshw# # ;<# # 59(#


+mrgpyhmrk#gmzmg#ywiw,# # # # ##


Rimklfsvlssh#Gsqqivgmep#Girxivw# # =# # 6(#


Gsqqyrmx}#Wgepi#Gsqqivgmep#Ywiw# # 79# # 49(#


Iqtps}qirx#Jsgywih#Ywiw# # 76# # 48(#


Gmx}#Yxmpmx}#Wyfwxexmsr# # 7# # 4(#


Stir#Wtegi# # 77# # 48(#


+mrgpyhmrk>#tevow/#gsrwivzergmiw#erh#wxsvq{exiv#qerekiqirx,# # # # ##


Wxviixw#erh#Lmkl{e}#Vmklxw0sj0[e}#+VS[,# ## ;4# ## 57(#


## # # # ##


Xsxep# # 5=8# # ##


## ## ## ## ##







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 5


The proposed KPWCC development is consistent with the neighborhood envisioned and articulated by the
adopted 51 x 138 Westside Neighborhood Plan and will be an asset to the City of Stoughton. The proposed
land uses and infrastructure are critically important first elements for the implementation of the City’s long-
term management strategy and community goals for this area.


City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan


As the original Kettle Park West General
Concept Plan and its companion document,
the 51 x 138 Westside Neighborhood Plan,
were the basis for the amendment of the City
Comprehensive Plan, this proposed General
Development Plan for Lots 3, 4, 5, and 7 of the
Commercial Center is consistent with the City
Comprehensive Plan.


The following general principles were utilized
as a foundation for preparing the 51 x 138
Westside Detailed Neighborhood Plan and are
reflective of the City’s Comprehensive
Planning Goals and Policies:


" Economic Opportunity: The addition
of a new neighborhood encourages
economic prosperity for the community
by increasing the amount of area for
new employment opportunities,
expanding the City’s tax base and
addressing the market needs of City
and area residents for consumer
goods and services.


" Sustainability: Developing a new
neighborhood on the Westside of the
community should balance today’s
economic and social forces against the
environmental imperatives of resource
conservation and renewal.
Sustainable development includes and
incorporates ecological integrity,
economic prosperity, and social
equity.


" Natural Resources Stewardship: All uses within the neighborhood should minimize their
environmental impact through well-conceived site planning and attention to maintaining both the
built environment and naturalized areas. Examples of stewardship activities include: considering
the use of porous pavement for parking lot surfaces and pedestrian and bike paths, providing bike
racks and transit stops (when service becomes available) to encourage alternate modes of travel,
and minimizing light pollution and energy consumption with LED luminaries and “dark sky”
standards. Additionally, all uses within the neighborhood (commercial, offices, manufacturing and
residential) should use appropriate water and waste reduction/recycling techniques, “green”
products and earth-friendly processes in their operations and inventory to the extent practical.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 6


" Social Equity, Responsibility, and Quality of Life: A new neighborhood provides an expanded
inventory of housing styles and opportunities for current and future residents, and provides the
desired elements of the community’s quality of life: walkable, vibrant residential areas, natural open
spaces, and convenience to shopping, services, work, schools, cultural activities and recreation.


Key Planning Considerations for the Kettle Park West Commercial Center


Kettle Park West generally refers to the 175+/- acre tract located in the northwest quadrant of the USH 51
and STH 138 intersection. The Kettle Park West Commercial Center pertains to the approximately 37 acres
in the immediate corner of the intersection. This is part of the 46-acre area designated by the City as a
Community Scale Commercial Land Use area that extends north along the USH 51 frontage including the
existing auto dealerships.


Maximizing Business Development Opportunities


Stoughton’s commercial property inventory is dominated by small retail shops and reflects the history of the
business district and its generally successful focus on specialty retail trade catering to visitors to the
community. The 2012 retail market analysis prepared by Vierbicher indicates that the mix of retail
businesses in the City is not addressing the needs of City residents. Residents are traveling to the Madison
Metropolitan Area for greater shopping opportunities and spending an estimated $80,000,000 annually.


Several factors appear to be contributing to the leakage of consumer spending from the City’s economy.
This includes a significant portion of the population
routinely commuting to Madison to work, the relative
ease and convenience of the regional highway
network, more opportunities for comparative
shopping, and the very limited selection of retail goods
in Stoughton. Currently there are few business
development sites in the City that can accommodate
stores that support modern retailing practices and
operations – large format (>60,000 SF) or medium
format (20,000 SF to 60,000 SF) retail buildings.


The location of the Kettle Park West Commercial
Center has excellent visibility and accessibility to the
surrounding market area – characteristics that are
extremely important to larger scale retail and service
businesses.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 7


Access and Circulation


The commercial location is well integrated into the existing transportation network within the community
and is conveniently accessible for consumers traveling on foot or bicycle. From a regional market
perspective, this commercial location will be beneficial to the community residents as it will provide broader,
more diverse local shopping opportunities that will reduce the need to travel to the Madison area for day-
to-day goods and services.


The regional highway network serving the site is dominated by USH 51 and STH 138, which adjoin the
Kettle Park West Commercial Center site on the east and south, respectively. The Average Annual Daily
Traffic (AADT) has increased annually in past years, and traffic delays have occurred at intersections
during peak traffic hours:


" The AADT on USH 51 based on 2012 counts is 12,700 vehicles per day south of STH 138 and
8,500 vehicles per day north of STH 138. Traffic on STH 138 is 6,900 vehicles per day.
Traffic on both highways was projected by the DOT to increase at a rate of 1.4 percent
annually.


" The functionality of the USH 51 x STH 138 intersection, as measured by the calculated Level
of Service (LOS), had been steadily deteriorating and was rated to be at LOS D for the
morning peak hour and LOS C for the afternoon peak hour. The left-turn movement from STH
138 onto USH 51 was rated a LOS F. (Note: Level of Service is a calculated measurement of
the generalized travel delay that occurs at an intersection. Though it can vary by rural,
suburban, or urban settings, street characteristics, and signal sequencing, LOS A is generally
a 0 to 15 second delay, and comparatively, a LOS F could be a delay of over 60 seconds.)
Temporary improvements were made in 2016 including additional eastbound left turn lanes
and signals to improve LOS at the intersection until major reconstruction occurs.


Improving the traffic circulation and functionality of this intersection of two arterial highways will create a
significant public benefit for the City and region. The City and FDG have been collaborating with the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) to improve this segment of highway.


The Tax Increment Finance District that has been recently approved for this area will provide a critical
financing to help achieve these public improvements.


In addition, the KPWCC integrates bike and pedestrian paths that will connect with the City’s existing bike
route network and ensure accessibility by multiple modes of travel.


Utilities


During the review process for the approved Urban Service Area Amendment, analysis of the City’s water,
sewer and electric utility infrastructure determined that there were no deficiencies in the City’s capacity to
serve the proposed Kettle Park West development.


Water service consists of a looped 10 inch main extending from Hoel Street west along STH 138, extending
north through the Kettle Park West Commercial Center and connecting back to the existing water main in
Jackson Street.


Sanitary sewer infrastructure extends westerly from Jackson Street with a service main extending into the
project site. The next phase of the Kettle Park West development will extend a sanitary interceptor main
westerly along the new Jackson Street alignment.


The water main and sanitary sewer main was constructed within a public easement that parallels USH 51
and water main looping along the south and west boundaries of the Commercial Center.


Electric and natural gas service have been installed by Stoughton Utilities and Alliant Energy.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 8


Topography and Stormwater Management


The general topography of the planning area is gently rolling terrain with surface drainage flowing to a small
depressional wetland that is located immediately west of the Kettle Park West Commercial Center. The
closed watershed of this wetland complex encompasses over 184 acres, and includes lands on either side
of STH 138.


The Kettle Park West Conceptual Master Plan proposed avoidance of the wetland habitat to maintain it as
a main visual and recreational amenity for the development. It is envisioned that this wetland habitat will be
conserved and will have a perimeter walking/bike path to provide an exceptional recreational amenity
benefiting neighborhood residents, employees, and the community in general.


A major component of the Capital Area Regional Plan Commission (CARPC) approval of the Urban Service
Area to serve Kettle Park West revolved around effective techniques to manage stormwater and the water
quality of run-off that feeds this wetland. Since this
watershed has no natural outlet, all of the stormwater
must be contained and infiltrated within the basin to
reasonably replicate natural (existing) conditions.


The preliminary generalized stormwater management
plan approved by CARPC includes maximizing
opportunities for infiltration of “clean” rooftop run-off,
effective treatment of parking lot run-off to mitigate
contamination and remove 80% of sediments,
periodically re-charging the water levels in the
wetland, and infiltrating 100% of excess stormwater
run-off. To accomplish this, site grading within the
Kettle Park West Commercial Center has been
designed to collect and treat stormwater from the
impervious surfaces (parking lots), and convey the
“treated” water to both the wetland area immediately
west of the center and to the infiltration basin located
approximately 800 feet north of Jackson Street.


The infiltration basin is strategically placed in soils with
high permeability and will be restored with deep-
rooted prairie and drought tolerant vegetation in order
to maximize stormwater infiltration and provide
sustainable wildlife habitat.


In addition to being an integral component of the
stormwater management system, this infiltration basin
is also intended to be managed as a community open
space amenity providing a naturalized environment for
the neighborhood and passive recreation
opportunities for walking and wildlife viewing.


Significant site grading will take place in order to
accommodate the stormwater management system,
maintain the ecology surrounding the “kettle” wetland,
and create viable and functional building pads for the
commercial uses that are being recruited for the
KPWCC.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 9


All of the on-site grading and the stormwater management facilities will be privately constructed by KPW
LLC and will be operated as a private system, subject to a recorded maintenance covenant that will be
formulated and approved as part of the stormwater permitting process. At a future date, as planning for
other phases of Kettle Park West moves forward, KPW LLC may propose that the stormwater management
facilities be dedicated to the City of Stoughton as a regional stormwater facility.


Architectural Character and Sense-of-Place


From a community design perspective, the KPWCC will be critically important as the west “gateway” to the
City, as articulated in the 2012 Comprehensive Plan. Creating and maintaining a distinct edge between
the nearby “rural landscape” and the City will be achieved by:


" Assertively managing land use to avoid “strip” commercial development that could stretch along
the corridor,


" Establishing strong architectural design expectations for all buildings and uses visible from USH
51 and STH 138,


" Creating visual landmarks at the Jackson Street – USH 51 intersection, and at the USH 51 - STH
138 intersection, and


" Installing attractive landscaped environment that both integrates and enhances the naturalized
open space of the Kettle/wetland into the visual character of the development.


The transportation network improvements, conservation efforts, and architectural considerations
described above are all key to the City’s efforts to create “landmark” features and achieve a unique
identity for this “gateway” location.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 10


Project Description


General Description
Zoning Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.a


The Kettle Park West Commercial Center is envisioned to be an attractive shopping destination for
Stoughton area residents. KPW LLC has successfully directed its business recruitment efforts toward
attracting a diverse mix of users and tenants.


Located at the intersection of USH 51 and STH 138, KPWCC is the most intense land use proposed within
the 46-acre community-scale commercial area shown in the Neighborhood Plan (the area that includes
KPWCC and the existing commercial lands that extend north along the USH 51 frontage.) With this high
visibility and accessibility from the two major arterials, the types of uses anticipated for this district include
businesses focused on customers who typically travel by car and larger-scale retailers and service uses
that typically require significant area for display of inventory (e.g. car dealerships). This commercial location
benefits the community in that residents will not need to travel to the Madison Metropolitan Area for goods
and services. If the customer so chooses, the location also has an additional advantage in that it is
accessible by other travel modes such as bicycling and walking.


The KPWCC has been designed to accommodate a diverse combination of businesses that would be
attractive to and primarily supported by a “community-scale” market area, as opposed to business primarily
focused on serving the immediate neighborhood. The main “anchor” business site within the Commercial
Center was therefore designed to accommodate the requirements of a medium to large-format retail
business.


A crucial consideration in the design of the KPWCC is a recognition that real estate markets can change
modestly or dramatically in the time between planning and implementation, as well after implementation.
Incorporating flexibility into the plan allows the project and the City to be responsive to market changes.
Marketing and recruitment experience since 2011 to the present indicates that a simpler, more tailored
approach to applying zoning standards is needed for the remaining undeveloped parcels in the KPWCC,
particularly those with multiple smaller-scale buildings.


The KPWCC Master Plan in the Exhibits section has been updated to illustrate the overall arrangement of
the development parcels within the KPWCC. To compliment the primary retail site and provide for more
economic diversity, the KPWCC layout includes additional parcels for retail and service businesses. These
sites provide opportunities for multi-tenant and smaller-scale retail buildings that would provide a variety of
consumer goods, convenience retail, entertainment/restaurant and personal/professional services. All
parcels within the GDP may be subdivided while meeting the underlying Planned Business zoning
requirements except for where flexibility has been granted. Table 4 addresses provisions for flexibility. The
vision for the development parcels shown on this GDP Master Plan is described below.


" Parcel 3: Designed to accommodate up to approximately 30,000 SF of commercial business space
gross floor area (GFA) with development and building layout dependent on the status of the small
degraded wetland currently located in the southerly portion of the site.


" Parcel 4: Intended to accommodate up to 35,000 SF GFA of commercial space housed in up to 3
buildings.


" Parcel 5: Intended to accommodate up to approximately 15,000 SF GFA of commercial space
housed in up to 2 buildings. High quality architectural design is expected to compliment the
prominent location at the Jackson Street – USH 51 intersection.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 11


" Parcel 7: Intended to accommodate up to 30,000 SF GFA in up to 5 buildings.


Table 3 provides a summary of the development proposed for each GDP parcel.


Note: Parcels 2 and 6 (Walmart and Kwik Trip sites, respectively) were previously developed under the
2014 City-approved KPWCC GDP, and remain subject to that zoning document. (During initial planning,
KPW Parcel 1, located west of Walmart, was combined with the Walmart site to enlarge Parcel 2.)


Management and Maintenance


The ongoing management and maintenance of the common facilities and spaces within KPWCC is vital to
the long-term economic viability and sustainability of the development and the adjoining future planned
neighborhood. These facilities include: the stormwater treatment basin, the pedestrian plaza, commercial
center signage locations.


To manage these spaces and to provide oversight of the development and operations of the KPWCC, a
Business Owner’s Association will be established. In the interim, KPW LLC will be responsible for common
area maintenance and will establish and implement an architectural review procedure to ensure ongoing
compliance with the design guidelines and standards established in this GDP and future site plans and
Specific Implementation Plans (SIP).


Development Sequence and Phasing


The physical development of the KPWCC will be
accomplished through a series of land divisions and
construction phasing, due to considerations for the
timing of purchase agreements with underlying
property owners and the projected development
schedules of the various business prospects. KPW
LLC anticipates that process will entail
collaborating with the purchasers of each
development parcel to formulate Specific
Implementation Plans (SIPs) which will be
submitted for City review and approval.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 12


Descriptive Statistics and Development Parameters
Zoning Ordinance Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.b., and c


Xefpi#5#


Oixxpi#Tevo#[iwx#Gsqqivgmep#Girxiv#Perh#Ywi#erh#Erxmgmtexih#Sggyterxw#
# # # # #


Tevgip# # Tevgip# #


Fymphmrk#


Wm~i#


# # Egviw# #


Tvsnigxih#


Kvsww#Jpssv#


Evie#


Gsqqyrmx}#Gsqqivgmep# # # #


5#+Psx#5#GWQ#4738;,-# Kirivep#Qivglerhmwi# 4817=# # 488/333#


6#+Psx#6#GWQ#4738;,# Vixemp2Sjjmgi2He}gevi2Mrh1#Gsqqivgmep#Irx1# 517<# # 63/333#


7#+Psx#7#GWQ#4738;,# Wtigmepx}#Vixemp#+qypxm0xirerx#girxiv,# 6139# # 68/333#


8#+Psx#8#GWQ#4738<,# Jmrergmep#Wivzmgiw2Sjjmgi2Vixemp#{mxl#hvmzi0xlvsykl# 4199# # 48/333#


9#+Psx#9#GWQ#4738<,-# Gsrzirmirgi#Vixemp#+Jyip#erh#Gev#[ewl,# 5158# # </883#


;#+Psx#;#GWQ#4738<,# Wtigmepx}#Vixemp#+qypxm0xirerx#girxiv,# 61<4# # 63/333#


# # ## ## ##


# Wyfxsxep# 5<1;8# # 5;6/883#
# # # # #


Tivqerirxp}#Tvsxigxih#Stir#Wtegi#+rsx#mrgpyhmrk#perhwgetih#evie#{mxlmr#psxw,# # #


SP#4# Wxsvq{exiv#Xviexqirx# 51;5# # #


SP#5#)#5E# Wxsvq{exiv#Mrjmpxvexmsr# 617=# # #


# # # # #


Jyxyvi#Negowsr#Wxviix#VS[# 41<5# # #


WXL#46<#Vsyrhefsyx#Ettvsegl# 314;# ## ##


# Xsxep# 691=8# # #


# # # # #


+-,#Tevgipw#tvizmsywp}#hizipstih#erh#wyfnigx#xs#53470ettvszih#KHT# # # #


Xefpi#6#


Tvsnigxih#Oixxpi#Tevo#[iwx#Gsqqivgmep#Girxiv#Hizipstqirx#Hirwmx}#


Tevgi


p#
Erxmgmtexih#Fymphmrk#X}ti#erh#Wm~i# Tevgip#Evie#


Tvsnigxih#


Jpssv#Evie#


Vexms#


QE\#JEV#


tiv#


Svhmrergi#


Tvsnigxih#


Mqtivzmsyw#


Wyvjegi#


Vexms#


Qe|#MWV#


Tiv#


Svhmrergi#


## Kvsww#Jpssv#Evie#+Wu1#Jx1,# Wu1#Jx1# JEV# JEV# MWV# MWV#


# # # # # # # #


5# 406#Fymphmrkw#+4#Wxsv},#-# 488/333# 9;7/<65# 3156# 413# ;8(# ;8(#


6# 4#Fymphmrk#+4#sv#5#Wxsv},# 63/333# 43</496# 315<# 413# ;8(# ;8(#


7# Yt#xs#6#Fymphmrkw#+4#sv#5#Wxsv},# 68/333# 466/656# 3159# 413# ;8(# ;8(#


8# Yt#xs#6#Fymphmrkw#+4#sv#5#Wxsv},# 48/333# ;5/5<9# 3154# 413# ;8(# ;8(#


9# Yt#xs#5#Fymphmrkw#+4#Wxsv},#-# </883# =;/<;6# 313=# 413# ;8(# ;8(#


;# Yt#xs#8#Fymphmrkw#+4#Wxsv},# 63/333# 498/=<6# 314<# 413# ;8(# ;8(#


# Xsxep# 5;6/883# 4/585/793# # # # #


+-,#Tevgipw#tvizmsywp}#hizipstih#erh#wyfnigx#xs#53470ettvszih#KHT# # # # #







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 13


Treatment of Natural Features
Zoning Ordinance Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.d


Kettle Park West contains wetlands around the
large kettle pond on the site of the former Mabie
farm, and a small degraded wetland located to the
east of the Mabie farm driveway. The large wetland
area and kettle pond are outside of the Commercial
Center, though they comprise the most substantial
natural open space amenity for the development.
After coordination with the WDNR, the avoidance
option was pursued for the majority of existing
wetlands. A disturbance of 0.23 acres was
authorized by the WDNR for the smaller degraded
wetland (the bulk of which lies on Parcel 3). A
comprehensive wetland avoidance strategy was
prepared by Montgomery Associates that serves as
the framework for managing this ecological
resource area. Consideration of eliminating the
small degraded wetland and modifying and rehabilitating the large wetland to create additional habitat areas
around its perimeter is still under review.


In order to create viable business sites within KPWCC, and especially to meet the requirements for the
anchor building site on Parcel 2, the whole site was graded with a substantial volume of fill being placed in
the westerly portions of Parcel 2.


As noted in the adopted Neighborhood Plan, it is KPW LLC’s intention to continue to collaborate with the
City to establish a wetland conservancy park and assist with the rehabilitation of this environmental
resource. FDG is confident that with continued strong community support these areas will become an asset
and a desirable amenity for the planned future neighborhood. KPW LLC continues to be supportive of City
efforts to enhance the area as a passive recreation resource.


Stormwater Management


The stormwater management system serving the KPWCC consists of on-site privately maintained storm
sewers which collect roof water and parking lot run-off, a stormwater treatment pond to remove suspended
solids, an engineered infrastructure system with pumps that “recharges” Mabie Farm ephemeral wetlands
and discharges the excess water into a 3.5+/- acre system of infiltration basins.


All regulatory stormwater management requirements will be met, including all City of Stoughton
requirements per Chapter 10 of the Municipal Code of the City of Stoughton, applicable requirements of
the Capital Area Regional Planning Commission Resolution No. 2011-5, and Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources Chapters NR 151 and 216.


Additionally, infiltration of “clean” roof water will be encouraged on all of the development parcels through
the KPWCC Landscaping Standards.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 14


Relationship to Adjoining Properties and Street Network
Zoning Ordinance Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.e


Adjoining Properties


KPW LLC has been collaborating with the City and the owner of the former Kayser Automotive property
(Baxter Parcel) to coordinate the design and timing of a planned extension of Jackson Street. Dedication
of right-of-way and the completion of the planned Jackson Street improvement was a component of the
annexation agreement relating to the Baxter Parcel.


KPW LLC is also closely involved with the planning and development phasing of the land lying west of the
KPWCC project area. As described in the adopted neighborhood plan, this area is intended to become a
vibrant, walkable neighborhood focused on the intersection of Jackson Street and Oak Opening Drive and
supported by a variety of housing opportunities and nearby employment.


Access and Circulation


Traffic circulation to and from the Kettle Park West Commercial Center will utilize direct access to USH 51,
STH 138, and Jackson Street (extended). WisDOT approved the access drives to USH 51 and STH 138.


KPW LLC conveyed the Jackson Street ROW to the City in conjunction with the annexation of the adjacent
Baxter Property. The design for Jackson Street is a 40 foot wide collector street with a sidewalk along the
south side of the ROW and a 10 foot wide bike path along the north side. On-street parking would likely
not be permitted along the KPWCC frontage.


The KPWCC is linked to the City’s bike route network with a 10 foot bike path being constructed along the
north ROW of Jackson Street, the west ROW line of USH 51 and the north ROW of STH 138. Future
phases of Kettle Park West are anticipated to include extending these paths to Oak Opening Drive with
linkages to the City’s proposed West Bike Path.


Within the KPWCC, the vehicle circulation network relies primarily on a private street extending north and
south through the easterly portion of the site. The private street will be 25 feet wide with curb and gutter.


A 5-foot wide sidewalk will be constructed along the east side of the private street to provide pedestrian
access along the full length of Parcels 5, 6 and 7 and connecting to the sidewalk and bike path along
Jackson Street, USH 51 and STH 138. A sidewalk is not proposed along the west side of the private street
except where it may be warranted to provide access to a building with store-fronts facing the private street.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 15


Rationale for PD Zoning
Zoning Ordinance Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.g


The KPWCC is envisioned to be a catalyst to expand commercial and business opportunities for the City.
It addition to creating new building sites, the Center promotes an integrated network of streets, bike paths,
and public spaces that will transition to a future mixed use neighborhood to the west. The coordination of
these uses and amenities is only possible through the framework that is created by an overall Planned
Development Process.


While the standards for the KPWCC will primarily follow those of the City’s traditional Planned Business
zoning district, tailoring certain standards would allow a more streamlined and efficient process for
reviewing designs for individual site plans as they come forward, particularly on sites with multiple buildings.
The Planned Development District allows the needed flexibility and coordination between uses and
infrastructure that the City and KPW LLC need to achieve the design intent articulated in the 51 x 138
Westside Neighborhood Plan and the objectives of the Comprehensive Plan.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 16


Proposed Site Development Restrictions and Standards
Zoning Ordinance Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.i


A. LAND USE


Except as listed below, all uses, buildings and other improvements that are allowed as permitted uses in
the Planned Business District under the City of Stoughton Zoning Code are permitted uses, buildings and
structures within in Kettle Park West Commercial Center. Conditional uses in the Planned Business (PB)
District are also permitted in the Kettle Park West Commercial Center, if they are listed below as a “targeted”
use or are allowed by the City through the Planned Development approval procedures and standards in the
City of Stoughton Zoning Code.


Targeted / Priority Land Uses [Refer to Stoughton Code of Ordinances 78-206]


(4)(a) Office
(4)(b) Personal or Professional Services
(4)(c) Indoor Sales or Service
(4)(g) and/or (8)(g) In-Vehicle Sales or Service
(4)(h) Indoor Commercial Entertainment
(4)(m) Group Day Care Center (9+ children)


Prohibited Uses [Refer to Stoughton Code of Ordinances 78-206]


(1) Residential Land Uses
(2) Agricultural Land Uses
(3)(f) Institutional Residential Development
(3)(g), (3)(h), and (3)(i) Community Living Arrangement
(4)(j) Commercial Animal Boarding
(4)(l) Bed and Breakfast Establishment
(4)(n) Campground
(4)(o) Boarding House
(4)(p) Sexually-Oriented Land Uses
(5) Storage or Disposal Uses
(6) Transportation Land Uses
(7) Industrial Land Uses
(10)(a) Small Wind Energy System
(10)(b) Commercial Wind Energy System


Prohibited Accessory Uses


(8)(a) Upper Story Dwelling Unit
(8)(b) Farm Residence
(8)(c) Detached Residential Garage, Carport, Utility Shed
(8)(m) Migrant Labor Camp
(8)(u) Individual Septic Disposal System
(8)(w) Caretaker’s Residence


Prohibited Temporary Land Uses


(9)(i) Temporary Shelter Used for Seasonal Storage of Vehicles, Equipment, or Materials


(Note: Temporary shelter associated with outdoor displays or limited term entertainment events and outdoor
assembly activities subject to approval by the Kettle Park West Commercial Center Owners Association
and the City under the provisions of Section 78-906.)







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 17


Additional Prohibited Uses


" Animals, except those that may be involved with a permitted temporary entertainment event.
" Casino or Bingo Hall.
" Parking or outdoor storage of any abandoned or inoperable vehicles or equipment.


B. DENSITY AND INTENSITY STANDARDS


All parcels within the KPWCC will comply with the maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 1.0 and provide a
minimum of 25% open space, as is typically required of developments in the Planned Business (PB) district.
However, as parcels may be subdivided in the future for the purpose of managing multi-building sites, it is
the developer’s intent that open space requirements be applied to the overall GDP parcels as currently
shown, and not to new lots resulting from land divisions or condominium plats (see Table 4). The reason
for this is that the open space configuration shown in the KPWCC Master Plan reflects the stormwater
management and landscaping needs of the overall development, and this configuration may or may not
align with future subdivisions done for management purposes. (Note: The term “open space” for purposes
of this GDP includes lawn, landscaped planting beds, foundation landscape beds, on-site stormwater
management facilities and vegetated parking lot tree islands. The percentage is calculated as a fraction of
the total GDP area, net of public dedications, maintained as open space).


C. BULK STANDARDS


All buildings within the KPWCC will comply with the minimum setbacks and maximum building heights
stipulated in the Planned Business (PB) District under the City Zoning Code. Any applicable WisDOT
highway standard setbacks would apply to the site as found in Wisconsin Administrative Code – Trans
233.08(2)(b).


Only one exemption is requested to bulk standards, to allow a zero setback for pavement where shared
parking and access drives are approved by the City as part of a Specific Implementation Plan (SIP). See
Table 4 for more information.


D. GENERAL SITE AND LANDSCAPING GUIDELINES


The visible façades of buildings are a significant component of the “first impression” and “sense-of-place”
of a site. Buildings form visual gateways, edges and backgrounds; their architectural elements and choice
of building materials create visual character and interest; and their scale or massing contribute to the “feel”
experienced by visitors and passersby. Overall site design and specific building details need to be
integrated to present a unique, inviting and memorable place.


The desire is to create a commercial area with a “sense-of-place” with visual elements (such as architectural
features and materials, lighting fixtures, and streetscape and landscaping elements) that carry through the
entire area. The desired result is for the KPWCC to be an attractive, convenient, and viable “commercial
node” providing services and retail goods to the surrounding community, including both urban and rural
market area.


Development Guidelines set basic parameters, describe preferences, and illustrate design intent for
building and site development within the KPWCC. The following guidelines are a framework within which
creative design can and should occur:


Principles


" Encourage a variety of building types and styles expressed both in large scale (overall building)
and small scale (architectural features) design elements.







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 18


" Promote interesting, animated architectural features without being thematic or artificial, by utilizing
a diverse mix of materials applied in a variety of proportions, exposures, and detailing.


" Promote five (5)-sided architecture to avoid unsightly views of large unarticulated building
elevations; especially side and rear elevations, un-screened roof appurtenances, utility, and
mechanical features from street ROWs, customer parking areas, and community spaces.


" Emphasize important wayfinding nodes within the Kettle Park West development by placing
distinctive architectural elements or interesting façades at prominent locations visible to people
traveling to the site and moving within the site.


" Encourage a variety of building heights.


" Emphasize the pedestrian’s experience with site and architectural features at street level (canopies,
material details, and vegetation), and by creating comfortable public spaces (promenades, plazas,
and alcoves, safe pathways, and shaded and open to sky spaces).


" Minimize and buffer views of service entries, loading facilities and utility and mechanical services.


" Promote “Green Building” techniques and use of sustainable materials.


Site and Building Guidelines


The remaining undeveloped parcels in the KPWCC will generally comply with the City’s zoning standards
for the Planned Business (PB) District. Because these are smaller development sites, site plans buildings
20,000 square feet in size and smaller are not subject to review per the Large Development standards in
Section 78-205(11). Instead, the following standards are proposed, which incorporate the standards from
the 2014 GDP, and either meet or exceed the City’s regular commercial site standards.


Buildings


The goal of the development is to ensure quality building design throughout the KPWCC. Table 4 contains
the specific standards that will apply to buildings. Exemption requests may be made for individual SIPs
based on corporate franchise standards for development.


Parking & Access


Parking and access routes within KPWCC will be designed to facilitate safe and easy access for all users,
and to minimize the amount of pavement needed to accommodate development, in keeping with the
principles and policy goals noted above. Table 4 contains the specific standards that will apply to parking
and access infrastructure. Minimum and maximum parking standards are proposed to apply to GDP
parcels as shown on the Master Plan, with shared parking provisions that account for specific land uses
and their respective hours of peak use.


Landscaping and Amenities


Developing parcels within Kettle Park West are encouraged to utilize native and adaptable plant species
that highlight regional and climatic themes. South Central Wisconsin and the area Southwest of Stoughton
feature landforms such as the large “Kettle” directly west of the Kettle Park West Commercial Center that
is consistent with the ecological history of the area. These open space features contribute to the overall
character of the site, provide native fauna and flora habitat and encourage natural design within the context
of the region.







;\Y]] 7OX]S^c )&( 94D% XY WKb 5VNQ ]SdO 8bS]̂ SXQ CVKXXON 5_]SXO]] #C5$ 7S]^\SM^ ]^KXNK\N& 4


@SXSW_W ?Y^ ESdO *(%((( ]P ' )(( P̂ aSNO K^ P\YX^ ]O L̂KMU VSXO 8bS]̂ SXQ CVKXXON 5_]SXO]] #C5$ 7S]^\SM^ ]^KXNK\N& 4


9\YX^'E^\OO^ 5_SVNSXQ EO^LKMU *( P^ 8bS]̂ SXQ CVKXXON 5_]SXO]] #C5$ 7S]^\SM^ ]^KXNK\N& 4


ESNO EO^LKMU] )( P^ #, P^ PY\ KMMO]]Y\c L_SVNSXQ]$ 8bS]̂ SXQ CVKXXON 5_]SXO]] #C5$ 7S]^\SM^ ]^KXNK\N& 4


DOK\ EO^LKMU *( P^ 8bS]̂ SXQ CVKXXON 5_]SXO]] #C5$ 7S]^\SM^ ]^KXNK\N& 4


@SXSW_W 5_SVNSXQ EOZK\K^SYX *( P^ 8bS]̂ SXQ CVKXXON 5_]SXO]] #C5$ 7S]^\SM^ ]^KXNK\N& 4


7\S`OaKc ISN^R @KbSW_W ,( P̂ PY\ MYWWO\MSKV 8bS]̂ SXQ CVKXXON 5_]SXO]] #C5$ 7S]^\SM^ ]^KXNK\N& 4


CK`OWOX^ EO^LKMU P\YW ?Y^ ?SXO - P^ #]SNO KXN \OK\$ ' )( P^ #P\YW DBI$


JO\Y"PYY^ ZK`OWOX^ ]O^LKMU] K\O KVVYaON aS^R 6Ŝ c KZZ\Y`KV YP ]S^O ZVKX]


^RK^ POK^_\O ]RK\ON ZK\USXQ KXN KMMO]] N\S`O]& DK^SYXKVO2 FRS] MVK\SPSO] KX


ObS]̂ SXQ ;7C ]^KXNK\N ^RK^ \O[_S\O] NS\OM^ MYXXOM^SYX] LO^aOOX ]S^O]


aRO\Ò O\ ZY]]SLVO& ERK\ON KMMO]] N\S`O] K\O NO]S\KLVO SX K\OK] ^Y LYY]^


]KPO^c YX ]_\\Y_XNSXQ ]̂ \OO^] KXN WSXSWSdO ^RO X_WLO\ YP KMMO]] ZYSX^]& =^ S]


MYWWYX PY\ MYWW_XS^SO] Ŷ KVVYa ]RK\ON ZK\USXQ KXN KMMO]]& E^Y_QR^YX"]


]^KXNK\N] PY\ VK\QO NO`OVYZWOX^] ]ZOMSPc ^RK^ ]Ŝ O NO]SQX] ]RKVV Z\Y`SNO


NS\OM^ MYXXOM̂ SYX] Ŷ KNTKMOX^ VKXN _]O] SP \O[_S\ON #EOM& /0"/(-#))$#P$$&


9VObSLSVS^c


\O[_O]^ON


@KbSW_W 5_SVNSXQ <OSQR^ , PVYY\] ' ,- P^ 8bS]̂ SXQ CVKXXON 5_]SXO]] #C5$ 7S]^\SM^ ]^KXNK\N& 4


@SXSW_W ?KXN]MKZO E_\PKMO DK^SY #?ED$ *-!


8bS]̂ SXQ CVKXXON 5_]SXO]] #C5$ 7S]^\SM^ ]^KXNK\N& FRS] S] SX^OXNON ^Y LO


KZZVSON ^Y M_\\OX^ ;7C ZK\MOV]% ^RY_QR ZK\MOV] ^RK^ K\O ]_LNS S̀NON SX ^RO


P_^_\O PY\ ^RO Z_\ZY]O YP WKXKQSXQ W_V̂ S"L_SVNSXQ ]Ŝ O] WKc \O]_V̂ SX


YaXO\]RSZ ZK\MOV] aŜ R VO]] ^RKX *-! YZOX ]ZKMO& FRO YZOX ]ZKMO


MYXPSQ_\K^SYX ]RYaX SX ^RO >CI66 @K]^O\ CVKX \OPVOM^] ^RO ]^Y\WaK^O\


WKXKQOWOX^ KXN VKXN]MKZSXQ XOON] YP ^RO Y`O\KVV NO`OVYZWOX^% KXN ^RS]


MYXPSQ_\K^SYX WKc Y\ WKc XY^ KVSQX aS^R P_^_\O ]_LNS̀ S]SYX] NYXO PY\


WKXKQOWOX^ Z_\ZY]O]&


9VObSLSVS^c


\O[_O]^ON


?KXN]MKZSXQ KXN 5_PPO\cK\N]
4] \O[_S\ON LO^aOOX NSPPO\OX^ dYXSXQ


NS]^\SM̂ ] ZO\ EOM& /0".)( #A'4 aS R̂SX >CI66$
8bS]̂ SXQ CVKXXON 5_]SXO]] #C5$ 7S]^\SM^ ]^KXNK\N& 4


@SXSW_W'@KbSW_W CK\USXQ


4] \O[_S\ON PY\ `K\SY_] VKXN _]O]% aS^R


Z\Y S̀]SYX] PY\ ]RK\ON ZK\USXQ KXN KMMO]] KXN


ZOKU"RY_\ _]O&


EOO LOVYa& 4


IRSVO R̂O]O WKc XY^ ^OMRXSMKVVc KZZVc ^Y CVKXXON 7O`OVYZWOX^ ]S^O]% ]S^O] SX


^RO >CI66 aSVV MYWZVc aŜ R ^RO ;\Y_Z 7O`OVYZWOX^ ]^KXNK\N] \O[_S\SXQ #K$


KX KNO[_K^O X_WLO\ YP aK]^O LSX]% #L$ QOXO\KV MYWZVSKXMO aS^R ^RO SX^OX^ YP


^RO dYXSXQ MYNO% KXN #M$ ]KPO ZONO]^\SKX KXN LSMcMVO KMMO]] aŜ R MYXXOM^SYX]


^Y ObS]^SXQ KXN ZVKXXON PKMSVS^SO] SX ^RO ]_\\Y_XNSXQ MYWW_XS^c&


4


5_SVNSXQ] *(%((( ][_K\O POO^ KXN _XNO\ SX ]SdO ]RKVV XY^ LO ]_LTOM̂ ^Y ^RO


?K\QO 7O`OVYZWOX^ ]^KXNK\N] SX EOM& /0"*(-#))$% N_O ^Y ^RO PKM^ ^RK^ #K$ ^RO


6S^c RK] NOOWON WKXcYP ^ROW XY^ Z\KM^SMKV Y\ XY^ KZZVSMKLVO PY\ L_SVNSXQ]


YP ]WKVVO\ ]MKVO aS^RSX R̂O >CI66% #L$ ^RO X_WLO\ YP ]^KXNK\N] MYWZVSMK^O


]Ŝ O ZVKX \O`SOa] PY\ ]WKVV ]Ŝ O]% \O[_S\SXQ WY\O ObOWZ^SYX] ^RKX aY_VN


Y^RO\aS]O LO XOONON% KXN #M$ ]YWO ]^KXNK\N] MYXPVSM^ aS^R Y^RO\ ]^KXNK\N]


SX ^RO dYXSXQ Y\NSXKXMO Y\ MY_VN LO MVOK\O\& IŜ R ^RO ]̂ KXNK\N] ]O^ Lc ^RO


;7C% P_^_\O E=C ]_LWŜ ^KV] aSVV \O[_S\O POaO\ ObOWZ^SYX]% ]SWZVSPSXQ


Z\YZY]KV] KXN 6Ŝ c ]^KPP \O S̀Oa]&


EOO LOVYa PY\


^RO Z\YZY]ON


]^KXNK\N] KXN


RYa ^ROc


MYWZK\O ^Y C5


NS]^\SM^ KXN


VK\QO"


NO`OVYZWOX^


]^KXNK\N]&


FRS] QYO] LOcYXN LK]SM ]S Ô ZVKX ]^KXNK\N] Lc SXMY\ZY\K^SXQ ]YWO VK\QO


NO`OVYZWOX^ M\S^O\SK SX K WYNSPSON PY\W& @Y]^ YP ^RO ?K\QO 7O`OVYZWOX^


]^KXNK\N] PY\ L_SVNSXQ K\MRS^OM^_\KV NO K̂SV] K\O SX^OXNON ^Y \ON_MO ^RO


KZZK\OX^ ]SdO YP LSQ LYb L_SVNSXQ]% KXN QOXO\KV ]S^O ZVKX ]^KXNK\N] KV\OKNc


RK`O \O[_S\OWOX ]̂ PY\ K\MRŜ OM^_\KV `K\SO ĉ& FRS] ] K̂XNK\N Z\Y`SNO]


KNNS^SYXKV \O[_S\OWOX^] #ZK\KZÔ ] KXN PKMKNO]$% aŜ R MYX]SNO\K^SYX PY\ K


]MKVO KZZ\YZ\SK^O PY\ L_SVNSXQ] *(%((( ][_K\O POO^ ;94 KXN _XNO\&


4


#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


8bS]̂ SXQ >CI66 ]^KXNK\N&
4


#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


FRO ]^KXNK\N MYWWO\MSKV dYXSXQ ]^KXNK\N] PY\ L_SVNSXQ WK^O\SKV] K\O XOK\Vc


SNOX^SMKV ^Y ^RY]O YP ?K\QO 7O`OVYZWOX^]& ,"]SNON K\MRS^OM̂ _\O aSVV OX]_\O K


RSQRO\ KO]^RO^SM [_KVŜ c PY\ >CI66 ]Ŝ O]&


4
#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


JYXSXQ ]^KXNK\N] PY\ ]M\OOXSXQ YX KVV MYWWO\MSKV ]S^O ZVKX] K\O XOK\Vc


SNOX^SMKV ^Y ^RY]O YP ?K\QO 7O`OVYZWOX^]% KXN MYX]SNO\K^SYX YP WOMRKXSMKV]


KXN ^RO S̀Oa P\YW ^\KSV] aSVV OX]_\O K RSQRO\ KO]^RO^SM [_KVS^c PY\ >CI66


]Ŝ O]&


4
#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


178?< "


*.3%% .?7AA<; &<H<?BC@<AF


$G>?;>A= 7A; 0>F< 6BA>A= 0F7A;7D;E


.DBCBE<; (&. 0F7A;7D;E /7F>BA7?<


?K\QO 7O`OVYZWOX^ ]^KXNK\N] " E_L]OM^SYX /0"*(-#))$&


(&. ,<<FE BD


'I9<<;E 6BA>A=


0F7A;7D;E


;\Y_Z 7O`OVYZWOX^ ]^KXNK\N] g E_L]OM^SYX /0"*(-#)*$&


5_SVNSXQ 7O]SQX #8X^\SO]$ " FRO Z\SWK\c Z_LVSM OX^\c ]RY_VN LO K Z\YWSXOX^ S̀]_KV


POK^_\O YP K L_SVNSXQ KXN OK]SVc SNOX^SPSKLVO P\YW M_]^YWO\ ZK\USXQ K\OK]&


5_SVNSXQ @K^O\SKV] " >CI66 ]Ŝ O] aSVV LO ]_LTOM^ ^Y ^RO MYX]^\_M^SYX WK^O\SKV ]^KXNK\N]


SX EOM^SYX /0"/). YP ^RO JYXSXQ B\NSXKXMO% aRSMR \O[_S\O] RSQR [_KVS^c% NOMY\K Ŝ`O


WK^O\SKV] K] NO^O\WSXON Lc ^RO CVKX 6YWWS]]SYX& ES^O] aSVV ObMOON ^RO]O ] K̂XNK\N] Lc


\O[_S\SXQ ,"]SNON K\MRS^OM̂ _\O&


5_SVNSXQ 7O]SQX " >CI ]S^O] aSVV MYWZVc aS^R 6S ĉ ]S^O ZVKX ]^KXNK\N] SX EOM& /0"1(0%


aRSMR \O[_S\O MYX]S]̂ OXMc KXN MYWZK^SLSVŜ c aŜ R XOK\LcZ\YZO\^SO]% K] aOVV K]


K\MRS^OM^_\KV `K\SO^c ^Y K`YSN WYXY^YXc% aŜ R PSXKV KZZ\Y`KV ]_LTOM^ ^Y ^RO CVKX


6YWWS]]SYX& 5_SVNSXQ] *(%((( ][_K\O POO^ KXN _XNO\ ]RKVV Z\Y S̀NO ZK\KZÔ ] YP K^ VOK]^


) PYY^& ;\Y_XN PVYY\ PKMKNO] ^RK^ PKMO Z_LVSM ]̂ \OO^] ]RKVV SXMV_NO K\MRS^OM^_\KV


OVOWOX^] ^RK^ KNN ]^\OO^]MKZO `K\SO ĉ SXMV_NSXQ MVOK\Vc NOPSXON OX^\caKc]%


^\KX]ZK\OX^ aSXNYa]% OX \̂c K\OK]% KaXSXQ]% Y\ Y^RO\ ]SWSVK\ POK^_\O] K] KZZ\Y`ON Lc


^RO CVKX 6YWWS]]SYX&


EM\OOXSXQ " >CI66 ]Ŝ O] aSVV LO ]_LTOM^ ^Y R̂O ]M\OOXSXQ ]^KXNK\N] SX 4\^SMVO H= YP R̂O


JYXSXQ 6YNO #?KXN]MKZSXQ E K̂XNK\N]$% aRSMR \O[_S\O ]M\OOXSXQ PY\ ZK\USXQ KXN VYKNSXQ


K\OK]% KXN 4\^SMVO H== #CO\PY\WKXMO E^KXNK\N]$% aRSMR \O[_S\O ]M\OOXON \̂K]R


MYX^KSXO\]& EŜ O] aSVV ObMOON ^RO]O ]^KXNK\N] Lc \O[_S\SXQ ^RK^ ]O\ S̀MO KXN VYKNSXQ


K\OK] ]RY_VN LO VYMK^ON KaKc P\YW eZ_LVSM S̀Oaf ^Y ^RO Q\OK^O]^ Ob^OX^ ZY]]SLVO KXN


]M\OOXON P\YW KNTKMOX^ Z_LVSM \SQR^]"YP"aKc% \OM\OK^SYXKV ^\KSV OK]OWOX ]̂% KXN Y^RO\


eZ_LVSMf ]ZKMO]& =X KNNS^SYX% Q\Y_XN KXN \YYP̂ YZ WOMRKXSMKV] ]RKVV LO ]M\OOXON _]SXQ


RSQR"[_KVŜ c ]M\OOXSXQ WK^O\SKV] MYWZK^SLVO aŜ R ^RO L_SVNSXQ]% K] NO^O\WSXON Lc ^RO


CVKX 6YWWS]]SYX&


$
2


+
*


#
-


&
&


'
-


0
)1


5
0
1
#
-


&
#


/
&


0
$
2


)+
&


)-
(


0







8bS]̂ SXQ >CI66 ]^KXNK\N&
4


#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


8bS]̂ SXQ >CI66 ]^KXNK\N& 4


8bS]̂ SXQ >CI66 ]^KXNK\N& ERK\ON N\S`OaKc MYXXOM^SYX] WSXSWSdO ^\KPPSM


SWZKM^] ^Y ^RO ]^\OO^ KXN OXKLVO WY\O OPPSMSOX^ _]O YP ZK`ON K\OK] aS^RSX


^RO VK\QO\ NO`OVYZWOX^& EOO KV]Y ZK`OWOX^ ]O^LKMU Z\Y S̀]SYX KLY`O&


4


FRS] MVK\SPSO] ^RO KZZ\YKMR ^Y MKVM_VK^SXQ ^RO ZK\USXQ ]^KXNK\N] PY\ TYSX^


ZK\USXQ PKMSVŜ SO] aS^RSX ^RO >CI66 #SXMV_NSXQ W_V^SZVO"L_SVNSXQ ]Ŝ O] KXN


ZK\USXQ VY^] ^RK^ WKc LO ]ZVS^ Lc P_^_\O VKXN NS`S]SYX] Y\ MYXNY ZVK ]̂$& FRS]


\OPVOM^] ^RO KZZ\YKMR ^Y TYSX^ ZK\USXQ PKMSVS^SO] SX ^RO 6Ŝ c JYXSXQ B\NSXKXMO


EOM& /0"/(,#0$#K$% KXN S] ]SWSVK\ ^Y ^RK^ YP Y^RO\ MYWW_XŜ SO] SXMV_NSXQ ^RO


6S^c YP @KNS]YX& =^ OXKLVO] ]S^O NO]SQX] WY\O ^KSVY\ON ^Y ]ZOMSPSM ZK\USXQ KXN


MS\M_VK^SYX XOON] KXN VKXN]MKZSXQ QYKV]% SWZVOWOX^] ]_]^KSXKLSVS^c QYKV]% KXN


aSVV WSXSWSdO ^RO X_WLO\ YP ObOWZ^SYX] \O[_O]^ON aŜ R P_ _̂\O E=C


]_LWS^^KV]&


FRO WSXSW_W ]SNOaKVU aSN R̂ YP )(" \O[_S\ON PY\ ?K\QO 7O`OVYZWOX^] S]


WY\O KZZ\YZ\SK^O PY\ LSQ"LYbO] KXN PY\ ]S^O] aS^R Y_^NYY\ NS]ZVKc] XOK\ ^RO


L_SVNSXQ3 ^cZSMKVVc -" S] ]_PPSMSOX^ _XVO]] SXNS̀ SN_KV ]S^O XOON] ]_QQO]^


Y^RO\aS]O& 6YX]SNO\K ŜYX PY\ ]KPO ZONO]^\SKX KMMO]] KXN M\Y]]aKVU] ObMOON


^cZSMKV dYXSXQ MYNO ]^KXNK\N] PY\ MYWWO\MSKV ]S Ô]% L_^ S] QYYN NO]SQX


Z\KM^SMO&


4


#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


>CI ??6 Z\YZY]O] *(( E9 S]VKXN] K^ ) PY\ OKMR )* ]^KVV] ^Y L\OKU _Z ZK\USXQ


K\OK] KXN SX^OX]SPc ^RO VKXN]MKZSXQ aŜ RSX ^ROW& FRS] ObMOON] ^RO Y\NSXKXMO


]^KXNK\N YP ) S]VKXN ZO\ *( ]^KVV]% KXN Z\Y S̀NO] PVObSLSVS^c P\YW \O[_S\OWOX^]


PY\ M_\LON WONSKX] KXN VK\QO\ S]VKXN ]SdO]& FRO ?K\QO 7O`OVYZWOX^


\O[_S\OWOX^ ^Y NS̀ SNO ZK\USXQ VY ]̂ aS^R )(" aSNO M_\LON WONSKX] S] WY\O


KZZ\YZ\SK^O PY\ LSQ"LYb ]S Ô] #KXN ZY]O] S]]_O] PY\ ]XYa ZVYaSXQ$3 S]VKXN]


WKc LO WY\O KZZ\YZ\SK^O KXN P_XM^SYXKV YX W_V̂ S"L_SVNSXQ ]S Ô] aŜ R ]WKVVO\


L_SVNSXQ]& =X KNNS^SYX% Y\NSXKXMO ]SdO \O[_S\OWOX^] PY\ S]VKXN] K\O


SXMYX]S]^OX^ #+.( E9 PY\ ?K\QO 7O`OVYZWOX^] KXN ,(( E9 PY\ ]WKVVO\


MYWWO\MSKV ]S Ô]$3 *(( E9 S] WY\O ^cZSMKV YP MYWWO\MSKV NO`OVYZWOX^] SX ^RO


\OQSYX&


9VObSLSVS^c


\O[_O]^ON


#S]VKXN] ]WKVVO\


L_^ WY\O


P\O[_OX^ ^RKX


C5 ' ?Q 7O`


]^KXNK\N$


8bS]̂ SXQ >CI66 ]^KXNK\N&
4


#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


8bS]̂ SXQ >CI66 ]^KXNK\N& 4


FRO -("PYY^ ]ZKMSXQ ^cZSMKVVc \O[_S\ON PY\ ?K\QO 7Ò OVYZWOX^] MKX MYXPVSM^


aŜ R Y^RO\ ]S^O NO]SQX QYKV] ]_MR K] OXRKXMSXQ ]S^O KWOXS ŜO] VSUO ZONO]^\SKX


ZK^R]& 9VObSLSVS^c P\YW ]^\SM^ -("PYY^ ]ZKMSXQ MKX ROVZ WKSX^KSX `S]SLSVS^cYP


Z_LVSM OX^\caKc]% K`YSN _^SVS ĉ OK]OWOX^]% KXN MYWZVc aS^R MVOK\"ZK^R


\O]^\SM^SYX]& #EOO 8bRSLS^ 5$


4


#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


FRO )(" aSN^R \O[_S\ON PY\ ZVKX^SXQ LON] SX ?K\QO 7O`OVYZWOX^] S] WY\O


KZZ\YZ\SK^O PY\ LSQ"LYbO] KXN MKX LO NSPPSM_V̂ ^Y SWZVOWOX^ YX ]S^O] aS^R


L_SVNSXQ] *(%((( ][_K\O POO^ KXN _XNO\&


4


8bS]̂ SXQ >CI66 ]^KXNK\N&
4


#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


8bS]̂ SXQ >CI66 ]^KXNK\N& 4


8bS]̂ SXQ >CI66 ]^KXNK\N&
4


#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


8bS]̂ SXQ >CI66 ]^KXNK\N&
4


#ObMOON] C5


]^KXNK\N]$


?SQR^SXQ ]^KXNK\N] `K\c KM\Y]] dYXSXQ Y\NSXKXMO ]OM^SYX] #PY\ ObKWZVO% EOM&


/0"/(/ \O[_S\O] K WSXSW_W (&* PYY M̂KXNVO] SX ZK\USXQ'MS\M_VK^SYX K\OK]% EOM&


/0"/(,#.$ \OMYWWOXN] (&, ^Y )&( PYY^MKXNVO]% KXN EOM& /0"*(-#))$#P$.X


\O[_S\O] K WSXSW_W YP (&1 PYY^MKXNVO] PY\ ?K\QO 7Ò OVYZWOX^]$& FRS]


]SWZVSPSO] R̂O ] K̂XNK\N PY\ ^RO \OWKSXSXQ >CI66 ]S^O]% aRSVO WKSX^KSXSXQ


RSQRO\ ]^KXNK\N] PY\ NK\U ]USO]&


4


+#
-


&
0
%
#


.
)-


(


ERK\ON 4MMO]] " EŜ O NO]SQX ]RKVV Z\Y S̀NO NS\OM^ MYXXOM ŜYX] ^Y KNTKMOX^ VKXN _]O]%


aRO\O POK]SLVO&


.
#


/
*
)-


(
!


#
%
%
'
0
0


4


ERK\ON KXN @SXSW_W CK\USXQ E^KXNK\N] " IROX ZY]]SLVO% ZK\USXQ K\OK] ]RY_VN LO


]RK\ON Lc KNTKMOX^ _]O\] ^Y WSXSWSdO _XXOMO]]K\c ]^KVV] KXN SWZO\`SY_] ]_\PKMO]&


9Y\ W_V Ŝ"L_SVNSXQ ]S Ô]% ^RO WSXSW_W KXN WKbSW_W ZK\USXQ ]RKVV LO LK]ON YX ^RO


OX^S\O ;7C ]S^O #\K^RO\ ^RKX PY\ OKMR SXNS̀ SN_KV E=C$% ]Y ^RK^ ^RO ^Y^KV ZK\USXQ aSVV LO


KNO[_K Ô PY\ ^RO ]_W ^Y^KV YP ^RO ]OZK\K^O ZK\USXQ XOON] PY\ OKMR _]O N_\SXQ KXc


ZOKU ZK\USXQ ZO\SYN #aS^R K WKbSW_W VSWS^ LOSXQ )*(! YP R̂O WSXSW_W ]^KVV MY_X^ PY\


^RO OX^S\O ;7C ]S^O$& FY NÔ O\WSXO WSXSW_W ZK\USXQ2 #K$ MKVM_VK^SXQ ^RO WSXSW_W PY\


OKMR VKXN _]O YX ]S^O Lc Y\NSXKXMO% #L$ KZZVcSXQ ^SWO"YP"NKc W_V^SZVSO\] ^Y OKMR _]O K]


]RYaX LOVYa% #M$ PSXNSXQ ^RO ]_W ^Y^KV ZK\USXQ PY\ OKMR ^SWO ZO\SYN& FRO WSXSW_W


ZK\USXQ PY\ ^RO ]RK\ON ZK\USXQ PKMSVS^c ]RKVV LO ^RO ]_W ^Y^KV P\YW^RO ^SWO ZO\SYN aS^R


^RO RSQRO]̂ ^Y^KV ZK\USXQ NOWKXN&


CONO] \̂SKX 4MMO]] " CONO]̂ \SKX MY\\SNY\] ^R\Y_QR ZK\USXQ VY^] ]RY_VN ^O\WSXK^O K^


L_SVNSXQ OX^\KXMO] KXN Z\Y`SNO VYQSMKV KXN MYX`OXSOX^ \Y_^O] YP ^\K`OV LO^aOOX


L_SVNSXQ] KXN KM̂ S`S^c MOX^O\]&


4O]̂ RO^SM] " CK\USXQ K\OK] ]RY_VN LO NO]SQXON ^Y RK`O ^RO VOK]^ `S]_KV SWZKM^ K]


ZY]]SLVO YX ^RO VKXN]MKZO& ?Y^] ]RY_VN LO Y\QKXSdON K] ]SWZVO QOYWO^\SM ]RKZO] aS^R


]^\YXQ ONQO] YP VKXN]MKZSXQ Y\ NOMY\K^S`O POXMO]&


CVKX^SXQ] " BZOX ]ZKMO NO]SQX ]RY_VN OXMY_\KQO Y\QKXSM PY\W] KXN XK^_\KVSdON


ZVKX^SXQ Q\Y_Z] ^Y L\OKU"_Z VK\QO ObZKX]O] YP `ORSM_VK\ Y\SOX^ON SWZO\ S̀Y_] K\OK]


KXN L_SVNSXQ WK]]SXQ&


CK\USXQ ?Y^ =]VKXN] " ?KXN]MKZON S]VKXN] \O[_S\ON K^ ) PY\ OKMR )* ZK\USXQ ]^KVV] SX KX


KS]VO% aS^R WSXSW_W ]SdO *(( E9& 9Y\ W_V̂ S"L_SVNSXQ ]Ŝ O]% VKXN]MKZON WONSKX] KXN'Y\


S]VKXN] ]RKVV LO _]ON ^Y M\OK^O NS]^SXM^ ZK\USXQ K\OK] YP XY WY\O ^RKX )(( ZK\USXQ


]^KVV]&


CONO] \̂SKX 4MMO]] " >CI66]S^O] aSVV Z\Y`SNO PY\ ]KPO ZONO]^\SKX KMMO]] aŜ RSX ^RO


NO`OVYZWOX^ KXN MYXXOM̂ SXQ ^Y KNTKMOX^ ]S^O]& ESNOaKVU] KNTKMOX^ ^Y L_SVNSXQ] ]RKVV


LO K WSXSW_W -" aSNO% aS^R KNNS^SYXKV aSN^R \O[_S\ON aRO\O Y_^NYY\ ]^Y\KQO Y\


Y^RO\ _]O] K\O Z\YZY]ON YX ^RO ]SNOaKVU& 6\Y]]aKVU] aSVV LO NS]^SXQ_S]RON aŜ R


ZK`OWOX^ MYVY\% ^Ob^_\O]% KXN'Y\ ]SQXKQO&


CVKX^ EZOMSO] " G]O YP Q\K]]O] KXN PVYaO\SXQ ZO\OXXSKV] K\O OXMY_\KQON K^ Z\YWSXOX^


ZYSX^] YP NO`OVYZWOX^ ZK\MOV] aS^RSX >O^^VO CK\U IO]^ ^Y ]^\OXQ^ROX ^RO Y`O\KVV


QOXO\KV NÒ OVYZWOX^ ^ROWO&


CVKX^ EZOMSO] " EOK]YXKV SX Ô\O]^ SX ^RO PY\W YP XK^S̀ O O`O\Q\OOX ]R\_L] KXN ^\OO] ]RKVV


LO Z\Y`SNON SX VKXN]MKZO ZVKX] KXN OWZRK]SdON SX 5_PPO\cK\N 7O]SQX&


CVKX^SXQ] " IRO\O POK]SLVO% ]S Ô VKXN]MKZSXQ ]RY_VN SXMY\ZY\K^O K \KSX QK\NOX OVOWOX^


^Y SXPSV^\K^O MVOKX \YYP aK^O\ \_X"YPP&


CVKX^SXQ] " ES^O] ]RKVV WOO^ ^RO WSXSW_W ZYSX^ \O[_S\OWOX^] SX 4\^SMVO H= YP R̂O


JYXSXQ 6YNO& 9Y\ ] \̂OO^ P\YX K̂QO ^\OO]% PVObSLSVS ĉ S] KVVYaON ^Y ^RO ]ZKMSXQ% Z\Y S̀NON


^RO ]S^O WOO^] ^RO 6S^c"] ]^\OO^"P\YX^KQO ZYSX^ \O[_S\OWOX^&


CVKX^SXQ] " CVKX ŜXQ LON aSN^R] ]RKVV LO NO^O\WSXON Lc ^RO VKXN]MKZSXQ \O[_S\OWOX^]%


^RO XOON] YP ^RO Z\YZY]ON ZVKX^ ]ZOMSO]% KXN QYYN NO]SQX&


?SQR^SXQ " EŜ O ZVKX] ]RKVV MYWZVc aS^R ^RO MYWWO\MSKV NO`OVYZWOX^ VSQR^SXQ ]̂ KXNK\N]


SX EOM& /0"/(/& FRS] Z\YRSLS^] PSb^_\O Y\SOX^K^SYX] aS^R VSQR^SXQ OVOWOX^] `S]SLVO P\YW


\O]SNOX^SKV Z\YZO\^SO]% ]O^] K WSXSW_W YP (&* PYY^MKXNVO] PY\ ZK\USXQ KXN ^\KPPSM


MS\M_VK^SYX K\OK]% K WKbSW_W YP (&- PYY^MKXNVO] K^ VY^ VSXO]% K WKbSW_W ]Ŝ O K`O\KQO


YP *&, PYY^MKXNVO] #*- PY\ QK] ]^K^SYX Z_WZ]$% KXN K WKbSW_WROSQR^ YP *- POO^& 9Y\


KNNS^SYXKV KO]̂ RO^SM [_KVS^c% ]RSOVNON% NYaXMK]̂ VSQR^] K\O \O[_S\ON KXN ]RY\^O\ ZYVO


ROSQR^] K\O OXMY_\KQON&


CVKX^SXQ] " ?KXN]MKZO POK^_\O ZVKX ŜXQ] ]RKVV LO Z\Y S̀NON K^ `ORSM_VK\ KXN ZONO]^\SKX


OX^\c ZYSX^] ^Y SWZ\Y`O KXN OXRKXMO aKcPSXNSXQ KXN ]S^O VOQSLSVS^c&


CVKX^ EZOMSO] " ?KXN]MKZO ZVKX] ]RKVV Z\Y S̀NO K WSXSW_W YP -( ZO\MOX^ YP KVV ZVKX ŜXQ]


^Y LO XK^S`O ^Y ^RO EY_^R 6OX^\KV IS]MYX]SX DOQSYX&


*KW "/KW /KW ".ZW .ZW "*KW *KW"/KW /KW ".ZW .ZW "*KW


BPPSM O'IK\ORY_]O -! )((! -! (! )(! (!


=XNYY\ EKV O] KXN EO \`S MO] (! 1(! 0(! (! )((! .(!


=XNYY\ 6YWWO \MSKV


8X^O \^KSXWOX^ #XY^ *, RY_\$
)(! /(! )((! *(! /(! )((!


;\Y_Z 7Kc 6K\O 6OX^O\ -! )((! -! (! (! (!


= P K _ ] O Z \Y ZY ] S XQ ] R K\ON Z K\US X Q S ] XY ^ V S ]^ O N K L Y`O % K Z Z V S MK X ^ ] RK V V ] _ L W S ^ ] _ PP S MS O X ^ N K ^K ^Y S XN S MK ^O ^R O


Z \SX MS Z K V Y Z O\K^ SX Q R Y _ \] Y P ^R O _ ] O & 5K ] O N _ Z Y X ^R S ] S X PY \W K^ SY X % ^ RO JY XS XQ 4NW SX S ] ^\K^Y \ ] R K V V NO ^ O\W SX O ^R O


K Z Z \Y Z \S K ^O ]R K \O N Z K \U SX Q \O [_ S \O WO X^ &


IOO UNKc] IOO UO XN]







KPWCC - PD GDP
31 May 2017


Page - 21


Exhibits


Kettle Park West Commercial Center Master Plan for Lots 3, 4, 5 and 7 Dated 05-05-2017 (11 x 17)


Map showing GDP Boundary and Property Owners within 300 feet.


Street Frontage Planting Exhibit







UPDATED MASTER PLAN
EXHIBIT FOR THE GDP AREA,


SHOWING A POTENTIAL
LAYOUT WITH THE NEW


MAXIMUM BUILDING COUNTS











9; D ,/+-/+.,-3


DCP+JA ,/+-/+.,-3


NEW EXHIBIT SHOWING AN EXAMPLE OF
ALTERNATIVE TREE PLACEMENT IF FLEXIBILITY
IS ALLOWED BY THE CITY (AS DESCRIBED IN


TABLE 4 "LANDSCAPING" STANDARDS)







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2017\6-12-17\Planning Info\KPW GDP Memo 6-17.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 5, 2017


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the June 12, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting
Agenda Item for the June 27th (First Reading) and July 11th Common Council
Meetings.


Request by Kettle Park West LLC to approve a General Development Plan (GDP) for Kettle
Park West Commercial Center, Outlot 1, Lots 3, 4, 5 and 7.
The intent of this request is to separate the remaining lots from the original KPWCC General
Development Plan to allow for a more efficient specific implementation plan review process and
include additional exceptions up front that would normally apply to a big box or larger retail site.
The GDP document including requested exceptions are provided along with the ordinance, staff
review and other submittal materials. The provided GDP document is a comparison document to
show what has changed from the originally approved GDP. A public hearing and recommendation
to Council are necessary.







KPWCC - PD GDP  
31 May 2017 


 


Page - 1 


 
 


Kettle Park West Commercial Center 
Planned Development District (PD) 


 
General Development Plan (GDP)  


for Sites 3, 4, 5 and 7 
 


May 31, 2017 
 


  



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
31 May 2017 


 


Page - 2 


 


Table of Contents Page 
Table of Contents ............................................................................................................................... 2 


Statement of Intent ............................................................................................................................. 3 


Compatibility with City Plans .............................................................................................................. 4 
 
 51 x 138 Westside Detailed Neighborhood Plan 
 City 2012 Comprehensive Plan  
 Key Planning Considerations for the Kettle Park West Commercial Center 
 


Project Description ............................................................................................................................. 12 
 
 General Description 


 Management and Maintenance 
 Development Sequence and Phasing 


 Descriptive Statistics and Development Parameters 
 Treatment of Natural Features 
 Relationship to Adjoining Properties and Street Network 
 Rationale for PD Zoning  
 Proposed Site Development Restrictions and Standards 


 Land Use 
 Density and Intensity Standards 
 Bulk Standards 
 General Site and Landscaping Guidelines 


o Principles 
o Site and Building Guidelines 
o Landscaping Guidelines 


Exhibits 


Kettle Park West Commercial Center Master Plan for Lots 3, 4, 5 and 7 Dated 05-05-2017 (11 x 17) 


Map showing GDP Boundary and Property Owners within 300 feet. 


Street Frontage Planting Exhibit  


 



rholloway

Callout

Subsections renamed and reorganized for flow / clarity



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 3 


Statement of Intent 
 
The Kettle Park West Commercial Center (KPWCC) is a 37-acre development on the west side of the City 
of Stoughton at the northwest corner of US Highway 51 (USH 51) and State Highway 138 (STH 138).  
The intent of this General Development Plan (GDP) is to outline the land uses that comprise the 
remaining undeveloped lands within the Commercial Center (Lots 3, 4, 5 and 7), to provide a rationale for 
the Planned Development District zoning, and to describe the development (zoning) standards that will be 
applied within the District. These zoning requirements provide the framework for effectively implementing 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan and address land use, building intensity, site development, architectural 
design standards, and public spaces and amenities. The end goal is to create development parcels that 
will be attractive for new business investment into the community. 
 


Background 


Planning for the Kettle Park West Master Plan began in fall of 2009 and was the impetus for the creation 
of the 51 x 138 Westside Detailed Neighborhood Plan that covers the surrounding 295+ acre area west of 
USH 51 and Hoel Avenue.  In 2012, the Neighborhood Plan was adopted as part of the City of Stoughton 
Comprehensive Plan.  The Westside neighborhood is planned to include a community scale commercial 
center, lots for business and employment opportunities, a diverse mix of housing opportunities supported 
by a new City park and a neighborhood retail center, and over 40 acres of naturalized open space.  The 
KPWCC General Development Plan was adopted for the 37-acre Commercial Center in 2013, amended 
in 2014, and the first commercial sites have begun to develop within the KPWCC.  
 


 
Rationale for Amendments 


This GDP is based on the current GDP for the entire Commercial Center, approved in Ordinance O-29-
2014 adopted by the Stoughton City Council on 25 November 2014, with some modifications.  The 
objectives of this GDP are (1) to update the GDP standards for the remaining undeveloped sites (3, 4, 5 
and 7) based on lessons learned over the first few years of the project, (2) provide a clearer, more 
readable document, and (3) establish effective zoning standards for the remaining undeveloped sites 



rholloway

Callout

General KPW overview and background information moved up from other sections, minor wordsmithing



rholloway

Callout

New content (rationale, specifying GDP scope with fewer sites vs. 2014 GDP)



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 4 


 


within the Planned Development. (This GDP excludes the Walmart and Kwik Trip sites, which have 
already been approved). 


For the remaining undeveloped sites within the KPWCC, this GDP provides clarity to how City zoning 
standards will be applied to smaller-scale developments and sites with multiple buildings, based on the 
developer’s experience with SIP submittals over the first three years of the project. 


Due to the scale of the site and in consideration of the potential for changing economic conditions in the 
real estate market, KPW LLC has prepared this GDP with a degree of flexibility to allow for adaptation to 
new products and consumer expectations.  It is anticipated that changes to the GDP may be warranted 
over time.  It is recognized however, that such future amendments will become effective only after review 
and approval by the City. 


This document has been prepared to satisfy the requirements of the Stoughton City Code Section 78-914 
(7) pertaining to General Development Plans.  The proposed development will be compatible with current 
City and State regulatory standards and administrative policy directives. (Note: The required location 
map, legal description and listing of adjoining Property Owners are included in the Exhibits Section.) 


Compatibility with City Plans 
 
As the project has progressed through development, the vision for the neighborhood has evolved to be 
the cornerstone of the planned mixed-use neighborhood located on the west side of the City of 
Stoughton.   
 
51 x 138 Westside Detailed Neighborhood Plan  
 
The Neighborhood Plan articulates the framework to guide the planning and design for development of 
this key gateway location. The development in this area is planned to be predominantly commercial in 
character along the highway frontages, and transitioning to residential land uses as distance from the 
highways increases.  The table below summarizes the general land uses approved for the Westside 
neighborhood. 
 


Table 1 


51 x 138 West Side Neighborhood Plan 


     


Generalized Land Use  Acres  % 


     


Residential Neighborhoods  78 26% 


(including civic uses)    


Neighborhood Commercial Centers  9 3% 


Community Scale Commercial Uses  46 16% 


Employment Focused Uses  43 15% 


City Utility Substation  4 1% 


Open Space  44 15% 


(including: parks, conservancies and stormwater management)    


Streets and Highway Rights‐of‐Way (ROW)     71    24% 


     


Total 295   


              



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Callout

Compatibility addressed in this section, similar content eliminated from later sections and incorporated here







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 5 


 


 


The proposed KPWCC development is consistent with the neighborhood envisioned and articulated by 
the adopted 51 x 138 Westside Neighborhood Plan and will be an asset to the City of Stoughton.  The 
proposed land uses and infrastructure are critically important first elements for the implementation of the 
City’s long-term management strategy and community goals for this area.   


 
City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan 


As the original Kettle Park West General 
Concept Plan and its companion document, 
the 51 x 138 Westside Neighborhood Plan, 
were the basis for the amendment of the City 
Comprehensive Plan, this proposed General 
Development Plan for Lots 3, 4, 5, and 7 of 
the Commercial Center is consistent with the 
City Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The following general principles were utilized 
as a foundation for preparing the 51 x 138 
Westside Detailed Neighborhood Plan and 
are reflective of the City’s Comprehensive 
Planning Goals and Policies: 
 


 Economic Opportunity: The addition 
of a new neighborhood encourages 
economic prosperity for the 
community by increasing the amount 
of area for new employment 
opportunities, expanding the City’s tax 
base and addressing the market 
needs of City and area residents for 
consumer goods and services.  
 


 Sustainability: Developing a new 
neighborhood on the Westside of the 
community should balance today’s 
economic and social forces against 
the environmental imperatives of 
resource conservation and renewal.  
Sustainable development includes 
and incorporates ecological integrity, 
economic prosperity, and social equity. 
 


 Natural Resources Stewardship: All uses within the neighborhood should minimize their 
environmental impact through well-conceived site planning and attention to maintaining both the 
built environment and naturalized areas. Examples of stewardship activities include: considering 
the use of porous pavement for parking lot surfaces and pedestrian and bike paths, providing bike 
racks and transit stops (when service becomes available) to encourage alternate modes of travel, 
and minimizing light pollution and energy consumption with LED luminaries and “dark sky” 
standards.  Additionally, all uses within the neighborhood (commercial, offices, manufacturing and 
residential) should use appropriate water and waste reduction/recycling techniques, “green” 
products and earth-friendly processes in their operations and inventory to the extent practical. 



rholloway

Callout

These paragraphs moved up from "Key Planning Considerations" section



rholloway

Line







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 6 


 
 Social Equity, Responsibility, and Quality of Life: A new neighborhood provides an expanded 


inventory of housing styles and opportunities for current and future residents, and provides the 
desired elements of the community’s quality of life: walkable, vibrant residential areas, natural 
open spaces, and convenience to shopping, services, work, schools, cultural activities and 
recreation. 


 
Key Planning Considerations for the Kettle Park West Commercial Center 


Kettle Park West generally refers to the 175+/- acre tract located in the northwest quadrant of the USH 51 
and STH 138 intersection.  The Kettle Park West Commercial Center pertains to the approximately 37 
acres in the immediate corner of the intersection. This is part of the 46-acre area designated by the City 
as a Community Scale Commercial Land Use area that extends north along the USH 51 frontage 
including the existing auto dealerships. 


Maximizing Business Development Opportunities 


Stoughton’s commercial property inventory is dominated by small retail shops and reflects the history of 
the business district and its generally successful focus on specialty retail trade catering to visitors to the 
community.  The 2012 retail market analysis prepared by Vierbicher indicates that the mix of retail 
businesses in the City is not addressing the needs of City residents.  Residents are traveling to the 
Madison Metropolitan Area for greater shopping opportunities and spending an estimated $80,000,000 
annually.  


Several factors appear to be contributing to the leakage of consumer spending from the City’s economy.  
This includes a significant portion of the population routinely commuting to Madison to work, the relative 
ease and convenience of the regional highway 
network, more opportunities for comparative 
shopping, and the very limited selection of retail 
goods in Stoughton.  Currently there are few 
business development sites in the City that can 
accommodate stores that support modern retailing 
practices and operations – large format (>60,000 SF) 
or medium format (20,000 SF to 60,000 SF) retail 
buildings.  


The location of the Kettle Park West Commercial 
Center has excellent visibility and accessibility to the 
surrounding market area – characteristics that are 
extremely important to larger scale retail and service 
businesses. 


 



rholloway

Callout

Minor wordsmithing in this section







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 7 


 


Access and Circulation  


The commercial location is well integrated into the existing transportation network within the community 
and is conveniently accessible for consumers traveling on foot or bicycle.  From a regional market 
perspective, this commercial location will be beneficial to the community residents as it will provide 
broader, more diverse local shopping opportunities that will reduce the need to travel to the Madison area 
for day-to-day goods and services. 


The regional highway network serving the site is dominated by USH 51 and STH 138, which adjoin the 
Kettle Park West Commercial Center site on the east and south, respectively.  The Average Annual Daily 
Traffic (AADT) has increased annually in past years, and traffic delays have occurred at intersections 
during peak traffic hours: 


 The AADT on USH 51 based on 2012 counts is 12,700 vehicles per day south of STH 138 and 
8,500 vehicles per day north of STH 138.  Traffic on STH 138 is 6,900 vehicles per day.  
Traffic on both highways was projected by the DOT to increase at a rate of 1.4 percent 
annually.   


 The functionality of the USH 51 x STH 138 intersection, as measured by the calculated Level 
of Service (LOS), had been steadily deteriorating and was rated to be at LOS D for the 
morning peak hour and LOS C for the afternoon peak hour.  The left-turn movement from STH 
138 onto USH 51 was rated a LOS F.  (Note:  Level of Service is a calculated measurement of 
the generalized travel delay that occurs at an intersection.  Though it can vary by rural, 
suburban, or urban settings, street characteristics, and signal sequencing, LOS A is generally 
a 0 to 15 second delay, and comparatively, a LOS F could be a delay of over 60 seconds.) 
Temporary improvements were made in 2016 including additional eastbound left turn lanes 
and signals to improve LOS at the intersection until major reconstruction occurs. 


Improving the traffic circulation and functionality of this intersection of two arterial highways will create a 
significant public benefit for the City and region. The City and FDG have been collaborating with the 
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) to improve this segment of highway. 


The Tax Increment Finance District that has been recently approved for this area will provide a critical 
financing to help achieve these public improvements. 


In addition, the KPWCC integrates bike and pedestrian paths that will connect with the City’s existing bike 
route network and ensure accessibility by multiple modes of travel.  


Utilities 


During the review process for the approved Urban Service Area Amendment, analysis of the City’s water, 
sewer and electric utility infrastructure determined that there were no deficiencies in the City’s capacity to 
serve the proposed Kettle Park West development.   
 
Water service consists of a looped 10 inch main extending from Hoel Street west along STH 138, 
extending north through the Kettle Park West Commercial Center and connecting back to the existing 
water main in Jackson Street.   
 
Sanitary sewer infrastructure extends westerly from Jackson Street with a service main extending into the 
project site.  The next phase of the Kettle Park West development will extend a sanitary interceptor main 
westerly along the new Jackson Street alignment. 
 
The water main and sanitary sewer main was constructed within a public easement that parallels USH 51 
and water main looping along the south and west boundaries of the Commercial Center. 


Electric and natural gas service have been installed by Stoughton Utilities and Alliant Energy. 



rholloway

Callout

This section updated in places to reflect status of roadway plans. Some detail omitted where the engineering plan review process will determine specifics.



rholloway

Callout

Updated wording to reflect current status



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 8 


 


Topography and Stormwater Management 


The general topography of the planning area is gently rolling terrain with surface drainage flowing to a 
small depressional wetland that is located immediately west of the Kettle Park West Commercial Center. 
The closed watershed of this wetland complex encompasses over 184 acres, and includes lands on 
either side of STH 138.  


The Kettle Park West Conceptual Master Plan proposed avoidance of the wetland habitat to maintain it as 
a main visual and recreational amenity for the development. It is envisioned that this wetland habitat will 
be conserved and will have a perimeter walking/bike path to provide an exceptional recreational amenity 
benefiting neighborhood residents, employees, and the community in general.  


A major component of the Capital Area Regional Plan Commission (CARPC) approval of the Urban 
Service Area to serve Kettle Park West revolved around effective techniques to manage stormwater and 
the water quality of run-off that feeds this wetland.  
Since this watershed has no natural outlet, all of the 
stormwater must be contained and infiltrated within 
the basin to reasonably replicate natural (existing) 
conditions.  


The preliminary generalized stormwater management 
plan approved by CARPC includes maximizing 
opportunities for infiltration of “clean” rooftop run-off, 
effective treatment of parking lot run-off to mitigate 
contamination and remove 80% of sediments, 
periodically re-charging the water levels in the 
wetland, and infiltrating 100% of excess stormwater 
run-off.  To accomplish this, site grading within the 
Kettle Park West Commercial Center has been 
designed to collect and treat stormwater from the 
impervious surfaces (parking lots), and convey the 
“treated” water to both the wetland area immediately 
west of the center and to the infiltration basin located 
approximately 800 feet north of Jackson Street.    


The infiltration basin is strategically placed in soils 
with high permeability and will be restored with deep-
rooted prairie and drought tolerant vegetation in 
order to maximize stormwater infiltration and provide 
sustainable wildlife habitat.   


In addition to being an integral component of the 
stormwater management system, this infiltration 
basin is also intended to be managed as a 
community open space amenity providing a 
naturalized environment for the neighborhood and 
passive recreation opportunities for walking and 
wildlife viewing. 


Significant site grading will take place in order to 
accommodate the stormwater management system, 
maintain the ecology surrounding the “kettle” 
wetland, and create viable and functional building 
pads for the commercial uses that are being recruited 
for the KPWCC.   



rholloway

Callout

Minor wordsmithing in this section (primarily to reflect status of wetland/resource planning)



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 9 


 


All of the on-site grading and the stormwater management facilities will be privately constructed by KPW 
LLC and will be operated as a private system, subject to a recorded maintenance covenant that will be 
formulated and approved as part of the stormwater permitting process.  At a future date, as planning for 
other phases of Kettle Park West moves forward, KPW LLC may propose that the stormwater 
management facilities be dedicated to the City of Stoughton as a regional stormwater facility.   


Architectural Character and Sense-of-Place 


From a community design perspective, the KPWCC will be critically important as the west “gateway” to 
the City, as articulated in the 2012 Comprehensive Plan.  Creating and maintaining a distinct edge 
between the nearby “rural landscape” and the City will be achieved by: 


 Assertively managing land use to avoid “strip” commercial development that could stretch along 
the corridor,  


 Establishing strong architectural design expectations for all buildings and uses visible from USH 
51 and STH 138, 


 Creating visual landmarks at the Jackson Street – USH 51 intersection, and at the USH 51 -  STH 
138 intersection, and 


 Installing attractive landscaped environment that both integrates and enhances the naturalized 
open space of the Kettle/wetland into the visual character of the development. 


The transportation network improvements, conservation efforts, and architectural considerations 
described above are all key to the City’s efforts to create “landmark” features and achieve a unique 
identity for this “gateway” location. 


 



rholloway

Callout

Paragraph re-worded for better flow as a section conclusion



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 10 


Project Description 
 
General Description 
Zoning Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.a 
 
The Kettle Park West Commercial Center is envisioned to be an attractive shopping destination for 
Stoughton area residents.  KPW LLC has successfully directed its business recruitment efforts toward 
attracting a diverse mix of users and tenants.  


Located at the intersection of USH 51 and STH 138, KPWCC is the most intense land use proposed 
within the 46-acre community-scale commercial area shown in the Neighborhood Plan (the area that 
includes KPWCC and the existing commercial lands that extend north along the USH 51 frontage.)  With 
this high visibility and accessibility from the two major arterials, the types of uses anticipated for this 
district include businesses focused on customers who typically travel by car and larger-scale retailers and 
service uses that typically require significant area for display of inventory (e.g. car dealerships). This 
commercial location benefits the community in that residents will not need to travel to the Madison 
Metropolitan Area for goods and services.  If the customer so chooses, the location also has an additional 
advantage in that it is accessible by other travel modes such as bicycling and walking.  


The KPWCC has been designed to accommodate a diverse combination of businesses that would be 
attractive to and primarily supported by a “community-scale” market area, as opposed to business 
primarily focused on serving the immediate neighborhood.  The main “anchor” business site within the 
Commercial Center was therefore designed to accommodate the requirements of a medium to large-
format retail business. 


A crucial consideration in the design of the KPWCC is a recognition that real estate markets can change 
modestly or dramatically in the time between planning and implementation, as well after implementation.  
Incorporating flexibility into the plan allows the project and the City to be responsive to market changes.  
Marketing and recruitment experience since 2011 to the present indicates that a simpler, more tailored 
approach to applying zoning standards is needed for the remaining undeveloped parcels in the KPWCC, 
particularly those with multiple smaller-scale buildings.   


The KPWCC Master Plan in the Exhibits section has been updated to illustrate the overall arrangement of 
the development parcels within the KPWCC. To compliment the primary retail site and provide for more 
economic diversity, the KPWCC layout includes additional parcels for retail and service businesses.  
These sites provide opportunities for multi-tenant and smaller-scale retail buildings that would provide a 
variety of consumer goods, convenience retail, entertainment/restaurant and personal/professional 
services. All parcels within the GDP may be subdivided while meeting the underlying Planned Business 
zoning requirements except for where flexibility has been granted. Table 4 addresses provisions for 
flexibility. he vision for the development parcels shown on this GDP Master Plan is described below. 


 Parcel 3: Designed to accommodate up to approximately 30,000 SF of commercial business 
space gross floor area (GFA) with development and building layout dependent on the status of 
the small degraded wetland currently located in the southerly portion of the site.  


 Parcel 4: Intended to accommodate up to 35,000 SF GFA of commercial space housed in up to 3 
buildings.  


 Parcel 5: Intended to accommodate up to approximately 15,000 SF GFA of commercial space 
housed in up to 2 buildings. High quality architectural design is expected to compliment the 
prominent location at the Jackson Street – USH 51 intersection.   



rholloway

Callout

Paragraphs re-worded slightly for clarity and flow. Some language related to Walmart site removed due to site being not part of this GDP.



rholloway

Callout

New language



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Callout

Bullets reworded for clarity, with some adjustments to total (per-parcel) anticipated GFA and building counts. Specific land uses addressed in subsequent section.



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 11 


 


 Parcel 7: Intended to accommodate up to 30,000 SF GFA in up to 5 buildings.  


Table 3 provides a summary of the development proposed for each GDP parcel. 


Note: Parcels 2 and 6 (Walmart and Kwik Trip sites, respectively) were previously developed under the 
2014 City-approved KPWCC GDP, and remain subject to that zoning document. (During initial planning, 
KPW Parcel 1, located west of Walmart, was combined with the Walmart site to enlarge Parcel 2.) 


Management and Maintenance  


The ongoing management and maintenance of the common facilities and spaces within KPWCC is vital to 
the long-term economic viability and sustainability of the development and the adjoining future planned 
neighborhood. These facilities include: the stormwater treatment basin, the pedestrian plaza, commercial 
center signage locations.  


To manage these spaces and to provide oversight of the development and operations of the KPWCC, a 
Business Owner’s Association will be established.  In the interim, KPW LLC will be responsible for 
common area maintenance and will establish and implement an architectural review procedure to ensure 
ongoing compliance with the design guidelines and standards established in this GDP and future site 
plans and Specific Implementation Plans (SIP). 


Development Sequence and Phasing  


The physical development of the KPWCC will be 
accomplished through a series of land divisions 
and construction phasing, due to considerations 
for the timing of purchase agreements with 
underlying property owners and the projected 
development schedules of the various business 
prospects.  KPW LLC anticipates that process will 
entail collaborating with the purchasers of each 
development parcel to formulate Specific 
Implementation Plans (SIPs) which will be 
submitted for City review and approval. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Text Box

See also comparison table attached to this document.



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Callout

Background / explanation added for Parcels 1, 2 and 6.







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 12 


 


Descriptive Statistics and Development Parameters  
Zoning Ordinance Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.b., and c 


Table 2 


Kettle Park West Commercial Center Land Use and Anticipated Occupants 


Parcel  Parcel 
Building 
Size 


Acres 


Projected 
Gross Floor 


Area 


Community Commercial 


2 (Lot 2 CSM 14057)*  General Merchandise  15.49  155,000 


3 (Lot 3 CSM 14057)  Retail/Office/Daycare/Ind. Commercial Ent.  2.48  30,000 


4 (Lot 4 CSM 14057)  Specialty Retail (multi‐tenant center)  3.06  35,000 


5 (Lot 5 CSM 14058)  Financial Services/Office/Retail with drive‐through  1.66  15,000 


6 (Lot 6 CSM 14058)*  Convenience Retail (Fuel and Car Wash)  2.25  8,550 


7 (Lot 7 CSM 14058)  Specialty Retail (multi‐tenant center)  3.81  30,000 


        


Subtotal  28.75  273,550 


Permanently Protected Open Space (not including landscaped area within lots) 


OL 1  Stormwater Treatment  2.72 


OL 2 & 2A  Stormwater Infiltration  3.49 


Future Jackson Street ROW  1.82 


STH 138 Roundabout Approach  0.17       


Total  36.95 


(*) Parcels previously developed and subject to 2014‐approved GDP 
 


Table 3 


Projected Kettle Park West Commercial Center Development Density 


Parcel  Anticipated Building Type and Size  Parcel Area 


Projected 
Floor 
Area 
Ratio 


MAX FAR 
per 


Ordinance 


Projected 
Impervious 
Surface 
Ratio 


Max ISR 
Per 


Ordinance 


   Gross Floor Area (Sq. Ft.)  Sq. Ft.  FAR  FAR  ISR  ISR 


2  1‐3 Buildings (1 Story) *  155,000 674,832 0.23  1.0  75%  75% 


3  1 Building (1 or 2 Story)  30,000 108,163 0.28  1.0  75%  75% 


4  Up to 3 Buildings (1 or 2 Story)  35,000 133,323 0.26  1.0  75%  75% 


5  Up to 3 Buildings (1 or 2 Story)  15,000 72,286 0.21  1.0  75%  75% 


6  Up to 2 Buildings (1 Story) *  8,550 97,873 0.09  1.0  75%  75% 


7  Up to 5 Buildings (1 Story)  30,000 165,983 0.18  1.0  75%  75% 


Total  273,550 1,252,460


(*) Parcels previously developed and subject to 2014‐approved GDP 



rholloway

Callout

Table 2 updated with parcel and target land use descriptions, otherwise the same



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Callout

Table 3 building descriptions revised to reflect potential building counts, and for wording consistency. GFAs and FARs updated.



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 13 


Treatment of Natural Features 
Zoning Ordinance Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.d 
 


Kettle Park West contains wetlands around the 
large kettle pond on the site of the former Mabie 
farm, and a small degraded wetland located to the 
east of the Mabie farm driveway. The large 
wetland area and kettle pond are outside of the 
Commercial Center, though they comprise the 
most substantial natural open space amenity for 
the development. After coordination with the 
WDNR, the avoidance option was pursued for the 
majority of existing wetlands. A disturbance of 
0.23 acres was authorized by the WDNR for the 
smaller degraded wetland (the bulk of which lies 
on Parcel 3). A comprehensive wetland avoidance 
strategy was prepared by Montgomery Associates 
that serves as the framework for managing this 
ecological resource area. Consideration of 
eliminating the small degraded wetland and modifying and rehabilitating the large wetland to create 
additional habitat areas around its perimeter is still under review.    


In order to create viable business sites within KPWCC, and especially to meet the requirements for the 
anchor building site on Parcel 2, the whole site was graded with a substantial volume of fill being placed 
in the westerly portions of Parcel 2.  


As noted in the adopted Neighborhood Plan, it is KPW LLC’s intention to continue to collaborate with the 
City to establish a wetland conservancy park and assist with the rehabilitation of this environmental 
resource.  FDG is confident that with continued strong community support these areas will become an 
asset and a desirable amenity for the planned future neighborhood.  KPW LLC continues to be supportive 
of City efforts to enhance the area as a passive recreation resource. 


Stormwater Management 


The stormwater management system serving the KPWCC consists of on-site privately maintained storm 
sewers which collect roof water and parking lot run-off, a stormwater treatment pond to remove 
suspended solids, an engineered infrastructure system with pumps that “recharges” Mabie Farm 
ephemeral wetlands and discharges the excess water into a 3.5+/- acre system of infiltration basins. 


All regulatory stormwater management requirements will be met, including all City of Stoughton 
requirements per Chapter 10 of the Municipal Code of the City of Stoughton, applicable requirements of 
the Capital Area Regional Planning Commission Resolution No. 2011-5, and Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources Chapters NR 151 and 216.  


Additionally, infiltration of “clean” roof water will be encouraged on all of the development parcels through 
the KPWCC Landscaping Standards.   


 


 


 



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Callout

Some updated language (in yellow) and minor wordsmithing to better reflect current state of wetland/resource planning



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 14 


Relationship to Adjoining Properties and Street Network  
Zoning Ordinance Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.e 
 


Adjoining Properties 


KPW LLC has been collaborating with the City and the owner of the former Kayser Automotive property 
(Baxter Parcel) to coordinate the design and timing of a planned extension of Jackson Street.  Dedication 
of right-of-way and the completion of the planned Jackson Street improvement was a component of the 
annexation agreement relating to the Baxter Parcel. 


KPW LLC is also closely involved with the planning and development phasing of the land lying west of the 
KPWCC project area. As described in the adopted neighborhood plan, this area is intended to become a 
vibrant, walkable neighborhood focused on the intersection of Jackson Street and Oak Opening Drive and 
supported by a variety of housing opportunities and nearby employment.  


Access and Circulation 


Traffic circulation to and from the Kettle Park West Commercial Center will utilize direct access to USH 
51, STH 138, and Jackson Street (extended).  WisDOT approved the access drives to USH 51 and STH 
138.    


KPW LLC conveyed the Jackson Street ROW to the City in conjunction with the annexation of the 
adjacent Baxter Property.  The design for Jackson Street is a 40 foot wide collector street with a sidewalk 
along the south side of the ROW and a 10 foot wide bike path along the north side.  On-street parking 
would likely not be permitted along the KPWCC frontage. 


The KPWCC is linked to the City’s bike route network with a 10 foot bike path being constructed along the 
north ROW of Jackson Street, the west ROW line of USH 51 and the north ROW of STH 138.  Future 
phases of Kettle Park West are anticipated to include extending these paths to Oak Opening Drive with 
linkages to the City’s proposed West Bike Path. 


Within the KPWCC, the vehicle circulation network relies primarily on a private street extending north and 
south through the easterly portion of the site. The private street will be 25 feet wide with curb and gutter.   


A 5 foot wide sidewalk will be constructed along the east side of the private street to provide pedestrian 
access along the full length of Parcels 5, 6 and 7 and connecting to the sidewalk and bike path along 
Jackson Street, USH 51 and STH 138.  A sidewalk is not proposed along the west side of the private 
street except where it may be warranted to provide access to a building with store-fronts facing the 
private street. 



rholloway

Callout

Minor wordsmithing on this page to better reflect current state of infrastructure planning



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 15 


Rationale for PD Zoning 
Zoning Ordinance Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.g 
 


The KPWCC is envisioned to be a catalyst to expand commercial and business opportunities for the City.  
It addition to creating new building sites, the Center promotes an integrated network of streets, bike 
paths, and public spaces that will transition to a future mixed use neighborhood to the west.  The 
coordination of these uses and amenities is only possible through the framework that is created by an 
overall Planned Development Process. 


While the standards for the KPWCC will primarily follow those of the City’s traditional Planned Business 
zoning district, tailoring certain standards would allow a more streamlined and efficient process for 
reviewing designs for individual site plans as they come forward, particularly on sites with multiple 
buildings.  The Planned Development District allows the needed flexibility and coordination between uses 
and infrastructure that the City and KPW LLC need to achieve the design intent articulated in the 51 x 138 
Westside Neighborhood Plan and the objectives of the Comprehensive Plan. 



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Callout

New language added







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 16 


Proposed Site Development Restrictions and Standards 
Zoning Ordinance Citation: 78-914(7)(a)3.i 
 


A. LAND USE 


Except as listed below, all uses, buildings and other improvements that are allowed as permitted uses in 
the Planned Business District under the City of Stoughton Zoning Code are permitted uses, buildings and 
structures within in Kettle Park West Commercial Center.  Conditional uses in the Planned Business (PB) 
District are also permitted in the Kettle Park West Commercial Center, if they are listed below as a 
“targeted” use or are allowed by the City through the Planned Development approval procedures and 
standards in the City of Stoughton Zoning Code. 


Targeted / Priority Land Uses [Refer to Stoughton Code of Ordinances 78-206] 


(4)(a) Office 
(4)(b) Personal or Professional Services 
(4)(c) Indoor Sales or Service 
(4)(g) and/or (8)(g) In-Vehicle Sales or Service  
(4)(h) Indoor Commercial Entertainment 
(4)(m) Group Day Care Center (9+ children) 
 


Prohibited Uses [Refer to Stoughton Code of Ordinances 78-206] 


 (1) Residential Land Uses 
 (2) Agricultural Land Uses 
 (3)(f) Institutional Residential Development 
 (3)(g), (3)(h), and (3)(i) Community Living Arrangement 
 (4)(j) Commercial Animal Boarding 
 (4)(l) Bed and Breakfast Establishment 
 (4)(n) Campground 
 (4)(o) Boarding House 
 (4)(p) Sexually-Oriented Land Uses 
 (5) Storage or Disposal Uses 
 (6) Transportation Land Uses 
 (7) Industrial Land Uses 
 (10)(a) Small Wind Energy System 
 (10)(b) Commercial Wind Energy System 


Prohibited Accessory Uses 


 (8)(a) Upper Story Dwelling Unit 
 (8)(b) Farm Residence 
 (8)(c) Detached Residential Garage, Carport, Utility Shed 
 (8)(m) Migrant Labor Camp 
 (8)(u) Individual Septic Disposal System 
 (8)(w) Caretaker’s Residence 


Prohibited Temporary Land Uses 


 (9)(i) Temporary Shelter Used for Seasonal Storage of Vehicles, Equipment, or Materials 


(Note: Temporary shelter associated with outdoor displays or limited term entertainment events and 
outdoor assembly activities subject to approval by the Kettle Park West Commercial Center Owners 
Association and the City under the provisions of Section 78-906.)  


Additional Prohibited Uses 



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Callout

Revised language on conditional uses, "targeted" land uses now listed in this section instead of elsewhere







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 17 


 Animals, except those that may be involved with a permitted temporary entertainment event. 
 Casino or Bingo Hall. 
 Parking or outdoor storage of any abandoned or inoperable vehicles or equipment.  


 
B.       DENSITY AND INTENSITY STANDARDS 
 
All parcels within the KPWCC will comply with the maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 1.0 and provide a 
minimum of 25% open space, as is typically required of developments in the Planned Business (PB) 
district. However, as parcels may be subdivided in the future for the purpose of managing multi-building 
sites, it is the developer’s intent that open space requirements be applied to the overall GDP parcels as 
currently shown, and not to new lots resulting from land divisions or condominium plats (see Table 4).  
The reason for this is that the open space configuration shown in the KPWCC Master Plan reflects 
the stormwater management and landscaping needs of the overall development, and this configuration 
may or may not align with future subdivisions done for management purposes.  (Note: The term 
“open space” for purposes of this GDP includes lawn, landscaped planting beds, foundation landscape beds, on-site 
stormwater management facilities and vegetated parking lot tree islands. The percentage is calculated as 
a fraction of the total GDP area, net of public dedications, maintained as open space).  
 
 
C. BULK STANDARDS  


All buildings within the KPWCC will comply with the minimum setbacks and maximum building heights 
stipulated in the Planned Business (PB) District under the City Zoning Code. Any applicable WisDOT 
highway standard setbacks would apply to the site as found in Wisconsin Administrative Code – Trans 
233.08(2)(b). 


Only one exemption is requested to bulk standards, to allow a zero setback for pavement where shared 
parking and access drives are approved by the City as part of a Specific Implementation Plan (SIP). See 
Table 4 for more information.  


 


D. GENERAL SITE AND LANDSCAPING GUIDELINES 


The visible façades of buildings are a significant component of the “first impression” and “sense-of-place” 
of a site.  Buildings form visual gateways, edges and backgrounds; their architectural elements and 
choice of building materials create visual character and interest; and their scale or massing contribute to 
the “feel” experienced by visitors and passersby.  Overall site design and specific building details need to 
be integrated to present a unique, inviting and memorable place. 


The desire is to create a commercial area with a “sense-of-place” with visual elements (such as 
architectural features and materials, lighting fixtures, and streetscape and landscaping elements) that 
carry through the entire area.  The desired result is for the KPWCC to be an attractive, convenient, and 
viable “commercial node” providing services and retail goods to the surrounding community, including 
both urban and rural market area. 


Development Guidelines set basic parameters, describe preferences, and illustrate design intent for 
building and site development within the KPWCC.  The following guidelines are a framework within which 
creative design can and should occur: 


Principles 


 Encourage a variety of building types and styles expressed both in large scale (overall building) 
and small scale (architectural features) design elements. 


 Promote interesting, animated architectural features without being thematic or artificial, by 
utilizing a diverse mix of materials applied in a variety of proportions, exposures, and detailing. 



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 18 


 Promote five (5)-sided architecture to avoid unsightly views of large unarticulated building 
elevations; especially side and rear elevations, un-screened roof appurtenances, utility, and 
mechanical features from street ROWs, customer parking areas, and community spaces. 


 Emphasize important wayfinding nodes within the Kettle Park West development by placing 
distinctive architectural elements or interesting façades at prominent locations visible to people 
traveling to the site and moving within the site. 


 Encourage a variety of building heights.   


 Emphasize the pedestrian’s experience with site and architectural features at street level 
(canopies, material details, and vegetation), and by creating comfortable public spaces 
(promenades, plazas, and alcoves, safe pathways, and shaded and open to sky spaces). 


 Minimize and buffer views of service entries, loading facilities and utility and mechanical services. 


 Promote “Green Building” techniques and use of sustainable materials. 


 
Site and Building Guidelines 


The remaining undeveloped parcels in the KPWCC will genereally comply with the City’s zoning standards 
for the Planned Business (PB) District.  Because these are smaller development sites, site plans for 
buildings 20,000 square feet in size and smaller are not subject to review per the Large Development 
standards in Section 78-205(11).  Instead, the following standards are proposed, which incorporate the 
standards from the 2014 GDP, and either meet or exceed the City’s regular commercial site standards.  


Buildings 


The goal of the development is to ensure quality building design throughout the KPWCC. Table 4 
contains the specific standards that will apply to buildings.  Exemption requests may be made for 
individual SIPs based on corporate franchise standards for development.   


Parking & Access 


Parking and access routes within KPWCC will be designed to facilitate safe and easy access for all users, 
and to minimize the amount of pavement needed to accommodate development, in keeping with the 
principles and policy goals noted above.  Table 4 contains the specific standards that will apply to parking 
and access infrastructure.  Minimum and maximum parking standards are proposed to apply to GDP 
parcels as shown on the Master Plan, with shared parking provisions that account for specific land uses 
and their respective hours of peak use. 


Landscaping and Amenities 


Developing parcels within Kettle Park West are encouraged to utilize native and adaptable plant species 
that highlight regional and climatic themes. South Central Wisconsin and the area Southwest of 
Stoughton feature landforms such as the large “Kettle” directly west of the Kettle Park West Commercial 
Center that is consistent with the ecological history of the area.  These open space features contribute to 
the overall character of the site, provide native fauna and flora habitat and encourage natural design 
within the context of the region. 


 


  



rholloway

Callout

This section now contains broad guideline language, requests exemption for buildings <20,000 sf from Large Development standards. All proposed review standards are now in Table 4.



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight







Gross Density 1.0 FAR, no max Bldg size Existing Planned Business (PB) District standard. X


Minimum Lot Size 20,000 sf / 100 ft wide at front setback line Existing Planned Business (PB) District standard. X


Front/Street Building Setback 20 ft Existing Planned Business (PB) District standard. X


Side Setbacks 10 ft (4 ft for accessory buildings) Existing Planned Business (PB) District standard. X


Rear Setback 20 ft Existing Planned Business (PB) District standard. X


Minimum Building Separation 20 ft Existing Planned Business (PB) District standard. X


Driveway Width Maximum 40 ft for commercial Existing Planned Business (PB) District standard. X


Pavement Setback from Lot Line 5 ft (side and rear) / 10 ft (from ROW)


Zero‐foot pavement setbacks are allowed with City approval of site plans 


that feature shared parking and access drives. Rationale: This clarifies an 


existing GDP standard that requires direct connections between sites 


wherever possible. Shared access drives are desirable in areas to boost 


safety on surrounding streets and minimize the number of access points. It is 


common for communities to allow shared parking and access. Stoughton's 


standards for large developments specify that site designs shall provide 


direct connections to adjacent land uses if required (Sec. 78‐705(11)(f)).


Flexibility 


requested


Maximum Building Height 4 floors / 45 ft Existing Planned Business (PB) District standard. X


Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR) 25%


Existing Planned Business (PB) District standard. This is intended to be 


applied to current GDP parcels, though parcels that are subdivided in the 


future for the purpose of managing multi‐building sites may result in 


ownership parcels with less than 25% open space. The open space 


configuration shown in the KPWCC Master Plan reflects the stormwater 


management and landscaping needs of the overall development, and this 


configuration may or may not align with future subdivisions done for 


management purposes.


X


Landscaping and Bufferyards
As required between different zoning 


districts per Sec. 78‐610 (N/A within KPWCC)
Existing Planned Business (PB) District standard. X


Minimum/Maximum Parking


As required for various land uses, with 


provisions for shared parking and access and 


peak‐hour use.


See below. X


While these may not technically apply to Planned Development sites, sites in 


the KPWCC will comply with the Group Development standards requiring (a) 


an adequate number of waste bins, (b) general compliance with the intent of 


the zoning code, and (c) safe pedestrian and bicycle access with connections 


to existing and planned facilities in the surrounding community.


X


Buildings under 20,000 square feet in size shall not be subject to the Large 


Development standards in Sec. 78‐205(11), due to the fact that (a) the City 


has deemed many of them not practical or not applicable for buildings of 


smaller scale within the KPWCC, (b) the number of standards complicate site 


plan reviews for small sites, requiring more exemptions than would 


otherwise be needed, and (c) some standards conflict with other standards 


in the zoning ordinance or could be clearer.  With the standards set by the 


GDP, future SIP submittals will require fewer exemptions, simplifing 


proposals and City staff reviews. 


See below for 


the proposed 


standards and 


how they 


compare to PB 


district and 


large‐ 


development 


standards.


This goes beyond basic site plan standards by incorporating some large 


development criteria in a modified form. Most of the Large Development 


standards for building architectural details are intended to reduce the 


apparent size of big box buildings, and general site plan standards already 


have requirements for architectural variety. This standard provides 


additional requirements (parapets and facades), with consideration for a 


scale appropriate for buildings under 20,000 sf GFA.


X          
(exceeds PB 


standards)


Existing KPWCC standard.
X          


(exceeds PB 


standards)


The standard commercial zoning standards for building materials are nearly 


identical to those of Large Developments.  4‐sided architecture will ensure a 


higher aesthetic quality for KPWCC sites.


X          
(exceeds PB 


standards)


Zoning standards for screening on all commercial site plans are nearly 


identical to those of Large Developments, and consideration of mechanicals 


and the view from trails will ensure a higher aesthetic quality for KPWCC 


sites.


X          
(exceeds PB 


standards)


B
U
LK
 A
N
D
 D
EN


SI
TY


 S
TA


N
D
A
R
D
S


B
U
IL
D
IN
G
S


Group Development standards – Subsection 78‐205(12).


Building Design (Entries) ‐ The primary public entry should be a prominent visual 


feature of a building and easily identifiable from customer parking areas.


Building Materials ‐ KPWCC sites will be subject to the construction material standards 


in Section 78‐716 of the Zoning Ordinance, which requires high quality, decorative 


materials as determined by the Plan Commission. Sites will exceed these standards by 


requiring 4‐sided architecture.


Building Design ‐ KPW sites will comply with City site plan standards in Sec. 78‐908, 


which require consistency and compatibility with nearby properties, as well as 


architectural variety to avoid monotony, with final approval subject to the Plan 


Commission. Buildings smaller than 20,000 SF shall provide parapets of at least 1 foot. 


Ground floor facades that face public streets shall include architectural elements that 


add streetscape variety including clearly defined entryways, transparent windows, 


entry areas, awnings, or other similar features as approved by the Plan Commission.


Screening ‐ KPWCC sites will be subject to the screening standards in Article  VI of the 


Zoning Code (Landscaping Standards), which require screening for parking and loading 


areas, and Article VII (Performance Standards), which require screened trash 


containers.  Sites will exceed these standards by requiring that service and loading 


areas should be located away from “public view” to the greatest extent possible and 


screened from adjacent public rights‐of‐way, recreational trail easements, and other 


“public” spaces. In addition, ground and rooftop mechanicals shall be screened using 


high‐quality screening materials compatible with the buildings, as determined by the 


Plan Commission.


Table 4


KPWCC Planned Development


Building and Site Zoning Standards


Proposed GDP Standards Rationale


Large Development standards ‐ Subsection 78‐205(11).


GDP Meets or 


Exceeds Zoning 


Standards



rholloway

Callout

New table that presents a list of proposed standards, some existing and some new, with justifications (as noted below)







Existing KPWCC standard.
X         


(exceeds PB 


standards)


Existing KPWCC standard. X


Existing KPWCC standard. Shared driveway connections minimize traffic 


impacts to the street and enable more efficient use of paved areas within 


the larger development. See also pavement setback provision above.
X


This clarifies the approach to calculating the parking standards for joint 


parking facilities within the KPWCC (including multiple‐building sites and 


parking lots that may be split by future land divisions or condo plats). This 


reflects the approach to joint parking facilities in the City Zoning Ordinance 


Sec. 78‐704(8)(a), and is similar to that of other communities including the 


City of Madison. It enables site designs more tailored to specific parking and 


circulation needs and landscaping goals, implements sustainability goals, and 


will minimize the number of exemptions requested with future SIP 


submittals.  


The minimum sidewalk width of 10' required for Large Developments is 


more appropriate for big‐boxes and for sites with outdoor displays near the 


building; typically 5' is sufficient unless individual site needs suggest 


otherwise. Consideration for safe pedestrian access and crosswalks exceed 


typical zoning code standards for commercial sites, but is good design 


practice.


X            
(exceeds PB 


standards)


The Large Development requirement to divide parking lots with 10' wide 


curbed medians is more appropriate for big‐box sites (and poses issues for 


snow plowing). On multi‐building sites with smaller buildings, islands may be 


just as appropriate and even more functional. Ordinance size requirements 


for islands are inconsistent (360 SF for Large Developments and 400 SF for 


smaller commercial sites), and 200 SF is more typical of commercial 


developments in the region. In lieu of curbed medians and larger island 


sizes, KPW LLC proposes 200 SF islands at 1 for each 12 stalls to break up and 


intensify the landscaping in parking areas (exceeding the ordinance standard 


of 1 per 20 stalls). 


Flexibility 


requested     


(islands smaller 


but more 


frequent than 


PB / Lg Dev 


standard)


Existing KPWCC standard.
X          


(exceeds PB 


standards)


Existing KPWCC standard. X


The 50‐foot spacing typically required for Large Developments can conflict 


with other site design goals such as enhancing site amenities like pedestrian 


paths. Flexibility from strict 50‐foot spacing can help maintain visibility of 


public entryways, avoid utility easements, and comply with clear‐path 


restrictions. (See Exhibit B)


X          
(exceeds PB 


standards)


The 10' width required for planting beds in Large Developments is more 


appropriate for big‐boxes and can be difficult to implement on sites with 


buildings smaller than 20,000 SF GFA. 
X


Existing KPWCC standard.
X          


(exceeds PB 


standards)


Existing KPWCC standard. X


Existing KPWCC standard.
X          


(exceeds PB 


standards)


Existing KPWCC standard.
X          


(exceeds PB 


standards)


Lighting standards vary across zoning ordinance sections (for example, Sec. 


78‐707 requires a minimum 0.2 footcandles in parking/circulation areas, Sec. 


78‐704(6) recommends 0.4 to 1.0 footcandles, and Sec. 78‐205(11)(f)6n 


requires a minimum of 0.9 footcandles for Large Developments). This 


simplifies the standard for the remaining KPWCC sites, while maintaining 


higher standards for dark skies.


X


Plant Species ‐ Use of grasses and flowering perennials are encouraged at prominent 


points of development parcels within Kettle Park West to strengthen the overall 


general development theme.


Plant Species ‐ Seasonal interest in the form of native evergreen shrubs and trees shall 


be provided in landscape plans and emphasized in Bufferyard Design.


Plantings ‐ Where feasible, site landscaping should incorporate a rain garden element 


to infiltrate clean roof water run‐off.


Plantings ‐ Sites shall meet the minimum point requirements in Article VI of the 


Zoning Code. For street frontage trees, flexibility is allowed to the spacing, provided 


the site meets the City's street‐frontage point requirement. 


Plantings ‐ Planting bed widths shall be determined by the landscaping requirements, 


the needs of the proposed plant species, and good design.


Lighting ‐ Site plans shall comply with the commercial development lighting standards 


in Sec. 78‐707. This prohibits fixture orientations with lighting elements visible from 


residential properties, sets a minimum of 0.2 footcandles for parking and traffic 


circulation areas, a maximum of 0.5 footcandles at lot lines, a maximum site average 


of 2.4 footcandles (25 for gas station pumps), and a maximum height of 25 feet.  For 


additional aesthetic quality,  shielded, downcast lights are required and shorter pole 


heights are encouraged. 


Plantings ‐ Landscape feature plantings shall be provided at vehicular and pedestrian 


entry points to improve and enhance wayfinding and site legibility. 


Plant Species ‐ Landscape plans shall provide a minimum of 50 percent of all plantings 


to be native to the South Central Wisconsin Region.


Aesthetics ‐ Parking areas should be designed to have the least visual impact as 


possible on the landscape.  Lots should be organized as simple geometric shapes with 


strong edges of landscaping or decorative fences.


Plantings ‐ Open space design should encourage organic forms and naturalized 


planting groups to break‐up large expanses of vehicular oriented impervious areas 


and building massing.


Shared and Minimum Parking Standards ‐ When possible, parking areas should be 


shared by adjacent users to minimize unnecessary stalls and impervious surfaces.      


For multi‐building sites, the minimum and maximum parking shall be based on the 


entire GDP site (rather than for each individual SIP), so that the total parking will be 


adequate for the sum total of the separate parking needs for each use during any 


peak parking period (with a maximum limit being 120% of the minimum stall count for 


the entire GDP site). To determine minimum parking: (a) calculating the minimum for 


each land use on site by ordinance, (b) applying time‐of‐day multipliers to each use as 


shown below, (c) finding the sum total parking for each time period. The minimum 


parking for the shared parking facility shall be the sum total from the time period with 


the highest total parking demand.


Parking Lot Islands ‐ Landscaped islands required at 1 for each 12 parking stalls in an 


aisle, with minimum size 200 SF. For multi‐building sites, landscaped medians and/or 


islands shall be used to create distinct parking areas of no more than 100 parking 


stalls.


Pedestrian Access ‐ KPWCC sites will provide for safe pedestrian access within the 


development and connecting to adjacent sites. Sidewalks adjacent to buildings shall 


be a minimum 5' wide, with additional width required where outdoor storage or 


other uses are proposed on the sidewalk. Crosswalks will be distinguished with 


pavement color, textures, and/or signage. 


Pedestrian Access ‐ Pedestrian corridors through parking lots should terminate at 


building entrances and provide logical and convenient routes of travel between 


buildings and activity centers.  


LA
N
D
SC
A
P
IN
G


Shared Access ‐ Site design shall provide direct connections to adjacent land uses, 


where feasible.


P
A
R
K
IN
G
 &
 A
C
C
ES
S


X


2am‐7am 7am‐6pm 6pm‐2am 2am‐7am 7am‐6pm 6pm‐2am


Office/Warehouse 5% 100% 5% 0% 10% 0%


Indoor Sales and Services 0% 90% 80% 0% 100% 60%


Indoor Commercial 


Entertainment (not 24 hour)
10% 70% 100% 20% 70% 100%


Group Day Care Center 5% 100% 5% 0% 0% 0%


If a  use  proposi ng shared parking i s  not l i s ted above, appl icant sha l l  submit sufficient data  to indi cate  the  


principa l  operati ng hours  of the  use. Based upon this  information, the  Zoning Administrator sha l l  determine  the 


appropriate  shared parking requirement.


Weekdays Weekends







KPWCC - PD GDP  
05 May 2017 


 


Page - 21 


Exhibits 
 


Kettle Park West Commercial Center Master Plan for Lots 3, 4, 5 and 7 Dated 05-05-2017 (11 x 17) 


Map showing GDP Boundary and Property Owners within 300 feet. 


Street Frontage Planting Exhibit 


 


 


 


 


 



rholloway

Highlight



rholloway

Highlight







rholloway

Text Box

UPDATED MASTER PLAN EXHIBIT FOR THE GDP AREA, SHOWING A POTENTIAL LAYOUT WITH THE NEW MAXIMUM BUILDING COUNTS











ABK 03/13/2017


KJY/RH 03/13/2017



rholloway

Text Box

NEW EXHIBIT SHOWING AN EXAMPLE OF ALTERNATIVE TREE PLACEMENT IF FLEXIBILITY IS ALLOWED BY THE CITY (AS DESCRIBED IN TABLE 4 "LANDSCAPING" STANDARDS)







Parcel Anticipated Land Uses Acres


Projected 


Gross Floor 


Area (2017)


Projected 


Gross Floor 


Area (2014)


Net GFA 


Change 2014‐


2017 Anticipated Land Uses (2014 GDP)


2 General Merchandise 15.49 155,000 155,000 0 General Merchandise


3 Retail/Office/Daycare/Ind. Commercial Ent. 2.48 30,000 30,000 0 Retail/Office


4 Specialty Retail (multi‐tenant center) 3.06 35,000 24,000 ‐11,000 Specialty Retail


5 Financial Services/Office/Retail with drive‐through 1.66 15,000 20,000 5,000 Financial Services with drive‐through


6 Convenience Retail (Fuel and Car Wash) 2.25 8,550 8,550 0 Convenience Retail (Fuel and Car Wash)


7 Specialty Retail (multi‐tenant center) 3.81 30,000 36,000 6,000 Specialty Retail (multi‐tenant center)


TOTAL 28.75 273,550 273,550 0


Retail / Land Use Comparison (2017 GDP vs. 2014 GDP)



rholloway

Text Box

A COMPARISON OF FLOOR AREA BY LAND USE TYPE, AS REQUESTED BY CITY STAFF (NOTE: OVERALL GFA IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 2014 GDP FOR THE KPWCC AS A WHOLE, AND ACTUAL RETAIL SQUARE FOOTAGE PER SITE WILL DEPEND ON THE USERS SUCCESSFULLY RECRUITED TO THE KPWCC)















[- 1 -]


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


June 7, 2017


JSD Professional Services, Inc.
Rachel Holloway
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101
Verona, WI. 53593


Dear Ms. Holloway:


I have completed a review of the proposed Planned Development - General Development Plan
(GDP) rezoning for the Kettle Park West Commercial Center lots 3, 4, 5 & 7. This general
development plan excludes the already approved sites for the Walmart Supercenter (Lot 2) and
Kwik Trip (Lot 6). A public hearing is set for the Planning Commission meeting of June 12, 2017.


1. General Development Plan requirements per zoning code section 78-914(7) are as follows:
A. A location map of the subject property as depicted on the planned land use map shall be


provided. Provided
B. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the


subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property. N/A


C. A general description of the general development plan including:
a. General project themes and images; Provided
b. The general mix of dwelling units and/or land uses; Provided
c. Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described


by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio;
Provided


d. General treatment of natural resources; Provided
e. General relationship to nearby properties and streets; Provided
f. The general relationship of the project to the comprehensive plan. Provided
g. A statement of rationale as to why the PD zoning is proposed which identifies


barriers the applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard zoning
districts and opportunities for community betterment the applicant suggests are
available through the proposed PD zoning; Provided


h. A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met and which will be
more than met by the proposed PD and the locations in which they apply and a
complete list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed
PD and the location in which they apply shall be identified, as compared with
the most comparable zoning district. (In this case, the PB – Planned Business
zoning district) Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to provide the







[- 2 -]


plan commission with information necessary to determine the relative merits of
the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit and in regard to the
mitigation of potentially adverse impacts created by design flexibility.
Provided


i. A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the
requirements of the most comparable zoning district, in the following order:
Large development regulations are applicable where compliance may be
achieved as outlined in the GDP document.


a) Land use exemptions: None requested


b) Density and intensity exemptions:


o The intent is that required open space be applied to the
individual lots (3, 4, 5 and 7) even if subdivided in the
future.


c) Bulk exemptions:


o Pavement setback at 0 feet for shared parking and access
drives while code requires 5 feet from side and rear
property lines;


o Large development standards shall not be applicable to
buildings under 20,000 square feet or less except for those
standards listed as meeting the standard.


d) Landscaping exceptions:


o Large development standards shall not be applicable to
buildings under 20,000 square feet or less except for those
standards listed as meeting the standard;


o Parking lot landscape islands shall be a minimum of 200
square feet in area at 1 island per 12 stalls.


e) Parking and loading requirements exceptions:


o Large development standards shall not be applicable to
buildings 20,000 square feet or less except for those
standards listed as meeting the standard.


D. A general development plan drawing shall be provided with at least the following
information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for approval:


a. A conceptual site drawing of the general land use layout and the general
location of major public streets and/or private drives; Drawing provided


b. Location of recreational and open spaces areas and facilities; Provided as part
of the detailed neighborhood plan process


c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate area
of all development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape
surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans
required by the plan commission or common council; and Provided


E. A general conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate
locations of foundation, street, yard, paving and landscaping. Provided


F. A general signage plan for the project, including all project identification signs and
concepts for public fixtures and signs, such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street







[- 3 -]


sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or common
practices. Signage shall be site specific during SIP approval process. Public fixtures
are not applicable.


G. Written justification for the proposed planned development. The applicant shall use the
requirements of the zoning map amendment procedure (subsections 78.903(4) (c) 1
through 3) to develop said written justification. Provided


The process for review and approval of the GDP shall be identical to that for zoning
map amendments per section 78-903 of this chapter and (if land is to be divided) to
that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision per the Municipal Code.


All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final
common council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall
be permitted. The common council may extend this five years period by up to five
additional years via a majority vote following a public hearing. Completed portions of
the PD/GDP shall retain the PD/GDP status.


2. Large development in this case is defined as follows: Large scale retail and/or commercial
development: An area of land comprising one or more contiguous parcels or building sites for
a single enterprise or multiple enterprises engaged primarily in retail sales and/or commercial
services, the area of which is subject to a coordinated plan of building placement where the
cumulative size of the building or buildings housing enterprises that are or will be engaged in
retail sales and/or commercial services exceeds 20,000 square feet of gross floor area,
including both display and enclosed storage areas, and where one or both of the following
conditions exist:


A. The parking area is or will be served by an integrated system of off-street vehicular
parking benefiting all or substantially all improvements within such area.


B. The area is or will be subject to reciprocal access rights benefiting all or
substantially all improvements within such area.


All parcels will need to meet the appropriate large development regulations as set forth in
section 78-205(11) (f) except for approved exemptions.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Michael P. Stacey


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


s:\planning\mps\developments\kettle park west\gdp amendments\gdp request 5-11-17\kpwcc gdp amend review letter 5-23-17.doc





		9a-O-7-2017-KPW GDP Ordinance Attorney Dregne approved 6-12-17.pdf

		9b-Exhibit A - KPW GDP.pdf

		9c-Kettle Park West  GDP.pdf






0621171536


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approving a Condominium Plat for Kettle Park West Commercial Center - Lot 7


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: R-97-2017 Date Introduced: June 27, 2017


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:


RECITALS


A. A condominium plat titled “Kettle Park West - Lot 7 Condominium” (the “Plat”), a copy
of which is attached as Exhibit A was submitted by JSD Professional Services, Inc. (the
“Applicant”) to the City of Stoughton (the “City”) on April 14, 2017.


B. The Plat was referred to the Plan Commission for public hearing, review and
recommendation to the City Council.


C. The Plan Commission has reviewed the Plat for consistency with the City of Stoughton
ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of Stoughton Comprehensive
Plan and has recommended approving the Condominium Plat as presented.


D. The Common Council has reviewed the Condominium Plat and the Plan Commission’s
recommendation, and has determined that the Plat is consistent with the City of Stoughton
ordinance, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of Stoughton Comprehensive
Plan.







0621171536


RESOLUTION


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the Condominium Plat
named Kettle Park West – Lot 7 Condominium as presented.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Mayor Donna Olson Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\KPWCC Lot 7 Condo Resolution.docx







0621171536


Exhibit A







0621171536







0621171536







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2017\6-12-17\Planning Info\KPW Lot 7 Condo Memo 6-17.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 5, 2017


To: Planning Commissioners


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the June 12, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting
Agenda Item for the June 27, 2017 Common Council Meeting


Request by JSD Professional Services for approval of a condominium plat at Kettle Park
West Commercial Center, Lot 7.
The applicant plans to create a 5 lot condominium for KPWCC Lot 7. This condominium has
already been created without City approval because the applicant did not know of the approval
process requirement. The plat meets the land division ordinance requirements. The applicant
would like to run the preliminary and final plat process concurrently. The preliminary plat requires
a public hearing and a recommendation to Council is necessary.







06
07171


5
3


0


E
x


hibit
A







06
07171


5
3


0







06
07171


5
3


0







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday June 12, 2017 at
6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, at the Public Safety Building, Second
Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a proposed preliminary
condominium plat for Lot 7, Kettle Park West Commercial Center. Lot 7 is proposed to accommodate
up to 5 building sites.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development
at 608-873-6619.


Additional information including a location map can be found at:
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/


Published May 4, 2017 and May 11, 2017 Hub


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Plats\KPWCC Condo PP Notice for Planning.doc















S HEE T TITLE:


S HEE T NUMBE R:


OCFKUQP!TGIKQPCN!QHHKEG


161 HORIZON DRIVE, SUITE 101
VERONA, WISCONSIN 53593


719/959/6171!RJQPG!"719/959/3366!HCZ


JSD PRO JECT NO.:


DESIGN:


DRAWN:


APPRO VED:


DAT E:


ALTHOUGH EVERY EFFORT HAS BEEN M ADE
IN PREPARING THESE PLANS AND CHECKING


THEM FOR ACCURACY, THE CONTRA CTOR
AND SUBCONTRACTORS MUST CHECK ALL


DETAIL AND DIME NSIONS OF THEIR TRADE
AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAME.


P LAN M ODIF ICATIONS:


S EAL /S IGNAT URE :


S ERV ICES PROVIDED TO:


P RO JECT :


P RO JECT LO CAT ION:


"BUILDING RELATIONSHIPS WITH A
COMMITMENT TO CLIENT SATISF ACTION


THROUGH TRUST, QUA LITY AND EXPERIENCE"







S HEE T TITLE:


S HEE T NUMBE R:


OCFKUQP!TGIKQPCN!QHHKEG


161 HORIZON DRIVE, SUITE 101
VERONA, WISCONSIN 53593


719/959/6171!RJQPG!"719/959/3366!HCZ


JSD PRO JECT NO.:


DESIGN:


DRAWN:


APPRO VED:


DAT E:


ALTHOUGH EVERY EFFORT HAS BEEN M ADE
IN PREPARING THESE PLANS AND CHECKING


THEM FOR ACCURACY, THE CONTRA CTOR
AND SUBCONTRACTORS MUST CHECK ALL


DETAIL AND DIME NSIONS OF THEIR TRADE
AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAME.


P LAN M ODIF ICATIONS:


S EAL /S IGNAT URE :


S ERV ICES PROVIDED TO:


P RO JECT :


P RO JECT LO CAT ION:


"BUILDING RELATIONSHIPS WITH A
COMMITMENT TO CLIENT SATISF ACTION


THROUGH TRUST, QUA LITY AND EXPERIENCE"















































































































































































EXHIBIT B



















S HEE T TIT LE:


S HEE T NUM BER:


OCFKUQP TGIKQPCN QHHKEG


161 HORIZON DRIVE, SUITE 101
VERONA, WISCONSIN 53593


,&-%-*-%+&,& ?6>=3 K,&-%-*-%((++ 4/F


JSD PRO JECT NO.:


DESIGN:


DRAWN:


APPRO VED:


DAT E:


ALTHOUGH EVERY EFFORT HAS BEEN MADE
IN PREPARING THESE PLANS AND CHECKING


THEM FOR A CCURACY , THE CONTRACTOR
AND SUBCONTRACTORS MUST CHECK ALL
DETAIL AND DIMENSIONS OF THEIR TRADE


AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAM E.


PL AN M ODIF ICATIONS:


S EAL/S IGNATURE :


S ERV ICES PRO VIDED TO:


PRO JECT:


PRO JECT LOCAT ION:


"BUILDING RELATIONSHIPS WITH A
COMMITMENT TO CLIENT SATISFACTION


THROUGH TRUST, QUALITY AND EXPERIENCE "







S HEE T TIT LE:


S HEE T NUM BER:


OCFKUQP TGIKQPCN QHHKEG


161 HORIZON DRIVE, SUITE 101
VERONA, WISCONSIN 53593


,&-%-*-%+&,& ?6>=3 K,&-%-*-%((++ 4/F


JSD PRO JECT NO.:


DESIGN:


DRAWN:


APPRO VED:


DAT E:


ALTHOUGH EVERY EFFORT HAS BEEN MADE
IN PREPARING THESE PLANS AND CHECKING


THEM FOR A CCURACY , THE CONTRACTOR
AND SUBCONTRACTORS MUST CHECK ALL
DETAIL AND DIMENSIONS OF THEIR TRADE


AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAM E.


PL AN M ODIF ICATIONS:


S EAL/S IGNATURE :


S ERV ICES PRO VIDED TO:


PRO JECT:


PRO JECT LOCAT ION:


"BUILDING RELATIONSHIPS WITH A
COMMITMENT TO CLIENT SATISFACTION


THROUGH TRUST, QUALITY AND EXPERIENCE "







M SS 1/23/2017


M SS 1/23/2017


ISSUED BID 03/03/2017


DANE COUNTY REVISION 03/16/2017


ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTIO N 03/23/2017


L= _4238_389885_ GZJ _389885 FRQ GR FV 0gzj. F322 O rw 9 Ry h udo o V lwh Sod q. 51 451 4239 6 =27 =36 SP







M SS 1/23/2017


M SS 1/23/2017


ISSUED BID 03/03/2017


DANE COUNTY REVISION 03/16/2017


ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTIO N 03/23/2017


L= _4238_389885_ GZJ _389885 FRQ GR FV 0gzj. F422 O rw 9 Ry h udo o Ju dglqj ( HF Sod q.5 1 451 4239 6 =2; =37SP



















M SS 1/23/2017


M SS 1/23/2017


ISSUED BID 03/03/2017


DANE COUNTY REVISION 03/16/2017


ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTIO N 03/23/2017


SHEET


OF


D
A


T
E:


P
R


O
JE


C
T


#
:


D
R


A
W


N
:


C
H


E
C


KE
D


:


T
H


IS
D


R
A


W
IN


G
H


A
S


B
E


E
N


P
R


E
P


A
R


E
D


B
A


S
E


D
O


N
IN


F
O


R
M


A
T


IO
N


P
R


O
V


DI
E


D
T


O
A


D
S


U
N


D
E


R
T


H
E


D
IR


E
C


T
IO


N
O


F
TH


E
S


IT
E


D
E


S
IG


N
E


N
G


IN
EE


R
O


R
O


T
H


E
R


P
R


O
J


EC
T


R
E


P
R


E
S


E
N


T
A


T
IV


E
.


TH
E


S
TI


E
D


E
S


IG
N


E
N


G
IN


E
E


R
S


H
A


L
L


R
E


V
IE


W
T


H
IS


D
R


A
W


IN
G


P
R


OI
R


TO
C


O
N


S
T


R
U


C
T


IO
N


.
IT


IS
T


H
E


U
L


T
IM


A
T


E


R
E


S
P


O
N


S
IB


IL
TI


Y
O


F
T


H
E


S
I


T
E


D
E


S
GI


N
EN


G
IN


E
E


R
TO


E
N


S
U


R
E


T
H


AT
T


H
E


P
RO


D
U


C
T


(
S


)
D


E
P


IC
T


E
D


A
N


D
A


L
L


A
S


S
O


C
IA


T
E


D
D


E
T


A
IL


S
M


E
E


T
A


LL
A


P
P


L
IC


A
B


L
E


L
A


W
S


,
R


E
G


U
LA


T
IO


N
S,


A
N


D
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


R
E


Q
U


IR
E


M
E


N
T


S
.


46
4


0
T


R
U


E
M


A
N


B
LV


D
H


IL
L


IA
R


D
,


O
H


43
0


2
6


1
-8


0
0


-7
3


3
-7


4
7


3


R
E


V
D


R
W


C
H


K
D


E
S


C
R


IP
T


IO
N


0
2


-2
8


-1
7


V
L
W


D
A
F


U
P


D
A
T


E
D


L
A


Y
O


U
T


K
P


W
L
O


T
#
7


M
A


D
IS


O
N


,
W


I


06
-0


8-
1


6
D


H
C


1
48


3
43


5


S
A


M


3


ACCEPTABLE FILL MATERIALS: STORMTECH MC-4500 CHAMBER SYSTEMS


PLEAS ENOTE:


1. THE LIST ED AA SHTO DESIGNATIONSA RE FOR GRADATIONS ONLY. THE STONE MUST ALSO B E CLEAN, CRUSHED, ANGULAR. FOR EXAMPLE, A SPECIFICATION FOR #4 STONE WOULD S TATE: "CLEAN, CRUSHED,
ANGULAR NO. 4 (A ASHTO M 43) S TONE ".


2. S TORM TECH COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS ARE MET FOR 'A ' LOCATION MA TERIALS WHE N PLACED AND COMPA CTE D IN 9" (230 m m) (MAX) LIFTS USING TWO FULL COVERAGES WITH A VIB RA TORY COMPACTOR.
3. WHERE INFILTRATION SURFACES MAY BE COMPROMISED BY COMPA CTION, FOR ST ANDARD DESIGN LOA D CONDITIONS, A FLAT S URFACE MAY BE ACHIE VED B YRAK ING OR DRAGGING WITHOUT COMPACTION


E QUIPMENT. FOR SPECIAL LOAD DESIGNS, CONTACT S TORM TECH FOR COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS.


NOTES:


1. MC-4500 CHA MBERS SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREME NTS OF ASTM F2418 "STANDARD SPECIFICA TION FOR POLYP ROP YLENE (PP) CORRUGATED WALL STORMWATE R COLLECTION CHAMBERS".


2. MC-4500 CHA MBERS SHALL BE DESIGNE D IN A CCORDANCE WITH A STM F2787 "S TANDA RD PRACTICE FOR STRUCTURAL DESIGN OF THERMOPLASTIC CORRUGA TED WALL STORMWATE R COLLECTION CHA MBE RS ".


3. "ACCE PTABLEF ILL MATERIALS" TABLE ABOVE PROV IDES MATE RIAL LOCATIONS, DESCRIPTIONS ,GRADATIONS ,A ND COMPA CTION RE QUIRE MENTS FOR FOUNDA TION, EMBEDM ENT,AND FILL MATERIALS.


4. THE SITE DESIGN ENGINEER IS RES PONSIB LE FOR A SSE SSING THE BEARING RESISTA NCE (A LLOWABLE BE ARING CAPA CITY) OF T HE SUBGRADES OILS AND THE DEPTH OF FOUNDATION S TONE WITH


CONS IDERATION FOR THE RA NGE OF E XPE CTED SOIL MOISTURECONDITIONS.


5. ONCE LAYER 'C' IS PLACED, ANY SOIL/MATERIA L CAN BE PLACED IN LAYE R 'D' UP TO THE FINISHED GRADE. MOST PA VEM ENT SUBBASE SOILS CAN BE USED TO REPLACE THE MA TERIA L RE QUIRE MENTS OF LAYE R 'C'


OR 'D' AT THE S ITE DE SIGN E NGINEER'S DISCRETION.


6. PE RIMETER STONE MUST BE EX TENDE D HORIZONTALLY TO THEE XCAVA TION WALL FOR BOTH V ERTICAL A ND SLOP ED EXCAVAT ION WALLS .


MATERIAL LOCATION DESCRIPTION
AASHTO MATERIAL
CLASSIFICATIONS


COMPACTION / DENSITY
REQUIREMENT


D


FINAL FILL: FILL MA TERIAL F OR LAYER 'D' S TARTS


FROM T HE TOP OF THE 'C' LAY ER TO THE BOTTOM
OF FLEXIBLE PAVEMENT OR UNPAVED FINISHED
GRADE ABOV E. NOTE THAT PAVEME NT SUBBA SE
M AY BE PART OF THE 'D' LAYER


A NY SOIL/ROCK MATE RIALS, NATIV E SOILS, OR PER
E NGINE ER'SPLANS. CHECK PLANS FOR P AVE MENT


SUB GRADE REQUIREMENTS.
N/A


PREPARE P ER SITEDES IGN ENGINEE R'S PLANS.
PAVED INS TALLATIONS MAY HAVE STRINGENT
MATERIAL AND P REPARAT ION REQUIREMENTS.


C


INITIAL FILL: F ILL MAT ERIAL FOR LA YER 'C'


STARTS FROM THE TOP OF THE EMB EDMENT
STONE ('B' LA YER) TO 24" (600 mm) ABOVE THE
TOPOF THE CHA MBER. NOTE THAT PAVEMENT
SUBBASE MAY BE A PART OF THE 'C' LAYER.


GRA NULAR WELL-GRADED SOIL/AGGREGATE MIXTURE S, <35%


FINES OR PROCESSED AGGREGATE.


MOST PAV EMENT SUBBASE MATE RIALS CAN B E USED IN LIE U
OF THIS LAYE R.


AA SHTO M145_


A -1, A-2-4, A-3


OR


A ASHTO M43 _


3, 357, 4, 467, 5,56, 57, 6, 67, 68,7, 78,8, 89,
9, 10


BEGIN COMP ACTIONSA FTER 24" (600 m m) OF
MA TERIAL OVER THE CHAMBERS IS REACHE D.


COM PACT ADDITIONAL LAYERS IN 12" (300 mm)
MAX LIFTS TO A MIN. 95%PROCTOR DE NS ITY FOR


WELL GRA DE D MATERIAL AND 95% RELA TIV E
DENSITY FOR PROCESS ED AGGREGATE


MATERIA LS.


B
EMBEDMENT ST ONE: FILL SURROUNDING THE
CHAMBERSFROM T HE FOUNDATION STONE ('A'
LA YER) TO THE 'C' LAYER A BOVE .


CLEAN, CRUSHED, ANGULAR S TONE
A ASHTO M43 _


3, 4


A
FOUNDATION STONE: FILL BELOW CHAMBE RS
FROM T HE SUBGRADE UP TO THE FOOT (BOTTOM)


OF THECHAMBE R.


CLEAN, CRUSHED, ANGULAR S TONE A ASHTO M43 _


3, 4
PLATE COM PACT OR ROLL TO ACHIE VE A FLAT


PROC> @B- ` a


24"
(600 mm) MIN*


7.0'
(2.1 m)
MAX


12" (300 mm) TYP100" (2540 mm)


A DS GEOSY NTHETICS 601T NON-WOVEN GEOTE XTILE ALL AROUND
CLE AN,CRUS HED, ANGULA R STONE IN A & B LAYE RS


S UBGRADE SOILS
(SEE NOTE 4)


PA VEME NT LAYER (DESIGNED
BY SITEDES IGN ENGINEE R)


M C-4500
END CAP


12" (300 mm ) MIN


12" (300 mm) M IN 9"


(230 mm) MIN


D


C


B


A


PERIMETER STONE


(SE E NOTE 6)


EX CAV ATION WA LL
(CAN BE SLOPE D OR VERTICAL)


* TO BO TTO M O F FLEXIBLE PA VEM ENT. FO R U NPAV ED


INSTALLATIO NS WH ERE RUTTIN G FR OM VEH ICLES M AY O CC UR ,


INC REA SE CO VER TO 30" (750 mm ).


60"
(1525 mm)


DEPTH OF STONE TO BE DE TERMINED
BY SITE DESIGN ENGINEER 9" (230 mm) M IN


NO COM PACTION REQUIRED.


SHEET


OF
D


A
T


E
:


P
R


O
JE


C
T


#
:


D
R


A
W


N
:


C
H


E
C


K
E


D
:


T
H


IS
D


R
A


W
IN


G
H


A
S


B
E


E
N


P
R


EP
A


R
ED


B
A


S
E


D
O


N
IN


F
O


R
M


A
T


IO
N


P
R


O
V


ID
E


D
TO


A
D


S
U


N
D


E
R


TH
E


D
IR


E
C


T
IO


N
O


F
TH


E
S


TI
E


D
E


S
IG


N
E


N
G


IN
E


E
R


O
R


O
T


H
E


R
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


R
E


P
R


ES
E


N
TA


T
IV


E
.


T
H


E
S


IT
E


D
E


S
IG


N
E


N
G


IN
E


E
R


S
H


AL
L


R
E


V
IE


W
T


H
IS


D
R


A
W


IN
G


P
R


IO
R


T
O


C
O


N
S


T
R


U
C


TI
O


N
.


IT
IS


T
H


E
U


LT
IM


A
T


E


R
E


S
P


O
N


S
BI


IL
IT


Y
O


F
T


H
E


S
IT


E
D


E
S


IG
N


E
N


G
IN


E
E


R
T


O
E


N
S


U
R


E
T


H
A


T
T


H
E


P
R


O
D


U
CT


(S
)


D
E


P
IC


T
E


D
A


N
D


A
L


L
A


S
S


O
C


IA
T


ED
D


ET
A


IL
S


M
E


E
T


A
L


L
A


P
P


L
IC


A
B


LE
LA


W
S


,
R


E
G


U
L


A
TI


O
N


S
,A


N
D


P
R


O
JE


C
T


R
E


Q
U


IR
E


M
E


N
TS


.


4
64


0
T


R
U


E
M


A
N


B
L


V
D


H
IL


L
IA


R
D


,O
H


43
0


26
1


-8
0


0
-7


33
-7


47
3


R
E


V
D


R
W


C
H


K
D


E
S


C
R


IP
T


IO
N


02
-2


8
-1


7
V


L
W


D
A


F
U
P


D
A
T


E
D


L
A


Y
O


U
T


K
P


W
L


O
T


#7


M
A


D
IS


O
N


,W
I


0
6-


0
8


-1
6


D
H


C


1
4


83
4


3
5


S
A


M
4


8
60


-5
2


9
-8


1
8


8
~


8
8


8-
89


2
-2


6
9


4
~


W
W


W
.S


TO
R


M
T


E
C


H
.C


O
M


D
e


etn
tio


n
R


et
e


n
tio


n
W


a
et


r
Q


ua
ilt


y


INSPECTION & MAINTENANCE


STEP 1) INSPE CT ISOLA TOR ROW FOR SEDIMENT
A. INSPECTION PORT S(IF PRESENT)


A.1. REMOVE/OPEN LID ON NYLOP LAST INLINEDRAIN
A.2. REMOVE AND CLEAN FLEXS TORM FILTER IF INS TALLED
A.3. USING A FLASHLIGHT AND STA DIA ROD,M EASURE DE PTH OF SEDIMENT AND RECORD ON MAINTE NA NCE LOG
A.4. LOWER A CAMERA INTO ISOLATOR ROW FOR VISUA L INSP ECTION OF S EDIME NT LEVELS (OPTIONAL)


A.5. IF S EDIME NT IS AT, OR ABOVE, 3" (80 mm) PROCEED TO STEP 2. IF NOT, PROCEED TO STEP 3.
B. ALL ISOLATOR ROWS


B .1. REMOVE COV ER FROM STRUCTUREA T UPS TRE AM END OF IS OLATOR ROW
B .2. USING A FLASHLIGHT , INSPECT DOWN THE ISOLATOR ROW THROUGH OUTLET PIPE


i) MIRRORS ON POLES OR CA MERAS MA YB EUSE D TO AVOID A CONFINED S PACE ENTRY


ii) FOLLOW OSHA REGULA TIONSFOR CONFINED SPACEE NTRY IF ENTERING MANHOLE
B .3. IF S EDIME NT IS AT, OR ABOVE, 3" (80 mm) PROCEED TO STEP 2. IF NOT, PROCEED TO STEP 3.


STEP 2) CLEAN OUT ISOLATOR ROW USING THE JETVA C PROCE SS


A. A FIX ED CULVE RT CLEANING NOZZLE WITH REAR FACING SPREAD OF 45" (1.1 m) OR MORE IS PREFERRED
B. APPLY MULTIPLE PAS SES OF JETV AC UNTIL BACKFLUSH WAT ER IS CLE AN
C. VACUUM S TRUCT URE SUM P AS REQUIRED


STEP 3) RE PLACE ALL COVERS, GRATES, FILT ERS, AND LIDS; RE CORD OBSERVATIONS AND ACTIONS.


STEP 4) INSPE CT AND CLEAN BASINS AND MANHOLES UPS TREAM OF THE STORMTE CH S YST EM.


NOTES


1. INS PECT EVE RY 6 MONTHS DURING T HE FIRST YEAR OF OPE RA TION. ADJUST THE INSP ECTION INTERVA L BASED ON PREVIOUS
OBSERVATIONS OF SE DIMENT ACCUMULAT ION AND HIGH WATER E LE VAT IONS.


2. CONDUCT JETTING AND VACTORING ANNUALLY OR WHEN INSPECTION S HOWS THA T MAINTENANCE IS NECESSARY.


SUMP DE PTH TBD B Y
SITE DE SIGN E NGINE ER


(24" [600 mm] MIN RECOMMENDED)


24" (600 mm ) HDPE ACCESS PIPE REQUIRE D


USE F ACTORY PRE-CORED END CAP
PART #: MC4500REPE 24B C


TWO LAYERS OF ADS GEOSY NTHETICS 315WTM WOVEN


GEOTEXTILE B ETWEEN FOUNDA TION STONE AND CHAMBERS
10.3' (3.1 m) M IN WIDE CONTINUOUS FABRIC WIT HOUT SEAMS


CATCH BA SIN
OR


MANHOLE


COV ER PIPE CONNECTION TO E ND
CAP WITH ADS GEOSYNTHETICS601T


NON-WOVEN GEOTEX TILE
MC-4500 CHA MBER


MC-4500 END CA P


MC-4500 ISOLATOR ROW DETAIL
NTS


OPTIONA L INSPECTION PORT


STORMTECH HIGHLY RECOM MENDS
FLEX STORM PURE INS ERTS IN ANY UP STREAM


STRUCTURE SWITH OP EN GRATES


MC-4500 CHAMB ER


18" (450 mm) MIN WIDTH


CONCRETES LAB
8" (200 mm ) MIN THICKNES S


PAVEME NT


FLEXSTORM CATCH IT
PART# 6212NY FX


WITH USE OF OPEN GRA TE


12" (300 mm) NYLOPLAS T INLINE
DRAIN BODY W/S OLID HINGED
COVER OR GRA TE


PART# 2712A G6IP*
SOLID COVER: 1299CGC*
GRATE: 1299CGS


CONCRETE COLLAR NOT REQUIRED
F OR UNPAVED APPLICATIONS


6" (150 mm) INS ERTATEE
PART# 6P26FBST IP*


INSERTA TEE TO B ECENTERED
IN V ALLEY OF CORRUGA TIONS


MC-4500 6" INSPECTION PORT DETAIL
NTS


6" (150 mm) SDR35 PIPE


CONCRETE COLLAR


* THE PART# 2712AG6IPKIT CAN BE


USE D TO ORDER A LL NE CESSA RY
COMPONENTS FOR A SOLID LID
INSP ECTION P ORT INSTALLATION


8
6


0
-5


2
9-


8
18


8
~


8
88


-8
9


2
-2


6
9


4
~


W
W


W
.S


T
O


R
M


T
E


CH
.C


O
M


D
et


e
nt


io
n


R
e


et
nt


io
n


W
at


e
r


Q
ua


li
ty


L= _4238_389885_ GZJ _389885 FRQ GR FV 0gzj. F624 G HW DLO V .5 14514239 6=76 =34 SP











CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


April 17, 2017


JSD Professional Services
Todd Buhr
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101
Verona, WI. 53593


Dear Mr. Buhr:


I have completed a review of the proposed Kettle Park West – Lot 7 Condominium, Stoughton, WI -
Plan submitted 4/14/17. A public hearing is scheduled for the June 12, 2017 Planning Commission
meeting. The preliminary and final plat will run concurrently.


1. The property at Kettle Park West Commercial Center – Lot 7, Stoughton, WI is zoned PD –
Planned Development.


2. The proposed condominium is intended to create 5 building sites with common parking areas.


3. The condominium plat meets the requirements of the City of Stoughton land division ordinance
and Wisconsin Statutes Chapter 236.


4. The General Development Plan for lot 7 will need to be amended to allow 5 building sites prior to
approval of the condominium plat.


5. If approved, the condominium plat will need to be recorded at Dane County Register of Deeds and
a copy provided to the Department of Planning & Development.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Okejcgn R/ Uvceg{


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


s:\planning\mps\developments\kettle park west\kpwcc lot 7 condo request\condo review .doc





		10a-R-97-2017-KPWCC Lot 7 Condo Resolution.pdf

		10b-Kettle Park West - Lot 7 Condo.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to work with Wisconsin Department of
Transportation Officials to incorporate certain items into the State RAB (Roundabout) Project – ID


5845-01-06/07 at WIS 138 and Hoel/Silverado Intersections


Committee Action: Public Works Committee approved 4-0


Fiscal Impact: $85,000


File Number: R-101-2017 Date Introduced: June 27, 2017


WHEREAS, The Wisconsin Department of Transportation has programmed highway improvements
that will install roundabouts on USH 51 at STH 138 West and at Hoel Avenue/Silverado Drive; and


WHEREAS, the City desires to upgrade certain aspects of the construction project to enhance the
appearance of this entrance to the City; and


WHEREAS, the City desires to upgrade the roundabout center landscaping to be similar to the
roundabout as part of Kettle Park West at an estimated cost of $60,000; and


WHEREAS, the City desires to upgrade the medians to colored concrete to be similar to the roundabout
as part of Kettle Park West at an estimated cost of $25,000; and


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton directs the proper city official(s)
to work with DOT officials to incorporate upgrades to their USH 51 Roundabout Project at STH 138
West and Hoel Avenue/Silverado Drive that include landscaping of the center roundabout ($60,000),
colored concrete medians ($25,000) and colored concrete crosswalks in the islands ($5,000) into the
project plans for the 2021 (that may be advanced to 2020) project.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Council Resolution-DOT Roundabout Project.docx







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  June 6, 2017 


 


To:  Public Works Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: State RAB (Roundabout) Project – ID 5845-01-06/07 


  WIS 138 and Hoel/Silverado Intersections 


 


The DOT continues to work on plans to install two roundabouts on USH 51; one at 


Hoel/Silverado and one at STH 138 West.  As part of this project planned for 2021 (could be 


advanced to 2020), the City has some decisions to make about possible upgrades to this project 


at the City’s expense and are outlined below. 


 


Off Roadway Shared-use Path – This 10-foot wide asphalt path will be required to be maintained 


by the City through a maintenance agreement similar to the path installed adjacent to Kettle Park 


West - Commercial Center.  A grass terrace of about 5 feet will separate the path from the curb 


and gutter.  No upgrade expense for the City but on-going maintenance will be the City’s 


responsibility.  No recommended upgrades for this item. 


 


Lighting – The DOT will fund basic street lighting for this project similar to the lighting found 


near the Kettle Park West RAB.  Any upgrades will require funding by the City.  No 


recommended upgrades for this item. 


 


Roundabout Center Landscaping – The basic level of installation at DOT expense is 4 inches of 


topsoil and turf grass that would be cut about 2 times per year.  The center of the roundabout as 


part of Kettle Park West did include landscaping.  Any upgrade in landscaping must be designed, 


funded and maintained by the City.  I have included the landscaping plan used as part of Kettle 


Park West to consider.  I have attached pictures of the recently completed landscaping at the 


Kettle Park West roundabout.  The approximate cost to landscape the Kettle Park West 


roundabout was $30,000.  Staff recommends matching the landscaping plan used for the 


Kettle Park West roundabout for each of these new roundabouts at an estimated cost of 


$60,000. 
 


Colored Concrete Crosswalks: The DOT does not fund coloring of concrete crosswalks.  If the 


City wants to upgrade to colored crosswalks in the islands it is estimated by the DOT to cost an 


addition $2,500 to $5,000.  Colored crosswalks were not included in the islands of the RAB for 


Kettle Park West.  Colored concrete street crossings are not proposed as part of this project and 


1 of 10



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





will be a City expense if desired.  Staff recommends no upgrades to colored crosswalks in the 


islands of the roundabouts; similar to the Kettle Park West roundabout. 
 


Colored Concrete Islands: The DOT plan is for the islands to be asphalt.  The estimated cost to 


upgrade these island areas to colored concrete is approximately $25,000.  Staff recommends 


upgrading the island areas to colored concrete at an estimated cost of $25,000. 
 


Trees: The median width in areas of this project would allow the installation of trees at the 


expense of the City.  The City would need to identify the tree species and locations subject to 


DOT approval.  Staff recommends no upgrades at this time but consider possible tree 


plantings at a future date. 
 


Wayfinding signs: At City expense, wayfinding signs can be added to the project subject to DOT 


approval.  Staff recommends no upgrades at this time but consider possible tree plantings at 


a future date. 
 


Other issue: The SWAC owner is very concerned about the change to access his heavily used 


facility.  The DOT has heard from the owner, but initially they believe the SWAC facility access 


is accommodated satisfactorily as planned. 


 


Some of the potential upgrade items may be able to down by a City contractor after the DOT 


work has been completed but it will require a DOT issued work on right-of-way permit.  These 


items could include the center RAB landscaping, tree planting, and wayfinding signs. 


 


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 


 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Public Works Committee 6-6-2017 - RAB Project.docx 


2 of 10







WISDOT/CADDS SHEET 42


EHWY: COUNTY:


$$....designfile....$$FILE NAME : $$...plottingdate...$$ $$.....plotscale.....$$PLOT SCALE : PLOT DATE : PLOT BY : $$...plotuser...$$


2


PROJECT NO:5845-01-76/77  US 51  DANE      


PLOT NAME :                      


2


STANDARD ROUNDABOUT TREATMENTS SHEET 


SCALE, FEET
0 60 120 


Roundabout Truck Apron (Colored Red)


Concrete Median (No Color)


Concrete Landings
Aphalt Multi-Use Path with


Grass Median


3 of 10







4 of 10







5 of 10







6 of 10







7 of 10







8 of 10







9 of 10







10 of 10







Public Works Committee
Tuesday June 20, 2017 @ 6:00 PM
Hall of Fame Room, 381 E Main St


Members Present: Alderpersons Pat O’Connor, Greg Jenson, Michael Engelberger and Mayor
Olson


Absent/Excused: Sid Boersma


Staff: Director of Public Works Brett Hebert, Planning Director Rodney Scheel, and Vickie Erdahl


Guests: Charles Vervoot,


Call to Order: Jenson called the meeting to order


1) Communications: Hebert reported:


 That twelve manholes on Main St (Page to Van Buren) will be replaced the week of June 26-
30th. This project is being done by the St. Department and Stoughton Utilities.


 Cummins has received three quotes for the boardwalk structure for Virgin Lake. The wood for
this project will come from the ash trees that were taken down and are currently being stored.
The frame for the boardwalk will be paid for from a grant that the Cummins Community
Involvement Team awarded the city in the amount of $15,000.00 toward the project.


 Lake Kegonsa water levels are high despite the fact that the city has been letting out as much
water as the DNR permit allows. Dane County asked that the City, with DNR approval, go
below the permit level no to go below a river height at the Forton St of 5’5”. The DNR has
allowed the City to bring water levels down for 24 hours in order for Dane County to study the
situation. Readings are done at the Forton St Bridge. There has been some issues with high
water levels downstream of the Fourth St Dam but the Town of Dunkirk controls that area.


 Scheel stated that curb/gutter has been installed on Henry, Harrison, Giles and Park Streets.
with the first binder for paving being done the week of June 26, 2017. Scheel also stated that
there will be a discussion for a project change on Giles St for water services. There will be a
public hearing in several weeks for the eight properties involved.


 Mayor Olson stated she was working with several business to get different signage in the City.
Scheel stated that signs can’t be placed in the DOT right away and if allowed, the have to be a
certain type and size.


2) Reports: Erdahl stated there has been an average amount of street openings for this time of
the year and that nearly 800 permits have been sold since the opening of the site which is
above the previous years’ sales.


Old Business:


3) Public Works Facility Update: Hebert stated that the City is moving forward with Angus
Young. Hebert and Scheel are meeting with Angus Young on Tuesday, June 27 and a
timeline will be developed for the design portion of the process. The city is working with the
resident to purchase the property adjacent to the current property. Council will need to
approve funding for the construction of the building in the 2018 CIP budget. If all goes to plan,
construction should begin in the spring of 2018.







New Business:


4) Approve May 16, 2017 Meeting Minutes: Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Engelberger
to approve the minutes. Motion carried 4-0 (with Mayor voting yes)


5) Change Meeting Time to 4:30 Discussion and Possible Action: Hebert stated there was a
conflict with another committee who needed to change their meeting time due to time conflicts
with new members and the Mayor would like to be able to attend both meetings. The Public
Works Meeting would remain on the third Tuesday of each month but would like a time change
from 6:00 PM to 4:30 PM.


Motion by Engelberger, seconded by O’Connor to allow the change in the meeting time.
Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes).


6) Initial Discussion Regarding Design Considerations for Gjertson St Reconstruction:
Scheel stated that Gjertson St is slated for reconstruction in 2018 and presents multiple
challenges on each side of the street for this one block (Main St to Hamilton St). Scheel is
seeking input when designing the initial concept to present to property owners. Issues
include:


 Street is 48 feet wide – normal street width is 38/39 feet
 Dollar General has a loading area next to the street
 Grade issues on each side of the street
 Drainage
 Several properties with mature trees near the road
 Hair Salon with angle parking up to the street


Scheel has presented an initial concept as follows:


 narrows the street to 39 feet
 allow a six foot terrace
 sidewalks on each side
 Eight feet parking on both sides
 Eleven feet travel lanes
 dedicated right turn lane at Main Street


The committee discussed the challenges and recommended that staff follow the current city
ordinances and policies when designing roadway.


Motion by Engelberger, seconded by O’Connor to approve the initial concept to
proceed for the preliminary design and follow the sidewalk policy. Motion carried 4-0
(with the Mayor voting yes).


7) Update on the USH 51 Roundabout Project (Hoel Ave/Silverado Dr and STH 138 West):


Scheel stated the DOT is working on plans for the roundabouts at Hoel/Silverado and STH
138 which will be installed 2020 or 2021. The City can decide to make possible upgrades to
the project at cities expense. Scheel proposes the following:


 Off Roadway Shared-use Path. This is a ten foot asphalt path the will be maintained by
the city through a maintenance agreement – No recommended upgrades


 Lighting – the DOT funds basic lighting for the project – No recommended upgrades
 Roundabout Center Landscaping. DOT would install four inches of topsoil and turf


grass. If the city wants to upgrade the design, funds and maintenance will be the cities







responsibility. – Recommends matching the landscaping plan used for Kettle
Park West roundabout at an estimated cost of $60.000.


 Colored Concrete Crosswalks. The DOT doesn’t fund coloring concrete. – Staff
recommends no upgrades to colored crosswalks in the islands of the
roundabouts.


 Colored Concrete Islands.DOT plans to do the islands with asphalt. – Staff
recommends upgrading the island areas to colored concrete at an estimated
cost of $25,000.


 Trees. The median width would allow for trees at the cities expense and the DOT
would have to approve the species and locations. – No recommended upgrades at
this time but maybe in the future.


 Wayfinding signs: Would be at city expense and subject to DOT approval. – No
recommended upgrades.


Another issue is the SWAC owner is concerned about access to his facility as the roundabout
at Silverado Dr would prevent people from turning left onto Hoiby Rd to enter the facilities
parking lot if they are traveling west on HWY 51 and would have to use the entrance on
Dvorak Ct. The owner of the facility has contacted the DOT with his concerns, but, the DOT
feels he has adequate access.


PW Committee feels that Scheel should continue supporting/working with the business owner
regarding this issue.


Motion by O’Connor seconded by Engelberger to recommend to the Common Council
to work with the Wisconsin Department of Transportation Officials for the plans for the
RoundAbouts at Hoel/Silverado Dr and STH 138 as presented. Motion carried 4-0 (with
the Mayor voting yes).


8) Discussion and Recommendation Regarding the Youth Center Pedestrian Crossing
Location: Hebert had met with the Youth Center Director who had concerns for the kids
crossing Main St. The kids seem to cut through a private property and cross east of the
railroad tracks. For safety purposes Greg requested that a solar crosswalk be installed. The
cost of the sign and to install would be $8,300.


The committee was concerned about the crosswalk being so close to the railroad tracks.
There are no stop bars at this location. Drivers heading east might stop to close to the tracks
or actually be caught on the railroad tracks if there were multiple cars at the same time.


Committee directed staff to look at more options and place the issue on the July agenda.


9) Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Planting of City Trees on Private
Property (Ordinance 10-2): Hebert stated that Alderperson Majewski wanted this issue
discussed stating that the city should not plant on private property. Hebert would like to table
this issue and send to the Tree Commission Committee for discussion and also stated that he
is meeting with the City Attorney on Thursday, June 29th to discuss the Ordinance and private
planting.


ITEM TABELED.


10) Future Agenda Items: PW Facility Update , Youth Center Crosswalk, Ordinance 10-2
(Terrace Trees)







Moved by O’Connor, seconded by Engelberger to adjourn the meeting at 7:42 pm.
Motion carried 4-0. Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant –
6/21/17





		14a-R-101-2017-RAB Council Resolution-DOT Roundabout Project.pdf

		14b-RAB Project @ Hoel Ave with attachments.pdf

		Insert from: "Draft RAB Landscaping Plan.pdf"

		Title Sheet

		General Notes

		Project Overview

		Typical Sections

		Construction Details

		Intersection Details

		Pavement Grades

		Erosion Control

		Storm Sewer

		Landscape Plan

		Permanent Signing

		Lighting Plan

		Pavement Markings

		Traffic Control

		Alignment Details

		Miscellaneous Quantities

		Plan & Profile

		Standard Detail Drawings

		Sign Plates

		Earthwork Data

		Cross Sections





		14c-PW Min June 20, 2017.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing a reduction in the amount of the TIF Guarantee Letter of Credit provided by McFarland
State Bank (relating to the Kettle Park V/est commercial center).


Finance Committee: (meets June27)


Fiscal Impact: None


FileNumber: R-103-2017 Date Introduced: June27,2017


CITY OF STOUGHTON 381 E. MAIN STREET STOUGHTON \ryISCONSIN


Recrrals


i. The City is holding Letter of Credit No. 50340, in the amount of $4,848,705.00, issued by
McFarland State Bank (the Letter of Credit), to secure certain tax increment guarantee obligations of
Kettle Park West, LLC under the Second Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake
Development (Kettle Park West Development) entered into as of the 9th day of June, 2015.


2. The Memorandum of Understanding between the City and Kettle Park West, LLC, dated June 9,
2015 (the '.MOU"), sets forth the methodology required for reducing the Letter of Credit.


3. City staff has determined that new construction in the Kettle Park West Commercial Center has
generated a valuation increase, as of January 1,2016, that will generate tax increment totaling
5242,014.00 each year (See Exhibit A). After deducting $15,000 for administrative expenses, the
City will receive tax increment of $227,0I4.00 each year, based on the January 1,2016 assessed


value alone (See Exhibit A).


4. The City has used a two-step process to finance TIF funded public improvements for the Kettle Park
V/est Commercial Center. The first step was the issuance of Note Anticipation Notes. The second
step will be the issuance of a refunding obligation in October 2018, to convert the short-term Note
Anticipation Notes to a longer-term obligation. The Note Anticipation Notes will be repaid using a
combination of tax increment received by the City in 2017 and 2018, and the proceeds of the
Refunding Obligation. As described in Section 3 above, the City will have net increment in the
amount of $454,02 8.12 available in October 201 8 to apply toward payment of the Note Anticipation
Notes.


5. Springstead has determined that, after applying available tax increment, and adding issuance costs,
the amount of the refunding proceeds to be borrowed in October 2018 will be $4,440,000.00. (See


Exhibit B). Springstead has further estimated that the total principal and interest to be paid on the
refunding obligation will be $5,896,193.33. (See Exhibit B)


6. BasedontheJanuary l,2016valuationincrementalone,andcreditingtheCitywith$15,000peryear
in Administrative Expenses, the Kettle Park V/est Commercial Centerwill generate 5227,014.06per
year, or 53,632,224.96,that will be available to pay debt service on the refunding obligation.
Consequently, pursuant to the MOU, the Letter of Credit may now be reduced by the difference
between $5,589,193.33, and 53,632,224.96, resulting in a new letter of credit amount of
52,263,968.37. (See Exhibit B).







RpsoluroN


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the amount of Letter of Credit
No. 50340, issued by McFarland State Bank, may be reduced to $2,263,968.37.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor


Council Action:


Date


Override Vote


3CL6927







l* t, e/T 4 /a ?tr* r-, r¡oi 2- lO3'ZO I 7


City of Stoughton
Kettle Park West TIF 7 Forecast
02t21t17


TID
Year


Assessment
Year


Revenue
Year Construction


Projected
lncrement AV


lncremental
Rate


Annual
lncremental


Tax Revenue
0
1


2
3
4
5
6
7
B


I
10
11


12
13
14
15
16
17
1B


19
20


2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2A34


2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035


10,174,400
6,496,390


16,670 ,780.00


10,174,400
16,670,780
16,670,790
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780
16,670,780


0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568
0.023786568


242,014.06
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64
396,540.64


7,379,745.58







lrora,, f 7; Zu*'-uno't ¡-= 7þ tZ -¿ag *Za¿ 7 ¿þ't '/ 2)


City of Stoughton, Wl
KPW Phase I Letter of Credit Resizlng


7-lun-17


2017 lncrement
Less Citv Admin Expenses


2017 Net lncrement


Assume 2018 Net lncrement Same


TotalTlD lncement Available to Reduce 2018 Refunding


20L5 NAN Refunding Proceeds Needed


Plus Cost of lssuance


Sub-Total


Less TID lncrement Available
201-8 Refundine lssue


Projected Total 2018 Refunding Debt Service
Less Proiected Net TID lncrement (2019-2024)


Resized Letter of Credit


s


s


5 242,014.06


s (1s,000.00)


5 227,014.06


227,014.06


454,028.L2


4794895.83


99L32.29


4894028.L2


s ø54,O28.t2)
S 4.44o.ooo.oo


S 5,896,t93.33
S ß,632,224.961
S 2.262.96s.37







ívrrrrr f n Z.æ-uT/ay' t*'¿3*æ Ù (/''"¿ Ð


S pringsted
Proiected 2018 Refundine


FiscalYear


20L9


2020


202r
2022
2023


2024


2025


2026


2027


2028
2029


2030


203L
2032


2033
2034


TOTAL


Annual
Debt Service


$ 369,243.33


$ 367,380.00


$ 367,380.00


$ 366,975.00


$ s21,092.50


$ 369,715.00


$ 367,890.00


$ 370,465.00


$ 367,287.50


$ 368,180.00


$ 368,025.00


$ 366,843.75


$ 369,572.50


$ a71,305.00


$ 367,278.75


$ 367,560.00


S s,896,193.33


Annual


Net TID lncrement


5 227,0!4.06


5 227,0t4.o6


5 zz7,014.06


$ zz7,o'J.4.06


S zz7,ot4.o6


5 227,014.06


5 227,014.06


s 227,014.06


S zz7,ot4.o6


5 zz7,ot4.o6


5 227,0t4.06


5 227,0L4.06


S zz7,oL4.o6


5 227,0L4.o6


S zz7,oL4.o6


S 227,oL4.06


s 3,632,224.96


Annual


Surplus/(oeficit)


s (142,229.271


s (140,365.94)


s (140,36s.94)


s (139,960.94)


S (144,079.441


S (142,700.94]|


S (14o,97s.94]'


s (143,450.94)


s (140,273.441


s (14L,165.94)


S (141,010.94)


S (139,829.69)


s (L42,558;441


$ (144,29O.94J


s (140,264.69)


S (140.s4s.94)


5 (2,263,968.37)







C I T Y OF STOUGHTON, 381 E . Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMOM COUNCIL- AMENDED 
Approving a Memorandum of Understanding and other matters relating to the implementation of the 
Kettle Park West Development Agreement. 


File Number: R-86-2015 Date Introduced: June 9, 2015 


The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, resolves as follows: 


R E C I T A L S 


A. The City of Stoughton (the "City") and Kettle Park West, LLC (the "Developer") are parties to 
the Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development (Kettle Park West 
Development) entered into as of November 13, 2014, which may be replaced and superseded 
by a Second Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development (Kettle Park West 
Development) entered into as of June 9, 2015 (collectively the "Agreement"). 


B. Section D. 4. of the Agreement requires Developer to provide a letter of credit (the "Letter of 
Credit") to the City, and allows for the amount of the Letter of Credit to be reduced under 
certain circumstances. The City and Developer have prepared the Memorandum of 
Understanding attached as Exhibit A to set forth in greater detail the parties' understanding 
and agreement regarding the amount of the Letter of Credit required by Section D.4. of the 
Agreement, and the procedure that wil l apply to calculating reductions of the Letter of Credit, 
in order to implement the Agreement. 


RESOLUTION 


The Memorandum of Understanding attached as Exhibit A is approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are hereby authorized to execute the Memorandum of Understanding on the City's behalf. 


The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a 
meeting held on June 9, 2015. 







Council Action: [3 Adopted Failed Vote ~1 ""VP mCUIjaiL V l l t X ^ 


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 


Donna Olson, Mayor Date 


Council Action: Override Vote 







Exhibit A


Memorandum of Understanding


L:\DOGS\005649\000829\RESOLUTION\36 W 6024. DOC


0604151547







~c~op~
Memorandum of Understanding


Kettle Park West Development


Tax Increment Guarantee Letter of Credit


June 9, 2015


1. Background Information. The City of Stoughton (the "City"} and Kettle Park
 West, LLC


(the "Developer") are parties to the Amended and Restated Agreement to
 Undertake


Development {Kettle Park West Development) entered into as of Novembe
r 13, 2014 {the


"Agreement"), which may be replaced and superseded by a Second 
Amended and


Restated Agreement to Undertake Development (Kettle Park West Dev
elopment} entered


into as of June 9, 2015 (Collectively the "Agreement"}. Section D. 4. of 
the Agreement


requires the Developer to provide a letter of credit (the "Letter of Credit") to t
he City, and


allows far the amount of the Letter of Credit to be reduced under certain ci
rcumstances.


2. Purpose. The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to set Earth in 
greater


detail the parties' understanding and agreement regarding the amount of the 
Letter of


Credit required by Section D.4. of the Agreement, and the procedure that will apply 
to


calculating reductions of the Letter of Credit, in order to implement the Agreement.


3. Definitions. The terms used in this Memorandum of Understanding that are defined in


the Agreement shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. .


4. An~aunt and, fo~^m of Initial Letter o, f CNedit.


A. Under section D.4.{b} of the Agreement, the amount of the initial and each


renewed or .replacement Letter of Credit is required to equal the ~ total principal


and interest payments on all remaining Annual Debt Service payments on City


Borrowing. The City intends to sell Note Anticipation Notes on or about


September .22, 2015. The City intends to pay the Note Anticipation Notes in


approximately October 2018, using a combination of Actual Tax Increment held


by the City at that time, and the proceeds of a Refunding Obligation to be issued


by the City. The City Borrowing shall initially be tie Nate Anticipation Notes,


and shall subsequently be the Refunding Obligations. The planned City


borrowing is described in Attachment A to this Memorandum of Understanding.


B. The City and Developer agree that, before the City sells the Note Anticipation


Notes, and in order to satisfy the condition in Section E. 6 of the Agreement,


Developer shall provide an initial Letter of Credit in the amount of $4,848,705.00,


which is the estimated total amount the City will need to pay the Note


Anticipation Notes iii 2018. The initial letter of credit shall be in the form


attached as Attachment B to this Memorandum of Understanding. The. City and


Developer agree that $4,848,705.00 is based on certain esti.iriates, including an


estimate of the interest rate that will apply to the Nate Anticipation Notes.


Developer agrees that when the Note Anticipation Notes are actually sold, and


before the City finally approves the sale, the City ~an~y require Developer to


L:~DOCS\005649\000829~AGREE\36V7777.DOCX y


06]6157522 1







provide either a replacement Letter of Credit or a 
supplemental Letter of Credit,


such that the City has one or more Letters of Credit in the 
aggregate amount the


City deterrriines is actually needed to pay the Note Anticip
ation Notes in 2018.


Letter of Credit Recalculation PNior to Sale of Refunding Ob
ligations. The City intends


to pay the Note Anticipation Notes in 2018 using a combination
 of Actual Tax Increment


held by the City at that time, and the proceeds of a Refunding O
bligation to be issued by


the City. Before the City sells the Refunding Obligation, the City will
 calculate ,the


amount of the Letter of Credit required to secure repayment of the 
Refunding Obligation.


The amount of the Letter of Credit required to secure repayment
 of the Refunding


Obligation shall be equal to the total principal and interest payments 
on the Refunding


Obligation, less the amount of that principal and interest that will be
 paid using Actual


T~ Increment that has been created in the District and will be alloc
ated to pay Annual


Debt Service pursuant to Section D.3 of the Agreement. The amount of Actual Tax


Increment that has been created in the Distxict shall be calculated as 
des~,ribed in Section


6 of this Memorandum of Understanding. The amount of the recalc
ulated Letter of


Credit shall not be less than $1,OQO,000.OQ unless the Actual Tax Increme
nt that has been


created within the District is projected to generate an amount equal to or gre
ater than 110


percent of the total principal and interest payments on the Refunding 
Obligations. If


Developer does not provide the City with an amended or replacement Le
tter of Credit in


the amount the City has calculated as needed to secure repayment of the 
Refunding


4bliga~ion, the City may draw upon the existing Letter of Credit, in an amou
nt not to


exceed the amount the City has calculated for the amended or replacement lette
r of credit,


and may either use the proceeds to pay the Note Anticipation Notes, or use the pr
oceeds


to make debt service payments on the Refunding Obligation.


6. Reductions to Letter of Credit. Under Section D.4.(b} of the Agreement, the a
mount of


the Letter of Credit may be reduced by the amount of the Annual Debt Service that wil
l


be paid by Actual Tax Increment that has been created within the District, and wil
l be


allocated to pay Annual Debt Service as provided in Section D.3 of the Agre
ement.


Section D.4{b) of the Agreement further provides that the Annual Debt Service payme
nts


that will be paid by Actual Tax Increment that has been created within the District s
hall


be calculated by the City, using the actual Value Increment that has been created wi
thin


the District at the time the required amount of the Letter of Credit is calculated, using the


mii rate effective at that time. Developer and the City agree that the Value Increment 
that


has been created within the District at a given point in time will be the equalized value of


the District that has most recently been certified by the Wisconsin Department of


Revenue, minus the base value of the District as certified by the Wisconsin Departmen
t


of Revenue. Developer and the City agree that Actual Tax Increment that has been


created within the District, and that will be available to pay Annual Debt Service, will be


the Value Increment, multiplied by the most recently established mil rate at which taxable


property in the City.is taxed to levy taxes for all taxing jurisdictions in which the Distric
t


is located, multiplied by the number of years that Actual Ta~c Increment may lawfully b
e


allocated to pay Annual Debt Service. Developer and the City agree that, for purposes of


calculating reductions in the Letter of Credit; the Annual Debt Service to be paid
 by


Actual Tax Increment shall be calculated based upon the Refunding Obligation. 
Before


L:IDOCS\OOSb49\0008291AGREE\36V7777:DOCX 
2


0616151522







..._, 
\


the Refunding Obligation is sold, the Annual Debt Service shall be the estimated total
principal and interest on the planned Refunding Obligation, as determined by the City.
After the Refunding Obligation is issued, the Annual Debt Service shall be the actual
unpaid principal and interest on the Refunding Obligation. Developer agrees that the
Letter of Credit shall not be reduced below $1,000,000.00 until the Actual Tax Increment
that has been created within the Disfirict is projected to generate an amount equal to or
greater than 110 percent of the remaining Annual Debt Service Payments on City
Borrowing. The first opportunity for a reduction in the Letter of Credit shall come on
September 1, 2016, and subsequent opportunities for reduction will be evaluated each
anniversary thereafter.


7. Agreement. The City and Developer agree that this Memorandum of Understanding
accurately describes their understanding and agreement regarding the amount of the
Letter of Credit required by Section D.4, of the Agreement, and the procedure that will
apply to calculating reductions of the Letter of Credit, 121 order to implement the
Agreement.


DEVELOPER: CITY:


KETTLE PARK WEST LLC


By ~~G~
David Jenkins, M g Partner


CITY OF STOUGHTON
Dane County, Wisconsin


By ~..
Donna Olson, Mayor


Dated: June _, 2015. 
ATTEST:


~~ v
Lana C. Kropf, City Clerk


Dated: June 0~ , 2015 e


L:~DOCS\005649\000829~AGREE~36V7777.DOCX
0616151522







4,815,000


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


-~ ~ i Note Anticipation Notes, Series 2015


Kettle Park West Project


Sources &Uses


Dated 10/01/2015 ( Delivered 10/01/2015


Sources Of Funds


Par Amount of Bonds .......................................................................................................
............................................... $4,815,000.00


Total Sources ...................................................................................................................
............................................. $4,815,000.00


Uses Of Funds


Deposit to Project Construction Fund .........................................................................
..................................................... 4.577,264.00


Deposit to Capitalized Interest (CIF) Fund .................................................................
..................................................... 168,525.00


Costs of Issuance ......................................................................................... 
......................... 45,000.00.........................................


Total Underwriter's Discount (0.500%) ......................................................................
..............:...................................... 24,075.00


Rounding Amount ............................................................................................. .........
..................................................... 136.00


Total Uses ...................................................................................................:............
...................................................... $4,815,000.00


Attachm~tlt A


i


20l5 NAN.s 5.6J5 ~ SlNCLE PURPOSE ~ 5//2/2015 ~ 2:30 PM


~'~ o~ ...







$4,815,000


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
~ Note Anticipation Notes, Series 2015


Kettle Park West Project


NET DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE


Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF Net New D/S Fiscal Total


10/01!2015 - -
10/01/2016 - - 67,410.00 67,410.00 (67,410.00) - -


04/01/2017 - - 33,705.00 33,705.00 (33,705.00) - -


10/01/2017 - - 33,705.00 33,705.00 (33,705.00) - -


04/01/2018 - - 33,705.00 33,705.00 (33,705.00) - -


10/01/2018 4,815,000.00 1.400% 33,705.00 4,848,705.00 - 4,848,705.00 4,848,705.00


Total $4,815,000.00 - $202,230.00 $5,017,230.00 (168,525.00) $4,848,705.00


SIGNIFICANT DATES


Dated Date .......................................................................................................................................................................... 10!01/2015


Delivery Date ...................................................................................................................................................................... 10/01!2015


First Coupon Date ............................................................................................................................................................... 10/01/2016


Yield Statistics


Bond Year Dollars ............................................................................................................................................................... $14,445.00


Average Life ........................................................................................................................................................................ 3.000 Years


Average Coupon 
................................................................................................................................................................. 1.4000000%


Net Interest Cost (NIC) ....................................................................................................................................................... 1.5666667%


True Interest Cost (TIC) ...................................................................................................................................................... 1.5694215%


Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes ...................................................................................................................................... 1.3983516%


All Inclusive Cost (AIC) ....................................................................................................................................................... 1.8919113%


IRS Form 8038
Net Interest Cost ................................................................................................................................................................. 1.4000000%


Weighted Average Maturity ................................................................................................................................................. 3.000 Years


J;


2015NANr5.G.l5 ~ SINGLEPURPOSE ~ 5/!2/2015 ~ 2:30 PM







$4,315,000


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018


~ Kettle Park WestProject -Takeout of the 2015 NANS


Sources &Uses


Dated 06/01/2018 ~ Delivered 06/01/2018


Sources Of Funds
Par Amount of Bonds ...................................................................................................................................................... $4,315,000.00


Additional source of funds ............................................................................................................................................... 619.879.00


Total Sources ................................................................................................................................................................ $4,934,879.00


Uses Of Funds
Deposit to Current Refunding Fund ................................................................................................................................. 4,837,470.00


Costs of Issuance ........................................................................................................................................................... 50,0.00.00


Total Underwriter's Discount (1.000°/a) ........................................................................................................................... 43,150.00


Rounding Amount ........................................................................................................................................................... 
4,259.00


Total Uses ...................................................................................................................................................................... $4,934,879.00


~_


201N GO Bonclr (Take ou12 ~ SINGLE. PURPOSE ~ S/!2/20/5 ~ 2:30 PM


.,,.







$4,815,000


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
Note Anticipation Notes, Series 2015


~ Kettle Park West Project


Debt Service To Maturity And To Call


Date Refunded Refunded D/S To Call Principal Coupon Interest Refunded D/S


Bonds Interest


06/01 /2018 - - - -
O8/01/2018 4,815,000.00 22,470.00 4,837,470.00 - -


10/01/2018 - - - 4,815,000.00 1.400% 33,705.00 4,848,705.00


Total $4,815,000.00 $22,470.00 $4,837,470.00 $4,815,000.00 - $33,705.00 $4,848,705.00


Yield Statistics


Base date for Avg. Life &Avg. Coupon Calculation .......................................................................................................... 6/01/2018


Average Life ..................................................................................................................................................................... 0.333 Years


Average Coupon 
............................................................................................................................................................... 1.4000000°/a


Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) ............................................................................................................................ 0.333 Years


Refunding Bond Information


Refunding Dated Date ...................................................................................................................................................... 6/01/2018


Refunding Delivery Date ................................................................................................................................................... 6/01/2018


20/5 NAMr 5.6. /5 ~ SINGLE PURPOSE ~ 5/!2/2015 ~ 2:30 PM







$4,315,000


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018


Kettle Park West Project -Takeout of the 2015 NANS


NET DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE


Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Net New D/S Revenue Surpls(Deficit) Fiscal Total


06/01 /2018 - - - - -
04/01/2019 185,000.00 1.450% 100,352.08 285,352.08 285,352.08 382,991.00 97,638.92 -


10/01/2019 - - 58,870.00 58,870.00 58,870.00 - (58,870.00) 38,768.92


04/01/2020 230,000.00 1.750% 58,870.00 288,870.00 288,870.00 382,991.00 94,121.00 -


10/01/2020 - - 56,857.50 56,857.50 56,857.50 - (56,857.50) 37,263.50


04/01!2021 235,000.00 1.900% 56,857.50 291,857.50 291,857.50 382,991.00 91,133.50 -


10/01/2021 - - 54,625.00 54,625.00 54,625.00 - (54,625.00) 36,508.50


04/01/2022 240,000.00 2.100% 54,625.00 294,625.00 294,625.00 382,991.00 88,366.00 -


10/01/2022 - - 52,105.00 52,105.00 52,105.00 - (52,105.00) , 36,261.00


04/01/2023 245,000.00 2.300% 52,105.00 297,105.00 297,105.00 382,991.00 85,886.00 -


10/01l2023 - - 49,287.50 49,287.50 49,287.50 - (49,287.50) 36,598.50


04/01/2024 250,000.00 2.400% 49,287.50 299,287.50 299,287.50 382,991.00 83,703.50


10/01/2024 - - 46,287.50 46,287.50 46,287.50 - (46,287.50) 37,416.00


04/01/2025 255,000.00 2.500% 46,287.50 301,287.50 301,287.50 382,991.00 81,703.50 -


10/01/2025 - - 43,100.00 43,100.00 43,100.00 - (43,100.00) 38,603.50


04/01/2026 260,000.00 2.650% 43,100.00 303,100.00 303,100.00 382,991.00 79,891.00


10/01/2026 - - 39,655.00 39,655.00 39,655.00 - (39,655.00) 40,236.00


04/01/2027 270,000.00 2.850% 39,655.00 309,655.00 309,655.00 382,991.00 73,336.00 -


10/01/2027 - - 35,807.50 35,807.50 35,807.50 - (35,807.50) 37,528.50


04/01/2028 280,000.00 2.950% 35,807.50 315,807.50 315,807.50 382,991.00 67,183.50


10/01/2028 - - 31,677.50 31,677.50 31,677.50 - (31,677.50) 35,506.00


04/01/2029 285,000.00 3.000% 31,677.50 316,677.50 316,677.50 382,991.00 66,313.50 -


10/01/2029 - . - 27,402.50. 27,402.50 27,402.50 - (27,402.50) 38,911.00


04/01/2030 295,000.00 3.200% 27,402.50 322,402.50 322,402.50 382,991.00 60,588.50 -


10/01/2030 - - 22,682.50 22,682.50 22,682.50 - (22,682.50) 37,906.00


04/01/2031 305,000.00 3.350% 22,682.50 327,682.50 327,682.50 382,991.00 55,308.50 -


10/01/2031 - - 17,573.75 17,573.75 17,573.75 - (17,573.75) 37,734.75


04/01/2032 315,000.00 3.450% 17,573.75 332,573.75 332,573.75 382,991.00 50,417.25 -


10l01/2032 - - 12,140.00 12,140.00 12,140.00 - (12,140.00) 38,277.25


04/01/2033 325,000.00 3.600% 12,140.00 337,140.00 337,140.00 382,991.00 45,851.00 -


10/01/2033 - - 6,290.00 6,290.00 6,290.00 - (6,290.00) 39,561.00


04/01/2034 340,000.00 3.700% 6,290.00 346,290.00 346,290.00 382,991.00 36,701.00


10/01/2034 - - - - - - - 36,701.00


Total $4,315,000.00 - $1,209,074.58 $5,524,074.58 $5,524,074.58 $6,127,856.00 $603,781.42


SIGNIFICANT DATES
Dated................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6/01 /2018


Delivery Date ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 6/01/2018


First Coupon Date ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 4/01/2019


Yield Statistics
Bond Year Dollars ......................................................................................................................................................................................$38,775.83


Average Life ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 8.986 Years


Average Coupon ......................................................................................................................................................................................3.1181.137%


Net Interest Cost (NIC) .............................................................................................................................................................................3.2293944%


True Interest Cost (TIC) ............................................................................................................................................................................
32211094%


Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes ................................................................................................................................................................. 3.0889451


All Inclusive Cost (AIC) .............................................................................................................................................................................3._
3766362%


Net Interest Cost in Dollars ......................................................................................................................................................................9.,209,074.58


Weighted Average Maturity ............................................................................................................................................................................ 8.986 Years


201 X GO Bonds (Yoke ou(2 ~ SlNGLG PURPOSE ~ 5//2/201 S ~ 2:3/ PM







[Sample Letter of Credit relating to TIF Guarantee]
i


IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT


Letter of Credit Number:


Dated:


Applicant: Kettle Park West, LLC


Beneficiary: The City of Stoughton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation.


Amount: $ U.S. Dollars


Expiration Date: [Not less than three years after initial issuance]


To the City of Stoughton:


We hereby issue in favor of the City of Stoughton (the "City") our Irrevocable Letter of


Credit No. for an amount or amounts not to exceed in the aggregate


$ U. S. Dollars.


This letter of credit shall be payable to the City at any time upon. presentation of the


following: (1) a sight draft drawn on in an amount to which the


City is entitled under Section D of the Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake


Development (Kettle Park West Development) entered into as of the 13th day of


November, 2014 (the "Development Agreement"); (2) an affidavit executed by a person


authorized by the City stating that monies are due from Kettle Park West, LLC pursuant


to Section D.2(b) of the Development Agreement, or because this letter of credit will not


be extended, or will be extended, renewed or replaced in an amount that is less than the


amount required by Section D of the Development Agreement; and (3) this Letter of


Credit.


This letter of credit is issued to secure certain guarantee obligations of Kettle Park West,


LLC under the Development Agreement. The City intends to issue Note Anticipation


Notes in 2015, and to pay the Note Anticipation Notes in 2018 by issuing a Refunding


Obligation. The amount of this letter of credit has been calculated based on the expected


amount needed to pay the Note Anticipation Notes. The amount of the Refunding


Obligation will exceed the amount of the Note Anticipation Note. Before issuing the


Refunding Obligation, the City will require Kettle Park West, LLC to provide a letter of


credit in the amount needed to secure repayment of the Refunding Obligation, which


amount may exceed the amount of this letter of credit. We recognize that if Kettle Park


West, LLC fails to provide a letter of credit in the amount needed to secure repayment of


Attachment B







the Refunding Obligation, this letter of credit shall be payable to the City, and the City


may use the proceeds of this letter of credit to pay the Note Anticipation Notes when due.


Partial drawings are permitted.


This Letter of Credit and each extended, renewed or replacement letter of credit shall be


automatically extended without amendment for a period of one year from its expiration


date, unless at least 45 days before such expiration date we notify the City in writing that


the letter of credit will not be extended for an additional one-year period, or that the letter


of credit will be renewed or replaced by a letter of credit in an amount that is less than the


amount required by Section D of the Development Agreement, which amount shall be


specified in such written notice. Upon receipt of notice that this Letter of Credit or any


extended, renewed or replacement letter of credit will not be renewed, or will be replaced


by a letter of credit in an amount that is less than the amount required by Section D of the


Development Agreement, the City may draw upon this or any extended, renewed, or


replacement letter of credit an amount equal to the" total principal and interest payments


that remain unpaid on all remaining Annual Debt Service Payments on City Borrowing,


as those terms are defined in the Development Agreement.


We hereby engage with you to honor all drafts drawn incompliance with the terms and


conditions of this Letter of Credit if presented together with the required documents at


no later than the close of business on


the date on which this Letter of Credit


Expires.





		12a- R-103-2017-Resolution for Letter of Credit.pdf

		12b- R-86-2015- KPW MOU- Signed.pdf

		12c-Memorandum of Understanding.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE
CONVEYANCE OF REAL PROPERTY AND THE PAYMENT OF IMPACT FEES


Committee Action: Committee meets June 27, 2017


Fiscal Impact:


File Number: R-104-2017 Date Introduced: June 27, 2017


RESOLUTION


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Agreement Relating to the
Conveyance of Real Property and the Payment of Impact Fees attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution is
approved, subject to filling in the remaining blanks in a manner acceptable to the City Attorney.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


3CL6927







1
T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-b-Purchase Agreement (Skaalen Property) 11-11-16.docx
0626171557


AGREEMENT RELATING TO CONVEYANCE OF REAL PROPERTY AND
PAYMENT OF IMPACT FEES


THIS REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this


________ day of________________, 2017 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the


CITY OF STOUGHTON, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, (the “City”), and THE


SKAALEN SUNSET HOME, INC., a Wisconsin corporation (“Seller”).


In consideration of the mutual covenants and undertakings contained herein the
parties agree as follows:


1. Agreement to Sell and Buy Property. Seller hereby agrees to sell to City and
City agrees to buy from Seller in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement certain
real property described as Parcel A in the plat of survey attached as Attachment A,
situated in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”). For purposes
of this Agreement, the Property includes a dock currently located on the Property.


2. No Displacement and Waiver of Rights Under Chapter 32. Seller represents
and warrants that the sale of the Property to City will not result in the displacement of
persons or business concerns for purposes of Chapter 32, Wis. Stats. Seller acknowledges
that Seller is not required to sell the Property. Seller acknowledges Seller’s agreement to
sell the Property is voluntary.


3. Consideration / Purchase Price. As a result of Seller’s recent development
of 33 residential care apartment complex units off North Morris Street, Seller owes Park
Impact Fees to the City in the amount of $102,028.19. As consideration for this
Agreement, and in lieu of a cash purchase price, at Closing Seller shall be entitled to a
park impact fee credit in the amount of $55,581.24. At Closing, Seller shall pay
$46,446.95 to the City to satisfy Seller’s remaining Park Impact Fee obligation. This
agreement supersedes the Agreement dated __________________ between the City and
Skaalen Nursing and Rehabilitation Center, Inc.


4. City’s Contingencies. City’s obligation to purchase the Property is
contingent upon Seller providing to City a commitment for an owner’s title insurance
policy pursuant to Section 5.


5. Title. Seller, at Seller’s expense, shall within 30 days of the Effective Date
obtain a commitment for an owner’s title insurance policy (Current ALTA Owner’s form)
issued by a title insurance company (“Title”) showing title to the Property as of a date no
more than 15 days before delivery of such title evidence to be merchantable and free from
encumbrances, subject only to liens which will be paid out of the proceeds of closing,
naming City as the proposed owner-insured of the Property in the amount of $55,581.24







2
T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-b-Purchase Agreement (Skaalen Property) 11-11-16.docx
0626171557


(the “Commitment”). Seller shall provide gap insurance coverage, to provide coverage for
the period between the title insurance commitment and the date of Closing. City, within
5 business days after receipt of the Commitment, will make objections to the title to the
Property based upon examination of the Commitment, said objections to be made by
written notice or be deemed waived. If any objections are so made, Seller shall
immediately commence and diligently endeavor in good faith to complete all actions
necessary to cure such objections and shall be allowed up to the Closing Date to cure such
objections and obtain appropriate endorsements to the Commitment indicating that any
such objections have been cured.


City need not object to mortgages or other liens against the Property. If not sooner
satisfied, Seller will satisfy them at closing.


If Seller does not cure City’s objections by the Closing Date, or if title to the
Property is not good and marketable of record in Seller at the Closing Date, then City shall
have the following options:


a. City may terminate this Agreement, in which event Seller shall pay
City $102,028.19 to satisfy Seller’s obligation to pay Park Impact Fees to the City.


b. City may elect to waive the objection and accept the title to Seller’s
interest in the Property in its unmarketable condition.


6. Additional Covenants and Warranties of Seller. Seller covenants with and
warrants to City as follows:


a. Prior to the Closing Date, Seller will not permit any lien or
encumbrance to be placed against the Property or any part thereof and will not
commit waste on the Property.


b. There are and at closing there will be no tenants, persons or entities
occupying or having a right to occupy the Property or any part thereof, whether
pursuant to a lease or other occupancy agreement or otherwise.


c. Seller represents that there is no action, litigation, investigation,
condemnation or proceeding of any kind pending or, to Seller’s best knowledge,
threatened against Seller or the Property which could affect the Property, any
portion thereof or title thereto. Seller shall give City prompt written notice if any
such action, litigation, investigation, condemnation, or proceeding is commenced
with respect to the Property on or prior to the Closing Date.


Seller shall promptly notify City in writing if it acquires any knowledge which
changes any representation or warranty set forth above or elsewhere in this Agreement.
The notice shall describe in detail the nature of the change and the basis therefore. If there
is a material adverse change in any of the foregoing representations prior to Closing, City







3
T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-b-Purchase Agreement (Skaalen Property) 11-11-16.docx
0626171557


will have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to Seller within
ten (10) days after it receives written notice of such material change. If City so terminates
this Agreement neither party shall have further rights or obligations hereunder.


7. Closing. The closing shall take place not later than September 1, 2017 (the
“Closing Date”). The closing shall take place at the offices of Title or such other place as
Seller and City shall mutually agree. At the closing, Seller shall deliver to City:


a. A Warranty Deed properly executed on behalf of Seller in recordable
form conveying the Property to City and warranting title thereto subject to no
exceptions except those to which City has not objected or has expressly agreed to
pursuant to Section 5 hereof.


b. All certificates, instruments and other documents necessary to permit
the recording of the Warranty Deed.


c. A standard Seller’s Affidavit with respect to judgments, bankruptcies,
tax liens, mechanics liens, parties in possession, unrecorded interests,
encroachment or boundary line questions, and related matters, properly executed on
behalf of Seller.


d. A “marked-up” commitment (initialed by the appropriate title
company officer) to issue a policy of title insurance subject to no exceptions except
those to which City has not objected or has expressly agreed to pursuant to Section
5 hereof. Seller shall be responsible for the payment of the premium for such
policy of title insurance.


8. Right of First Refusal. Seller’s willingness to convey the Property to the
City under this Agreement is contingent upon the City’s willingness to grant a right of first
refusal to Seller. At Closing, the City shall deliver a fully executed Right of First Refusal
in substantially the same form attached as Attachment B, with instructions to the Title
Company to record the Right of First Refusal immediately following the recording of the
Warranty Deed from Seller to the City.


9. Real Estate Taxes and Special Assessments. Seller represents that the
Property is exempt from real property taxes as of the Effective Date. Seller shall pay any
special assessments levied or pending as of the date of this Agreement, including, but not
limited to, (i) installments, if any, which appear on the property tax statements for the year
in which the closing occurs and (ii) any installments which may have been deferred
pursuant to applicable laws.


10. Possession. Seller shall deliver possession of the Property to City upon
closing.







4
T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-b-Purchase Agreement (Skaalen Property) 11-11-16.docx
0626171557


11. Notices. All documents to be delivered and all correspondence and notices
to be given in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and given by personal
delivery, by facsimile, or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier or by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as
follows:


If to Seller: ___________________________
___________________________
___________________________


If to City: Tom Lynch
City of Stoughton
381 E. Main Street
Stoughton, WI 53589
Phone: (608) 873-6677
Email: tlynch@ci.stoughton.wi.us


With a copy to: Matthew P. Dregne
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP
222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900
P.O. Box 1784
Madison, WI 53701-1784
Phone: (608) 259-2618
Email: mdregne@staffordlaw.com


A notice delivered personally shall be delivered personally to the person whose
attention mailed notices are addressed. A notice sent by facsimile or email shall be
deemed given to the party to whom it is sent on the date actually transmitted. A notice
sent by mail shall be deemed to have been given to the party to whom it is addressed on
the date the same is deposited in the United States registered or certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, properly addressed to such party at its then current
address for the giving of notices. Either party hereto may change such party’s address for
the service of notice hereunder by written notice of said change to the other party hereto,
in the manner above specified ten (10) days prior to the effective date of said change.


12. Commissions. Seller hereby warrants to City that Seller shall pay any
broker’s commissions, finder’s fees or like charges that have been incurred by Seller in
connection with this transaction. City hereby warrants to Seller that City shall pay any
broker’s commissions, finder’s fees or like charges that have been incurred by City in
connection with this transaction.







5
T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-b-Purchase Agreement (Skaalen Property) 11-11-16.docx
0626171557


13. Default. Should Seller default in the performance of its obligations
hereunder or breach any warranty contained herein, and such default shall not be cured
within twenty (20) days after notice from City, City (i) shall have and may pursue all
rights and remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity, or otherwise, including,
but not limited to, an action for damages or specific performance; and (ii) may terminate
this Agreement. Should City default in the performance of its obligations hereunder or
breach any warranty contained herein, and such default shall not be cured within twenty
(20) days after notice from Seller, Seller (i) shall have and may pursue all rights and
remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity, or otherwise, including, but not
limited to, an action for damages or specific performance; and (ii) may terminate this
Agreement.


14. Risk of Loss. Risk of loss to the Property prior to the time of closing shall
remain in Seller. In the event that prior to the time of closing, proceedings for the
condemnation of the Property or any portion thereof are commenced by governmental
authority having jurisdiction to do so, City may, at its option, terminate this Agreement by
written notice to Seller whereupon neither party shall have any further rights, obligations
or liability hereunder. In the event of any such condemnation, and if this Agreement is not
terminated on account thereof, Seller shall assign to City at closing its rights to any such
condemnation award, excluding severance damages relating to Seller’s remaining lands to
which Seller may be entitled.


15. Miscellaneous. All of the covenants, warranties, and provisions of this
Agreement shall survive and be enforceable after the closing of this transaction. The
paragraph headings or captions appearing in this Agreement are for convenience only, are
not a part of this Agreement, and are not to be considered in interpreting this Agreement.
Delivery of an executed copy of this Agreement by facsimile or email shall be deemed
delivery of the executed original.


16. Time of the Essence. Except as otherwise stated herein, time is of the
essence in the performance of this Agreement.


17. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin.


18. Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date that it has
been signed by both Seller and the City.







6
T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-b-Purchase Agreement (Skaalen Property) 11-11-16.docx
0626171557


IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day
and year first set forth above.


CITY:
CITY OF STOUGHTON


By
Date Donna Olson, Mayor


ATTEST


By
Lana Kropf, City Clerk


SELLER:
SKAALEN SUNSET HOME, INC.


By


Date ______________________________________


By


Date ______________________________________


Attachment A – Property sketch







7
T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-b-Purchase Agreement (Skaalen Property) 11-11-16.docx
0626171557


ATTACHMENT A


Plat of Survey







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-Right of First Refusal.docx
0626171557


1


THIS AGREEMENT (“Right
of First Refusal”) is made and entered into on
_______________, 2017, by and between the City of
Stoughton, a Wisconsin Municipal Corporation (“Owner”)
and The Skaalen Sunset Home, Inc., a Wisconsin
Corporation (“Optionee”). For good and valuable
consideration, the value and adequacy of which the parties
acknowledge, the parties agree as follows:


1. Grant of Right. Owner hereby grants to
Optionee, under the terms set forth herein, the exclusive and
irrevocable right of first refusal to purchase the property
described as Parcel A on Attachment A hereto (the
“Property).


The consideration for the exclusive and irrevocable
right of first refusal to purchase the Property consists of the
Optionee’s conveyance of the lands to the City subject to a
requirement that the City grant this Right of First Refusal to
Optionee.


2. Notice of Offer. If the Owner accepts a bona
fide Offer to Purchase for all or any part of the Property (which Offer to Purchase is required
hereby to set forth a purchase price of a fixed dollar amount at closing), and which accepted
Offer to Purchase shall be subject to this Right of First Refusal, the Owner shall promptly give
Optionee written notice of the proposed transfer (the “Notice”). The Notice shall state the terms
of the proposed transfer, and shall include a copy of the accepted Offer to Purchase. The Notice
shall be deemed an offer to sell to Optionee the Property as provided herein.


3. Exercise of Right. Optionee may exercise its option under this Right of First
Refusal to purchase the Property by delivering to Owner a written notice of Optionee’s intention
to exercise the right within twenty (20) days after Optionee’s receipt of the Notice. Such election
shall constitute Optionee’s agreement to purchase that part of the Property covered by the Notice
on the same terms and conditions set forth in the accepted Offer to Purchase, provided,
notwithstanding any contrary terms in the accepted Offer to Purchase, Optionee shall have at
least ninety (90) days after receipt of the Notice to close the purchase of the Property.


4. Failure to Exercise Option. If Optionee does not exercise this option in
accordance with Section 3 above, Owner may sell the Property to the person described in the
Notice on the terms provided in such Notice, and this Right of First Refusal shall be null and
void with respect to the part of the Property covered by the Notice. If the sale to the person
described in the Notice shall not close within one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of the
Notice, this Right of First Refusal to Optionee shall again apply.


ATTACHMENT BRIGHT OF FIRST
REFUSAL


Document Number


Recording Area


Name and Return Address


Matthew P. Dregne, Esq.
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP
P.O. Box 1784
Madison, WI 53701-1784


Parcel Identification Number (PIN)







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-Right of First Refusal.docx
0626171557


2


5. Binding Agreement. This option shall be binding upon the Property and shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors
and assigns for the period of time that any part of the Property is owned by the Owner.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this instrument effective as of
the date first above written.


CITY:
CITY OF STOUGHTON


By
Date Donna Olson, Mayor


ATTEST


By
Lana Kropf, City Clerk


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT


STATE OF WISCONSIN)
) ss.


COUNTY OF DANE )


Personally appeared before me this ______ day of ________, 2017, Donna Olson,
who executed this instrument and acknowledged the same.


Notary Public, State of _______________
My commission expires:







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-Right of First Refusal.docx
0626171557


3


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT


STATE OF WISCONSIN)
) ss.


COUNTY OF DANE )


Personally appeared before me this ______ day of ________, 2017, Lana Kropf,
who executed this instrument and acknowledged the same.


Notary Public, State of _______________
My commission expires:


SELLER:
SKAALEN SUNSET HOME, INC.


By


Date ______________________________________


By


Date ______________________________________


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT


STATE OF WISCONSIN)
) ss.


COUNTY OF DANE )


Personally appeared before me this ______ day of ________, 2017, ___________,
who executed this instrument and acknowledged the same.


Notary Public, State of _______________
My commission expires:







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-Right of First Refusal.docx
0626171557


4


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT


STATE OF WISCONSIN)
) ss.


COUNTY OF DANE )


Personally appeared before me this ______ day of ________, 2017, ___________,
who executed this instrument and acknowledged the same.


Notary Public, State of _______________
My commission expires:







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\6-27-2017\13c-Right of First Refusal.docx
0626171557


5


ATTACHMENT A
Plat of Survey





		13a-R-104-2017-Resolution approving agreement.pdf

		13c-b-Purchase Agreement (Skaalen Property) 11-11-16.pdf

		13c-Right of First Refusal.pdf






, Stafford Rosen ba u ffì Lrp
î\tt{}{{ÈeV=


Re


Menber of LEGUS International Netuo& of Lau Fims


To Mayor Donna Olson
City of Stoughton Common Council


From Matthew P. Dregne, City Attorney


Date June 26,2017


City of Stoughton - Plan Commission and Planning Committee Issues and


Considerations.


We write in response to the City's request that we address the possible creation of a


"standing planning committee." While we have little information about the purpose of a


standing planning committee, it is our understanding that such a committee would serve in
an advisory capacity to the common council on issues relating to city planning, including
potentially issues that are also addressed by the Plan Commission.


While cities are not technically required to have plan commissions, there are many critical
things that a city cannot legally do without a plan commission, including the adoption and


administration of zoning regulations. The City may choose to modiff the number and
qualifications of plan commission members. The City could also choose to refer planning
related matters to one or more standing committees (or create a new committee). However,
certain matters must be referred to the Plan Commission as a matter of law. A discussion
follows.


I. A City is not required to create a plan commission; howevero the City must
create a plan commission before the Council may take action on certain matters.


The City is not required to create aplan commission. See Sconlon v. City of Menasha, 16


Wis. 2d 437,44142,114 N.W.2d79I (1962). However, certain matters must be referred
to the plan commission for its ooconsideration and report before final action is taken ...."
Wis. Stat. ç 62.23(5). Failure to refer certain actions to the plan commission before the


common council takes final action can invalidate the action. Wis. Stat. $ 62.23(5); Scanlon


r.:\DocS\005649\002 I 28\l\4EMOS\3DI0229.DOCX
6/26/2011 4:35 PM


Madison Office Milwaukee Office


1200 Nonh Mayfair Road


Suite 410


Milwaukee, \T/isconsin


53226-1282


222 \íest \íashington Avenue


P.O. Box 1784


Madison, \X/isconsin


v70r-17u


608.256.0226


888.655.4752


Fax608.259.2600


www,staffordlaw.com


414.982.2850


888.655.4752


Fax4r4982,2889


www.staffordlawcom







v. City of Menasha, 16 Wis. 2d 437 , 44344, I 14 l'{.W.2 d79l (1962). Therefore, the City
must create a plan commission before the Council may take action on certain matters.


The following matters must be referred to the Plan Commission for review and


consideration before the Council may take final action:


o Adoption or amendment of a subdivision or land division ordinance, $$


62.23(s),n6.asØ);


o Amendment or repeal of any ordinance adopted under \Mis. Stat. ç 62.23,


including ordinances relating to plan commissions, comprehensive planning,


official mapping and zoning, $ 62.23(7)(d)2.; and


o Adoption of a comprehensive plan, $ 62.23(2).


o Location and design of public buildings, 5 62.23(5);


o Location of statues and memorials, $ 62.23(5);


o Land for public purposes such as streets, parks, airports, etc., $ 62.23(5);


o Land for public or semi-public housing, slum clearance, relief of congestion,


vacation camps for children, $ 62.23(5);


o Public utilities, S 62.23(5);


o General fire limits, g 62.23(5), (9Xb);


o Child welfare agencies and group homes, $$ 62.23(5), 48.68(3);


o Community-based residential facilities, $$ 62.23(5), 50.03(a);


o Pedestrian malls, $$ 62.23(5), 66.0905;


o Proposed housing projects, $$ 62.23(5),66.1211(3);


o Plats of lands over which the City is given platting jurisdiction, $$ 62.23(5),
236.r0(3);


il. The City may alter the size and composition of the Plan Commission, but must
do so by ordinance.


Absent an ordinance specifying a different membership, the plan commission must consist


of 7 members, and must always have at least 3 citizen members who are not city officials.
g 62.23(l)(a). The City may by ordinance modiff the number and qualifications of plan


commission members. $ 62.23(1)(a).


L:\DOCS\005649\002 128\MEMOS\3D10229.DOCX
6/2612017 4:35 PM


2







III. The City Council may create a Standing Planning Committee, But Doing So


Would Not Change The Plan Commission's Legal Role.


The City Council may create a Standing Planning Committee that is available to consider
planning matters. Cities are not limited to statutorily authorizedboards, commissions, and


committees. However, creating a new committee would not modiS the existing legal


framework requiring Plan Commission action over a wide variety of planning and zoning
related matters.


Finally, it is worth noting that the legislature providing for the creation of a plan


commission in part in an attempt to insulate planning and zoning decisions from purely
political considerations, and to provide objectivity in city planning. Heíder v. Common


Council of City of l4tauwatosa, 37 Wis. 2d 466, 477 , 155 N.W.2 d l7 ,23 (1967). Creating
a Committee with duties that infringe on the Plan Commission's statutory duties would run
counter to this framework.


Please let us know if you have any questions, or if we can provide any further assistance


with this matter.


L:\DOCS\005649\002 I 28\l\4EMOS\3DI0229.DOCX
6/26/2017 4:35 PM


aJ








62.23 City planning.


(1) Commission.


(a) The council of any city may by ordinance create a “City Plan Commission," to consist of 7 members.


The commission shall also include, as a nonvoting member, a representative from a military base or


installation, with at least 200 assigned military personnel or that contains at least 2,000 acres, that is


located in the city, if the base's or installation's commanding officer appoints such a representative. All


members of the commission, other than the representative appointed by the commanding officer of a


military base or installation, shall be appointed by the mayor, who shall also choose the presiding


officer. The mayor may appoint himself or herself to the commission and may appoint other city elected


or appointed officials, except that the commission shall always have at least 3 citizen members who are


not city officials. Citizen members shall be persons of recognized experience and qualifications. The


council may by ordinance provide that the membership of the commission shall be as provided


thereunder.


(d) The members of the commission shall be appointed to hold office for a period of 3 years.


Appointments shall be made by the mayor during the month of April for terms that expire in April or at


any other time if a vacancy occurs during the middle of a term.


(e) The city plan commission shall have power and authority to employ experts and a staff, and to pay


for their services and such other expenses as may be necessary and proper, not exceeding, in all, the


appropriation that may be made for such commission by the legislative body, or placed at its disposal


through gift, and subject to any ordinance or resolution enacted by the governing body.


(f) Any city may by ordinance increase the number of members of the city plan commission so as to


provide that the building commissioner or building inspector shall serve as a member thereof.


(2) Functions. It shall be the function and duty of the commission to make and adopt a master plan for


the physical development of the city, including any areas outside of its boundaries that in the


commission's judgment bear relation to the development of the city provided, however, that in any


county where a regional planning department has been established, areas outside the boundaries of a


city may not be included in the master plan without the consent of the county board of supervisors. The


master plan, with the accompanying maps, plats, charts, and descriptive and explanatory matter, shall


show the commission's recommendations for such physical development, and shall, as described in sub.


(3) (b), contain at least the elements described in s. 66.1001 (2). The commission may from time to time


amend, extend, or add to the master plan or carry any part or subject matter into greater detail. The


commission may adopt rules for the transaction of business and shall keep a record of its resolutions,


transactions, findings, and determinations, which record shall be a public record.


(3) The master plan.


(a) The master plan shall be made with the general purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated,


adjusted and harmonious development of the municipality which will, in accordance with existing and







future needs, best promote public health, safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity or the general


welfare, as well as efficiency and economy in the process of development.


(b) The commission may adopt the master plan as a whole by a single resolution, or, as the work of


making the whole master plan progresses, may from time to time by resolution adopt a part or parts of


a master plan. Beginning on January 1, 2010, or, if the city is exempt under s. 66.1001 (3m), the date


under s. 66.1001 (3m) (b), if the city engages in any program or action described in s. 66.1001 (3), the


master plan shall contain at least all of the elements specified in s. 66.1001 (2). The adoption of the plan


or any part, amendment, or addition, shall be by resolution carried by the affirmative votes of not less


than a majority of all the members of the city plan commission. The resolution shall refer expressly to


the elements under s. 66.1001 and other matters intended by the commission to form the whole or any


part of the plan, and the action taken shall be recorded on the adopted plan or part of the plan by the


identifying signature of the secretary of the commission, and a copy of the plan or part of the plan shall


be certified to the common council, and also to the commanding officer, or the officer's designee, of any


military base or installation, with at least 200 assigned military personnel or that contains at least 2,000


acres, that is located in or near the city. The purpose and effect of the adoption and certifying of the


master plan or part of the plan shall be solely to aid the city plan commission and the council in the


performance of their duties.


(4) Miscellaneous powers of the commission. The commission may make reports and


recommendations relating to the plan and development of the city to public officials and agencies,


public utility companies, civic, educational, professional and other organizations, and citizens. It may


recommend to the mayor or council, programs for public improvements and the financing thereof. All


public officials shall, upon request, furnish to the commission, within a reasonable time, such available


information as it may require for its work. The commission, its members and employees, in the


performance of its functions, may enter upon any land, make examinations and surveys, and place and


maintain necessary monuments and marks thereon. In general, the commission shall have such powers


as may be necessary to enable it to perform its functions and promote municipal planning.


(5) Matters referred to city plan commission. The council, or other public body or officer of the city


having final authority thereon, shall refer to the city plan commission, for its consideration and report


before final action is taken by the council, public body or officer, the following matters: The location and


architectural design of any public building; the location of any statue or other memorial; the location,


acceptance, extension, alteration, vacation, abandonment, change of use, sale, acquisition of land for or


lease of land for any street, alley or other public way, park, playground, airport, area for parking


vehicles, or other memorial or public grounds; the location, extension, abandonment or authorization


for any public utility whether publicly or privately owned; all plats of lands in the city or within the


territory over which the city is given platting jurisdiction by ch. 236; the location, character and extent or


acquisition, leasing or sale of lands for public or semipublic housing, slum clearance, relief of congestion,


or vacation camps for children; and the amendment or repeal of any ordinance adopted pursuant to this


section. Unless such report is made within 30 days, or such longer period as may be stipulated by the


common council, the council or other public body or officer, may take final action without it.


(6) Official map.







(a) As used in this subsection, “waterways" includes rivers, streams, creeks, ditches, drainage channels,


watercourses, lakes, bays, ponds, impoundment reservoirs, retention and detention basins, marshes


and other surface water areas, regardless of whether the areas are natural or artificial.


(am)


1. In this paragraph:


a. “Airport" means an airport as defined under s. 114.002 (7) which is owned or operated by a county,


city, village or town either singly or jointly with one or more counties, cities, villages or towns.


b. “Airport affected area" means the area established by an agreement under s. 66.1009. If a county,


city, village or town has not established such an agreement, “airport affected area" in that county, city,


village or town means the area located within 3 miles of the boundaries of an airport.


2. If the council of any city which is not located in whole or in part in a county with a population of


500,000 or more has established an official map under par. (b), the map shall show the location of any


part of an airport located within the area subject to zoning by the city and any part of an airport affected


area located within the area subject to zoning by the city.


(b) The council of any city may by ordinance or resolution establish an official map of the city or any


part thereof showing the streets, highways, historic districts, parkways, parks and playgrounds laid out,


adopted and established by law. The city may also include the location of railroad rights-of-way,


waterways and public transit facilities on its map. A city may include a waterway on its map only if the


waterway is included in a comprehensive surface water drainage plan. The map is conclusive with


respect to the location and width of streets, highways, waterways and parkways, and the location and


extent of railroad rights-of-way, public transit facilities, parks and playgrounds shown on the map. The


official map is declared to be established to conserve and promote the public health, safety,


convenience or general welfare. The ordinance or resolution shall require the city clerk at once to record


with the register of deeds of the county or counties in which the city is situated a certificate showing


that the city has established an official map. An ordinance or resolution establishing any part of an


official map enacted prior to June 16, 1965, which would be valid under this paragraph is hereby


validated.


(c) The city council may amend the official map of the city so as to establish the exterior lines of planned


new streets, highways, historic districts, parkways, railroad rights-of-way, public transit facilities,


waterways, parks or playgrounds, or to widen, narrow, extend or close existing streets, highways,


historic districts, parkways, railroad rights-of-way, public transit facilities, waterways, parks or


playgrounds. No such change may become effective until after a public hearing concerning the proposed


change before the city council or a committee appointed by the city council from its members, at which


parties in interest and citizens shall have an opportunity to be heard. Notice of the public hearing shall


be published as a class 2 notice under ch. 985. Before amending the map, the council shall refer the


matter to the city plan commission for report, but if the city plan commission does not make its report







within 60 days of reference, it forfeits the right to further suspend action. When adopted, amendments


become a part of the official map of the city, and are conclusive with respect to the location and width


of the streets, highways, historic districts, waterways and parkways and the location and extent of


railroad rights-of-way, public transit facilities, parks and playgrounds shown on the map. The placing of


any street, highway, waterway, parkway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility, park or playground


line or lines upon the official map does not constitute the opening or establishment of any street,


parkway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility, park or playground or alteration of any waterway,


or the taking or acceptance of any land for these purposes.


(d) The locating, widening or closing, or the approval of the locating, widening or closing of streets,


highways, waterways, parkways, railroad rights-of-way, public transit facilities, parks or playgrounds by


the city under provisions of law other than this section shall be deemed to amend the official map, and


are subject to this section, except that changes or additions made by a subdivision plat approved by the


city under ch. 236 do not require the public hearing specified in par. (c) if the changes or additions do


not affect any land outside the platted area.


(e) No permit may be issued to construct or enlarge any building within the limits of any street,


highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway, shown or laid out on the


map except as provided in this section. The street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way, public


transit facility or parkway system shown on the official map may be shown on the official map as


extending beyond the boundaries of a city or village a distance equal to that within which the approval


of land subdivision plats by the city council or village board is required as provided by s. 236.10 (1) (b) 2.


Any person desiring to construct or enlarge a building within the limits of a street, highway, railroad


right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway so shown as extended may apply to the authorized official


of the city or village for a building permit. Any person desiring to construct or enlarge a building within


the limits of a street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway shown


on the official map within the incorporated limits of the municipality shall apply to the authorized


official of the city or village for a building permit. Unless an application is made, and the building permit


granted or not denied within 30 days, the person is not entitled to compensation for damage to the


building in the course of construction of the street, highway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility


or parkway shown on the official map. Unless an application is made, and the building permit granted or


not denied within 30 days, the person is not entitled to compensation for damage to the building in the


course of construction or alteration of the waterway shown on the official map within the incorporated


limits of the municipality. If the land within the mapped street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-


way, public transit facility or parkway is not yielding a fair return, the board of appeals in any


municipality which has established such a board having power to make variances or exceptions in zoning


regulations may, by the vote of a majority of its members, grant a permit for a building or addition in the


path of the street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway, which will


as little as practicable increase the cost of opening the street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way,


public transit facility or parkway or tend to cause a change of the official map. The board may impose


reasonable requirements as a condition of granting the permit to promote the health, convenience,


safety or general welfare of the community. The board shall refuse a permit where the applicant will not


be substantially affected by not constructing the addition or by placing the building outside the mapped


street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway.







(f) In any city in which there is no such board of appeals, the city council shall have the same powers


and shall be subject to the same restrictions. For this purpose such council is authorized to act as a


discretionary administrative or quasi-judicial body. When so acting it shall not sit as a legislative body


but in a separate meeting and with separate minutes kept.


(g) Before taking any action authorized in this subsection, the board of appeals or city council shall hold


a hearing at which parties in interest and others shall have an opportunity to be heard. At least 15 days


before the hearing notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be published as a class 1 notice,


under ch. 985. Any such decision shall be subject to review by certiorari issued by a court of record in


the same manner and pursuant to the same provisions as in appeals from the decisions of a board of


appeals upon zoning regulations.


(h) In any city which has established an official map as herein authorized no public sewer or other


municipal street utility or improvement shall be constructed in any street, highway or parkway until


such street, highway or parkway is duly placed on the official map. No permit for the erection of any


building shall be issued unless a street, highway or parkway giving access to such proposed structure has


been duly placed on the official map. Where the enforcement of the provisions of this section would


entail practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, and where the circumstances of the case do not


require the structure to be related to existing or proposed streets, highways or parkways, the applicant


for such a permit may appeal from the decision of the administrative officer having charge of the issue


of permits to the board of appeals in any city which has established a board having power to make


variances or exceptions in zoning regulations, and the same provisions are applied to such appeals and


to such boards as are provided in cases of appeals on zoning regulations. The board may in passing on


such appeal make any reasonable exception, and issue the permit subject to conditions that will protect


any future street, highway or parkway layout. Any such decision shall be subject to review by certiorari


issued by a court of record in the same manner and pursuant to the same provisions as in appeals from


the decision of such board upon zoning regulations. In any city in which there is no such board of


appeals the city council shall have the same powers and be subject to the same restrictions, and the


same method of court review shall be available. For such purpose such council is authorized to act as a


discretionary administrative or quasi-judicial body. When so acting it shall not sit as a legislative body,


but in a separate meeting and with separate minutes kept.


(i) In those counties where the county maintains and operates parks, parkways, playgrounds, bathing


beaches and other recreational facilities within the limits of any city, such city shall not include said


facilities in the master plan without the approval of the county board of supervisors.


(7) Zoning.


(ab) Definition. In this subsection “nonconforming use" means a use of land, a dwelling, or a building


that existed lawfully before the current zoning ordinance was enacted or amended, but that does not


conform with the use restrictions in the current ordinance.







(am) Grant of power. For the purpose of promoting health, safety, morals or the general welfare of the


community, the council may regulate and restrict by ordinance, subject to par. (hm), the height, number


of stories and size of buildings and other structures, the percentage of lot that may be occupied, the size


of yards, courts and other open spaces, subject to s. 66.10015 (3) the density of population, and the


location and use of buildings, structures and land for trade, industry, mining, residence or other


purposes if there is no discrimination against temporary structures. This subsection and any ordinance,


resolution or regulation enacted or adopted under this section, shall be liberally construed in favor of


the city and as minimum requirements adopted for the purposes stated. This subsection may not be


deemed a limitation of any power granted elsewhere.


(b) Districts. For any and all of said purposes the council may divide the city into districts of such


number, shape, and area as may be deemed best suited to carry out the purposes of this section; and


within such districts it may regulate and restrict the erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration or


use of buildings, structures or land. All such regulations shall be uniform for each class or kind of


buildings and for the use of land throughout each district, but the regulations in one district may differ


from those in other districts. No ordinance enacted or regulation adopted under this subsection may


prohibit forestry operations that are in accordance with generally accepted forestry management


practices, as defined under s. 823.075 (1) (d). The council may establish mixed-use districts that contain


any combination of uses, such as industrial, commercial, public, or residential uses, in a compact urban


form. The council may with the consent of the owners establish special districts, to be called planned


development districts, with regulations in each, which in addition to those provided in par. (c), will over


a period of time tend to promote the maximum benefit from coordinated area site planning, diversified


location of structures and mixed compatible uses. Such regulations shall provide for a safe and efficient


system for pedestrian and vehicular traffic, attractive recreation and landscaped open spaces, economic


design and location of public and private utilities and community facilities and insure adequate


standards of construction and planning. Such regulations may also provide for the development of the


land in such districts with one or more principal structures and related accessory uses, and in planned


development districts and mixed-use districts the regulations need not be uniform.


(c) Purposes in view. Such regulations shall be made in accordance with a comprehensive plan and


designed to lessen congestion in the streets; to secure safety from fire, panic and other dangers; to


promote health and the general welfare; to provide adequate light and air, including access to sunlight


for solar collectors and to wind for wind energy systems; to encourage the protection of groundwater


resources; to prevent the overcrowding of land; to avoid undue concentration of population; to facilitate


the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks and other public


requirements; and to preserve burial sites, as defined in s. 157.70 (1) (b). Such regulations shall be made


with reasonable consideration, among other things, of the character of the district and its peculiar


suitability for particular uses, and with a view to conserving the value of buildings and encouraging the


most appropriate use of land throughout such city.


(d) Method of procedure.


1.







a. Upon the request of the city council, the city plan commission, the board of public land


commissioners, or if the city has neither, the city plan committee of the city council shall prepare and


recommend a district plan and regulations for the city. Following the formulation of tentative


recommendations a public hearing shall be held by, at the council's option, the council, the plan


commission, the board of public land commissioners or the plan committee. The entity holding the


hearing shall consider any comments made, or submitted, by the commanding officer, or the officer's


designee, of a military base or installation, with at least 200 assigned military personnel or that contains


at least 2,000 acres, that is located in or near the city. At least 10 days' prior written notice of any such


hearings shall be given to the clerk of any municipality whose boundaries are within 1,000 feet of any


lands included in the proposed plan and regulations, and to the commanding officer, or the officer's


designee, of any military base or installation, with at least 200 assigned military personnel or that


contains at least 2,000 acres, that is located in or near the city, but failure to give such notice shall not


invalidate such district plan or regulations. Publication of a class 2 notice, under ch. 985, of the tentative


recommendations and hearings thereon must be made once during each of the 2 weeks prior to such


hearing. If the proposed district plan and regulations have the effect of changing the allowable use of


any property within the city, the notice shall include either a map showing the property affected by the


plan and regulations or a description of the property affected by the plan and regulations and a


statement that a map may be obtained from the city council.


b. The council may make changes in the tentative recommendations after first submitting the proposed


changes to the plan commission, board of public land commissioners or plan committee for


recommendation and report and after publishing a class 2 notice, under ch. 985, of the proposed


changes and hearings thereon as well as the notice to the clerk of any contiguous municipality and to


the commanding officer, or the officer's designee, of any military base or installation, with at least 200


assigned military personnel or that contains at least 2,000 acres, that is located in or near the city, as


required in subd. 1. a. Hearings on the proposed changes may be held by, at the council's option, the


council, the plan commission, the board of public land commissioners or the plan committee. The entity


holding the hearing shall consider any comments made, or submitted, by the commanding officer, or the


officer's designee, of a military base or installation, with at least 200 assigned military personnel or that


contains at least 2,000 acres, that is located in or near the city. If the proposed changes to the proposed


district plan and regulations have the effect of changing the allowable use of any property within the


city, the notice shall include either a map showing the property affected by the changes or a description


of the property affected by the changes and a statement that a map may be obtained from the city


council.


2. The council may adopt amendments to an existing zoning ordinance after first submitting the


proposed amendments to the city plan commission, board of public land commissioners or plan


committee for recommendation and report and after providing the notices as required in subd. 1. b. of


the proposed amendments and hearings thereon. In any city which is not located in whole or in part in a


county with a population of 500,000 or more, if the proposed amendments would make any change in


an airport affected area, as defined in sub. (6) (am) 1. b., the council shall mail a copy of such notice to


the owner or operator of the airport bordered by the airport affected area. A hearing shall be held on


the proposed amendments by, at the council's option, the council, the plan commission, the board of


public land commissioners or the plan committee. The entity holding the hearing shall consider any







comments made, or submitted, by the commanding officer, or the officer's designee, of a military base


or installation, with at least 200 assigned military personnel or that contains at least 2,000 acres, that is


located in or near the city. If the proposed amendments have the effect of changing the allowable use of


any property within the city, the notice shall include either a map showing the property affected by the


amendments or a description of the property affected by the amendments and a statement that a map


may be obtained from the city council. If the council does not receive recommendations and a report


from the plan commission, board of public land commissioners or plan committee within 60 days of


submitting the proposed amendments, the council may hold hearings without first receiving the


recommendations and report.


2m.


a. In case of a protest against an amendment proposed under subd. 2., duly signed and acknowledged


by the owners of 20 percent or more either of the areas of the land included in such proposed


amendment, or by the owners of 20 percent or more of the area of the land immediately adjacent


extending 100 feet therefrom, or by the owners of 20 percent or more of the land directly opposite


thereto extending 100 feet from the street frontage of such opposite land, such amendment shall not


become effective except by the favorable vote of three-fourths of the members of the council voting on


the proposed change.


b. In any city which is not located in whole or in part in a county with a population of 500,000 or more,


if a proposed amendment under subd. 2. would make any change in an airport affected area, as defined


under sub. (6) (am) 1. b. and the owner or operator of the airport bordered by the airport affected area


protests against the amendment, the amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable


vote of two-thirds of the members of the council voting on the proposed change.


3. The council may repeal or repeal and reenact the entire district plan and all zoning regulations in


accordance with subd. 1. The council may repeal or repeal and reenact a part or parts of the district plan


and regulations in accordance with subds. 2. and 2m.


4. The city council shall maintain a list of persons who submit a written or electronic request to receive


notice of any proposed zoning action that may be taken under subd. 1. a. or b. or 2. that affects the


allowable use of the person's property. Annually, the city council shall inform residents of the city that


they may add their names to the list. The city council may satisfy this requirement to provide such


information by any of the following means: publishing a 1st class notice under ch. 985; publishing on the


city's Internet site; 1st class mail; or including the information in a mailing that is sent to all property


owners. If the plan commission, the board of public land commissioners, or city plan committee of the


city council completes action on any tentative recommendations that are noticed under subd. 1. a.,


proposed changes to a proposed district plan and regulations that are submitted under subd. 1. b., or


proposed amendments that are submitted under subd. 2., and the city council is prepared to vote on


the tentative recommendations, proposed changes to a proposed district plan, and regulations or


proposed amendments, the city council shall send a notice, which contains a copy or summary of the


tentative recommendations, proposed changes to a proposed district plan, and regulations or proposed


amendments, to each person on the list whose property, the allowable use of which, may be affected by







the tentative recommendations or proposed changes or amendments. The notice shall be by mail or in


any reasonable form that is agreed to by the person and the city council, including electronic mail, voice


mail, or text message. The city council may charge each person on the list who receives a notice by 1st


class mail a fee that does not exceed the approximate cost of providing the notice to the person. An


ordinance or amendment that is subject to this subdivision may take effect even if the city council fails


to send the notice that is required by this subdivision.


(da) Interim zoning. The common council of any city which has not adopted a zoning ordinance may,


without referring the matter to the plan commission, enact an interim zoning ordinance to preserve


existing uses while the comprehensive zoning plan is being prepared. Such ordinance may be enacted as


is an ordinary ordinance but shall be effective for no longer than 2 years after its enactment.


(e) Board of appeals.


1. The council which enacts zoning regulations pursuant to this section shall by ordinance provide for


the appointment of a board of appeals, and shall provide in such regulations that said board of appeals


may, in appropriate cases and subject to appropriate conditions and safeguards, make special


exceptions to the terms of the ordinance in harmony with its general purpose and intent and in


accordance with general or specific rules therein contained. Nothing in this subdivision shall preclude


the granting of special exceptions by the city plan commission or the common council in accordance


with the zoning regulations adopted pursuant to this section which were in effect on July 7, 1973 or


adopted after that date.


2. The board of appeals shall consist of 5 members appointed by the mayor subject to confirmation of


the common council for terms of 3 years, except that of those first appointed one shall serve for one


year, 2 for 2 years and 2 for 3 years. The members of the board shall serve at such compensation to be


fixed by ordinance, and shall be removable by the mayor for cause upon written charges and after public


hearing. The mayor shall designate one of the members as chairperson. The board may employ a


secretary and other employees. Vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired terms of members whose


terms become vacant. The mayor shall appoint, for staggered terms of 3 years, 2 alternate members of


such board, in addition to the 5 members above provided for. Annually, the mayor shall designate one


of the alternate members as 1st alternate and the other as 2nd alternate. The 1st alternate shall act,


with full power, only when a member of the board refuses to vote because of interest or when a


member is absent. The 2nd alternate shall so act only when the 1st alternate so refuses or is absent or


when more than one member of the board so refuses or is absent. The above provisions, with regard to


removal and the filling of vacancies, shall apply to such alternates.


3. The board shall adopt rules in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance adopted pursuant to


this section. Meetings of the board shall be held at the call of the chairperson and at such other times as


the board may determine. The chairperson, or in the chairperson's absence, the acting chairperson, may


administer oaths and compel the attendance of witnesses. All meetings of the board shall be open to


the public. The board shall keep minutes of its proceedings, showing the vote of each member upon


each question, or, if absent or failing to vote, indicating such fact, and shall keep records of its







examinations and other official actions, all of which shall be immediately filed in the office of the board


and shall be a public record.


3m. If a quorum is present, the board of appeals may take action under this subsection by a majority


vote of the members present.


4. Appeals to the board of appeals may be taken by any person aggrieved or by any officer, department,


board or bureau of the city affected by any decision of the administrative officer. Such appeal shall be


taken within a reasonable time, as provided by the rules of the board, by filing with the officer from


whom the appeal is taken and with the board of appeals a notice of appeal specifying the grounds


thereof. The officer from whom the appeal is taken shall forthwith transmit to the board all the papers


constituting the record upon which the action appealed from was taken.


5. An appeal shall stay all legal proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed from, unless the


officer from whom the appeal is taken certifies to the board of appeals after the notice of appeal shall


have been filed with the officer, that by reason of facts stated in the certificate a stay would, in the


officer's opinion, cause imminent peril to life or property. In such case proceedings shall not be stayed


otherwise than by a restraining order which may be granted by the board of appeals or by a court of


record on application, on notice to the officer from whom the appeal is taken, and on due cause shown.


6. The board of appeals shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of the appeal or other matter


referred to it, and give public notice thereof, as well as due notice to the parties in interest, and decide


the same within a reasonable time. Upon the hearing any party may appear in person or by agent or by


attorney. In any action involving a listed property, as defined in s. 44.31 (4), the board shall consider any


suggested alternatives or recommended decision submitted by the landmarks commission or the


planning commission.


7. The board of appeals shall have the following powers: To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged


there is error in any order, requirement, decision or determination made by an administrative official in


the enforcement of this section or of any ordinance adopted pursuant thereto; to hear and decide


special exception to the terms of the ordinance upon which such board is required to pass under such


ordinance; to authorize upon appeal in specific cases such variance from the terms of the ordinance as


will not be contrary to the public interest, where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of


the provisions of the ordinance will result in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, so that the


spirit of the ordinance shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done.


The council of a city may enact an ordinance specifying an expiration date for a variance granted under


this subdivision if that date relates to a specific date by which the action authorized by the variance


must be commenced or completed. If no such ordinance is in effect at the time a variance is granted, or


if the board of appeals does not specify an expiration date for the variance, a variance granted under


this subdivision does not expire unless, at the time it is granted, the board of appeals specifies in the


variance a specific date by which the action authorized by the variance must be commenced or


completed. An ordinance enacted after April 5, 2012, may not specify an expiration date for a variance


that was granted before April 5, 2012. A variance granted under this subdivision runs with the land. The


board may permit in appropriate cases, and subject to appropriate conditions and safeguards in







harmony with the general purpose and intent of the ordinance, a building or premises to be erected or


used for such public utility purposes in any location which is reasonably necessary for the public


convenience and welfare.


8. In exercising the above mentioned powers such board may, in conformity with the provisions of such


section, reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may modify the order, requirement, decision or


determination appealed from, and may make such order, requirement, decision or determination as


ought to be made, and to that end shall have all the powers of the officer from whom the appeal is


taken, and may issue or direct the issue of a permit.


10. Any person or persons, jointly or severally aggrieved by any decision of the board of appeals, or any


taxpayer, or any officer, department, board or bureau of the municipality, may, within 30 days after the


filing of the decision in the office of the board of appeals, commence an action seeking the remedy


available by certiorari. The court shall not stay proceedings upon the decision appealed from, but may,


on application, on notice to the board of appeals and on due cause shown, grant a restraining order. The


board of appeals shall not be required to return the original papers acted upon by it, but it shall be


sufficient to return certified or sworn copies thereof. If necessary for the proper disposition of the


matter, the court may take evidence, or appoint a referee to take evidence and report findings of fact


and conclusions of law as it directs, which shall constitute a part of the proceedings upon which the


determination of the court shall be made. The court may reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may


modify, the decision brought up for review.


14. Costs shall not be allowed against the board unless it shall appear to the court that the board acted


with gross negligence or in bad faith, or with malice, in making the decision appealed from.


15. All issues in any proceedings under this section shall have preference over all other civil actions and


proceedings.


(ea) Filing fees. The common council may by ordinance or resolution establish reasonable fees for the


filing of a petition for amendment of the zoning ordinance or official map, or for filing an appeal to the


board of appeals.


(em) Historic preservation.


1. Subject to subd. 2., a city, as an exercise of its zoning and police powers for the purpose of promoting


the health, safety and general welfare of the community and of the state, may regulate by ordinance, or


if a city contains any property that is listed on the national register of historic places in Wisconsin or the


state register of historic places shall, not later than 1995, enact an ordinance to regulate, any place,


structure or object with a special character, historic, archaeological or aesthetic interest, or other


significant value, for the purpose of preserving the place, structure or object and its significant


characteristics. Subject to subds. 2. and 3., a city may create a landmarks commission to designate


historic or archaeological landmarks and establish historic districts. Subject to subd. 2., the city may


regulate, or if the city contains any property that is listed on the national register of historic places in


Wisconsin or the state register of historic places shall regulate, all historic or archaeological landmarks







and all property within each historic district to preserve the historic or archaeological landmarks and


property within the district and the character of the district.


2. Before the city designates a historic landmark or establishes a historic district, the city shall hold a


public hearing. If the city proposes to designate a place, structure, or object as a historic landmark or


establish a historic district that includes a place, structure, or object, the city shall, by 1st class mail,


notify the owner of the place, structure, or object of the determination and of the time and place of the


public hearing on the determination.


3. An owner of property that is affected by a decision of a city landmarks commission may appeal the


decision to the common council. The common council may overturn a decision of the commission by a


majority vote of the common council.


(f) Enforcement and remedies.


1. The council may provide by ordinance for the enforcement of this section and of any ordinance or


regulation made thereunder. In case of a violation of this section or of such ordinance or regulation such


council may provide for the punishment by fine and by imprisonment for failure to pay such fine. It is


also empowered to provide civil penalties for such violation.


2. In case any building or structure is or is proposed to be erected, constructed, reconstructed, altered,


converted or maintained, or any building, structure or land is or is proposed to be used in violation of


this section or of any ordinance or other regulation made under authority conferred hereby, the proper


authorities of the city, or any adjacent or neighboring property owner who would be specially damaged


by such violation may, in addition to other remedies, institute appropriate action or proceedings to


prevent such unlawful erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration, conversion, maintenance or


use; to restrain, correct or abate such violation; to prevent the occupancy of said building, structure or


land; or to prevent any illegal act, conduct, business or use in or about such premises.


(g) Conflict with other laws. Wherever the regulations made under authority of this section require a


greater width or size of yards, courts or other open spaces, or require a lower height of building or less


number of stories, or require a greater percentage of lot to be left unoccupied, or impose other higher


standards than are required in any other statute or local ordinance or regulation, the provisions of the


regulations made under authority of this section shall govern. Wherever the provisions of any other


statute or local ordinance or regulation require a greater width or size of yards, courts or other open


spaces, or require a lower height of building or a less number of stories, or require a greater percentage


of lot to be left unoccupied, or impose other higher standards than are required by the regulations


made under authority of this section, the provisions of such statute or local ordinance or regulation shall


govern.







(gm) Permits. Neither the city council, nor the city plan commission, nor the city plan committee of the


city council, nor the board of appeals may condition or withhold approval of a permit under this section


based upon the property owner entering into a contract, or discontinuing, modifying, extending, or


renewing any contract, with a 3rd party under which the 3rd party is engaging in a lawful use of the


property.


(h) Nonconforming uses. The continued lawful use of a building, premises, structure, or fixture existing


at the time of the adoption or amendment of a zoning ordinance may not be prohibited although the


use does not conform with the provisions of the ordinance. The nonconforming use may not be


extended. The total structural repairs or alterations in such a nonconforming building, premises,


structure, or fixture shall not during its life exceed 50 percent of the assessed value of the building,


premises, structure, or fixture unless permanently changed to a conforming use. If the nonconforming


use is discontinued for a period of 12 months, any future use of the building, premises, structure, or


fixture shall conform to the ordinance.


(ham) Manufactured home communities. Notwithstanding par. (h), a manufactured home community


licensed under s. 101.935 that is a legal nonconforming use continues to be a legal nonconforming use


notwithstanding the occurrence of any of the following activities within the community:


1. Repair or replacement of homes.


2. Repair or replacement of infrastructure.


(hb) Repair and maintenance of certain nonconforming structures.


1. In this paragraph:


a. “Development regulations" means the part of a zoning ordinance enacted under this subsection that


applies to elements including setback, height, lot coverage, and side yard.


b. “Nonconforming structure" means a dwelling or other building that existed lawfully before the


current zoning ordinance was enacted or amended, but that does not conform with one or more of the


development regulations in the current zoning ordinance.


2. An ordinance enacted under this subsection may not prohibit, or limit based on cost, the repair,


maintenance, renovation, or remodeling of a nonconforming structure.


(hc) Restoration or replacement of certain nonconforming structures.


1. Restrictions that are applicable to damaged or destroyed nonconforming structures and that are


contained in an ordinance enacted under this subsection may not prohibit the restoration or


replacement of a nonconforming structure if the structure will be restored to, or replaced at, the size,


subject to subd. 2., location, and use that it had immediately before the damage or destruction







occurred, or impose any limits on the costs of the repair, reconstruction, or improvement if all of the


following apply:


a. The nonconforming structure was damaged or destroyed on or after March 2, 2006.


b. The damage or destruction was caused by violent wind, vandalism, fire, flood, ice, snow, mold, or


infestation.


2. An ordinance enacted under this subsection to which subd. 1. applies shall allow for the size of a


structure to be larger than the size it was immediately before the damage or destruction if necessary for


the structure to comply with applicable state or federal requirements.


(he) Antenna facilities. The governing body of a city may not enact an ordinance or adopt a resolution


on or after May 6, 1994, or continue to enforce an ordinance or resolution on or after May 6, 1994, that


affects satellite antennas with a diameter of 2 feet or less unless one of the following applies:


1. The ordinance or resolution has a reasonable and clearly defined aesthetic or public health or safety


objective.


2. The ordinance or resolution does not impose an unreasonable limitation on, or prevent, the


reception of satellite-delivered signals by a satellite antenna with a diameter of 2 feet or less.


3. The ordinance or resolution does not impose costs on a user of a satellite antenna with a diameter of


2 feet or less that exceed 10 percent of the purchase price and installation fee of the antenna and


associated equipment.


(hf) Amateur radio antennas. The governing body of a city may not enact an ordinance or adopt a


resolution on or after April 17, 2002, or continue to enforce an ordinance or resolution on or after April


17, 2002, that affects the placement, screening, or height of antennas, or antenna support structures,


that are used for amateur radio communications unless all of the following apply:


1. The ordinance or resolution has a reasonable and clearly defined aesthetic, public health, or safety


objective, and represents the minimum practical regulation that is necessary to accomplish the


objectives.


2. The ordinance or resolution reasonably accommodates amateur radio communications.


(hg) Amortization prohibited.


1. In this paragraph, “ amortization ordinance" means an ordinance that allows the continuance of the


lawful use of a nonconforming building, premises, structure, or fixture that may be lawfully used as


described under par. (h), but only for a specified period of time, after which the lawful use of such


building, premises, structure, or fixture must be discontinued without the payment of just


compensation.







2. Subject to par. (h), an ordinance enacted under this subsection may not require the removal of a


nonconforming building, premises, structure, or fixture by an amortization ordinance.


(hi) Payday lenders.


1. In this paragraph:


a. “Licensee" has the meaning given in s. 138.14 (1) (i).


b. “Payday lender" means a business, owned by a licensee, that makes payday loans.


c. “Payday loan" has the meaning given in s. 138.14 (1) (k).


2. Except as provided in subds. 3., 4., and 5., no payday lender may operate in a city unless it receives a


permit to do so from the city council, and the city council may not issue a permit to a payday lender if


any of the following applies:


a. The payday lender would be located within 1,500 feet of another payday lender.


b. The payday lender would be located within 150 feet of a single-family or 2-family residential zoning


district.


3. A city may regulate payday lenders by enacting a zoning ordinance that contains provisions that are


more strict than those specified in subd. 2.


4. If a city has enacted an ordinance regulating payday lenders that is in effect on January 1, 2011, the


ordinance may continue to apply and the city may continue to enforce the ordinance, but only if the


ordinance is at least as restrictive as the provisions of subd. 2.


5. Notwithstanding the provisions of subd. 4., if a payday lender that is doing business on January 1,


2011, from a location that does not comply with the provisions of subd. 2., the payday lender may


continue to operate from that location notwithstanding the provisions of subd. 2.


(hm) Migrant labor camps. The council of a city may not enact an ordinance or adopt a resolution that


interferes with any repair or expansion of migrant labor camps, as defined in s. 103.90 (3), that are in


existence on May 12, 1992, if the repair or expansion is required by an administrative rule promulgated


by the department of workforce development under ss. 103.90 to 103.97. An ordinance or resolution of


a city that is in effect on May 12, 1992, and that interferes with any repair or expansion of existing


migrant labor camps that is required by such an administrative rule is void.







(i) Community and other living arrangements. For purposes of this section, the location of a community


living arrangement for adults, as defined in s. 46.03 (22), a community living arrangement for children,


as defined in s. 48.743 (1), a foster home, as defined in s. 48.02 (6), or an adult family home, as defined


in s. 50.01 (1), in any city shall be subject to the following criteria:


1. No community living arrangement may be established after March 28, 1978 within 2,500 feet, or any


lesser distance established by an ordinance of the city, of any other such facility. Agents of a facility may


apply for an exception to this requirement, and such exceptions may be granted at the discretion of the


city. Two community living arrangements may be adjacent if the city authorizes that arrangement and if


both facilities comprise essential components of a single program.


2. Community living arrangements shall be permitted in each city without restriction as to the number


of facilities, so long as the total capacity of such community living arrangements does not exceed 25 or


one percent of the city's population, whichever is greater. When the capacity of the community living


arrangements in the city reaches that total, the city may prohibit additional community living


arrangements from locating in the city. In any city of the 1st, 2nd, 3rd or 4th class, when the capacity of


community living arrangements in an aldermanic district reaches 25 or one percent of the population,


whichever is greater, of the district, the city may prohibit additional community living arrangements


from being located within the district. Agents of a facility may apply for an exception to the


requirements of this subdivision, and such exceptions may be granted at the discretion of the city.


2m. A foster home that is the primary domicile of a foster parent and that is licensed under s. 48.62 or


an adult family home certified under s. 50.032 (1m) (b) shall be a permitted use in all residential areas


and is not subject to subds. 1. and 2. except that foster homes operated by corporations, child welfare


agencies, churches, associations, or public agencies shall be subject to subds. 1. and 2.


2r.


a. No adult family home described in s. 50.01 (1) (b) may be established within 2,500 feet, or any lesser


distance established by an ordinance of the city, of any other adult family home described in s. 50.01 (1)


(b) or any community living arrangement. An agent of an adult family home described in s. 50.01 (1) (b)


may apply for an exception to this requirement, and the exception may be granted at the discretion of


the city.


b. An adult family home described in s. 50.01 (1) (b) that meets the criteria specified in subd. 2r. a. and


that is licensed under s. 50.033 (1m) (b) is permitted in the city without restriction as to the number of


adult family homes and may locate in any residential zone, without being required to obtain special


zoning permission except as provided in subd. 9.


3. In all cases where the community living arrangement has capacity for 8 or fewer persons being


served by the program, meets the criteria listed in subds. 1. and 2., and is licensed, operated, or


permitted under the authority of the department of health services or the department of children and







families, that facility is entitled to locate in any residential zone, without being required to obtain special


zoning permission except as provided in subd. 9.


4. In all cases where the community living arrangement has capacity for 9 to 15 persons being served by


the program, meets the criteria listed in subds. 1. and 2., and is licensed, operated, or permitted under


the authority of the department of health services or the department of children and families, that


facility is entitled to locate in any residential area except areas zoned exclusively for single-family or 2-


family residences except as provided in subd. 9., but is entitled to apply for special zoning permission to


locate in those areas. The city may grant such special zoning permission at its discretion and shall make


a procedure available to enable such facilities to request such permission.


5. In all cases where the community living arrangement has capacity for serving 16 or more persons,


meets the criteria listed in subds. 1. and 2., and is licensed, operated, or permitted under the authority


of the department of health services or the department of children and families, that facility is entitled


to apply for special zoning permission to locate in areas zoned for residential use. The city may grant


such special zoning permission at its discretion and shall make a procedure available to enable such


facilities to request such permission.


6. The department of health services shall designate a single subunit within that department to


maintain appropriate records indicating the location and number of persons served by each community


living arrangement for adults, and such information shall be available to the public. The department of


children and families shall designate a single subunit within that department to maintain appropriate


records indicating the location and number of persons served by each community living arrangement for


children, and such information shall be available to the public.


7. In this paragraph, “ special zoning permission" includes but is not limited to the following: special


exception, special permit, conditional use, zoning variance, conditional permit and words of similar


intent.


8. The attorney general shall take all necessary action, upon the request of the department of health


services or the department of children and families, to enforce compliance with this paragraph.


9. Not less than 11 months nor more than 13 months after the first licensure of an adult family home


under s. 50.033 or of a community living arrangement and every year thereafter, the common council of


a city in which a licensed adult family home or a community living arrangement is located may make a


determination as to the effect of the adult family home or community living arrangement on the health,


safety or welfare of the residents of the city. The determination shall be made according to the


procedures provided under subd. 10. If the common council determines that the existence in the city of


a licensed adult family home or a community living arrangement poses a threat to the health, safety or


welfare of the residents of the city, the common council may order the adult family home or community


living arrangement to cease operation unless special zoning permission is obtained. The order is subject


to judicial review under s. 68.13, except that a free copy of the transcript may not be provided to the


adult family home or community living arrangement. The adult family home or community living







arrangement must cease operation within 90 days after the date of the order, or the date of final judicial


review of the order, or the date of the denial of special zoning permission, whichever is later.


9m. The fact that an individual with acquired immunodeficiency syndrome or a positive HIV test, as


defined in s. 252.01 (2m), resides in a community living arrangement with a capacity for 8 or fewer


persons may not be used under subd. 9. to assert or prove that the existence of the community living


arrangement in the city poses a threat to the health, safety or welfare of the residents of the city.


10. A determination made under subd. 9. shall be made after a hearing before the common council. The


city shall provide at least 30 days' notice to the licensed adult family home or the community living


arrangement that such a hearing will be held. At the hearing, the licensed adult family home or the


community living arrangement may be represented by counsel and may present evidence and call and


examine witnesses and cross-examine other witnesses called. The common council may call witnesses


and may issue subpoenas. All witnesses shall be sworn by the common council. The common council


shall take notes of the testimony and shall mark and preserve all exhibits. The common council may, and


upon request of the licensed adult family home or the community living arrangement shall, cause the


proceedings to be taken by a stenographer or by a recording device, the expense thereof to be paid by


the city. Within 20 days after the hearing, the common council shall mail or deliver to the licensed adult


family home or the community living arrangement its written determination stating the reasons


therefor. The determination shall be a final determination.


(7a) Extraterritorial zoning. The governing body of any city which has created a city plan commission


under sub. (1) and has adopted a zoning ordinance under sub. (7) may exercise extraterritorial zoning


power as set forth in this subsection. Insofar as applicable sub. (7) (am), (b), (c), (ea), (h) and (i) shall


apply to extraterritorial zoning ordinances enacted under this subsection. This subsection shall also


apply to the governing body of any village.


(a) Extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction means the unincorporated area within 3 miles of the corporate


limits of a first, second or third class city, or 1 1/2 miles of a fourth class city or a village. Wherever


extraterritorial zoning jurisdictions overlap, the provisions of s. 66.0105 shall apply and any subsequent


alteration of the corporate limits of the city by annexation, detachment or consolidation proceedings


shall not affect the dividing line as initially determined under s. 66.0105. The governing body of the city


shall specify by resolution the description of the area to be zoned within its extraterritorial zoning


jurisdiction sufficiently accurate to determine its location and such area shall be contiguous to the city.


The boundary line of such area shall follow government lot or survey section or fractional section lines


or public roads, but need not extend to the limits of the extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction. Within 15


days of the adoption of the resolution the governing body shall declare its intention to prepare a


comprehensive zoning ordinance for all or part of its extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction by the


publication of the resolution in a newspaper having general circulation in the area proposed to be


zoned, as a class 1 notice, under ch. 985. The city clerk shall mail a certified copy of the resolution and a







scale map reasonably showing the boundaries of the extraterritorial jurisdiction to the clerk of the


county in which the extraterritorial jurisdiction area is located and to the town clerk of each town, any


part of which is included in such area.


(b) The governing body may enact, without referring the matter to the plan commission, an interim


zoning ordinance to preserve existing zoning or uses in all or part of the extraterritorial zoning


jurisdiction while the comprehensive zoning plan is being prepared. Such ordinance may be enacted as


is an ordinary ordinance but shall be effective for no longer than 2 years after its enactment, unless


extended as provided in this paragraph. Within 15 days of its passage, the governing body of the city


shall publish the ordinance in a newspaper having general circulation in the area proposed to be zoned


as a class 1 notice, under ch. 985, or as a notice, as described under s. 62.11 (4) (c) 2., and the city clerk


shall mail a certified copy of the ordinance to the clerk of the county in which the extraterritorial


jurisdiction is located and to the clerk of each town affected by the interim zoning ordinance and shall


file a copy of the ordinance with the city plan commission. The governing body of the city may extend


the interim zoning ordinance for no longer than one year, upon the recommendation of the joint


extraterritorial zoning committee established under par. (c). No other interim zoning ordinance shall be


enacted affecting the same area or part thereof until 2 years after the date of the expiration of the


interim zoning ordinance or the one year extension thereof. While the interim zoning ordinance is in


effect, the governing body of the city may amend the districts and regulations of the ordinance


according to the procedure set forth in par. (f).


(c) If the governing body of the city adopts a resolution under par. (a), it shall direct the plan


commission to formulate tentative recommendations for the district plan and regulations within all or a


part of the extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction as described in the resolution adopted under par. (a).


When the plan commission is engaged in the preparation of such district plan and regulations, or


amendments thereto, a joint extraterritorial zoning committee shall be established. Such joint


committee shall consist of 3 citizen members of the plan commission, or 3 members of the plan


commission designated by the mayor if there are no citizen members of the commission, and 3 town


members from each town affected by the proposed plan and regulations, or amendments thereto. The 3


town members shall be appointed by the town board for 3 year terms and shall be residents of the town


and persons of recognized experience and qualifications. Town board members are eligible to serve. If


the town board fails to appoint the 3 members within 30 days following receipt of the certified


resolution under par. (a), the board shall be subject to a mandamus proceeding which may be instituted


by any resident of the area to be zoned or by the city adopting such resolution. The entire plan


commission shall participate with the joint committee in the preparation of the plan and regulations, or


amendments thereto. Only the members of the joint committee shall vote on matters relating to the


extraterritorial plan and regulations, or amendments thereto. A separate vote shall be taken on the plan


and regulations for each town and the town members of the joint committee shall vote only on matters


affecting the particular town which they represent. The governing body shall not adopt the proposed


plan and regulations, or amendments thereto, unless the proposed plan and regulations, or


amendments thereto, receive a favorable vote of a majority of the 6 members of the joint committee.


Such vote shall be deemed action taken by the entire plan commission.







(d) The joint committee shall formulate tentative recommendations for the district plan and regulations


and shall hold a public hearing thereon. Notice of a hearing shall be given by publication in a newspaper


having general circulation in the area to be zoned, as a class 2 notice, under ch. 985, during the


preceding 30 days, and by mailing the notice to the town clerk of the town for which the plan and


regulations are proposed. The notice shall contain the layout of tentative districts either by maps or


words of description, and may contain the street names and house lot numbers for purposes of


identification if the joint committee or the governing body so determines. At a public hearing an


opportunity to be heard shall be afforded to representatives of the town board of the town and to any


person in the town for which the plan and regulations are proposed.


(e) The governing body of the city may adopt by ordinance the proposed district plan and regulations


recommended by the joint committee after giving notice and holding a hearing as provided in par. (d),


or the governing body may change the proposed districts and regulations after first submitting the


proposed changes to the joint committee for recommendation and report. The joint committee and the


governing body may hold a hearing on the proposed changes after giving notice as provided in par. (d).


The joint committee recommendation on the proposed changes shall be submitted to the governing


body in accordance with the voting requirements set forth in par. (c).


(f) The governing body of the city may amend the districts and regulations of the extraterritorial zoning


ordinance after first submitting the proposed amendment to the joint committee for recommendation


and report. The procedure set forth in pars. (c), (d) and (e) shall apply to amendments to the


extraterritorial zoning ordinance. In the case of a protest against an amendment the applicable


provisions under sub. (7) (d) shall be followed.


(g) Insofar as applicable the provisions of subs. (7) (e), (f), (8) and (9) shall apply. The governing body of


a city which adopts an extraterritorial zoning ordinance under this subsection may specifically provide in


the ordinance for the enforcement and administration of this subsection. A town which has been issuing


building permits may continue to do so, but the city building inspector shall approve such permits as to


zoning prior to their issuance.


(8) Other measures of enforcement and remedies; penalty. Any building erected, constructed or


reconstructed in violation of this section or regulations adopted pursuant thereto shall be deemed an


unlawful structure, and the building inspector or city attorney or other official designated by the council


may bring action to enjoin such erection, construction or reconstruction, or cause such structure to be


vacated or removed. It shall be unlawful to erect, construct or reconstruct any building or structure in


violation of this section or regulations adopted pursuant thereto. Any person, firm or corporation


violating such provisions shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be


fined not more than $500. Each and every day during which said illegal erection, construction or


reconstruction continues shall be deemed a separate offense. In case any building or structure is or is


proposed to be erected, constructed or reconstructed, or any land is or is proposed to be used in


violation of this section or regulations adopted pursuant thereto, the building inspector or the city


attorney or any adjacent or neighboring property owner who would be specially damaged by such


violation, may, in addition to other remedies provided by law, institute injunction, mandamus,







abatement or any other appropriate action or proceeding to prevent or enjoin or abate or remove such


unlawful erection, construction or reconstruction.


(9) Building inspection.


(a) The city council may provide for the enforcement of this section and all other laws and ordinances


relating to buildings by means of the withholding of building permits, imposition of forfeitures and


injunctive action, and for such purposes may establish and fill the position of building inspector. From


and after the establishment of such position and the filling of the same, it shall be unlawful to erect,


construct or reconstruct any building or other structure without obtaining a building permit from such


building inspector; and such building inspector shall not issue any permit unless the requirements of this


section are complied with.


(b) The council may by ordinance designate general fire limits and regulate for safety and fire


prevention the construction, alteration, enlargement and repair of buildings and structures within such


limits, and may designate special fire limits within the general limits, and prescribe additional


regulations therein. Any such proposed ordinance or amendment thereto shall be referred to the city


plan commission, if such commission exists, for consideration and report, before final action is taken


thereon by the council. However, no such ordinance or amendment thereto shall be adopted or become


effective until after a public hearing in relation thereto, which may be held by the city plan commission


or council, at which parties in interest and citizens shall have an opportunity to be heard. Notice of the


time and place of the hearing shall be published as a class 2 notice, under ch. 985.








DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 19, 2017 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  1 


Location: Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
 Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
 600 South Fourth Street 
 Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589 


Members Present: Alderperson Matt Bartlett, Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Citizen 
Member David Erdman, Alderperson Pat O’Connor, Mayor Donna 
Olson, and Citizen Member Alan Staats 


Excused: Citizen Member John Kallas 


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops and Stoughton 
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E. 


Call to Order:  Mayor Donna Olson called the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting to 
order at 5:00 p.m. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops and 
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities 
Committee consent agenda items.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, 
the motion seconded by Citizen Member Alan Staats, to approve the following consent agenda 
items as presented: Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List, Draft Minutes of the May 15, 2017 
Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities April 2017 Financial Summary, 
Stoughton Utilities Statistical Information, Stoughton Utilities May 2017 Activities Report, Utilities 
Committee Annual Calendar, and Utilities Communications.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 
0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops 
presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 
approved and placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report 


 Stoughton Utilities Committee April 17, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 


 Stoughton Utilities March 2017 Financial Summary 


Alderperson Michael Engelberger arrived at the meeting at 5:27 p.m. 


Proposed electric and water tax-stabilization dividends:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented and discussed the 
proposed electric and water tax stabilization dividends of $12,698 and $3,743 respectively.  
Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded by 
Alderperson Matt Bartlett, to approve the electric and water tax-stabilization dividends of $12,698 
and $3,743 respectively and present them to the Stoughton Common Council on June 27, 2017.  
The motion carried 5 to 1 with Citizen Member Alan Staats voting Noe.   







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 19, 2017 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  2 


Electrical infrastructure improvements adjacent to riverfront development area:   Stoughton 
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented 
and discussed electrical infrastructure improvements in the Riverfront Development Area and 
surrounding areas, emphasizing funding, planning, and the establishment of appropriate grades.  
Discussion followed. 


Overhead to underground electrical service upgrades:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented and discussed overhead 
to underground electrical service upgrades.  Discussion followed. 


Wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system 2016 Compliance 
Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and 
discussed the 2016 CMAR.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the 
motion seconded by Alderperson Matt Bartlett, to approve the 2016 CMAR and recommend the 
approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on 
June 27, 2017.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Current City of Stoughton licensing agreement for communications attachments to utility 
poles:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian 
Hoops presented and discussed the agreement.  Discussion followed. 


Wisconsin Assembly Bill 348 proposed legislation, which limits local government authority 
over pole attachment regulation:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton 
Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented and discussed Assembly Bill 348.  Discussion 
followed. 


Adoption of the American Public Power Association (APPA) Safety Manual 16th Edition, 
2017:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian 
Hoops present and discussed the APPA Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017.  Discussion followed.  
Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David 
Erdman, to adopt the APPA Safety Manual, 16th Edition, 2017, and recommend the adoption of the 
manual and the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on June 27, 2017.  
The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Utilities Committee future agenda items:  None.  


Adjournment:  Motion by Citizen Member Alan Staats, the motion seconded by Citizen Member 
David Erdman, to adjourn the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting at 6:18 p.m.  The 
motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Respectfully submitted 


Brian R. Hoops 
Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:56PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 6/2/2017


Friday, June 02, 2017


Description


7430Company:


VO for check batch: 307578EP001416 516 WELLS FARGO BANK5/9/2017  58,902.57


WPPI-Renewable energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar 


Credit/WPPI-Shared Savings/WPPI-Large 


Power/WPPI-Support/WPPI-Support/WPPI-Support


HC001417 009 WPPI5/23/2017  730,447.73


First Data-May Ach/First Data-May Ach/First 


Data-May Ach/First Data-May Ach


HC001418 421 FIRST DATA CHARGES5/30/2017  30.52


EBC-May Ach/EBC-May Ach/EBC-May 


Ach/EBC-May Ach


HC001419 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach5/30/2017  1,109.44


Delta Dental - May Ach/Delta Dental - May 


Ach/Delta Dental - May Ach


HC001420 001 Delta Dental - Ach5/30/2017  1,310.64


Gordon Flesch-May Ach/Gordon Flesch-May 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-May Ach/Gordon Flesch-May 


Ach


HC001421 856 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, INC.5/30/2017  160.91


TDS Metrocom - May Ach/TDS Metrocom - May 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - May Ach/TDS Metrocom - 


May Ach


HC001422 007 TDS Metrocom - Ach5/30/2017  460.89


Us Cellular - May Ach/Us Cellular - May Ach/Us 


Cellular - May Ach


HC001423 004 Us Cellular - Ach5/30/2017  1,214.96


Charter-May Ach/Charter-May Ach/Charter-May 


Ach/Charter-May Ach


HC001424 547 Charter Communications-Ach5/30/2017  415.90


AT&T-May Ach/AT&T-May Ach/AT&T-May AchHC001425 952 AT&T5/30/2017  167.45


Alliant Energy - May Ach/Alliant Energy - May 


Ach/Alliant Energy - May Ach/Alliant Energy - May 


Ach/Alliant Energy - May Ach/Alliant Energy - May 


Ach


HC001426 003 Alliant Energy - Ach5/30/2017  351.81


Dept of Rev-May Ach/Dept of Rev-May AchHC001427 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach5/30/2017  16,179.36


Dept of Rev-May AchHC001428 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach5/30/2017  44,372.97


Client Analysis-May Ach/Client Analysis-May 


Ach/Client Analysis-May Ach/Client Analysis-May 


Ach


HC001429 020 Wells Fargo Bank-Ach5/30/2017  8,948.52


State Taxes-May Ach/State Taxes-May AchHC001430 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach5/30/2017  7,200.31







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:56PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 6/2/2017


Friday, June 02, 2017


Description


Federal Taxes-May Ach/Federal Taxes-May 


Ach/Federal Taxes-May Ach/Federal Taxes-May 


Ach


HC001431 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach5/30/2017  38,612.03


Alere-Drug TestsVC024616 102 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES, INC.5/10/2017 -72.00


Pet Relief-Customer RefundVC024810 589 DANA DERRICKS & LESLIE DIETZMAN5/10/2017 -229.83


City Stoton-50 Vehicle upgrade/City Stoton-principal 


go debt/City Stoton-Principal go debt/City 


Stoton-Truck maint.


CK024913 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON5/2/2017  160,254.63


R Tuttle-Customer RefundCK024914 051 ROSANNE PROBST TUTTLE5/2/2017  15.46


B Florence-Customer Refund/B Florence-Customer 


Refund/B Florence-Customer Refund/B 


Florence-Customer Refund


CK024915 128 BRANSON FLORENCE5/2/2017  289.01


Strand-KPW lot 7/Strand-Lateral 


observations/Strand-w substation 


design/Strand-Industrial discharge/Strand-2017 


Construction/Strand-2017 Construction/Strand-B & 


G discharge/Strand-Skaalen 


home/Strand-KPW/Strand-Scada 


isues/Strand-Uniroyal discharge+


CK024916 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.5/2/2017  15,424.26


S Grau-Customer RefundCK024917 902 STEPHEN GRAU5/2/2017  440.79


B Edwards-Customer RefundCK024918 939 BRENT EDWARDS5/2/2017  548.80


Seiler Inst.Support Contract/Seiler Inst.Support 


Contract/Seiler Inst.Support Contract


CK024919 346 SEILER INSTRUMENT & MFG. CO. INC.5/3/2017  889.00


E S R I - supplies/E S R I - maint contract/E S R I - 


maint contract/E S R I - supplies/E S R I - 


supplies/E S R I - maint contract/E S R I - 


software/E S R I - software/E S R I - software


CK024920 373 E S R I INC.5/3/2017  15,131.51


Resco-Supplies/Resco-SuppliesCK024921 400 RESCO5/3/2017  414.23


Dunkirk-April Dunkirk DamCK024922 781 DUNKIRK WATER POWER CO LLC5/3/2017  5,591.11


Pitnery Bowes-Supplies/Pitnery 


Bowes-Supplies/Pitnery Bowes-Supplies/Pitnery 


Bowes-Supplies


CK024923 889 PITNEY BOWES INC5/3/2017  423.96







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:56PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


3 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 6/2/2017


Friday, June 02, 2017


Description


Harvest Farms-CreditsCK024924 084 HARVEST FARMS, LLC5/3/2017  457.00


WI SCTF-May A SupportCK024925 133 WISCONSIN SCTF5/3/2017  176.77


Progressive-Safety glassesCK024926 114 PROGRESSIVE FAMILY EYECARE5/10/2017  120.00


Inkworks-billing inserts/Inkworks-billing 


inserts/Inkworks-billing inserts/Inkworks-billing 


inserts


CK024927 166 INKWORKS, INC.5/10/2017  512.00


Resco-InventoryCK024928 400 RESCO5/10/2017  403.20


Asplundh-Tree Trimming/Asplundh-Tree TrimmingCK024929 691 ASPLUNDH TREE EXPERTS CO., INC.5/10/2017  9,112.00


Hydrocorp-Cross connectionCK024930 967 HYDRO CORP5/10/2017  1,000.00


Harvest Farms-Hoel Ave CreditsCK024931 084 HARVEST FARMS, LLC5/10/2017  457.00


Reg Fee trust-Traffic reportCK024932 407 REGISTRATION FEE TRUST5/10/2017  6.00


S Tracy-Customer RefundCK024933 579 SHAWN TRACY5/10/2017  78.18


S Griffin-Customer RefundCK024934 680 SCOTT GRIFFIN5/10/2017  377.03


T Mahlum-Customer RefundCK024935 870 TEAYA MAHLUM5/10/2017  188.47


Mid-West-blk dirt & seedCK024936 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC5/10/2017  300.00


Woodward-Bid AdsCK024937 474 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA5/10/2017  165.99


Dane Cnty-Traffic Report/Dane Cnty-Traffic ReportCK024938 636 DANE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE5/10/2017  10.39


PGH Fire-testing/PGH Fire-testingCK024939 662 PGH FIRE PROTECTION, LLC5/10/2017  1,584.20


Pet Relief-Customer RefundCK024940 589 DANA DERRICKS & LESLIE DIETZMAN5/10/2017  229.83


Alere-Drug TestsCK024941 102 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES, INC.5/10/2017  72.00


Resco-inventory/Resco-inventory/Resco-supplies/R


esco-supplies/Resco-supplies


CK024942 400 RESCO5/16/2017  3,896.03


Rosenbaum-Dump fee/Rosenbaum-Dump feeCK024943 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV.5/16/2017  162.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:56PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


4 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 6/2/2017


Friday, June 02, 2017


Description


Paramount-Roofing #7CK024944 668 PARAMOUNT ROOFING5/16/2017  29,800.00


Wi State Lab-Fluoride testsCK024945 675 WI STATE LABORATORY OF HYGIENE5/16/2017  25.00


City Stoton-May Retirement/City Stoton-May 


Retirement/City Stoton-May Retirement


CK024946 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON5/16/2017  19,124.96


WI Sctf-SupportCK024947 133 WISCONSIN SCTF5/16/2017  176.77


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Tre


nching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midw


est-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenchin


g


CK024948 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC5/16/2017  3,732.44


Stoton Hosp-Drug TestsCK024949 872 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL5/16/2017  56.00


J Matteson-Customer RefundCK024950 241 JACOB MATTESON5/16/2017  207.25


E Christoffersen-Cust RefundCK024951 416 EVE CHRISTOFFERSEN5/16/2017  159.65


B Kellnhofer-Customer RefundCK024952 936 BERDINE KELLNHOFER IRREVOCABLE TRUST5/16/2017  104.26


Stoton Elec-Petty Cash/Stoton Elec-Petty CashCK024953 146 STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTIL.5/24/2017  87.18


D Vike-Customer RefundCK024954 208 DOUGLAS & AMY VIKE5/24/2017  62.27


Dept of admin-Public benefitsCK024955 539 DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION5/24/2017  15,880.38


Vining Sparks-SafekeepingCK024956 584 VINING SPARKS IBG, L.P.5/24/2017  72.00


Border States-Inventory/Border States-InventoryCK024957 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY5/24/2017  7,429.08


WICPA-cpa duesCK024958 356 WICPA5/24/2017  295.00


Resco-Transformer/Resco-cleaning 


supplies/Resco-Transformer


CK024959 400 RESCO5/24/2017  18,648.43


Asplundh-Tree TrimmingCK024960 691 ASPLUNDH TREE EXPERTS CO., INC.5/24/2017  4,556.00


Alere-Drug TestsCK024961 102 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES, INC.5/24/2017  144.00


City Stoton-April StormwaterCK024962 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON5/24/2017  43,194.81







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:56PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


5 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 6/2/2017


Friday, June 02, 2017


Description


PSC-AssessmentsCK024963 491 PUBLIC SVC. COMM. OF WI.5/24/2017  71.46


GLS Utiltiy-April Locates/GLS Utiltiy-April 


Locates/GLS Utiltiy-April Locates


CK024964 727 GLS UTILITY LLC5/24/2017  6,175.00


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Tre


nching/Midwest-Trenching


CK024965 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC5/31/2017  3,597.90


Elec Test Lab-Glove TestsCK024966 324 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB., LLC.5/31/2017  557.89


Resco-Tools/Resco-InventoryCK024967 400 RESCO5/31/2017  714.88


Strand-Discharges reviews/Strand-Lateral 


observations/Strand-2017 Utility Const/Strand-W 


Sub Site Design/Strand-Vernon St 


Interceptor/Strand-KPW Lot 7/Strand-2017 Utility 


Const


CK024968 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.5/31/2017  16,992.52


Asplundh-Tree Trimming/Asplundh-Tree TrimmingCK024969 691 ASPLUNDH TREE EXPERTS CO., INC.5/31/2017  8,659.20


WI SCTF-supportCK024970 133 WISCONSIN SCTF5/31/2017  176.77


Utility-Twr 2 qtrCK024971 362 UTILITY SERVICE CO., INC5/31/2017  4,985.50


Great West-May A Def compCK101453 463 GREAT-WEST5/3/2017  2,800.00


Dean Health-Hearing tests/Dean Health-Hearing 


tests/Dean Health-Hearing tests


CK101454 600 DEAN HEALTH SYSTEMS5/3/2017  200.00


N Shore Bank-May A Def CompCK101455 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB5/3/2017  375.00


Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing


CK101456 852 INFOSEND, INC5/3/2017  3,779.98


Forster-Scada Controls/Forster-KPW Phase 


II/Forster-west sub


CK101457 157 FORSTER ELEC. ENG.,INC.5/16/2017  11,977.40


Hanson Pest-Pest MaintCK101458 310 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT5/16/2017  44.00


Great West-May B Def CompCK101459 463 GREAT-WEST5/16/2017  2,800.00


Baker Tilly-Audit reports/Baker Tilly-Audit 


reports/Baker Tilly-Audit reports


CK101460 648 BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP5/16/2017  1,045.21







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:56PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


6 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 6/2/2017


Friday, June 02, 2017


Description


N Shore Bank-May B Def compCK101461 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB5/16/2017  375.00


Cintas-Clothes cleaning/Cintas-Cloths 


cleaning/Cintas-Cloths cleaning/Cintas-clothes 


cleaning/Cintas-clothes cleaning/Cintas-Cloths 


cleaning/Cintas-Cloths cleaning/Cintas-Clothes 


cleaning/Cintas-Clothes cleaning/Cintas-Cloths 


cleaning/More...


CK101462 809 CINTAS CORPORATION #4465/16/2017  777.88


Company Total  1,338,176.10







Date:


Time:


User:


Tuesday, May 09, 2017


03:33PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000072'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


Import ID: 009010 Import # : 0000000072


 358.68253 000000  - 1000BULBS.COM595 04/13/2017Lighting for small business 40007430


 164.25253 000000  - 1000BULBS.COM595 04/21/2017Lighting for small business 40007430


 29.99934 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 04/10/2017Pump fuel additive 69107430


 15.29633 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 04/04/2017Oil drip pan for well 5 generator 74007450


 15.82933 000000  - AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS994 04/17/2017Decal remover 41007430


 3.79631 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/07/2017Flat blade paint scraper for overspray removal and glass cleaning 74007450


 41.11675 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/12/20171 1/4 galvanized nipples for curb stop repairs 74007450


 33.53675 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/13/20171 inch galvanized nipples for curb stop repairs 74007450


 14.98675 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/14/2017Concrete and 4 inch fernco coupling for curb stop repair @ 519 N Harrison 74007450


 19.24932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/28/2017Electric trailer 74007430


 15.75932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/13/2017Electric trailer repair 87007430


 9.99932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/17/2017Hold down for electric trailer 87007430


 21.12932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/21/2017Safety chairs for electric trailer 87007430


 6.11933 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/04/2017Material for mounting strobe light on Truck #4 64007430


 7.47932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/04/2017Receptacle for copy machine room 64007430


 4.60593 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/17/2017Concrete anchors for covering MillFab stepdown slab 52007430


 16.00593 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/27/2017New hammer for truck #16 69507430


 15.99594 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/27/2017New hammer for truck #16 69507430


 8.28833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/18/2017Electrical for UV 87207460


 6.98833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/18/2017Electric for UV 87207460


 9.99827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/13/2017Tape measure 87207460


 28.35827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 04/06/2017Paint cans/tape measure/storage box 82007460


 67.60833 000000  - BADGER WATER390 04/03/2017Control water for lab testing 83007460


 239.50827 000000  - BATTERIES PLUS MAD526 04/04/2017SCADA UPS batteries 82007460


 7.94932 000000  - BATTERY MART OF WINCHESTE994 04/17/2017BATTERY FOR EXIT LIGHT 41007430


 1,795.00370 003300  - BORDER STATES ELECTRIC327 04/07/20178 electric meters 41007430


 2,760.00370 003300  - BORDER STATES ELECTRIC327 04/26/20178 electric meters 52007430


 1,254.00107.14 000000 160200XX - 1CDW GOVT #HMR0627604 04/13/2017ELECTRIC SCADA - SQL SERVER 2016 LICENSING 52507430


 158.95107.14 000000 160200XX - 1CDW GOVT #HNN9830604 04/19/2017ELECTRIC SCADA - USB DRIVES FOR SHIPMENT OF SYSTEMS TO OSI 52507430


 254.41921 000000  - CDW GOVT #HPM9277604 04/24/2017WEB SECURITY FILTER - ADVANCED THREAT DETECTION SUBSCRIPTION - 1 YEAR 52507430


 92.51921 000000  - CDW GOVT #HPM9277604 04/24/2017WEB SECURITY FILTER - ADVANCED THREAT DETECTION SUBSCRIPTION - 1 YEAR 52507450


 115.65851 000000  - CDW GOVT #HPM9277604 04/24/2017WEB SECURITY FILTER - ADVANCED THREAT DETECTION SUBSCRIPTION - 1 YEAR 52507460


 810.29921 000000  - CDW GOVT #HQN9275604 04/27/2017SERVER UPGRADES - HDD X2, RAM X6 52507430


 294.65921 000000  - CDW GOVT #HQN9275604 04/27/2017SERVER UPGRADES - HDD X2, RAM X6 52507450


 368.31851 000000  - CDW GOVT #HQN9275604 04/27/2017SERVER UPGRADES - HDD X2, RAM X6 52507460


 752.85143 000000  - CDW GOVT #HQN9275604 04/27/2017RMA - SERVER UPGRADES - RAM X6 52507430


 32.00933 000000  - CENEX D M SERV07083686317 04/14/2017Fuel for forklift 52757450


 1,050.00232 001099  - CREE LIGHTING484 04/12/2017LED street lights 41007430


 4,843.52232 001099  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 130134 04/12/2017Stock materials 41007430


 1,558.20232 001099  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 130134 04/12/2017Secondary peds 41007430


 1,370.29833 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/12/2017YEARLY GENERATOR MAINTENANCE AND LOAD BANK TESTING 82007460


 524.53832 003603  - CUMMINS INC846 04/12/2017YEARLY GENERATOR MAINTENANCE AND LOAD BANK TESTING 82007460







Date:


Time:


User:


Tuesday, May 09, 2017


03:33PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000072'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 535.73932 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/12/2017YEARLY GENERATOR MAINTENANCE AND LOAD BANK TESTING 82007430


 194.81932 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/12/2017YEARLY GENERATOR MAINTENANCE AND LOAD BANK TESTING 82007450


 243.52834 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/12/2017YEARLY GENERATOR MAINTENANCE AND LOAD BANK TESTING 82007460


 611.10633 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/12/2017YEARLY GENERATOR MAINTENANCE AND LOAD BANK TESTING 82007450


 974.06633 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/12/2017YEARLY GENERATOR MAINTENANCE AND LOAD BANK TESTING 82007450


 974.06633 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/12/2017YEARLY GENERATOR MAINTENANCE AND LOAD BANK TESTING 82007450


 1,370.29143 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/25/2017REFUND DUE FROM CUMMINS 82007460


 942.88833 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/19/2017WWTP GENERATOR TRANSFER SWITCH REPAIR 82007460


 3,935.33932 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/06/2017ADMIN BLDG. GENERATOR REPAIR 40007430


 1,431.03932 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/06/2017ADMIN BLDG. GENERATOR REPAIR 40007450


 1,788.79834 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/06/2017ADMIN BLDG. GENERATOR REPAIR 40007460


 382.31932 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/14/2017TROUBLE CALL TO REPAIR LOCKED GENERATOR TRANSFER SWITCH AT ADMIN BLDG. 40007430


 139.02932 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/14/2017TROUBLE CALL TO REPAIR LOCKED GENERATOR TRANSFER SWITCH AT ADMIN BLDG. 40007450


 173.79834 000000  - CUMMINS INC846 04/14/2017TROUBLE CALL TO REPAIR LOCKED GENERATOR TRANSFER SWITCH AT ADMIN BLDG. 40007460


 72.00833 000000  - DORNER COMPANY483 04/14/2017Post air valve 82007460


 310.75920 000000  - ESRI373 04/19/2017Training expense - Registration - ESRI Geometric Networks 43007430


 113.00920 000000  - ESRI373 04/19/2017Training expense - Registration - ESRI Geometric Networks 43007450


 141.25850 000000  - ESRI373 04/19/2017Training expense - Registration - ESRI Geometric Networks 43007460


 4.79827 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 04/28/2017Batteries for radios 87107460


 13.23827 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 04/06/2017Nuts and bolts 87207460


 2.72831 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 04/10/2017Latch for lift stations 87207460


 27.73827 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 04/11/2017Grease gun holder/safety glasses 87207460


 33.47827 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 04/24/2017Saw blades and fasteners 82007460


 317.78834 000000  - FERGUSON ENT #276287 04/18/201710 inch valve gaskets for RAS valves 82007460


 5.87920 000000  - FOSDAL BAKERY LLC601 04/19/2017Meeting expense - Utilities Committee 36807430


 2.13920 000000  - FOSDAL BAKERY LLC601 04/19/2017Meeting expense - Utilities Committee 36807450


 2.69850 000000  - FOSDAL BAKERY LLC601 04/19/2017Meeting expense - Utilities Committee 36807460


 445.00594 000000  - HAMPTON INN   EAU CLAIRE894 04/10/2017UG line school lodging 69507430


 445.00593 000000  - HAMPTON INN   EAU CLAIRE894 04/10/2017Hotel for school 69407430


 124.40932 000000  - HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 233492 04/14/2017Pipe for storage on electric trailer 87007430


 935.00107.14 000000 170901XX - 1HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 233492 04/26/2017Parts for cross connection inspection 41007450


 97.66673 000000  - HURCO TECHNOLOGIES994 04/12/2017REPLACEMENT PARTS FOR SPIN DOCTOR VALVE TURNER 74007450


 1,000.00107.14 000000 170901XX - 1HYDRO DESIGNS354 04/06/2017Monthly cross connection inspection fee 40007450


 3,731.57394 000000  - IN  BRIDGEPORT MAGNETICS994 04/06/201730 KVA TEMP PHASE RESTORATION AUTO TRANSFORMER ON WHEELED CART 40007430


 22.27932 000000  - IN  MOYER'S LANDSCAPE SER468 04/27/2017Mulch for office 87007430


 8.10932 000000  - IN  MOYER'S LANDSCAPE SER468 04/27/2017Mulch for office 87007450


 10.13834 000000  - IN  MOYER'S LANDSCAPE SER468 04/27/2017Mulch for office 87007460


 137.50932 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 04/18/2017Janitorial service for admin bldg. 40007430


 50.00932 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 04/18/2017Janitorial service for admin bldg. 40007450


 62.50834 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 04/18/2017Janitorial service for admin bldg. 40007460


 1,190.99586 000000  - ITRON INC259 04/03/2017Metering hardware and software maintenance contract - Quarterly 36507430


 433.08586 000000  - ITRON INC259 04/03/2017Metering hardware and software maintenance contract - Quarterly 36507430


 541.37851 000000  - ITRON INC259 04/03/2017Metering hardware and software maintenance contract - Quarterly 36507460


 19.84593 000000  - KWIK TRIP  41300004135894 04/10/2017GAS FOR PRIUS 69407430







Date:


Time:


User:


Tuesday, May 09, 2017


03:33PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000072'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 1.99642 000000  - KWIK TRIP  73900007393994 04/28/2017Ice for water samples 84007450


 3.18827 000000  - KWIK TRIP  73900007393994 04/19/2017Water jug 87207460


 78.41143 000000  - LA ROCCA'S PIZZERIA894 04/10/2017ACCIDENTAL PAYMENT WITH COMPANY CREDIT CARD 74007450


 49.43932 000000  - LIBERTY FLAGS AND SPECIAL894 04/28/2017FLAGS 41007430


 17.97932 000000  - LIBERTY FLAGS AND SPECIAL894 04/28/2017FLAGS 41007450


 22.48834 000000  - LIBERTY FLAGS AND SPECIAL894 04/28/2017FLAGS 41007460


 160.90852 000000  - LW ALLEN207 04/26/2017Yearly flow meter calibrations 82007460


 400.76833 003608  - LW ALLEN207 04/12/2017digester cover level indicator repair 82007460


 2,452.50663 000000  - MIDWEST METER - JACKSON165 04/24/2017Water meter parts for maintenance 52757450


 2,776.95346 000000  - MIDWEST METER - JACKSON165 04/24/20179 - 1 inch water meters 52757450


 30.80921 000000  - MSFT   E04003L5TZ836 04/04/2017HOSTED OFFICE 365 - MICROSOFT LYNC 52507430


 11.20921 000000  - MSFT   E04003L5TZ836 04/04/2017HOSTED OFFICE 365 - MICROSOFT LYNC 52507450


 14.00851 000000  - MSFT   E04003L5TZ836 04/04/2017HOSTED OFFICE 365 - MICROSOFT LYNC 52507460


 378.00925 000000  - MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILIT089 04/13/2017APPA safety manuals 41007430


 227.82925 000000  - NAPA PARTS - SNP 0027410786 04/17/2017Latex gloves, smoke detectors, etc. 41007430


 26.28932 000000  - NAPA PARTS - SNP 0027410786 04/17/2017Shop towels 41007430


 197.58594 000000  - NAPA PARTS - SNP 0027410786 04/17/2017Wypall 41007430


 32.00833 000000  - NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE, IN974 04/07/2017Chloride testing 83007460


 121.60107.14 000000 170303XX - 1NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE, IN974 04/12/2017Paradise Pond testing for street department 83007460


 1,058.61831 000000  - NORTHERN SEWER EQUIP674 04/10/2017Televising tractor repairs 82007460


 91.40831 000000  - NORTHERN SEWER EQUIP674 04/10/2017Televising equipment parts 82007460


 1,182.39831 000000  - NORTHERN SEWER EQUIP674 04/06/2017Televising equipment parts 82007460


 347.52593 000000  - NWTC GB REGISTRATION887 04/28/2017Apprentice school 40007430


 347.52594 000000  - NWTC GB REGISTRATION887 04/28/2017Apprentice school 40007430


 52.67903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 04/04/2017Credit card processing - Online 52507430


 18.96903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 04/04/2017Credit card processing - Online 52507450


 25.28840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 04/04/2017Credit card processing - Online 52507460


 8.44233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 04/04/2017Credit card processing - Online 52507430


 32.92903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 04/04/2017Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507430


 11.85903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 04/04/2017Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507450


 15.80840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 04/04/2017Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507460


 5.28233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 04/04/2017Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507430


 78.75834 000000  - PAYPAL  CCOENEN5969 04/18/2017ELECTRICL FOR UV, PARKER MAGNETIC SENSOR KL3045 READ SWITCH 82007460


 382.05584 000000  - PAYPAL  HOME DEPOT969 04/10/2017Label marker/ribbon and tape 41007430


 172.45833 000000  - PAYPAL  INTL GRNHSE969 04/19/2017Algae tarp for disinfection tank 1 82007460


 103.68925 000000  - PAYPAL  LABONVILLEI969 04/13/2017Chaps for chainsaw cutting 41007430


 4.40921 000000  - PICK N SAVE #390262 04/27/2017SPRAY FOR BACK BATHROOM 69507430


 14.99921 000000  - RADIOSHACK DEA00019513690 04/05/2017Battery - Customer service security system 52507430


 5.39921 000000  - RADIOSHACK DEA00019513690 04/05/2017Battery - Customer service security system 52507450


 7.19851 000000  - RADIOSHACK DEA00019513690 04/05/2017Battery - Customer service security system 52507460


 2.42233 001099  - RADIOSHACK DEA00019513690 04/05/2017Battery - Customer service security system 52507430


 189.99854 000000  - RED WINGS SHOES #474994 04/17/2017Safety boots 87207460


 236.65631 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS #3833748 04/21/2017Paint for Well #5 84007450


 125.34833 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS 703833748 04/04/2017Paint for sludge lines 82007460







Date:


Time:


User:


Tuesday, May 09, 2017


03:33PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000072'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 2.14921 000000  - STAPLS7173131316000001352 04/06/2017GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807430


 0.78921 000000  - STAPLS7173131316000001352 04/06/2017GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807450


 0.98851 000000  - STAPLS7173131316000001352 04/06/2017GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807460


 29.63921 000000  - STAPLS7174229848000001352 04/10/2017GENERAL KITCHEN SUPPLIES 36807430


 10.77921 000000  - STAPLS7174229848000001352 04/10/2017GENERAL KITCHEN SUPPLIES 36807450


 13.49851 000000  - STAPLS7174229848000001352 04/10/2017GENERAL KITCHEN SUPPLIES 36807460


 16.93921 000000  - STAPLS7174229848000002352 04/17/2017GENERAL KITCHEN SUPPLIES 36807430


 6.15921 000000  - STAPLS7174229848000002352 04/17/2017GENERAL KITCHEN SUPPLIES 36807450


 7.71851 000000  - STAPLS7174229848000002352 04/17/2017GENERAL KITCHEN SUPPLIES 36807460


 4.27143 000000  - STAPLS7174229848000003352 04/10/2017GENERAL KITCHEN SUPPLIES - RETURNED FOR REFUND 36807430


-4.27143 000000  - STAPLS7174229848001001352 04/13/2017GENERAL KITCHEN SUPPLIES - REFUND 36807430


 10.93921 000000  - STAPLS7174235044000001352 04/10/2017GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807430


 3.93921 000000  - STAPLS7174235044000001352 04/10/2017GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807450


 5.24851 000000  - STAPLS7174235044000001352 04/10/2017GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807460


 1.77233 001099  - STAPLS7174235044000001352 04/10/2017GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES 36807430


 127.92921 000000  - STAPLS7174235044000002352 04/10/2017GENERAL MAILING SUPPLIES 36807430


 46.05921 000000  - STAPLS7174235044000002352 04/10/2017GENERAL MAILING SUPPLIES 36807450


 61.40851 000000  - STAPLS7174235044000002352 04/10/2017GENERAL MAILING SUPPLIES 36807460


 20.47233 001099  - STAPLS7174235044000002352 04/10/2017GENERAL MAILING SUPPLIES 36807430


 18.98593 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 04/28/2017Supplies 69507430


-18.98593 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 04/28/2017Supplies 69507430


 10.98932 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 04/03/2017Files for chainsaws 87007430


 15.00932 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 04/03/2017Electric trailer materials 87007430


 7.97932 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 04/06/2017Electric trailer materials 87007430


 3.12672 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 04/12/2017Stainless belt replacement on tower 2 87007450


 82.20932 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 04/17/2017Supplies for electric trailer 87007430


 21.17932 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 04/24/2017Electric trailer repairs 87007430


 64.80831 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 04/12/2017Grass seed for yard restoration at 8th street lift station 74007460


 15.96675 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 04/26/2017Curb stop repairs 74007450


 5.20232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 04/05/2017Inventory 41007430


 49.00232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 04/05/2017Heat shrink tubing 41007430


 225.50933 000000  - STUART C IRBY355 04/10/2017Spot lite for truck 16 41007430


 521.00593 000000  - STUART C IRBY355 04/07/2017Supplies 41007430


 1,285.00232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 04/07/2017Inventory 41007430


 11.10593 000000  - STUART C IRBY355 04/21/2017Climbing hooks 41007430


 267.50232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 04/24/2017Heat shrink tubing 41007430


 149.40925 000000  - THE SHOE BOX578 04/14/2017Safety boots 69107430


 120.00925 000000  - THE SHOE BOX578 04/03/2017Safety boots 54007430


 9.40642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0317500921824 04/21/2017SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES FOR TESTING 36807450


 9.40642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0318174130824 04/28/2017SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES FOR TESTING 36807450


 9.40642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0324648885824 04/10/2017SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES FOR TESTING 36807450


 90.88827 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 04/19/20173 stream/fog nozzles 87207460


 92.50831 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 04/04/2017Two manhole picks 87207460


 155.05143 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 04/27/2017Meter gaskets - Sent back for refund on card 52757450







Date:


Time:


User:


Tuesday, May 09, 2017


03:33PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000072'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 43.65652 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 04/20/2017Discharge tubing for chemical pumps 84007450


 4.16107.14 000000 160200XX - 1USPS PO 5679700726824 04/28/2017Shipping of electric SCADA server images to OSI 36807430


 250.00903 000000  - VOICESHOT LLC954 04/19/2017Outbound dialing - Collections - Funds refill 36707430


 90.00903 000000  - VOICESHOT LLC954 04/19/2017Outbound dialing - Collections - Funds refill 36707450


 120.00840 000000  - VOICESHOT LLC954 04/19/2017Outbound dialing - Collections - Funds refill 36707460


 40.00233 001099  - VOICESHOT LLC954 04/19/2017Outbound dialing - Collections - Funds refill 36707430


 5.22631 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 04/27/2017Supplies 87007450


 39.88932 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 04/27/2017Lights for electric trailer 87007430


 58,902.57Total:







Highlights-Comparison to prior month


I have no concerns with the utility's financial status.  The following items are


meant to illustrate significant changes in the financial summary from prior periods.


Overall Summary:


 - The April 2017 results are reasonable in comparison to the March 2017 and


   April 2016 results. Detailed analysis is provided below.


Electric Summary:


 - Electric sales decreased $142,600 compared to March due to a 19% decrease


   in consumption


 - Other operating revenue decreased $12,300 compared to March due to a 


   reclassification of how forfeited discounts are being reported


 - Purchased power costs decreased $135,600 compared to March due to a


   13% decrease in kWh purchased 


 - Operating expenses increased $48,900 compared to March mainly due to 


   the fact the City did not invoice the Utilities their share of March health 


   insurance premiums timely and increased OH line maintenance


 - Non-operating income increased $16,900 compared to March mainly due to 


   earnings allocations from ATC totaling $8,425


Water Summary:


 - Water sales decreased $9,500 compared to March due to a 13% decrease 


   in consumption


 - Operating expenses increased $22,400 compared to March mainly due to 


   the fact the City did not invoice the Utilities their share of March health 


   insurance premiums timely and annual generator maintenance costs


 - Non-operating income decreased $12,900 compared to March due to  


   adjustments made in March to the way income from KPW Phase 1 was


   recorded during 2016


Wastewater Summary:


 - Wastewater sales decreased $16,300 compared to March due to a 11%  


   decrease in gallons billed


 - Operating expenses increased $29,900 compared to March mainly due to 


   the fact the City did not invoice the Utilities their share of March health 


   insurance premiums timely and generator maintenance and repair costs


 - Non-operating income decreased $9,100 compared to March due to  


   adjustments made in March to the way income from KPW Phase 1 was 


   recorded during 2016


Submitted by: 


Jamin Friedl, CPA


Stoughton Utilities
Financial Summary


April 2017-YTD







Electric Water Wastewater Combined


Assets


Cash & Investments 9,725,647$         1,457,957$         2,748,590$         13,932,193$       


Customer A/R 1,291,657           213,752              195,542              1,700,951           


Other A/R 131,720              3,941                   1,370                   137,032              


Other Assets 1,041,340           552,515              348,132              1,941,987           


Plant in Service 25,665,305         14,765,894         28,893,721         69,324,919         


Accumulated Depreciation (13,313,766)        (4,999,460)          (10,511,779)        (28,825,005)        


Plant in Service - CIAC 3,348,860           7,378,544           -                      10,727,404         


Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (1,621,024)          (1,992,232)          -                      (3,613,256)          


Construction Work in Progress 327,671              117,992              92,629                 538,292              


GASB 68 Deferred Outflow 575,914              206,806              227,166              1,009,886           


Total Assets 27,173,326$       17,705,707$       21,995,372$       66,874,404$       


Liabilities + Net Assets


Accounts Payable 289,855$            63,963$              45,111$              398,930$            


Payable to City of Stoughton 508,785              536,951              5,843                   1,051,578           


Interest Accrued 10,889                 12,448                 (2,137)                 21,200                 


Other Liabilities 451,672              86,521                 124,351              662,544              


Long-Term Debt 5,771,571           3,079,385           5,026,967           13,877,924         


Net Assets 19,919,308         13,848,492         16,707,842         50,475,641         


GASB 68 Deferred Inflow 221,246              77,947                 87,394                 386,587              


Total Liabilities + Net Assets 27,173,326$       17,705,707$       21,995,372$       66,874,404$       


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Balance Sheets


 As of April 30, 2017







 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 4,425,687$              658,182$                 635,459$                 5,719,329$              


Other 51,796                      20,060                      26,655                      98,510                      


   Total Operating Revenue: 4,477,483$              678,242$                 662,114$                 5,817,838$              


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 3,312,235                -                             -                             3,312,235                


Expenses (Including Taxes) 538,989                    285,162                    312,579                    1,136,730                


PILOT 132,000                    140,332                    -                             272,332                    


Depreciation 331,952                    153,568                    271,668                    757,188                    


   Total Operating Expense: 4,315,176$              579,062$                 584,247$                 5,478,486$              


     Operating Income 162,307$                 99,180$                    77,866$                    339,353$                 


Non-Operating Income 261,618                    27,280                      39,896                      328,794                    


Non-Operating Expense (45,362)                     (31,332)                     (45,000)                     (121,694)                  


      Net Income 378,564$                 95,128$                    72,762$                    546,454$                 


 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 4,581,669$              588,663$                 649,745$                 5,820,077$              


Other 58,965                      23,281$                    13,100$                    95,346                      


   Total Operating Revenue: 4,640,634$              611,944$                 662,845$                 5,915,423$              


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 3,494,381                -                             -                             3,494,381                


Expenses (Including Taxes) 572,719                    291,251                    294,686                    1,158,657                


PILOT 128,332                    126,668                    -                             255,000                    


Depreciation 316,468                    143,068                    273,332                    732,868                    


   Total Operating Expense: 4,511,901$              560,987$                 568,018$                 5,640,906$              


     Operating Income 128,733$                 50,957$                    94,826$                    274,516$                 


Non-Operating Income 285,688                    9,470                        9,220                        304,378                    


Non-Operating Expense (48,100)                     (33,333)                     (56,668)                     (138,100)                  


      Net Income 366,321$                 27,094$                    47,378$                    440,794$                 


April 2016


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement


April 2017


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement







 April 2017  March 2017 


 Change from Prior 


Month  April 2016 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 1,006,944$              1,149,530$              (142,586)$                1,002,735$              


Other (6,263)                       6,026                        (12,290)                    4,112                        


   Total Operating Revenue: 1,000,681$              1,155,557$              (154,876)$                1,006,847$              


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 731,384                   866,972                   (135,587)                  741,205                   


Expenses (Including Taxes) 159,344                   110,454                   48,890                      116,332                   


PILOT 33,000                      33,000                      -                            32,083                      


Depreciation 82,988                      82,988                      -                            79,117                      


   Total Operating Expense: 1,006,716$              1,093,414$              (86,698)$                  968,738$                 


     Operating Income (6,035)$                    62,143$                   (68,178)$                  38,109$                   


Non-Operating Income 28,474                      11,543                      16,931                      16,614                      


Non-Operating Expense (10,587)                    (10,586)                    (0)                               (11,264)                    


      Net Income 11,853$                   63,100$                   (51,247)$                  43,459$                   


 April 2017  March 2017 


 Change from Prior 


Month  April 2016 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 160,244$                 169,721$                 (9,477)$                    145,237$                 


Other 5,026                        5,057                        (31)                            5,451                        


   Total Operating Revenue: 165,270$                 174,779$                 (9,509)$                    150,688$                 


Operating Expense:


Expenses (Including Taxes) 82,434                      59,997                      22,437                      79,517                      


PILOT 35,083                      35,083                      -                            31,667                      


Depreciation 38,392                      38,392                      -                            35,767                      


   Total Operating Expense: 155,909$                 133,472$                 22,437$                   146,951$                 


     Operating Income 9,361$                      41,307$                   (31,946)$                  3,737$                      


Non-Operating Income 2,054                        14,939                      (12,885)                    1,000                        


Non-Operating Expense (7,833)                       (7,833)                       -                            (8,334)                       


      Net Income 3,582$                      48,413$                   (44,831)$                  (3,597)$                    


 April 2017  March 2017 


 Change from Prior 


Month  April 2016 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 152,826$                 169,175$                 (16,349)$                  161,209$                 


Other 10,562                      6,425                        4,137                        3,000                        


   Total Operating Revenue: 163,388$                 175,600$                 (12,212)$                  164,209$                 


Operating Expense:


Expenses (Including Taxes) 89,241                      59,316                      29,925                      73,175                      


Depreciation 67,917                      67,917                      -                            68,333                      


   Total Operating Expense: 157,158$                 127,233$                 29,925$                   141,508$                 


     Operating Income 6,229$                      48,367$                   (42,137)$                  22,700$                   


Non-Operating Income 1,270                        10,379                      (9,109)                       1,000                        


Non-Operating Expense (11,250)                    (11,250)                    -                            (14,167)                    


      Net Income (3,751)$                    47,495$                   (51,246)$                  9,533$                      


ELECTRIC


WATER


WASTEWATER


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Detailed Monthly Income Statements


April 2017







Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 162,307$            99,180$              


Average Utility Plant in Service 25,049,820         14,629,926         


Average Accumulated Depreciation (12,982,453)        (4,854,713)          


Average Materials and Supplies 175,446              34,223                


Average Regulatory Liability (144,044)             (222,486)             


Average Customer Advances (30,391)               -                      


Average Net Rate Base 12,068,378$       9,586,951$         


Actual Rate of Return 1.34% 1.03%


April 2016 Rate of Return 1.07% 0.62%


December 2016 Rate of Return 4.95% 3.46%


Authorized Rate of Return 5.00% 6.50%


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Rate of Return


Year-to-Date April 2017







Electric April 2017


Unrestricted (6.11 months O&M) 6,590,994         


Bond Reserve 649,338           


Redemption Fund (P&I) 76,802             


Designated 2,408,513         


Total 9,725,647         


Water April 2017


Unrestricted (4.49 months O&M) 649,565           


Bond Reserve 244,677           


Redemption Fund (P&I) 80,041             


Designated 483,673           


Total 1,457,956         


Wastewater April 2017


Unrestricted (9.58 months O&M) 1,398,675         


DNR Replacement 1,096,978         


Redemption Fund (P&I) 98,621             


Designated 154,316           


Total 2,748,590         


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Cash and Investements Summary


 As of April 30, 2017


6,590,994 , 68%


649,338 , 6%


76,802 , 1%


2,408,513 , 25%


Electric Cash - April 2017


Unrestricted (6.11 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


649,565 , 45%


244,677 , 17%


80,041 , 5%


483,673 , 33%


Water Cash - April 2017


Unrestricted (4.49 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


1,398,675 , 51%
1,096,978 , 40%


98,621 , 3% 154,316 , 6%


Wastewater Cash - April 2017


Unrestricted (9.58 months O&M) DNR Replacement Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated







Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2016 KwH Purchased 2016 2017 KwH Purchased 2017 Peak 2016 Peak 2017


January 12,434,016 12,616,291 12,379,222 12,812,545 23,731 23,662


February 11,135,691 11,327,318 10,691,419 10,759,773 21,504 21,934


March 10,581,639 10,809,478 11,785,378 11,607,813 20,668 20,399


April 9,868,197 10,133,681 9,531,804 10,048,660 18,242 18,091


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 44,019,543 44,886,768 44,387,823 45,228,791


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2016 Gallons Pumped 2016 2017 Gallons Pumped 2017 2016 2017


January 38,657,000 42,976,000 37,110,000 43,748,000 1,642,000 1,629,000


February 37,426,000 40,703,000 34,905,000 41,145,000 1,877,000 1,780,000


March 38,688,000 42,714,000 38,893,000 40,725,000 1,745,000 1,542,000


April 36,824,000 40,784,000 33,806,000 39,290,000 1,618,000 2,105,000


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 151,595,000 167,177,000 144,714,000 164,908,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2016 Gallons Gallons 2016 2017 Gallons Gallons 2017 2016 2017


January 26,559,000 29,125,000 25,221,000 34,377,000 0.55 2.43


February 23,957,000 26,577,000 23,196,000 29,386,000 0.64 1.34


March 25,438,000 30,379,000 26,255,000 31,113,000 4.07 2.69


April 25,232,000 30,654,000 23,234,000 35,672,000 1.96 6.80


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 101,186,000 116,735,000 97,906,000 130,548,000 7.22 13.26


2017 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater








DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 19, 2017 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  1 


Location: Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
 Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
 600 South Fourth Street 
 Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589 


Members Present: Alderperson Matt Bartlett, Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Citizen 
Member David Erdman, Alderperson Pat O’Connor, Mayor Donna 
Olson, and Citizen Member Alan Staats 


Excused: Citizen Member John Kallas 


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops and Stoughton 
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E. 


Call to Order:  Mayor Donna Olson called the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting to 
order at 5:00 p.m. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops and 
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities 
Committee consent agenda items.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, 
the motion seconded by Citizen Member Alan Staats, to approve the following consent agenda 
items as presented: Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List, Draft Minutes of the May 15, 2017 
Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities April 2017 Financial Summary, 
Stoughton Utilities Statistical Information, Stoughton Utilities May 2017 Activities Report, Utilities 
Committee Annual Calendar, and Utilities Communications.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 
0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops 
presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 
approved and placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report 


 Stoughton Utilities Committee April 17, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 


 Stoughton Utilities March 2017 Financial Summary 


Alderperson Michael Engelberger arrived at the meeting at 5:27 p.m. 


Proposed electric and water tax-stabilization dividends:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented and discussed the 
proposed electric and water tax stabilization dividends of $12,698 and $3,743 respectively.  
Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded by 
Alderperson Matt Bartlett, to approve the electric and water tax-stabilization dividends of $12,698 
and $3,743 respectively and present them to the Stoughton Common Council on June 27, 2017.  
The motion carried 5 to 1 with Citizen Member Alan Staats voting Noe.   



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


  


Date:   
  


June 13, 2017   


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Jamin T. Friedl, CPA 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager  


Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  Proposed electric and water tax-stabilization dividends 


This agenda item was presented at the May 15, 2017 meeting of the Utilities Committee, and was tabled 


at that time. 


In September of 2003, the Stoughton Utilities Committee declared the first Stoughton Utilities electric 


and water tax-stabilization dividends to the Finance Committee and Stoughton Common Council, using 


the following criteria: 


 The tax-stabilization dividend is intended to lessen property tax burdens and strengthen our 


community. 


 The tax-stabilization dividend will be based upon 5% of the Stoughton Utilities prior year’s net 


income for the electric and water utilities, adjusted for the prior-year dividend and contributed 


capital reported as non-operating income/expense, from the audited Stoughton Utilities financial 


statements. 


 The dividend is estimated at the time the annual budget is approved by the Utilities Committee 


and recommended to the Common Council, and presented to the Utilities Committee and Common 


Council at the time of audit. 


 The dividend can be suspended by the Utilities Committee and Common Council if the budget 


shows a requirement for the cash flow for debt liquidation and/or capital outlays, or an acceleration 


of electric and water rate increases occurs.  


Our 2016 audit reports show that utility earnings and cash flow are sufficient to make the full tax-


stabilization dividend as outlined above.  Stoughton Utilities remains the highest taxpayer in the City, with 


electric and water Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) equaling $764,640.  If approved by the Stoughton 


Utilities Committee, tax-stabilization dividends of $16,441 will be paid to the City of Stoughton in 


addition to the PILOT.   


A decrease in the prior year’s net income, due to increased capital contributions, has resulted in a 


reduction in the tax stabilization dividend when compared to prior years.  







The following chart shows the projected total payment to the City of Stoughton in 2017: 


 Electric Water Total (2017) Total (2016) 


Tax Stabilization Dividend (Recommended) $12,698 $3,743 $16,441 $23,625 


Payment in Lieu of Taxes (Required) $376,785 $387,855 $764,640 $733,509 


Total Payment to City $389,483 $391,598 $781,081 $757,134 


The tax stabilization dividend does not affect electric or water rates, as funds are considered to be paid 


from retained earnings and not operating income following the regulatory reporting requirements 


established by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin.  


We are requesting that the Utilities Committee approve the proposed electric and water tax-stabilization 


dividends, and present these dividends to the Stoughton Common Council on June 27, 2017. 








Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, June 13, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.  


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael 


Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, 


Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, and Scott Truehl  


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Mayor Olson called the meeting of the Common Council to order at 7:01 p.m. 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that there were ten alderpersons present with Reeves and 


O’Connor being absent and excused. 


 


Hirsch gave an overview of the RDA charrette update from the weekend before. She noted that it was 


well attended and great input was offered to the developer as a result of the process. 


 


Engelberger explained that the Art Walk held on June 10, 2017 was an overwhelming success and he 


hopes that it will occur next year as well. 


 


Planning Director Scheel noted that the Parade of Homes was this past weekend as well and was also 


well attended.  


 


Mayor Olson noted that the Relay for Life will be held this weekend and the opening ceremony will be 


held Friday, June 16, 2017 at Mandt Park. 


 


Swadley explained that he and the Mayor held a meeting with Forward Development Group to discuss 


the Highway 138 access within the Kettle Park West Development and they are continuing to work with 


the WI DOT on this issue.  


 


Update on Historic Preservation Ordinances from Attorney Dregne 


Attorney Dregene explained that he was asked to work with the Landmarks Commission regarding the 


City ordinances relating to Historic Preservation. He noted that he and the committee identified nine 


issues that need further time to research. He explained that he will continue to work with the Landmarks 


Commission and will bring updates to the Council throughout the process.  


 


Liquor License Overview by Clerk Kropf 


Clerk Kropf gave an overview of the different licenses within the City. She explained what each license 


is used for and how many the City has issued and still has available. 


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record:  


 Public Safety Committee (4/26/2017), Finance Committee (5/9/2017), Library Board 


(4/19/2017), Board of Review (5/16/2017), Landmarks Commission (4/13/2017), Personnel 


Committee (5/1/2017) and Utilities Committee (4/17/2017) 


 


  


 







Public Comment Period:   


No persons registered to speak. 


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


 


A. May 23, 2017 Council Minutes 


 


B. R-78-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the update 


to the Work Rules Holiday policy to strike the four hours on New Year’s Eve and the four 


hours on Christmas Eve afternoon and instead receive eight hours on Christmas Eve. 


(Personnel Committee approved 4-0 on April 3, 2017) 


 


C. R-79-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve updated    


City Work Rules as it pertains to CDL rules. (Personnel Committee approved 4-0 on 


March 6, 2017) 


 


D. R-80-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Liquor 


License renewals for the period of July 1, 2017, to June 30, 2018. (Public Safety 


Committee approved 3-0 on May 24, 2017) 


 


E. R-81-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Outdoor 


Consumption Permits for the period of July 1, 2017, to June 30, 2018. (Public Safety 


Committee approved 3-0 on May 24, 2017) 


 


Motion by Boersma, to approve the consent agenda, second by Majewski. Motion carried 10-0. 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


NONE  


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-82-2017- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton Approving an 


Agreement with Angus Young Associates, Inc for Architectural Services related to the 


construction of a new Public Works Facility. (Public Works approved 4-1, with Boersma voting 


noe on January 17, 2017 and Finance Committee approved 5-0 on May 23, 2017) 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-82-2017, second by Jenson. Planning Director Scheel 


explained the different services within the scope of the agreement. Public Works Director Hebert 


noted that the City Attorney had reviewed the contract and feels that this contract will protect the 


City. Boersma expressed that he is concerned with the cost of the project, as he has noted in the 


past.  Motion carried on a roll call vote of 9-1, with Boersma voting noe. 


 


 


 


 


 







R-83-2017- Authorizing and Directing the proper City official(s) to Award the Bid for the 


Milfab Site Demolition in the Riverfront Redevelopment Area Located at 433 East South Street, 


Stoughton, WI (Redevelopment Authority approved 6-0 on May 18, 2017) 


 


Motion by Truehl, to table R-83-2017 until the July 25, 2017 Council meeting, second by 


Engelberger. Truehl explained that for the demolition to occur, the RDA needs to obtain a grant 


from the State. These grants will be available for application after July 1, 2017. Motion carried 


10-0. 


 


R-84-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated Work 


Rules Call-Back policy as it relates to the Public Works Department. (Personnel Committee 


approved 4-0 on February 6, 2017) 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-84-2017, second by Jenson. Majewski noted that this is an 


updated section of the work rules pertaining to the City’s Call-Back policy for the Public Works 


Department. HR Director Gillingham noted that this would reflect what is already occurring in 


the Utilities Department and is being brought forward for equity between the two departments. 


Motion carried 10-0. 


 


R-85-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated Work 


Rules On-Call policy as it relates to the Public Works Department (Personnel Committee 


approved 4-0 February 6, 2017) 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-85-2017, second by Boersma. Majewski explained that this is 


also an update to the work rules and creates equity between the Public Works and Utilities 


Departments. Public Works Director Hebert noted that the individual who is on call will receive 


an extra 14 hours of pay for that week. The current rate is 12 hours. Motion carried 10-0. 


 


R-86-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the retroactive pay 


associated with updated Work Rules On-Call policy which was approved on March 6, 2017 as it 


relates to the Public Works Department. (Personnel Committee approved 4-0 on April 3, 2017) 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-86-2017, second by Boersma. HR Director Gillingham 


explained that with the approval of the on call policy, this would allow the employees to receive 


the back pay for the retroactive on-call hours beginning January 1, 2017. Motion carried 10-0. 


 


R-87-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the update to the 


Work Rules Holiday policy to change holiday compensation from three and a half times to 


double time for working the holiday plus eight (8) hours for the day (3x). (Personnel Committee 


approved 4-1, with O’Connor voting noe on April 3, 2017) 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-87-2017, second by Swadley. HR Director Gillingham noted 


that this would make the work rules more consistent with other communities and their method of 


holiday pay. Motion carried 10-0. 


 


 







R-88-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated Hiring 


Policy – Leadership. (Personnel Committee approved 4-0 on May 1, 2017) 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-88-2017, second by Boersma. Majewski noted that the 


Council had requested that this policy on hiring leadership or a department head position be 


reviewed and updated. HR Director Gillingham explained that this policy is more comprehensive 


and really explains the process of hiring leadership roles in any type of situation. Motion carried 


10-0.  


 


R-89-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated Hiring 


Policy – Full and Regular Part-Time Positions. (Personnel Committee approved 5-0 on May 1, 


2017) 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-89-2017, second by Boersma. HR Director Gillingham noted 


that this policy has been updated to reflect the current practices of hiring non-leadership 


positions and also if those position descriptions would ever need to be changed. Motion carried 


10-0. 


 


R-90-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated position 


description and title change of “Forester/Machine Operator” to “City Forester”. (Personnel 


Committee approved 4-0 on June 5, 2017) 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-90-2017, second by Boersma. Public Works Director Hebert 


noted that the position description had been changed to reflect the current needs of the City’s 


urban forest. He noted that this position will also have duties assigned outside the scope of a 


forester. Motion carried 10-0.  


 


R-91-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the move forward 


with hiring for position of City Forester with updated title and position description using grade, 


step and compensation from Springsted determination. This position would be funded from the 


2017 budget at $23.20 per hour with budgeted benefits. (Personnel Committee approved 4-0 on 


June 5, 2017) 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-91-2017, second by Boersma. Majewski explained that this 


would allow for the posting and recruitment of the City Forester. Motion carried 10-0.  


 


R-92-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to approve an annual period for 


employees to request their Springsted study position grade be reviewed due to a qualified change 


as outlined in the Request for Reconsideration with the deadline of May (annually) for 


submission of request with the exception of 2017 which will be July. 


(Personnel Committee approved 4-0 on June 5, 2017) 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-92-2017, second by Boersma. HR Director Gillingham stated 


that this would allow employees to request a Springsted review of their job description, if there 


are qualifying changes made to their job description. Engelberger expressed that he is voting 


against this and that it is wrong because he feels that it is not worker friendly and would increase 







the likeliness of someone leaving the City. He felt that it was wrong that if an employee would 


have changes to their job description then they couldn’t ask for a re-evaluation after the annual 


deadline. HR Director Gillingham noted that if positions open up based on employee departures, 


the team will take on more responsibilities in the short term. These types of duty increases will 


not qualify for a description review. Motion carried 9-1, with Engelberger voting noe. 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


 


Motion by Jenson, to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by Truehl. Motion carried 


10-0. The June 13, 2017 meeting of the Common Council adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 








City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to adopt the American Public Power Association
(APPA) Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017.


Committee Action: Approved 6-0


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R-95-2017 Date Introduced: June 27, 2017


WHEREAS, the Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) has initiated training for all 82
Municipal Electric Utilities in Wisconsin from the revised APPA Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017, and


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Utilities Committee met on June 19, 2017 to consider and adopt the APPA
Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017and recommends adoption, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to adopt the APPA Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







 
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


  


Date:   
  


June 13, 2017   


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  Adoption of the American Public Power Association (APPA) Safety Manual 16th Edition, 


2017 


The Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) has initiated training for all 82 municipal electric 


utilities in Wisconsin from the revised APPA Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017.  Accordingly, it is 


requested that the Stoughton Utilities Committee adopt the APPA Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017 and 


recommend it and the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on June 27, 2017 


 


Encl.  
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 19, 2017 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No.  2 


Electrical infrastructure improvements adjacent to riverfront development area:   Stoughton 
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented 
and discussed electrical infrastructure improvements in the Riverfront Development Area and 
surrounding areas, emphasizing funding, planning, and the establishment of appropriate grades.  
Discussion followed. 


Overhead to underground electrical service upgrades:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented and discussed overhead 
to underground electrical service upgrades.  Discussion followed. 


Wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system 2016 Compliance 
Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and 
discussed the 2016 CMAR.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the 
motion seconded by Alderperson Matt Bartlett, to approve the 2016 CMAR and recommend the 
approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on 
June 27, 2017.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Current City of Stoughton licensing agreement for communications attachments to utility 
poles:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian 
Hoops presented and discussed the agreement.  Discussion followed. 


Wisconsin Assembly Bill 348 proposed legislation, which limits local government authority 
over pole attachment regulation:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton 
Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops presented and discussed Assembly Bill 348.  Discussion 
followed. 


Adoption of the American Public Power Association (APPA) Safety Manual 16th Edition, 
2017:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian 
Hoops present and discussed the APPA Safety Manual 16th Edition, 2017.  Discussion followed.  
Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David 
Erdman, to adopt the APPA Safety Manual, 16th Edition, 2017, and recommend the adoption of the 
manual and the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on June 27, 2017.  
The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Utilities Committee future agenda items:  None.  


Adjournment:  Motion by Citizen Member Alan Staats, the motion seconded by Citizen Member 
David Erdman, to adjourn the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting at 6:18 p.m.  The 
motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Respectfully submitted 


Brian R. Hoops 
Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 



bhoops

Highlight









		7a-R-95-2017-Resolution-APPA Manual.pdf

		7b-Utilities-APPA Safety Manual 16th Edition.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division request by Tom Matson for property
located at and adjacent to 1494 Pleasant Hill Road, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin.


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommend Council approval 6 - 0


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R-98-2017 Date Introduced: June 27, 2017


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:


WHEREAS, the land division request is proposed to split off 5 acres of land for residential single family
development at 1494 Pleasant Hill Road; and


WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as
determined by the Planning Commission and Common Council. This property is contained in the City’s
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), but beyond the City’s Long-Term Urban Growth area as identified in City
planning area; and


WHEREAS, City Ordinance 66-602 (3) provides for a 1 acre minimum lot size and a 2.5 acre maximum lot
size in the ETJ area; and


WHEREAS, City Ordinance 66-1301 provides for exceptions and waivers on a case by case basis if all of
the following conditions are met:


(1) The granting of the exception or waiver conditions will not be detrimental to the public safety,
health, or welfare or injurious to other property;


(2) The conditions upon which the request is based are unique to the property for which the relief is
sought and are not applicable generally to other property except as allowed through planned unit
development, cluster development or traditional neighborhood development;


(3) Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific
property involved, a particular hardship to the owner would result, as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of these regulations is carried out;


(4) The relief sought will not in any manner vary the provisions of the comprehensive plan, zoning
ordinance, or official map, except that those documents may be amended in the manner prescribed
by law;


(5) In approving exceptions or waivers of conditions, the plan commission may require such conditions
so as to carry out the purpose and intent of this chapter described in section 66-102; and


WHEREAS, on June 12, 2017 the Stoughton Planning Commission finds the conditions necessary to grant
a waiver are met for the above requirements; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land
division request by Tom Matson for parcels located at 1494 Pleasant Hill Road, Town of Dunkirk, Dane
County, Wisconsin is hereby approved contingent on Town of Dunkirk and Dane County approval.







Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Mayor Donna Olson Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Matson - Dunkirk ETJ CSM.doc







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2017\6-12-17\Planning Info\Matson Memo 6-17.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 5, 2017


To: Planning Commissioners


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the June 12, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting
Agenda Item for the June 27, 2017 Common Council Meeting


Request by Tom Matson for extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) approval for a land division
at 1494 Pleasant Hill Road, Town of Dunkirk.
The applicant plans to split off 5 acres from the agricultural land to allow sale of that property for
future construction of a home. This land is currently well beyond the planning area of the current
Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map. This request will need a waiver from the land
division ordinance since there is a maximum lot size requirement of 2.5 acres. The resolution and
submittal materials are provided. A recommendation to Council is necessary.











































 
 
 Staff Report 
 
 


 
Zoning and Land Regulation Committee 
  


Public Hearing:  April 25, 2017 Petition:  Rezone 11111 
Zoning Amendment: 
A-1EX Exclusive Agriculture 
District to RH-2 Rural Homes 
District 


Town/sect:  
Dunkirk 
Section 2 
 


Acres: 5 
 Survey Req. Yes 


Applicant 
Ronald J Cotter 


Reason:  
Creating one residential lot 
 


Location: 
1494 Pleasant Hill Rd 


 
 


DESCRIPTION: The applicant proposes to create a 5 acre residential lot for sale. 
 
OBSERVATIONS: The parcel is partially wooded and appears to be pastureland. 
 
TOWN PLAN: The property is located in the town’s agricultural preservation area. As indicated on the attached density 
study reports 2 density rights exist on this farmstead.  One will remain if this petition is approved.   
 
RESOURCE PROTECTION: No Resource Protection areas on the proposed lot. 
 
STAFF: The proposal meets the dimensional standards of the zoning district and the density policy of the Town 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
TOWN: The town approved with no conditions. 







 


Planning
Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, Intermap, increment P Corp.,
GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL,
Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong),
swisstopo, MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the


May 25, 2017
0 0.4 0.80.2 mi


0 0.65 1.30.325 km


1:17,891


 
 



mstacey

Arrow







DRAFT: FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY


IMPORTANT NOTE:  ACREAGE VALUES AND OWNERSHIP HEREIN ARE DERIVED FROM HISTORICAL AND CURRENT RECORDS 
LOCATED AT THE DANE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT (EG. GIS, PLAT BOOKS,  ZONING PERMIT 


DATA,  CSM'S, ETC).  DENSITY POLICIES VARY AMONG TOWNS AND MAY REQUIRE INTERPRETATION. 


Reasons/Notes:


Orig Farm Owner Holte, TheoA‐1EX Adoption 12/17/1979Town Dunkirk


Density Number 40


Available Density Unit(s) 2Density Study Date 04/25/2017 Original Splits 3.62


Original Farm Acres 144.71Section:


Applicant: Ronald & Frances Cotter


02


Public Hearing Date 04/25/2017 Petition Number 11111


The original Holte farm totaled 
approximately 145 acres, 
making it eligible for a total of 3 
dwelling units or "splits". Two 
possible splits remain available. 
Note that the town of Dunkirk 
counts all residences as a split 
toward the density limitation.


Note: Parcels included in the density study reflect farm ownership and acreage as of the date of town plan adoption, or other date 
specified.  Density study is based on the original farm acreage, NOT acreage currently owned. 


Owner NameParcel # Acres CSM


RONALD J COTTER & FRANCES M COTTER051102295008 41.77


RONALD J COTTER & FRANCES M COTTER051102290012 39.21


RONALD J COTTER & FRANCES M COTTER051102190308 31.77


RONALD J COTTER & FRANCES M COTTER051102185305 31.96


Wednesday, April 12, 2017 Page 1 of 1cqk3







Petition 11111
Ronald J Cotter


Ple
as


an
t H


ill 
Rd


Town of Dunkirk A-1(EX)


A-1(EX)


A-1(EX)


RH-2


A-2


A-1(EX)


A-1(EX)


Ü


0 125 25062.5 Feet
Legend
Significant Soils
Class


Class 1
Class 2


Wetland
Floodplain







545-105 (2/06)   WEB


TOWN BOARD ACTION REPORT – REZONE
Regarding Petition #____________________


Dane County Zoning & Land Regulation Committee Public Hearing Date____________________


Whereas, the Town Board of the Town of_____________________________ having considered said zoning petition,


be it therefore resolved that said petition is hereby (check one):      ❑  Approved      ❑  Denied      ❑  Postponed


Town Planning Commission Vote: _____ in favor _____ opposed _____ abstained


                            Town Board Vote: _____ in favor _____ opposed _____ abstained


Please note: The following space is reserved for comment by the minority voter(s),  OR,  for the Town to explain its
approval if the decision does not comply with the relevant provisions of the Town Plan.


THE PETITION IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITION(S)  (Check all appropriate boxes):


1. ❑ Deed restriction limiting use(s) in the __________ zoning district to only the following:


2. ❑ Deed restrict the balance of A-1 EX Agricultural Exclusive zoned land owned by the applicant from the original
farm (as of date specified in the Town Plan) prohibiting non-farm development. Please provide property
description, or tax parcel number(s):


3. ❑ Deed restrict the applicant's property described below prohibiting division. Please provide property
description, or tax parcel number(s):


4. ❑ Condition that the applicant must record a Notice Document which states all residential development units
(a.k.a. splits) have been exhausted on the property, and further residential development is prohibited under
Town & County Land Use Planning policies. Please provide property description, or tax parcel number(s):


5. ❑ Other Condition(s). Please specify:


I, ____________________________, as Town Clerk of the Town of_________________, County of Dane, hereby


certify that the above resolution was adopted in a lawful meeting of the Town Board on_____________________


Town Clerk_________________________________________               Date:___________________________


Dunkirk


Melanie Huchthausen


3/25/2017


4/25/2017


3/20/2017


3


Melanie Huchthausen


0


2017-11111


0 0


0


Dunkirk


5





		11a-R-98-2017-Matson - Dunkirk ETJ CSM.pdf

		11b-Matson 1494 Pleasant Hill Road - ETJ Land Division.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division request by Bruce Sime and James
Lapp for property located at and adjacent to 3333 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland, Dane County,
Wisconsin.


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommend Council approval 6 - 0


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R-99-2017 Date Introduced: June 27, 2017


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:


WHEREAS, the land division request is proposed to split off 5 acres from the agricultural land at 3333
State Highway 138, Town of Rutland; and


WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as
determined by the Planning Commission and Common Council. This property is contained in the City’s
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), but beyond the City’s Long-Term Urban Growth area as identified in City
planning area; and


WHEREAS, City Ordinance 66-602 (3) provides for a 1 acre minimum lot size and a 2.5 acre maximum lot
size in the ETJ area; and


WHEREAS, City Ordinance 66-1301 provides for exceptions and waivers on a case by case basis if all of
the following conditions are met:


(1) The granting of the exception or waiver conditions will not be detrimental to the public safety,
health, or welfare or injurious to other property;


(2) The conditions upon which the request is based are unique to the property for which the relief is
sought and are not applicable generally to other property except as allowed through planned unit
development, cluster development or traditional neighborhood development;


(3) Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the specific
property involved, a particular hardship to the owner would result, as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of these regulations is carried out;


(4) The relief sought will not in any manner vary the provisions of the comprehensive plan, zoning
ordinance, or official map, except that those documents may be amended in the manner prescribed
by law;


(5) In approving exceptions or waivers of conditions, the plan commission may require such conditions
so as to carry out the purpose and intent of this chapter described in section 66-102; and


WHEREAS, on June 12, 2017 the Stoughton Planning Commission finds the conditions necessary to grant
a waiver are met for the above requirements; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land
division request by Bruce Sime and James Lapp for the parcel located at 3333 State Highway 138, Town of
Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin is hereby approved contingent on Town of Rutland and Dane County
approval.







Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Mayor Donna Olson Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Sime - Rutland ETJ CSM.doc







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2017\6-12-17\Planning Info\Sime-Lapp Memo 6-17.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 5, 2017


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the June 12, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting
Agenda Item for the June 27, 2017 Common Council Meeting


Request by Bruce Sime and James Lapp for extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) approval for
a land division at 3333 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland.
The applicants plan to split off 5 acres from the agricultural land with Bruce Sime keeping the
agricultural land and James Lapp keeping the 5 acres including all buildings for his tree trimming
business. This land is currently close but beyond the planning area of the Comprehensive Plan
Planned Land Use Map. This request will need a waiver from the land division ordinance since
there is a maximum lot size requirement 2.5 acres. The resolution and submittal materials are
provided. A recommendation to Council is necessary.











 


Planning
Geophysical
Water Resources
Recreation
ParcelText


Tax Parcels
June 2, 2017


0 0.2 0.40.1 mi


0 0.3 0.60.15 km


1:8,946


 
 



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Arrow







&%138



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Text Box

AG/Rural







ÎËÌÔßÒÜ ÐÔßÒÒ×ÒÙ ÝÑÓÓ×ÍÍ×ÑÒ


Ö«²» ëô îðïé� êæíð °ò³ò 


ß¹»²¼¿æ


ïò Ý¿´´ ³»»¬·²¹ ¬± ±®¼»®ò


îò Î±´´ Ý¿´´ò


íò ß°°®±ª¿´ ±º Ó¿§ ³»»¬·²¹ ³·²«¬»ò


ìò Ð»¬·¬·±² ïïïíîñÝËÐ ðîíéç ¾§ Ì·²¿ Ø¿§©¿®¼ ¬± ®»¦±²» °®±°»®¬§ øïòî ¿½®»÷ ´±½¿¬»¼ ¿¬ íêì
Ð¿¹»´±© Ô¿²» øÍ»½¬·±² íð÷ º®±³ Îóï ¬± ßóîøï÷ ¬± ¿´´±© º±® ´·³·¬»¼ º¿³·´§ ¾«·²» ©·¬¸ ÝËÐ
¬± ¿´´±© º±® ¿³»ò


ëò Ü·½«·±² ¿²¼ °±·¾´» ¿½¬·±² ±² Ð»¬·¬·±² ïïïêë º®±³ Þ«´´· ¬± ®»¦±²» ì ¿½®» ´±½¿¬»¼ ¿¬
ìêìë Í¬¿¬» Ø·¹¸©¿§ ïíè º®±³ ÎÛóï ¬± Ýóî ©·¬¸ °±·¾´» ®»¬®·½¬·±²ò ÅÒ±¬»æ ¬¸» ½±«²¬§ °«¾´·½
¸»¿®·²¹ º±® ¬¸· °»¬·¬·±² ©·´´ ¾» éñîëñïé ± º·²¿´ ¿½¬·±² ½¿² ¾» ±² ¬¸» Ö«´§ ¿¹»²¼¿òÃ


      Ü·½«·±² ¿²¼ ²»½»¿®§ ¿½¬·±² ±² ¬±©²� Ý±³°®»¸»²·ª» Ð´¿² º«¬«®» ¼»ª»´±°³»²¬ ³¿°ò 


êò Ð»¬·¬·±² ïïïëéñÝËÐ îíèì ¾§ Ö·³ Ô¿°°ô ¿¹»²¬ º±® Ó¿®´±©» Ò»´±²ô ¬± ®»¦±²» ¿²¼ °´·¬ ±ºº ¬¸»
¾«·´¼·²¹ º®±³ ¬¸» ®»³¿·²¼»® ±º ¬¸» °®±°»®¬§ ´±½¿¬»¼ ¿¬ íííí Ø©§ ïíè øÍ»½ò ïî÷ò Î»¯«»¬
®»¦±²» ±º ì ¿½®» ¬± Ýóîô ï ¿½®» º®±³ Þóï ¬± Ýóîô ¿²¼ íîòë ¿½®» º®±³ ßóï Û¨ò ¬± ßóì ©·¬¸ ¿
ÝËÐ º±® ¬¸» »¨·¬·²¹ ¸±«» ¬± ¿´´±© ¿ ´¿®¹» ½¿´» ´¿²¼½¿°·²¹ô ²±© ¿²¼ ¬®»» ®»³±ª¿´
»®ª·½»ò ÅÒ±¬»æ ¬¸» ½±«²¬§ °«¾´·½ ¸»¿®·²¹ º±® ¬¸· °»¬·¬·±² ©·´´ ¾» éñîëñïé ± º·²¿´ ¿½¬·±² ½¿²
¾» ±² ¬¸» Ö«´§ ¿¹»²¼¿òÃ


éò Î»¯«»¬ º±® ¿°°®±ª¿´ ±º ¼®·ª»©¿§ °»®³·¬ º±® °®±°»®¬§ ´±½¿¬»¼ ¿¬ íîîê Ñ´¼ Í¬¿¹» Î¼ò øÍ·¬»
ª·»©·²¹á÷


èò Ë°¼¿¬» ±² ½»´´ ¬±©»® ¿°°´·½¿¬·±² ±² ¬¸» Ó¿®¬·²±² °®±°»®¬§ò


çò Ò»¨¬ ³»»¬·²¹ò øÖ«´§ ì¬¸ · ï¬ Ì«»¼¿§÷


ïðò ß¼¶±«®²³»²¬ò





		12a-R-99-2017-Sime - Rutland ETJ CSM.pdf

		12b-Sime-Lapp 3333 State Hwy 138 - ETJ Land Division.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointment of Todd Hubing to the Stoughton Landmarks Commission


Fiscal Impact:
Committee Action:


N/A
Landmarks Commission recommends approval 6-0


File Number: R-102-2017 Date Adopted: June 27, 2017


WHEREAS, the Mayor has submitted the appointment of Todd Hubing to the Stoughton Landmarks
Commission to fill existing vacancy, with the term ending in 2018, for Council confirmation; and


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s)
confirm the Mayor’s appointment of Todd Hubing to the Stoughton Landmarks Commission.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote








City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to acknowledge receipt of the Stoughton Utilities
2016 Audit Report and Management Letter.


Committee Action: 6-0


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R-93-2017 Date Introduced: June 27, 2017


WHEREAS, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP has prepared the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and
Management Letter for 2016, and


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on May 15, 2017 to consider, approve, and
recommend the approval of the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and Management letter for 2016 and the
adoption of the corresponding resolution, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) are
hereby authorized and directed to acknowledge receipt of the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and
Management Letter for 2016.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







 
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


  


Date:   
  


May 9, 2017   


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Jamin T. Friedl, CPA 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager 


Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


    
  


Stoughton Utilities Director  


Subject:  Stoughton Utilities 2016 audit reports and management letter  


The Stoughton Utilities audit reports and management letter will be presented to the Utilities Committee 


at their May 15, 2017 meeting.  Ms. Jodi Dobson of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP is scheduled to 


present the audit information.   


Please review the attached audit reports and management letter and contact us if you have any questions 


prior to the meeting.   


We are requesting that the Utilities Committee accept the Stoughton Utilities 2016 audit report and 


management letter, and recommend the acceptance of the audit report and the management letter and the 


adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on May June 13, 2017.   


Encl. 


cc: Jodi Dobson, CPA 


Partner - Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


Bethany Ryers, CPA 


Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


 Tammy LaBorde, MPA, ICMA-CM 


Stoughton Finance & Economic Development Director 


 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Enterprise Funds of the


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


Including Independent Auditors' Report


As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015







STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Enterprise Funds of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


TABLE OF CONTENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


Independent Auditors' Report 1 - 2


Required Supplementary Information


Management's Discussion and Analysis 3 - 20


Financial Statements


Electric Utility


Statements of Net Position 21 - 22


Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 23


Statements of Cash Flows 24 - 25


Water Utility


Statements of Net Position 26 - 27


Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 28


Statements of Cash Flows 29 - 30


Wastewater Utility


Statements of Net Position 31 - 32


Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 33


Statements of Cash Flows 34 - 35


Notes to Financial Statements 36 - 76


Required Supplementary Information


Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Asset 77


Notes to Required Supplementary Information 78







STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Enterprise Funds of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


TABLE OF CONTENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


Supplemental Information


Electric Utility


Utility Plant 79


Operating Revenues and Expenses 80 - 81


Rate of Return - Regulatory Basis 82


Water Utility


Utility Plant 83


Operating Revenues and Expenses 84 - 85


Rate of Return - Regulatory Basis 86


Wastewater Utility


Utility Plant 87


Operating Revenues and Expenses 88















   


 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION 


AND ANALYSIS 
 
 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 3 


The management of the Stoughton Utilities (utilities) offers all persons interested in the financial 
position of the utilities an objective, easy to read overview and analysis of the utilities’ financial 
performance during the years ending December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014. You are invited to 
read this narrative in conjunction with the utilities’ financial statements. 


 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 


 


ELECTRIC: 


 


 Electric sales increased by .50% in 2016 due to a corresponding increase in power 
purchased.   


 
 The electric division’s net position increased by $827,300 from the prior year. 


 
 Completed $1.2 million of capital improvements to accommodate developments and 


improve operations and electric system reliability. 
 
WATER: 


 
 Completed $1.9 million of capital improvements and received $972,200 in municipal and 


customer contributions. 
     


 The water division’s net position increased by $1.0 million from the prior year.  
 


 Sales increased by $192,800 or 10.95% in 2016 due to a 13% increase in retail rates 
effective May 1, 2016.     
 
 


WASTEWATER: 


 
 Completed $1.3 million of sewer projects and received $846,800 in municipal and 


customer contributions. 
  


 The utility experienced a slight increase in sales revenues of $5,200 or .26% in 2016 due 
to a slight increase in residential and commercial sales offset by a decrease in industrial 
sales.   


 
 The wastewater division’s net position increased by $921,100 from the prior year. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 4 


 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


 
The utilities are self-supporting entities and separate enterprise funds of the City of Stoughton 
(city). The utilities provide electric, water, and wastewater service to properties within the city 
and also provides electric service to the following Townships: Dunkirk, Dunn, Pleasant Springs, Porter 
and Rutland.  
 
The water and electric utilities are managed by a Utilities Committee and operate under service 
rules and rates that are established by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
The accounting records are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts 
prescribed by the PSCW, and in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board.  
 
The Utilities Committee also manages the wastewater utility.  The Utilities Committee and the 
Common Council establish rates and service rules. Accounting records are maintained in 
accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
 
This annual report consists of two parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and the basic 
financial statements, including the independent auditor’s report. 
 
An analysis of the utilities’ financial position begins with a review of the Statement of Net 
Position, and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. These two 
statements report the utilities’ net position and changes therein. The utilities’ net position – ‘the 
difference between assets and liabilities’ is key to measuring the financial health of the utilities. 
Over time, increases or decreases in the net position value are an indicator of whether the 
overall financial position is improving or deteriorating. However, it should be noted that the 
financial position may also be affected by other non-financial factors, including economic 
conditions, customer growth, climate conditions and new regulations. 
 
 
 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS  


 
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the utilities’ assets and liabilities and provides 
information about the nature and amount of investments in resources and the obligations to 
creditors. This statement provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure and assessing 
the liquidity and financial flexibility of the utilities.  
 
A summary of the utilities’ Statements of Net Position is presented below in Tables 1 through 3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 5 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 1 


Condensed Statement of Net Position – Electric Utility 
 


2016-2015
2016 2015 2014 Change


Current and Other Assets 13,309,505$   10,989,389$   10,529,265$   2,320,116$     
Capital Assets 14,402,176     14,249,247     14,350,749     152,929           
     Total Assets 27,711,681     25,238,636     24,880,014     2,473,045        


Deferred Outflows of Resources 575,914           158,933           -                    416,981           


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 6,250,000        4,460,000        4,460,000        1,790,000        
Other Liabilities 2,275,608        2,223,030        2,628,423        52,578             
      Total Liabilities 8,525,608        6,683,030        7,088,423        1,842,578        


Deferred Inflows of Resources 221,246           1,063                -                    220,183           


Investment in Capital Assets 9,860,679        9,740,384        9,349,914        120,295           
Restricted 1,090,228        1,198,784        1,089,205        (108,556)          
Unrestricted 8,589,834        7,774,308        7,352,472        815,526           
     Total Net Position 19,540,741$   18,713,476$   17,791,591$   827,265$         


 
 
In 2016, the electric utility net position increased $827,265, an increase of 4.42%. The increase 
was as anticipated and in line with the 2016 operating budget. 
 
In 2015, the electric utility net position increased $921,885, an increase of 5.19%. The increase 
was as anticipated and in line with the 2015 operating budget. 
 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 6 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 2 


Condensed Statement of Net Position – Water Utility 
 


2016-2015
2016 2015 2014 Change


Current and Other Assets 2,416,880$     1,610,745$     1,203,476$     806,135$         
Capital Assets 15,281,587     13,898,850     12,747,318     1,382,737        
     Total Assets 17,698,467     15,509,595     13,950,794     2,188,872        


Deferred Outflows of Resources 206,806           57,424             -                    149,382           


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 3,417,424        2,297,381        1,775,381        1,120,043        
Other Liabilities 656,534           560,512           624,686           96,022             
      Total Liabilities 4,073,958        2,857,893        2,400,067        1,216,065        


Deferred Inflows of Resources 77,947             390                   -                    77,557             


Investment in Capital Assets 12,041,652     11,601,469     10,820,680     440,183           
Restricted 528,997           442,722           406,334           86,275             
Unrestricted 1,182,719        664,545           323,713           518,174           


     Total Net Position 13,753,368$   12,708,736$   11,550,727$   1,044,632$     


 
In 2016, the water utility net position increased $1,044,632, an increase of 8.22%. The increase 
was mainly due to capital improvements that were financed by customers or developers and the 
implementation of a 13% retail rate adjustment effective May 1, 2016. 
 
In 2015, the water utility net position increased $1,158,009, an increase of 10.03%. The increase was 
mainly due to capital improvements that were financed by customers or developers and the 
implementation of a 3% retail rate adjustment in July 2015. 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 7 


 


UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 3 


Condensed Statements of Net Position – Wastewater Utility 
 


2016-2015
2016 2015 2014 Change


Current and Other Assets 3,523,717$    3,551,473$    2,890,768$      (27,756)$        
Capital Assets 18,723,878    18,211,980    17,931,136      511,898         
     Total Assets 22,247,595    21,763,453    20,821,904      484,142         


Deferred Outflows of Resources 227,166         62,601            -                    164,565         


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 5,474,363      5,908,753       5,312,592        (434,390)        
Other Liabilities 277,920         202,878          633,136           75,042           
      Total Liabilities 5,752,283      6,111,631       5,945,728        (359,348)        


Deferred Inflows of Resources 87,394            418                  -                    86,976           


Investment in Capital Assets 13,249,636    12,303,350    12,236,966      946,286         
Restricted 1,472,409      1,494,868       1,489,947        (22,459)          
Unrestricted 1,913,039      1,915,787       1,149,263        (2,748)            


     Total Net Position 16,635,084$ 15,714,005$  14,876,176$   921,079$       


 
In 2016, the wastewater utility net position increased $921,079, an increase of 5.86%. The increase was 
mainly due to capital improvements that were financed by customers or developers. 
 
In 2015, the wastewater utility net position increased $837,829, an increase of 5.63%. The increase was 
mainly due to capital improvements that were financed by customers or developers and the 
implementation of a 2.74% retail rate adjustment on January 1, 2015. 
 
The restricted portion of net position includes accounts that are limited by bond covenants. 
Listed below are restricted assets: 
 
 Redemption   –  Used for debt service payments. 
 Reserve    – Used for any deficiencies in the redemption account. 
 Depreciation  –  Used to restore deficiencies in the redemption and reserve accounts, and for 


funding plant replacements. 
 Construction –  Bond issue proceeds used only for the restricted construction project(s).  
 Replacement –  Used for plant replacement. 
  
The specific nature or source of these changes becomes more evident in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as shown in Tables 4 through 6.  







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 8 


 


UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides an indication of 
the utilities’ financial health. 
 


Table 4 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Position - 
Electric Utility 


 


2016-2015
2016 2015 2014 Change


Operating Revenues 15,116,204$   15,057,028$   15,603,989$   59,176$           
Non-Operating Revenues 103,266           113,721           94,519             (10,455)            
     Total Revenues 15,219,470     15,170,749     15,698,508     48,721             


Depreciation Expense 996,954           965,661           934,151           31,293             
Other Operating Expense 13,329,607     13,261,410     13,770,271     68,197             
Non-Operating Expenses 262,172           149,159           158,954           113,013           
     Total Expenses 14,588,733     14,376,230     14,863,376     212,503           


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 630,737           794,519           835,132           (163,782)          


Capital Contributions 324,625           220,414           80,949             104,211           
Capital Contribution - Municipal 269,901           -                    -                    269,901           
Transfers - Tax Equivalent (376,785)          (370,260)          (366,032)          (6,525)              
Transfers  (21,213)            (23,455)            (19,212)            2,242                


          Changes in Net Position 827,265           621,218           530,837           206,047           


Beginning Net Position 18,713,476     17,791,591     17,260,754     921,885           


Cumulative Effect of Change in 
   Accounting Principle -                    300,667           -                    (300,667)          


          Total Net Position - Ending 19,540,741$   18,713,476$   17,791,591$   827,265$         


 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 9 


 


UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 5 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Position - 
Water Utility 


2016-2015
2016 2015 2014 Change


Operating Revenues 2,001,124$       1,784,416$       1,750,961$       216,708$          
Non-Operating Revenues 27,981               8,608                 2,118                  19,373              
     Total Revenues 2,029,105         1,793,024         1,753,079          236,081            


Depreciation Expense 428,084            408,632             390,653             19,452              
Other Operating Expense 1,012,205         885,770             924,261             126,435            
Non-Operating Expenses 126,093            87,136               84,281               38,957              
     Total Expenses 1,566,382         1,381,538         1,399,195          184,844            


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 462,723            411,486             353,884             51,237              


Capital Contributions 756,373            501,276             26,500               255,097            
Capital Contribution - Municipal 215,803            498,076             -                      (282,273)           
Transfers - Tax Equivalent (387,855)           (363,249)           (352,700)            (24,606)             
Transfers  (2,412)                (59)                      (6,001)                (2,353)               


          Changes in Net Position 1,044,632         1,047,530         21,683               (2,898)               


Beginning Net Position 12,708,736       11,550,727       11,529,044       1,158,009         


Cumulative Effect of Change in 
   Accounting Principle -                     110,479             -                      (110,479)           


          Total Net Position - Ending 13,753,368$    12,708,736$     11,550,727$     1,044,632$      


 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 10 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 6 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Position - 
Wastewater Utility 


 


2016-2014
2016 2015 2014 Change


Operating Revenues 2,036,002$       2,037,835$       2,050,885$       (1,833)$             
Non-Operating Revenues 2,485                 9,863                 11,559               (7,378)                
     Total Revenues 2,038,487         2,047,698         2,062,444         (9,211)                


Depreciation Expense 796,285            777,150            726,884            19,135               
Other Operating Expense 1,020,298         1,042,161         944,780            (21,863)             
Non-Operating Expenses 147,663            156,284            105,611            (8,621)                
     Total Expenses 1,964,246         1,975,595         1,777,275         (11,349)             


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 74,241               72,103               285,169            2,138                 


Capital Contributions 846,838            647,528            37,600               199,310            


          Changes in Net Position 921,079            719,631            322,769            201,448            


Beginning Net Position 15,714,005       14,876,176       14,553,407       837,829            


Cumulative Effect of Change in
   Accounting Principle -                     118,198            -                     (118,198)           


          Total Net Position - Ending 16,635,084$    15,714,005$    14,876,176$    921,079$          


 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 11 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Comparison of Electric Sales


0


1,000,000


2,000,000


3,000,000


4,000,000


5,000,000


6,000,000


7,000,000


8,000,000


9,000,000


2016


2015


2014


 
 
Electric sales increased by .50% in 2016.  The increase is mainly due to a slight increase in 
electric consumption and the lingering effects of a .60% retail rate increase effective September 
1, 2015. 


2016 2015 2014
Residential 7,708,713$         7,467,797$        7,705,020$       
General Service 1,975,648           2,049,345          2,099,107         
Small Power 1,509,874           1,548,289          1,618,430         
Large Power 914,513             885,980             1,044,735         
Industrial Power 2,742,903           2,814,381          2,805,130         
Public Lighting 129,286             140,565             147,079            


Total Electric Sales 14,980,937$       14,906,357$       15,419,501$      


 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 12 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 


Comparison of Water Sales


0


100,000


200,000


300,000


400,000


500,000


600,000


700,000


800,000


900,000


1,000,000


2016


2015


2014


 
Sales increased by $192,800 or 10.95% in 2016 mainly due to the implementation of a 13% 
retail rate adjustment effective May 1, 2016. 


2016 2015 2014
Residential 876,828$            805,271$           793,284$          
Multifamily Residential 65,660               56,463               59,595              
Commercial 158,636             136,433             146,790            
Industrial 296,674             268,342             251,139            
Public Authority 18,747               18,485               16,738              
Private Fire 38,842               29,373               28,385              
Public Fire 498,439             446,666             432,068            


Total Water Sales 1,953,826$         1,761,033$        1,727,999$       


 
 


 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 13 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


      
Comparison of Wastewater Sales


0


200,000


400,000


600,000


800,000


1,000,000


1,200,000


1,400,000


1,600,000


Residential Commercial Industrial Public
Authority


2016


2015


2014


The utility experienced a slight increase in revenues of $5,200 or .26% in 2016 due to a slight 
increase in residential and commercial sales offset by a decrease in industrial sales. 


2016 2015 2014
Residential 1,405,052$         1,399,906$        1,354,439$       
Commercial 434,528             417,257             456,341            
Industrial 135,789             150,898             180,296            
Public Authority 23,174               25,331               26,590              


Total Wastewater Sales 1,998,543$         1,993,392$        2,017,666$       


 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 14 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
The Statement of Cash Flows reports the cash provided and used by operating activities, as well 
as other cash sources such as investment income and cash payments for repayment of bonds 
and capital additions. 
 


Table 7 
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows  


Electric Utility 
 


2016-2015
2016 2015 2014 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 1,855,536$        2,082,750$        1,665,622$        (227,214)$          
     Non-capital financing activities (341,973)            (340,958)            (352,219)            (1,015)                 
     Capital and related financing
        activities 838,779             (1,147,670)         (1,200,647)         1,986,449          
     Investing activities 30,632                115,694             (289,421)            (85,062)              


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents 2,382,974          709,816             (176,665)            1,673,158          


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 4,285,700          3,575,884          3,752,549          709,816             


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 6,668,674$        4,285,700$        3,575,884$        2,382,974$        


 
The increase in cash and cash equivalents in 2016 is mainly the result of cash flows from normal 
operating activities and proceeds from long-term debt issued during 2016. 
 
The increase in cash and cash equivalents in 2015 is a result of cash flows from normal operating 
activities and maturity of long-term investments during the year. 
 
The electric utility’s goal is to maintain unrestricted cash and cash equivalent balances to cover 
a minimum of 6 months of average operating expenditures.  
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 15 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 8 


Condensed Statements of Cash Flows - 
Water Utility 


2016-2015
2016 2015 2014 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 1,020,539$        940,902$           824,521$           79,637$             
     Non-Capital financing activities (359,016)            (343,995)            (367,821)            (15,021)              
     Capital and related financing
        activities 120,688             (738,915)            (819,346)            859,603             
     Investing activities 37,294                53,308                40,654                (16,014)              


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents 819,505             (88,700)              (321,992)            908,205             


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 259,711             348,411             670,403             (88,700)              


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 1,079,216$        259,711$           348,411$           819,505$           


 
The water utility experienced an increase in cash and cash equivalents in 2016 resulting mainly 
from the 13% increase in retail rates effective May 1, 2016 and proceeds from long-term debt 
issued during 2016. 
 
The water utility experienced a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $88,700 in 2015. The 
decrease was anticipated and is primarily due to the acquisition and construction of capital 
assets. 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 16 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 9 


Condensed Statements of Cash Flows - 
Wastewater Utility 


2016-2015
2016 2015 2014 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 1,067,230$      1,033,828$      1,061,317$      33,402$           
     Capital and related financing
        activities (1,052,534)       (762,538)          (504,963)          (289,996)          
     Investing activities (336,570)          35,624             42,552             (372,194)          


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents (321,874)          306,914           598,906           (628,788)          


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 2,355,598        2,048,684        1,449,778        306,914           


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 2,033,724$      2,355,598$      2,048,684$      (321,874)$        


 
The utility experienced a decrease in cash and cash equivalents in 2016 resulting mainly from 
increased purchases of long-term investments throughout the year. 
 
The utility experienced an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $306,914 in 2015. The 
increase is mainly due to a retail rate adjustment of 2.74% implemented on January 1, 2015. 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 17 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 10 


Capital Assets – Electric Utility 
 


2016-2015
2016 2015 2014 Change


Capital Assets
     Transmission and distribution 24,173,466$     23,013,424$     22,522,693$     1,160,042$      
     General 4,116,528        4,109,843        4,396,696        6,685              
          Total Capital Assets 28,289,994      27,123,267      26,919,389      1,166,727        


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (14,429,881)     (13,478,535)     (12,594,695)     (951,346)          
Construction in progress 189,399           251,853           26,055             (62,454)            


          Net Capital Assets 14,049,512$     13,896,585$     14,350,749$     152,927$         


 
 
 
 
 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 18 


 


UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 11 


Capital Assets – Water Utility 
 


2016-2015
2016 2015 2014 Change


Capital Assets
     Source of supply 607,365$        607,365$        581,758$        -$               
     Pumping 1,489,440       1,468,519       1,461,653       20,921            
     Water treatment 90,763            90,763            90,763            -                 
     Transmission and distribution 18,550,405     16,779,796     15,354,937     1,770,609       
     General 1,241,535       1,248,562       1,208,737       (7,027)            
          Total Capital Assets 21,979,508     20,195,005     18,697,848     1,784,503       


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (6,778,559)      (6,402,633)      (5,981,157)      (375,926)         
Construction in progress 80,638            106,478          30,627            (25,840)           


          Net Capital Assets 15,281,587$    13,898,850$    12,747,318$    1,382,737$     


 
 
 
 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 19 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 12 


Capital Assets – Wastewater Utility 
2016-2015


2016 2015 2014 Change


Capital Assets
     Collection system 11,214,653$    10,363,837$    9,360,156$     850,816$        
     Collection system pumping 733,519          401,065          401,065          332,454          
     Treatment and disposal 15,554,351     15,554,351     15,550,149     -                 
     General 1,376,617       1,314,953       1,308,895       61,664            
          Total Capital Assets 28,879,140     27,634,206     26,620,265     1,244,934       


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (10,250,053)    (9,483,326)      (8,727,985)      (766,727)         
Construction in progress 94,791            61,100            38,856            33,691            


          Net Capital Assets 18,723,878$    18,211,980$    17,931,136$    511,898$        


 
 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT 


 
As of December 31, 2016, the electric utility had total mortgage revenue bond debt outstanding 
of $6,250,000 payable from and secured by a pledge of income and revenue to be derived from 
the operation of the electric utility. These issues were issued for electric system improvements, 
the construction of new substation, an east substation transformer, and costs associated with 
the implementation of automated meter reading (AMR). 
 
As of December 31, 2016, the water utility had total mortgage revenue bond debt outstanding of 
$2,943,424 payable from and secured by a pledge of income and revenue to be derived from the 
operation of the water utility and $474,000 of general obligation bonds. These issues were 
primarily for additions and improvements to the water system, street improvement projects, AMR 
implementation and a new tower.  
 
The wastewater utility had $5,158,363 of clean water fund loans and $316,000 of general 
obligation bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2016. These bonds were issued for a sewer 
main extension to 5 customers, a series of wastewater treatment plant upgrade and expansion 
projects, and an electrical upgrade in 2014.  
 
Tables of separate bond issues are included in note 6 of this audit report. 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2016 and 2015 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 20 


 


CONTACTING UTILITY MANAGEMENT 


 
This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the utilities’ finances. If you have questions about this report, or need additional 
financial information, contact Jamin Friedl, CPA, Finance and Administrative Manager, 
Stoughton Utilities, 600 South Fourth Street, P.O. Box 383, Stoughton, WI  53589. 
 
General information relating to the Stoughton Utilities can be found at the utilities’ web site at 
www.stoughtonutilities.com.   
  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


ELECTRIC UTILITY 
 


 







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015


ASSETS 2016 2015
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments $ 6,951,441 $ 6,493,536
Interest receivable 49,995 22,562
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 486,538 408,357
Customer accounts receivable 1,526,861 1,449,831
Other accounts receivable 161,218 205,779
Due from municipality 15,289 6,652
Materials and supplies 163,294 129,405
Prepayments 3,276 2,535
Current portion of advance 39,190 37,088


Total Current Assets 9,397,102 8,755,745


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Reserve account 649,338 649,338
Depreciation account 25,000 25,000
Construction account 1,840,074 -
Net pension asset - 150,770


Other Assets
Electric plant and maintenance reserve account 508,914 507,821
Sick leave reserve account 171,811 170,083
Advances to other funds 337,463 376,653
Investment in ATC 361,850 336,026
Property held for future use 352,664 352,664
Non-utility property, net 17,953 17,953


Capital Assets
Plant in service 28,289,994 27,123,265
Accumulated depreciation (14,429,881) (13,478,535)
Construction work in progress 189,399 251,853


Total Noncurrent Assets 18,314,579 16,482,891


Total Assets 27,711,681 25,238,636


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pension 575,914 158,933


Page 21







LIABILITIES 2016 2015
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable $ 1,068,767 $ 1,099,327
Due to municipality 462,554 409,561
Customer deposits 106,064 97,350
Accrued wages 2,973 6,919
Accrued interest 2,005 1,640
Accrued liabilities 102,073 103,131
Commitment to Community 26,651 26,088
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 610,000 490,000
Accrued interest 70,648 34,681


   Total Current Liabilities 2,451,735 2,268,697


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds 5,640,000 3,970,000
Unamortized debt premium 131,571 48,863
Accrued sick leave 171,811 170,083
Customer advances for construction 27,141 225,387
Net pension liability 103,350 -


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,073,873 4,414,333


Total Liabilities 8,525,608 6,683,030


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pension 221,246 1,063


NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 9,860,679 9,740,384
Restricted for:
   Debt service 1,090,228 1,048,014
   Pension - 150,770
Unrestricted 8,589,834 7,774,308


TOTAL NET POSITION $ 19,540,741 $ 18,713,476


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 22







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of electricity $ 14,980,937 $ 14,906,357
Other 135,267 150,671


Total Operating Revenues 15,116,204 15,057,028


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 13,329,607 13,261,410
Depreciation 996,954 965,661


Total Operating Expenses 14,326,561 14,227,071


OPERATING INCOME 789,643 829,957


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 92,308 101,749
Debt issuance costs (110,140) -
Interest expense (148,952) (142,393)
Amortization of premium 10,958 11,972
Miscellaneous expenses (3,080) (6,766)


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (158,906) (35,438)


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 630,737 794,519


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 324,625 220,414
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS - MUNICIPAL 269,901 -
TRANSFER IN (OUT) (21,213) (23,455)
TRANSFERS - TAX EQUIVALENT (376,785) (370,260)


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 827,265 621,218


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 18,713,476 17,791,591


Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle - 300,667


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 19,540,741 $ 18,713,476


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 23







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers $ 14,973,046 $ 15,288,234
Received for street lighting 129,286 132,627
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (12,486,322) (12,517,485)
Paid to employees for operating payroll (760,474) (820,626)


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,855,536 2,082,750


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (370,260) (366,032)
Received from municipality principal on Wisconsin Retirement


UAAL liability
37,088 35,065


Received from municipality interest on Wisconsin Retirement
UAAL liability


12,412 13,464


Transfers to other funds (21,213) (23,455)
Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (341,973) (340,958)


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES


Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,196,807) (793,426)
Received from the sale of capital assets - 6,148
Capital contributions received 374,680 265,332
Premium on debt issue 93,666 -
Debt retired (2,215,000) (480,000)
Interest paid (112,620) (145,724)
Proceeds from debt issue 4,005,000 -
Debt issuance costs (110,140) -


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities


838,779 (1,147,670)


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (1,926,705) (976,900)
Investments sold and matured 1,893,138 1,027,522
Dividends/(Investment) in ATC 15,064 18,082
Investment income 49,135 46,990


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 30,632 115,694


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,382,974 709,816


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 4,285,700 3,575,884


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 6,668,674 $ 4,285,700


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


ATC earnings allocated $ 10,016 $ 18,900


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments $ (37,560) $ (29,432)


Capital Contribution $ - $ 94,320


Page 24







2016 2015
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH


FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 789,643 $ 829,957
Nonoperating revenue (expense) (3,080) (3,106)
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 996,954 965,661
Depreciation charged to clearing and other utilities 45,600 39,600


Changes in assets and liabilities
Customer accounts receivable (77,030) 302,140
Other accounts receivable 66,161 96,244
Due from other funds (8,637) 6,677
Materials and supplies (33,889) 686
Prepayments (741) 383
Pension related deferrals and liabilities 57,322 (7,973)
Accounts payable (29,236) (106,421)
Due to other funds 46,468 1,408
Customer deposits 8,714 (38,122)
Accrued sick leave 1,728 3,210
Other current liabilities (5,004) (2,630)
Commitment to community 563 (4,964)


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,855,536 $ 2,082,750


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments $ 6,951,441 $ 6,493,536
Redemption account 486,538 408,357
Reserve account 649,338 649,338
Depreciation account 25,000 25,000
Construction account 1,840,074 -
Electric plant and maintenance reserve account 508,914 507,821
Sick leave reserve account 171,811 170,083


Total Cash and Investments 10,633,116 8,254,135
Less:  Noncash equivalents (3,964,442) (3,968,435)


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 6,668,674 $ 4,285,700


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 25







 


WATER UTILITY 


 







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015


ASSETS 2016 2015
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments $ 412,856 $ 130,189
Interest receivable 3,858 665
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 267,550 129,523
Customer accounts receivable 198,827 167,110
Other accounts receivable 38,421 19,662
Due from municipality 70,394 2,419
Materials and supplies 34,812 29,831
Prepayments 828 551
Current portion of special assessments 50,103 50,103


Total Current Assets 1,077,649 530,053


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Reserve account 244,677 244,677
Depreciation account 25,000 25,000
Construction account 213,127 -
Net pension asset - 55,400


Other Assets
Water plant and maintenance reserve account 328,378 176,688
Sick leave reserve account 96,587 93,082
Special assessments receivable 400,824 450,927
Non-utility property, net 30,638 34,918


Capital Assets
Plant in service 21,979,508 20,195,005
Accumulated depreciation (6,778,559) (6,402,633)
Construction work in progress 80,638 106,478


Total Noncurrent Assets 16,620,818 14,979,542


Total Assets 17,698,467 15,509,595


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pension 206,806 57,424


Page 26







LIABILITIES 2016 2015
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable $ 75,473 $ 73,563
Due to municipality 403,264 372,013
Customer deposits - 1,615
Accrued wages 8,515 4,486
Accrued interest 2,423 3,875
Current portion of general obligation debt 51,000 48,000
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 322,677 176,958
Accrued interest 8,230 11,878


   Total Current Liabilities 871,582 692,388


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
General obligation debt 423,000 474,000
Revenue bonds 2,620,747 1,598,423
Unamortized debt premium 35,638 -
Accrued sick leave 86,587 93,082
Net pension liability 36,404 -


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,202,376 2,165,505


Total Liabilities 4,073,958 2,857,893


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pension 77,947 390


NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 12,041,652 11,601,469
Restricted for:
   Debt service 528,997 387,322
   Pension - 55,400
Unrestricted 1,182,719 664,545


TOTAL NET POSITION $ 13,753,368 $ 12,708,736


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 27







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of water $ 1,953,826 $ 1,761,033
Other 47,298 23,383


Total Operating Revenues 2,001,124 1,784,416


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 1,012,205 885,770
Depreciation 428,084 408,632


Total Operating Expenses 1,440,289 1,294,402


OPERATING INCOME 560,835 490,014


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 25,029 8,608
Interest expense (74,001) (76,423)
Amortization of premium 2,952 -
Miscellaneous expenses (4,280) (4,280)
Debt issuance costs (47,812) (6,433)


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (98,112) (78,528)


Income Before Contributions 462,723 411,486


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 756,373 501,276
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS - MUNICIPAL 215,803 498,076
TRANSFER IN (OUT) (2,412) (59)
TRANSFERS - TAX EQUIVALENT (387,855) (363,249)


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,044,632 1,047,530


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 12,708,736 11,550,727


Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle - 110,479


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 13,753,368 $ 12,708,736


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 28







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers $ 2,000,726 $ 1,803,916
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (600,919) (541,844)
Paid to employees for operating payroll (379,268) (321,170)


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,020,539 940,902


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (356,604) (343,936)
Transfers to other funds (2,412) (59)


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (359,016) (343,995)


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES


Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,497,384) (1,057,693)
Capital contributions received 586,352 22,311
Premium on debt issue 38,590 -
Debt retired (1,399,957) (151,257)
Interest paid (79,101) (74,276)
Proceeds from debt issue 2,520,000 522,000
Debt issuance costs (47,812) -


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities


120,688 (738,915)


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (200,000) (399,392)
Investments sold and matured 222,122 442,818
Investment income 15,172 9,882


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 37,294 53,308


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 819,505 (88,700)


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 259,711 348,411


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 1,079,216 $ 259,711


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Capital costs special assessed to customers $ - $ 501,030


Capital contributions $ 352,096 $ 476,011


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments $ (8,367) $ (2,007)


Page 29







2016 2015
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH


FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 560,835 $ 490,014
Nonoperating revenue (expense) - (6,434)
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 428,084 408,632
Depreciation charged to clearing and other utilities 31,606 31,875


Changes in assets and liabilities
Customer accounts receivable (31,717) 22,728
Other accounts receivable 14,969 (13,740)
Due from other funds (2,841) (2,419)
Materials and supplies (4,981) 4,766
Prepayments (277) 147
Pension related deferrals and liabilities 19,979 (1,955)
Accounts payable 8,963 8,302
Customer deposits (1,615) (118)
Accrued wages 4,029 (10,547)
Accrued sick leave (6,495) 9,651


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,020,539 $ 940,902


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments $ 412,856 $ 130,189
Redemption account 267,550 129,523
Reserve account 244,677 244,677
Depreciation account 25,000 25,000
Construction account 213,127 -
Water plant and maintenance reserve account 328,378 176,688
Sick leave reserve account 96,587 93,082


Total Cash and Investments 1,588,175 799,159
Less:  Noncash equivalents (508,959) (539,448)


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 1,079,216 $ 259,711


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 30







 


WASTEWATER UTILITY 


 







STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015


ASSETS 2016 2015
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments $ 1,333,682 $ 1,377,187
Interest receivable 1,921 1,609
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 365,599 296,992
Customer accounts receivable 205,564 191,564
Other accounts receivable 6,718 8,389
Due from municipality 49,361 3,023
Prepayments 1,035 701
Current portion of special assessments 34,359 34,359


Total Current Assets 1,998,239 1,913,824


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Depreciation account 33,283 33,283
Replacement account 1,096,288 1,129,917
Construction account 123 123
Net pension asset - 59,271


Other Assets
Sick leave reserve account 120,910 105,822
Special assessments receivable 274,874 309,233


Capital Assets
Plant in service 28,879,140 27,634,206
Accumulated depreciation (10,250,053) (9,483,326)
Construction work in progress 94,791 61,100


Total Noncurrent Assets 20,249,356 19,849,629


Total Assets 22,247,595 21,763,453


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pension 227,166 62,601


Page 31







LIABILITIES 2016 2015
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable $ 66,855 $ 53,138
Due to municipality 9,073 5,843
Accrued wages 15,881 10,896
Accrued interest 1,615 2,584
Current portion of general obligation debt 34,000 32,000
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 413,395 402,390
Accrued interest 22,761 24,595


   Total Current Liabilities 563,580 531,446


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
General obligation debt 282,000 316,000
Revenue bonds 4,744,968 5,158,363
Accrued sick leave 120,910 105,822
Net pension liability 40,825 -


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,188,703 5,580,185


Total Liabilities 5,752,283 6,111,631


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pension 87,394 418


NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 13,249,638 12,303,350
Restricted for:
   Debt service 376,121 305,680
   Equipment replacement 1,096,288 1,129,917
   Pension - 59,271
Unrestricted 1,913,037 1,915,787


TOTAL NET POSITION $ 16,635,084 $ 15,714,005


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 32







STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
OPERATING REVENUES


Treatment charges $ 1,998,543 $ 1,993,392
Other 37,459 44,443


Total Operating Revenues 2,036,002 2,037,835


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 1,020,298 1,042,161
Depreciation 796,285 777,150


Total Operating Expenses 1,816,583 1,819,311


OPERATING INCOME 219,419 218,524


NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 2,485 9,863
Interest expense (147,663) (151,995)
Debt issuance costs - (4,289)


Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (145,178) (146,421)


Income Before Contributions 74,241 72,103


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 660,959 328,994
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS - MUNICIPAL 185,879 318,534


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 921,079 719,631


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 15,714,005 14,876,176


Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle - 118,198


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 16,635,084 $ 15,714,005


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 33







STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers $ 2,027,899 $ 2,056,686
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (579,463) (648,839)
Paid to employees for operating payroll (381,206) (374,019)


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,067,230 1,033,828


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES


Acquisition and construction of capital assets (745,230) (827,288)
Capital contributions received 277,552 -
Debt retired (434,390) (391,680)
Interest paid (150,466) (149,710)
Proceeds from debt issue - 606,140


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities


(1,052,534) (762,538)


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (825,095) (447,009)
Investments sold and matured 469,943 472,918
Investment income 18,582 9,715


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities (336,570) 35,624


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (321,874) 306,914


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 2,355,598 2,048,684


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 2,033,724 $ 2,355,598


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Capital costs special assessed to customers $ - $ 343,592


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments $ (26,717) $ (1,111)


Capital Contributions $ 563,389 $ 303,936


Page 34







2016 2015
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH


FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 219,419 $ 218,524
Nonoperating revenue (expense) - (4,289)
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 796,285 777,150
Changes in assets and liabilities


Customer accounts receivable (14,000) 20,126
Other accounts receivable 7,568 6,037
Due from municipality 1,559 2,820
Prepayments (334) 171
Pension related deferrals and liabilities 22,507 (3,256)
Accounts payable 14,153 7,502
Accrued sick leave 15,088 14,817
Other current liabilities 4,985 (5,774)


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,067,230 $ 1,033,828


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments $ 1,333,682 $ 1,377,187
Redemption account 365,599 296,992
Depreciation account 33,283 33,283
Replacement account 1,096,288 1,129,917
Construction account 123 123
Sick leave reserve account 120,910 105,822


Total Cash and Investments 2,949,885 2,943,324
Less:  Noncash equivalents (916,161) (587,726)


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 2,033,724 $ 2,355,598


See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 35







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES


The financial statements of Stoughton Utilities (utilities) have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to enterprise funds of
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 


The significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the utilities are described below.
   


REPORTING ENTITY


The utilities are separate enterprise funds of the City of Stoughton (municipality). The utilities were
managed by a utilities committee. The utilities provide electric, water, and wastewater service to properties
within the municipality. The utilities also provide electric service to the Townships of Dunkirk, Dunn,
Pleasant Springs, Porter and Rutland.


The electric and water utilities operate under service rules and rates established by the Public Service
Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  The wastewater utility operates under rules and rates established by
the  utilities committee.  The utilities are also regulated by the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources.


MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION


The utilities are presented as enterprise funds of the municipality. Enterprise funds are used to account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the governing
body has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred, and net income is necessary
for management accountability.


The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized
when the exchange takes place. 


In February 2015, the GASB issued statement No. 72 - Fair Value Measurement and Application. The
statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues to fair value measurements. It defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. This standard was implemented
January 1, 2016.


Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.


Page 36







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND


NET POSITION


Deposits and Investments


For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash, and cash equivalents have original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.


Investment of the utilities' funds were restricted by state statutes. Investments are limited to:


> Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturing in three years or
less.


> Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town, or
school district of the state. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition district, local professional
baseball park district, local professional football stadium district, local cultural arts district the
University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority, or the Wisconsin Aerospace Authority.


> Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.
> The local government investment pool.
> Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest rating


category of a nationally recognized rating agency.
> Securities of an open end management investment company or investment trust, subject to various


conditions and investment options.
> Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.


The utilities have adopted an investment policy.   That policy follows the state statute for allowable
investments.


Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on methods and inputs as outlined in
Note 2. No investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments at
fair value are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income.
Market values may have changed significantly after year end.


Receivables/Payables


Transactions between the utilities and other funds of the municipality that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at year end are referred to as advances to/from other funds.
All other outstanding balances between the utilities and other funds of the municipality are reported as due
to/from other funds.


The utilities have the right under Wisconsin statutes to place delinquent electric, water, and wastewater
bills on the tax roll for collection. As such, no allowance for uncollectible customer accounts is considered
necessary.


Materials and Supplies 


Materials and supplies are generally used for construction, operation, and maintenance work, not for
resale. They are valued at the lower of cost or market utilizing the average cost method and charged to
construction or expense when used.


Page 37







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND


NET POSITION (cont.)


Restricted Assets


Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such segregations are required by
bond agreements and other external parties. Current liabilities payable from these restricted assets are so
classified. 


Investment in American Transmission Company (ATC)


The electric utility is a member of ATC. ATC was formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan, construct,
maintain, monitor and own electric transmission facilities in Wisconsin. The utility owns less than 1/2 of
1% of ATC.


The investment earns dividends quarterly, some of which is paid in cash and some of which is required to
be reinvested. From time to time, the utility has the option to contribute additional funds to maintain their
proportionate share of ownership. The investment is valued at net asset value per share which is equal to
the original cost plus additional contributions and reinvested dividends and approximates fair value. 


Sick Leave Reserve Account


Upon retirement, these funds are used for insurance coverage for utility employees.


Plant and Maintenance Reserve Account


These accounts are utilized to segregate funds for the future repairs and replacements of electric and
water utility capital assets as designated by the committee.


Special Assessments Receivable   


This account represents the balances of special assessments levied against property owners for
infrastructure improvements. The balances are receivable over various time periods with interest accrued
annually. 


Non-Utility Property


Electric utility non-utility property consists of the city dam with a balance of $84,212 and leasehold rental
property with a balance of $91,458 at December 31, 2016 and 2015.  Water utility non-utility property
consists of a park shelter with a balance of $107,000 at December 31, 2016 and 2015.  The costs are
being amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful life.


     Capital Assets


Capital assets are generally defined by the utilities as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$1,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.


Page 38







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND


NET POSITION (cont.)


Capital Assets (cont.)


Capital assets of the utilities are recorded at cost or the estimated acquisition value at the time of
contribution to the utilities. Major outlays for utility plant are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized value of the capital assets
constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. Capital assets in
service are depreciated or amortized using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:


Years
Electric Plant


Transmission 33
Distribution 25 - 54
General 5 - 30


Water Plant
Source of supply 34
Pumping 23 - 31
Water treatment 30 - 31
Transmission and distribution 18 - 77
General 4 - 34


Wastewater Plant
Collecting system 100
Collecting system pumping 25 - 50
Treatment and disposal 15 - 40
General 5 - 20


Pensions


For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and additions to/deductions from WRS' fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by WRS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms, investments are reported at fair value.


Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave


Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacations in varying amounts. Only
benefits considered to be vested are disclosed in these statements. Vested vacation and sick leave pay is
accrued when earned in the financial statements. The liability is liquidated from general operating
revenues of the utilities. 


Page 39







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND


NET POSITION (cont.)


Customer Advances for Construction


The balance represents fees collected for future capital improvements. The fees may be refundable based
on rules filed with the PSCW or statutory requirements. 


   Commitment to Community


The electric utility charges fees to all customers as required by the 1999 Energy Reliability Act and 2006
Act 141. Revenues generated from the fees are used to fund energy conservation and low-income energy
assistance ("Commitment to Community") programs. The utility is acting as an agent administering the
program so net collections and expenditures/remittances associated with the program are recorded as a
current liability on the statements of net position. 


Customer Deposits 


This account represents amounts deposited with the utilities by customers as security for payment of bills.


Accrued liabilities


The balance represents collections of various payroll and sales taxes due to the state and federal
government.


Long-Term Obligations


Long-term debt and other obligations are reported as utility liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts, are
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Gains or losses on prior
refundings are amortized over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is
shorter. The balance at year end for premiums and discounts is shown as an increase or decrease in the
liability section of the statement of net position.  


REVENUES AND EXPENSES


The utilities distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with the utility's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the utilities are charges
to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.


Charges for Services


Billings are rendered and recorded monthly based on metered usage. The utilities do accrue revenues
beyond billing dates. 


Page 40







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)


REVENUES AND EXPENSES (cont.)


Charges for Services (cont.)


Current electric rates were approved by the PSCW on September 1, 2015. The rates are designed to
provide a 5.1% return on rate base. 


Current water rates were approved by the PSCW effective May 1, 2016. The rates are designed to earn a
5.25% return on rate base.


Current wastewater rates were approved by the utilities committee effective January 1, 2015. 


  Capital Contributions


Cash and capital assets are contributed to the utilities from customers, the municipality, or external
parties. The value of property contributed to the utilities were reported as revenue on the statements of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 


Transfers


Transfers include the payment in lieu of taxes to the municipality and other operating transfers.


EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ON CURRENT PERIOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


GASB has approved GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain
Component Units, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14, Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest
Agreements, and Statement No. 82, Pension Issues, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68,
and No. 73. When they become effective, application of these standards may restate portions of these
financial statements. 


COMPARATIVE DATA


Certain amounts presented in the prior year data may have been reclassified in order to be consistent with
the current year's presentation. 


Page 41







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS


Carrying Value as of
December 31,


2016 2015 Risks


Checking or savings $ 8,664,392 $ 6,065,386 Custodial credit risk
Local government investment pool 1,119,688 834,873 Credit and interest rate risks
Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,643,412 3,146,931 Custodial credit, credit,


concentration, and interest
rate risks


State and local bonds 1,029,196 - Custodial credit, credit,
concentration and interest
rate risks


U.S. agency securities 1,713,738 1,948,678 Custodial credit, credit,
concentration and interest
rate risks


Petty cash 750 750


Totals $ 15,171,176 $ 11,996,618


Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for time and
savings accounts (including NOW accounts) and $250,000 for demand deposit accounts (interest bearing
and noninterest bearing). In addition, if deposits are held in an institution outside of the state in which the
government is located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the combined amount
of all deposit accounts.


Bank accounts are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund (SDGF) in the amount of $400,000.


The utilities may also maintain separate cash and investment accounts at the same financial institutions
utilized by the municipality. Federal depository insurance and the SDGF apply to all municipal accounts,
and accordingly, the amount of insured funds is not determinable for the utilities alone. Therefore,
coverage for the utilities may be reduced. Investment income on commingled investments of the entire
municipality is allocated based on average investment balances. 


$500,000 of the utilities' investments have coverage from the Securities Investor Protection Corporation
(SIPC). 


In addition, the utilities and other funds of the city have collateral or depository insurance agreements in
the amount of $4,848,162 and $2,514,834 at December 31, 2016 and 2015 respectively.


The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF), and
is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw
their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the fair value of the LGIP's
assets were substantially equal to the utilities' share.


Page 42







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)


Fair Value Measurements


The utilities categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant  unobservable inputs. 


The utilities value the fair value measurements using the market approach.


December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total


Certificates of
deposit $ - $ 2,643,412 $ - $ 2,643,412 $ - $ 3,146,931 $ - $ 3,146,931


U.S. agency
securities - 1,713,738 - 1,713,738 - 1,948,678 - 1,948,678


State and local
bonds - 1,029,196 - 1,029,196 - - - -


Total $ - $ 5,386,346 $ - $ 5,386,346 $ - $ 5,095,609 $ - $ 5,095,609


The investment in ATC is measured at the net asset value (NAV) per share of ownership. As of December
31, 2016 and 2015 the fair value of the investment was $361,850 and $336,026, respectively. ATC was
formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan, construct, maintain, monitor and own electric transmission
facilities in Wisconsin. The utility elected to receive an investment in ATC at its inception rather than
directly sell its transmission facilities. The utility owns less than 1/2 of 1 percent of ATC. The utility has no
unfunded commitment at year end. The investment in ATC can only be redeemed by ATC or another
existing member. 


Custodial Credit Risk


Deposits


Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the utilities' deposits may
not be returned to the utilities.


Page 43







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)


Custodial Credit Risk (cont.)


Deposits (cont.)


The utilities maintain certain deposits in the same institutions as the municipality. The custodial credit risk
pertaining specifically to the utilities' resources at these institutions cannot be determined individually for
those accounts. The following is a summary of the utilities' total deposit balances at these institutions.


2016 2015
Bank Carrying Bank Carrying


Balance Value Balance Value


Wells Fargo $ 5,228,864 $ 5,108,339 $ 3,495,891 $ 3,265,756
Wells Fargo Brokerage 928 928 928 928
Associated Bank 3,554,084 3,553,875 2,798,702 2,798,702
USB Financial Services 1,250 1,250 - -


Totals $ 8,785,126 $ 8,664,392 $ 6,295,521 $ 6,065,386


The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk.


Investments


For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
utilities will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party.


As of December 31, 2016 and 2015 the utilities' investments were exposed to custodial credit risk as
follows:


Neither Insured nor Registered and Held by Counterparty 2016 2015


U.S. agencies - implicitly guaranteed $ 1,713,738 $ 1,948,678


State and local bonds 1,029,196 -


Total Neither Insured nor Registered and Held by
Counterparty $ 2,742,934 $ 1,948,678


The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk.


Page 44







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)


Credit Risk


Credit risk is the risk an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.


As of December 31, 2016, the utilities' investments were rated as follows:


Investment Type
Standard &


Poors


Moody's
Investors
Services


U.S. agencies - implicitly guaranteed AAA Aa
State and local bonds AA Aa1 - Aa2
Negotiable certificates of deposit not rated


As of December 31, 2015, the utilities' investments were rated as follows:


Investment Type
Standard &


Poors


Moody's
Investors
Services


U.S. agencies - implicitly guaranteed AAA Aa
Negotiable certificates of deposit not rated


The utilities held investments in the Local Government Investment Pool which is an external pool that is
not rated.


The utilities' investment policy follows state statutes.


Concentration of Credit Risk


Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a
single issuer.


At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the utilities' investment portfolio was concentrated as follows:


Percentage of Portfolio
Issuer Investment Type 2016 2015


Ginnie Mae U.S. agencies - implicitly guaranteed 8.78% 15.89%
FHLMC U.S. agencies - implicitly guaranteed 7.65% 10.22%
FHLB U.S. agencies - implicitly guaranteed 6.09% 6.75%
State of Wisconsin State and local bonds 10.30% -%
Arkansas State State and local bonds 5.51% -%


The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk.


Page 45







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.)


Interest Rate Risk


Interest rate risk is the risk changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.


As of December 31, 2016, the utilities' investments were as follows:


Maturity (In Years)


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 3 3 or more


U.S. agencies - implicitly guaranteed $ 1,713,738 $ - $ - $ 1,713,738
State and local bonds 1,029,196 - - 1,029,196
Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,643,412 682,461 1,960,951 -


Totals $ 5,386,346 $ 682,461 $ 1,960,951 $ 2,742,934


As of December 31, 2015, the utilities' investments were as follows:


Maturity (In Years)


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 3 3 or more


U.S. agencies - implicitly guaranteed $ 1,948,678 $ - $ - $ 1,948,678
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 3,146,931 1,986,925 1,160,006 -


Totals $ 5,095,609 $ 1,986,925 $ 1,160,006 $ 1,948,678


The utilities maintain certain investments commingled with the municipality. The interest rate risk
pertaining specifically to the utilities' resources cannot be determined for those accounts. Please refer to
the municipality's financial statements for information on this risk.


The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk.


Page 46







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS


The following is a schedule of interfund balances for the years ending December 31, 2016 and 2015:


2016 2015
Due To Due From Amount Principal Purpose Amount Principal Purpose


Municipality Water  utility $ 387,855 Payment in lieu of
taxes


$ 363,249 Payment in lieu of
taxes


Municipality Water utility 15,409 Operating 8,764 Operating
Electric utility Municipality 15,289 Operating 6,652 Operating
Water utility Municipality 70,394 Operating and


special
assessments


2,419 Operating


Wastewater
utility


Municipality 49,361 Operating and
special
assessments


3,023 Operating


Municipality Electric utility 85,769 Stormwater 39,301 Stormwater
Municipality Electric utility 376,785 Payment in lieu of


taxes
370,260 Payment in lieu of


taxes
Municipality Wastewater


utility
9,073 Operating 5,843 Operating


The following is a schedule of transfer balances for the years ending December 31, 2016 and 2015:


2016 2015
To From Amount Principal Purpose Amount Principal Purpose


Municipality Electric utility $ 21,213 Operating $ 23,455 Operating
Municipality Electric utility 376,785 Payment in lieu of


taxes
370,260 Payment in lieu of


taxes
Municipality Water utility 2,412 Operating 59 Operating
Municipality Water utility 387,855 Payment in lieu of


taxes
363,249 Payment in lieu of


taxes


NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED ASSETS


Restricted Accounts


Certain proceeds of the utilities' debt, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are
classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is limited. The following
accounts are reported as restricted assets:


Redemption - Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments 
over the next twelve months. 


Reserve - Used to report resources set aside to make up potential future 
deficiencies in the redemption account.


Page 47







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED ASSETS (cont.)


Restricted Accounts (cont.)


Depreciation - Used to report resources set aside to fund plant renewals and 
replacement or make up potential future deficiencies in the 
redemption account.


Construction - Used to report debt proceeds restricted for use in construction.


Replacement Account


As a condition of receiving state and federal funds for wastewater plant construction, the utilities have
established an account for replacement of certain mechanical equipment. 


Net Pension Asset


Restricted assets have been reported in connection with the net pension asset balance since this balance
must be used to fund employee benefits.


Restricted Net Position


The following calculation supports the amount of electric restricted net position:


2016 2015
Restricted Assets


Redemption account $ 486,538 $ 408,357
Reserve account 649,338 649,338
Depreciation account 25,000 25,000
Construction account 1,840,074 -
Net pension asset - 150,770


Total Restricted Assets 3,000,950 1,233,465


Less:  Restricted Assets Not Funded by Revenues
Construction account (1,840,074) -


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets (70,648) (34,681)


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 1,090,228 $ 1,198,784


The purpose of the restricted net position is as follows:
2016 2015


    Debt service $ 1,090,228 $ 1,048,014
    Pension - 150,770
    


Totals $ 1,090,228 $ 1,198,784


Page 48







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED ASSETS (cont.)


Restricted Net Position (cont.)


The following calculation supports the amount of water restricted net position:


2016 2015
Restricted Assets


Redemption account $ 267,550 $ 129,523
Reserve account 244,677 244,677
Depreciation account 25,000 25,000
Construction account 213,127 -
Net pension asset - 55,400


Total Restricted Assets 750,354 454,600


Less:  Restricted Assets Not Funded by Revenues
Construction account (213,127) -


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets (8,230) (11,878)


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 528,997 $ 442,722


The purpose of the restricted net position is as follows:
2016 2015


    Debt service $ 528,997 $ 387,322
    Pension - 55,400


Totals $ 528,997 $ 442,722


Page 49







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED ASSETS (cont.)


The following calculation supports the amount of wastewater restricted net position:


2016 2015
Restricted Assets


Redemption account $ 365,599 $ 296,992
Depreciation account 33,283 33,283
Replacement account 1,096,288 1,129,917
Construction account 123 123
Net pension asset - 59,271


Total Restricted Assets 1,495,293 1,519,586


Less:  Restricted Assets Not Funded by Revenues
Construction account (123) (123)


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets (22,761) (24,595)


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 1,472,409 $ 1,494,868


The purpose of the restricted net position is as follows:
2016 2015


    Debt service $ 376,121 $ 305,680
    Equipment replacement 1,096,288 1,129,917
    Pension - 59,271


Totals $ 1,472,409 $ 1,494,868


NOTE 5 - ADVANCES TO OTHER FUNDS


In December 2011, the Electric Utility provided an advance to the General Fund in the amount of $554,744
for the purpose of full payment of the Wisconsin Retirement System Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. 
The General Fund will repay the Electric Utility over a period of fourteen years at 3.0% annual interest. 
The amount outstanding at December 31, 2016 is $376,653.


Repayment requirements to maturity follow:


Year Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Total


2017 $ 39,190 $ 11,300 $ 50,490
2018 41,375 10,124 51,499
2019 43,646 8,883 52,529
2020 46,007 7,573 53,580
2021 48,459 6,193 54,652
2022-2025 157,976 9,726 167,702


Totals $ 376,653 $ 53,799 $ 430,452


Page 50







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS


Electric Utility


A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2016 follows:


Balance Balance
1/1/16 Increases Decreases 12/31/16


Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land and land rights $ 220,797 $ - $ - $ 220,797


Capital assets being depreciated
Transmission 15,019 - - 15,019
Distribution 22,777,607 1,251,311 91,267 23,937,651
General 4,109,842 6,685 - 4,116,527


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 26,902,468 1,257,996 91,267 28,069,197


Total Capital Assets 27,123,265 1,257,996 91,267 28,289,994


Less:  Accumulated depreciation
Transmission (19,366) - - (19,366)
Distribution (10,731,629) (845,302) 91,267 (11,485,664)
General (2,727,540) (197,311) - (2,924,851)


Total Accumulated
Depreciation (13,478,535) (1,042,613) 91,267 (14,429,881)


Construction in progress 251,853 187,437 249,891 189,399


Net Capital Assets $ 13,896,583 $ 14,049,512


Page 51







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Electric Utility (cont.)


A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2015 follows:


Balance Balance
1/1/15 Increases Decreases 12/31/15


Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land and land rights $ 220,797 $ - $ - $ 220,797


Capital assets being depreciated
Transmission 15,019 - - 15,019
Distribution 22,286,877 612,671 121,941 22,777,607
General 4,044,032 65,810 - 4,109,842


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 26,345,928 678,481 121,941 26,902,468


Total Capital Assets 26,566,725 678,481 121,941 27,123,265


Less:  Accumulated depreciation
Transmission (19,366) - - (19,366)
Distribution (10,037,217) (821,978) 127,566 (10,731,629)
General (2,538,112) (189,428) - (2,727,540)


Total Accumulated
Depreciation (12,594,695) (1,011,406) 127,566 (13,478,535)


Construction in progress 26,055 496,480 270,682 251,853


Net Capital Assets $ 13,998,085 $ 13,896,583


Page 52







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Water Utility


A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2016 follows:


Balance Balance
1/1/16 Increases Decreases 12/31/16


Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land and land rights $ 430,131 $ - $ - $ 430,131


Capital assets being depreciated
Source of supply 595,730 - - 595,730
Pumping 1,468,520 20,920 - 1,489,440
Water treatment 90,763 - - 90,763
Transmission and distribution 16,766,589 1,827,934 66,782 18,527,741
General 843,272 2,431 - 845,703


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 19,764,874 1,851,285 66,782 21,549,377


Total Capital Assets 20,195,005 1,851,285 66,782 21,979,508


Less:  Accumulated depreciation
Source of supply (352,437) (17,276) - (369,713)
Pumping (1,214,858) (43,630) - (1,258,488)
Water treatment (88,203) (437) - (88,640)
Transmission and distribution (3,999,252) (316,262) 86,457 (4,229,057)
General (747,883) (84,778) - (832,661)


Total Accumulated
Depreciation (6,402,633) (462,383) 86,457 (6,778,559)


Construction in progress 106,478 883,885 909,725 80,638


Net Capital Assets $ 13,898,850 $ 15,281,587


Page 53







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Water Utility (cont.)


A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2015 follows:


Balance Balance
1/1/15 Increases Decreases 12/31/15


Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land and land rights $ 430,131 $ - $ - $ 430,131


Capital assets being depreciated
Source of supply 570,123 25,607 - 595,730
Pumping 1,461,654 6,866 - 1,468,520
Water treatment 90,763 - - 90,763
Transmission and distribution 15,341,730 1,442,390 17,531 16,766,589
General 803,447 41,325 1,500 843,272


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 18,267,717 1,516,188 19,031 19,764,874


Total Capital Assets 18,697,848 1,516,188 19,031 20,195,005


Less:  Accumulated depreciation
Source of supply (335,532) (16,905) - (352,437)
Pumping (1,157,612) (57,246) - (1,214,858)
Water treatment (87,766) (437) - (88,203)
Transmission and distribution (3,723,745) (293,038) 17,531 (3,999,252)
General (676,502) (72,881) 1,500 (747,883)


Total Accumulated
Depreciation (5,981,157) (440,507) 19,031 (6,402,633)


Construction in progress 30,627 995,690 919,839 106,478


Net Capital Assets $ 12,747,318 $ 13,898,850


Page 54







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 6 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)


Wastewater Utility


A summary of changes in wastewater capital assets for 2016 follows:


Balance Balance
1/1/16 Increases Decreases 12/31/16


Capital assets being depreciated
Collecting system $ 10,363,837 $ 868,844 $ 18,028 $ 11,214,653
Collecting system pumping 401,065 332,454 - 733,519
Treatment and disposal 15,554,351 - - 15,554,351
General 1,314,953 61,664 - 1,376,617


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 27,634,206 1,262,962 18,028 28,879,140


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (9,483,326) (796,285) 29,558 (10,250,053)


Construction in progress 61,100 39,244 5,553 94,791


Net Capital Assets $ 18,211,980 $ 18,723,878


A summary of changes in wastewater capital assets for 2015 follows:


Balance Balance
1/1/15 Increases Decreases 12/31/15


Capital assets being depreciated
Collecting system $ 9,360,156 $ 1,023,865 $ 20,184 $ 10,363,837
Collecting system pumping 401,065 - - 401,065
Treatment and disposal 15,550,149 5,702 1,500 15,554,351
General 1,308,895 6,058 - 1,314,953


Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 26,620,265 1,035,625 21,684 27,634,206


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (8,727,985) (777,025) 21,684 (9,483,326)


Construction in progress 38,856 783,193 760,949 61,100


Net Capital Assets $ 17,931,136 $ 18,211,980


Page 55







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS


Revenue Bonds - Electric


The following bonds have been issued:


Outstanding
Final Interest Original Amount


Date Purpose Maturity Rate Amount 12/31/16


May 3, 2016 Electric system
improvements, refund
2006 bonds


April 1, 2036 2.00 - 3.00% $ 4,005,000 $ 4,005,000


February 15,
2013


Electric system
improvements


April 1, 2023 2.00 - 2.25 3,170,000 2,245,000


November
15, 2006


Electric system
improvements


April 1, 2023 4.00 - 4.50 2,550,000 -


Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows:


Year Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Total


2017 $ 610,000 $ 165,948 $ 775,948
2018 610,000 121,613 731,613
2019 620,000 109,313 729,313
2020 660,000 96,513 756,513
2021 670,000 82,813 752,813
2022 - 2026 1,715,000 251,844 1,966,844
2027 - 2031 635,000 157,575 792,575
2032 - 2036 730,000 55,950 785,950


Totals $ 6,250,000 $ 1,041,569 $ 7,291,569


All utility revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above revenue
bonds until the bonds are defeased. Principal and interest paid for 2016 and 2015 were $602,450 and
$625,724, respectively, not including the refunding in the current year. Total customer gross revenues as
defined for the same periods were $15,208,512 and $15,158,777. Annual principal and interest payments
are expected to require 2% of gross revenues on average. 


Page 56







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Revenue Bonds - Water


The following bonds have been issued:


Outstanding
Final Interest Original Amount


Date Purpose Maturity Rate Amount 12/31/16


May 3, 2016 Additions and
improvements, refund
2006 bonds


May 1, 2026 1.00 - 2.75% $ 2,520,000 $ 2,520,000


January 27,
2010


Additions and
improvements


May 1, 2029 2.668 575,018 423,424


November
15, 2006


Additions and
improvements


May 1, 2023 4.00 - 4.50 1,925,000 -


Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows:


Year Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Total


2017 $ 322,677 $ 47,540 $ 370,217
2018 318,415 43,867 362,282
2019 314,173 39,867 354,040
2020 339,952 35,360 375,312
2021 335,751 30,325 366,076
2022 - 2026 1,201,507 74,078 1,275,585
2027 - 2029 110,949 4,492 115,441


Totals $ 2,943,424 $ 275,529 $ 3,218,953


All utility revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above revenue
bonds until the bonds are defeased. Principal and interest paid for 2016 and 2015 were $243,450 and
$225,533, respectively, not including the refunding in the current year. Total customer gross revenues as
defined for the same periods were $2,026,153 and $1,793,025. Annual principal and interest payments
are expected to require 12% of gross revenues on average. 


Page 57







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Revenue Bonds - Wastewater


The following bonds have been issued:


Outstanding
Final Interest Original Amount


Date Purpose Maturity Rate Amount 12/31/16


December
22, 1999


Wastewater interceptor May 1, 2019 3.049% $ 623,465 $ 120,341


July 12,
2000


WWTP improvements May 1, 2020 3.049 1,116,259 280,959


September
10, 2003


WWTP improvements May 1, 2023 2.766 1,670,624 695,113


June 27,
2007


WWTP improvements May 1, 2027 2.475 1,539,762 1,015,168


November 1,
2014


WWTP improvements May 1, 2034 2.625 3,305,713 3,046,782


Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows:


Year Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Total


2017 $ 413,395 $ 130,912 $ 544,307
2018 424,703 119,449 544,152
2019 436,322 107,670 543,992
2020 405,676 96,216 501,892
2021 340,971 86,252 427,223
2022 - 2026 1,503,032 304,203 1,807,235
2027 - 2031 1,022,944 143,079 1,166,023
2032 - 2034 611,320 24,348 635,668


Totals $ 5,158,363 $ 1,012,129 $ 6,170,492


All utility revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above revenue
bonds until the bonds are defeased. Principal and interest paid for 2016 and 2015 were $544,459 and
$541,390, respectively. Total customer gross revenues as defined for the same periods were $2,038,487
and $2,047,698. Annual principal and interest payments are expected to require 17% of gross revenues
on average. 


Page 58







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


General Obligation Debt  - Water


The following general obligation bonds have been issued:


Outstanding
Final Interest Original Amount


Date Purpose Maturity Rate Amount 12/31/16


July 9, 2015 Additions and
improvements


April 1, 2025 2.00 - 2.25% $ 522,000 $ 474,000


General obligation bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows:


Year Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Total


2017 $ 51,000 $ 9,180 $ 60,180
2018 51,000 8,160 59,160
2019 51,000 7,140 58,140
2020 51,000 6,120 57,120
2021 51,000 5,100 56,100
2022 - 2025 219,000 9,518 228,518


Totals $ 474,000 $ 45,218 $ 519,218


General Obligation Debt  - Wastewater


The following general obligation bonds have been issued:


Outstanding
Final Interest Original Amount


Date Purpose Maturity Rate Amount 12/31/16


July 9, 2015 Additions and
improvements


April 1, 2025 2.00 - 2.25% $ 348,000 $ 316,000


General obligation bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows:


Year Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Total


2017 $ 34,000 $ 6,120 $ 40,120
2018 34,000 5,440 39,440
2019 34,000 4,760 38,760
2020 34,000 4,080 38,080
2021 34,000 3,400 37,400
2022-2025 146,000 6,345 152,345


Totals $ 316,000 $ 30,145 $ 346,145


Page 59







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Long-Term Obligations Summary - Electric


Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 is as follows:


1/1/16 12/31/16 Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year


Revenue bonds $ 4,460,000 $ 4,005,000 $ 2,215,000 $ 6,250,000 $ 610,000
Accrued sick leave 170,083 24,501 22,773 171,811 -
Customer advances


for construction 225,387 175,808 374,054 27,141 -
Unamortized premium


on bonds 48,863 93,666 10,958 131,571 -
Net pension liability - 103,350 - 103,350 -


Totals $ 4,904,333 $ 4,402,325 $ 2,622,785 $ 6,683,873 $ 610,000


Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2015 is as follows:


1/1/15 12/31/15 Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year


Revenue bonds $ 4,940,000 $ - $ 480,000 $ 4,460,000 $ 490,000
Accrued sick leave 166,873 32,565 29,355 170,083 -
Customer advances


for construction 14,350 267,967 56,930 225,387 -
Unamortized premium


on bonds 60,835 - 11,972 48,863 -


Totals $ 5,182,058 $ 300,532 $ 578,257 $ 4,904,333 $ 490,000


Long-Term Obligations Summary - Water


Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 is as follows:


1/1/16 12/31/16 Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year


Revenue bonds $ 1,775,381 $ 2,520,000 $ 1,351,957 $ 2,943,424 $ 322,677
General obligation


debt 522,000 - 48,000 474,000 51,000
Accrued sick leave 93,082 - 6,495 86,587 -
Unamortized premium


on bonds
- 38,590 2,952 35,638 -


Net pension liability - 36,404 - 36,404 -


Totals $ 2,390,463 $ 2,594,994 $ 1,409,404 $ 3,576,053 $ 373,677


Page 60







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Long-Term Obligations Summary - Water (cont.)


Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2015 is as follows:


1/1/15 12/31/15 Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year


Revenue bonds $ 1,926,638 $ - $ 151,257 $ 1,775,381 $ 176,958
General obligation


debt - 522,000 - 522,000 48,000
Accrued sick leave 83,431 19,736 10,085 93,082 -


Totals $ 2,010,069 $ 541,736 $ 161,342 $ 2,390,463 $ 224,958


Long-Term Obligations Summary - Wastewater


Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 is as follows:


1/1/16 12/31/16 Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year


Revenue bonds $ 5,560,753 $ - $ 402,390 $ 5,158,363 $ 413,395
General obligation


debt 348,000 - 32,000 316,000 34,000
Accrued sick leave 105,822 19,691 4,603 120,910 -
Net pension liability - 40,825 - 40,825 -


Totals $ 6,014,575 $ 60,516 $ 438,993 $ 5,636,098 $ 447,395


Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2015 is as follows:


1/1/15 12/31/15 Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year


Revenue bonds $ 5,694,293 $ 258,140 $ 391,680 $ 5,560,753 $ 402,390
General obligation


debt - 348,000 - 348,000 32,000
Accrued sick leave 91,005 20,399 5,582 105,822 -


Totals $ 5,785,298 $ 626,539 $ 397,262 $ 6,014,575 $ 434,390


Page 61







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Current Refunding


On May 26, 2016, the electric utility issued bonds in the amount of $4,005,000 with an average interest
rate of 2.2% to refund $1,725,000 of outstanding 2006 electric bonds with an average interest rate of
3.71% and provide $2,445,000 of proceeds to fund new construction. $1,560,000 of the net proceeds,
along with $188,616 of restricted funds on hand, were used to prepay the outstanding debt service
requirements on the 2006 bonds.


The cash flow requirements on the old bonds prior to the current refunding was $2,058,000 from 2017
through 2023. The cash flow requirements on the new refunding bonds are $1,685,833 from 2017 through
2023. The current refunding resulted in an economic gain of $157,590.


On May 26, 2016, the water utility issued bonds in the amount of $2,650,000 with an average interest rate
of 1.77% to refund $1,175,000 of outstanding 2006 water bonds with an average interest rate of 3.77%
and provide $1,320,000 of proceeds to fund new construction. $1,200,000 of the net proceeds were used
to prepay the outstanding debt service requirements on the 2006 bonds.


The cash flow requirements on the old bonds prior to the current refunding was $1,396,625 from 2017
through 2023. The cash flow requirements on the new refunding bonds are $1,269,531 from 2017 through
2023. The current refunding resulted in an economic gain of $122,199.


Bond Covenant Disclosures


The following information is provided in compliance with the resolution creating the utilities' revenue
bonds:


Insurance


The utilities were exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, or destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, workers compensation, and health care of its employees. These risks are
covered through the purchase of commercial insurance, with minimal deductibles. Settled claims have not
exceeded coverage in any of the last three years. There were no significant reductions in coverage
compared to the prior year.


The utilities were covered under the following insurance policies at December 31, 2016:


Type Coverage Expiration


Automobile $ 10,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/17
Excess Liability 5,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/17
Workers Compensation 5,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/17


1,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/17
Boiler Insurance 100,000,000 CVMIC     Self-Insured 1/1/17
Property


54,116,364


Wisconsin Local
Property Insurance
Fund 2/1/17


Page 62







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Bond Covenant Disclosures (cont.)


Debt Coverage - Electric 


Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.3 times the highest annual debt
service of the bonds. The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation or
other debt. The coverage requirement was met in 2016 and 2015 as follows:


2016 2015


Operating revenues $ 15,116,204 $ 15,057,028
Investment income 92,308 101,749
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses (13,329,607) (13,261,410)


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,878,905 $ 1,897,367


Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:
Highest annual debt service $ 775,948 $ 649,338


Coverage factor 1.30 1.30


Minimum Required Earnings $ 1,008,732 $ 844,139


Actual Debt Coverage 2.42 2.92


Debt Coverage - Water


Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.3 times the highest annual debt
service of the bonds. The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation or
other debt. The coverage requirement was met in 2016 and 2015 as follows:


2016 2015


Operating revenues $ 2,001,124 $ 1,784,416
Investment income 25,029 8,609
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses (1,012,205) (885,770)


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,013,948 $ 907,255


Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:
Highest annual debt service $ 375,312 $ 244,677


Coverage factor 1.30 1.30


Minimum Required Earnings $ 487,906 $ 318,080


Actual Debt Coverage 2.70 3.71


Page 63







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Bond Covenant Disclosures (cont.)


Debt Coverage - Wastewater


Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.1 times the highest annual debt
service of the bonds. The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation or
other debt. The coverage requirement was in 2016 and 2015 as follows:


2016 2015


Operating revenues $ 2,036,002 $ 2,037,835
Investment income 2,485 9,863
Less:  Operation and maintenance expenses (1,020,298) (1,042,161)


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,018,189 $ 1,005,537


Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:
Highest annual debt service $ 544,307 $ 544,459


Coverage factor 1.10 1.10


Minimum Required Earnings $ 598,738 $ 598,905


Actual Debt Coverage 1.87 1.85


Number of Customers and Billed Volumes - Electric


The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2016 and 2015:


Customers Sales (000 kWh)
2016 2015 2016 2015


Residential 7,714 7,659 69,348 63,093
General 833 817 14,157 17,069
Small power 52 48 13,291 15,539
Large power 10 8 10,164 9,524
Industrial 6 6 31,257 31,431
Street and highway lighting 7 7 735 937


Totals 8,622 8,545 138,952 137,593


Page 64







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)


Bond Covenant Disclosures (cont.)


Number of Customers and Billed Volumes - Water


The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2016 and 2015:


Customers Sales (000 gals)
2016 2015 2016 2015


Residential 4,444 4,423 206,657 206,473
Multifamily residential 63 65 25,465 25,561
Commercial 366 355 53,304 51,253
Industrial 25 25 179,746 179,961
Public authority 44 42 5,304 6,336
Interdepartmental 6 6 533 773


Totals 4,948 4,916 471,009 470,357


Number of Customers and Billed Volumes - Wastewater


The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2016 and 2015:


Customers Sales (000 gals)
2016 2015 2016 2015


Residential 4,440 4,417 230,659 204,935
Multifamily residential 63 65 25,465 25,561
Commercial 349 341 50,898 48,780
Industrial 21 21 26,567 29,639
Public authority 32 31 3,554 4,191
Interdepartmental 1 1 50 44


Totals 4,906 4,876 337,193 313,150


Utility Budget  


The 2016 and 2015 utility budgets were prepared and approved as required by the bond resolutions. 
  


Page 65







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 8 - NET POSITION 


GASB No. 34 requires the classification of net position into three components - net investment in capital
assets, restricted, and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:


Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the
portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of net
investment in capital assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position
component as the unspent proceeds.


Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net position use through
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation.


Unrestricted net position - This component of net position consists of net positions that do not meet the
definition of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."


When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the utilities' policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.


The following calculation supports the electric net investment in capital assets:


2016 2015


Construction work in progress $ 189,399 $ 251,853
Plant in service 28,289,994 27,123,265
Accumulated depreciation (14,429,881) (13,478,535)
Property held for future use 352,664 352,664


Sub-Totals 14,402,176 14,249,247


Less:  Capital related debt
Current portion of capital related long-term debt 610,000 490,000
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt 5,640,000 3,970,000
Unamortized debt premium 131,571 48,863


Sub-Totals 6,381,571 4,508,863


Add:  Unspent debt proceeds
Construction funds 1,840,074 -


Total Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 9,860,679 $ 9,740,384


Page 66







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 8 - NET POSITION (cont.) 


The following calculation supports the water net investment in capital assets:


2016 2015


Construction work in progress $ 80,638 $ 106,478
Plant in service 21,979,508 20,195,005
Accumulated depreciation (6,778,559) (6,402,633)


Sub-Totals 15,281,587 13,898,850


Less:  Capital related debt
Current portion of capital related long-term debt 373,677 224,958
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt 3,043,747 2,072,423
Unamortized debt premium 35,638 -


Sub-Totals 3,453,062 2,297,381


Add:  Unspent debt proceeds
Construction funds 213,127 -


Total Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 12,041,652 $ 11,601,469


The following calculation supports the wastewater net investment in capital assets:


2016 2015


Construction work in progress $ 94,791 $ 61,100
Plant in service 28,879,140 27,634,206
Accumulated depreciation (10,250,053) (9,483,326)


Sub-Totals 18,723,878 18,211,980


Less:  Capital related debt
Current portion of capital related long-term debt 447,395 434,390
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt 5,026,968 5,474,363


Sub-Totals 5,474,363 5,908,753


Add:  Unspent debt proceeds
Reserve from borrowing 123 123


Total Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 13,249,638 $ 12,303,350


NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM


The utilities implemented GASB No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, effective January 1,
2015. The cumulative effect of the change in net position due to the change in accounting standard is
shown as a change in beginning net position for 2015. 


Page 67







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


General Information About the Pension Plan


Plan description. The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. WRS
benefits and other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes.  Benefit terms
may only be modified by the legislature. The retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin
Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of
Wisconsin, local government and other public employees. All employees, initially employed by a
participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1,200 hours a year
(880 hours for teachers and school district educational support employees) and expected to be employed
for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. 


ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which can be bound at http:
//etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.


Vesting. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively
employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a
retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998, and prior to July 1,
2011, are immediately vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011,
must have five years of creditable service to be vested. 


Benefits provided. Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupation employees, 62
for elected officials and State executive participants) are entitled to receive an unreduced retirement
benefit. The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service,
and (3) a formula factor.


Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest years' earnings. Creditable service
is the creditable current and prior service expressed in years or decimal equivalents of partial years for
which a participant receives earnings and makes contributions as required. The formula factor is a
standard percentage based on employment category.


Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupation employees) and receive reduced benefits.
Employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may
withdraw their contributions and forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefits. 


The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.


Page 68







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Post-Retirement adjustments. The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adjust annuity
payments from the retirement system based on annual investment performance in accordance with s.
40.27, Wis. Stat. An increase (or decrease) in annuity payments may result when investment gains
(losses), together with other actuarial experience factors, create a surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, as
determined by the system’s consulting actuary. Annuity increases are not based on cost of living or other
similar factors. For Core annuities, decreases may be applied only to previously granted increases. By
law, Core annuities cannot be reduced to an amount below the original, guaranteed amount (the “floor”)
set at retirement. The Core and Variable annuity adjustments granted during recent years are as follows:


Year
Core Fund
Adjustment


Variable Fund
Adjustment


2006 .8% 3%
2007 3 10
2008 6.6 0
2009 -2.1 -42
2010 -1.3 22
2011 -1.2 11
2012 -7 -7
2013 -9.6 9
2014 4.7 25
2015 2.9 2


Contributions. Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in
accordance with Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution is
one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for general category employees, including
teachers, and Executives and Elected Officials. Required contributions for protective employees
are the same rate as general employees. Employers are required to contribute the remainder of
the actuarially determined contribution rate. The employer may not pay the employee required
contribution unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining agreement. 


The WRS recognized $111,938 and $107,183  in contributions from the utilities during the
current and prior reporting periods, respectively.


Contribution rates as of December 31 are:


2016 2015
Employee Employer Employee Employer


General (including teachers) 6.6% 6.6% 6.8% 6.8%
Executives & Elected Officials 6.6% 6.6% 7.7% 7.7%
Protective with Social Security 6.6% 9.4% 6.8% 9.5%
Protective without Social Security 6.6% 13.2% 6.8% 13.1%


Page 69







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions


At December 31, 2016, the utilities reported a liability (asset) of $180,579 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset). The net pension liability (asset) was measured as of December 31, 2015, and
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31, 2014 rolled forward to December 31, 2015. No material changes in
assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date.
The utilities’s proportion of the net pension liability (asset) was based on the utilities’s share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. At December
31, 2015, the City of Stoughton’s proportion was 0.045976740%, which was an increase of 0.001111810%
from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2014.


For the year ended December 31, 2016, and 2015 the utilities recognized pension expense of $218,179
and $178,973.


At December 31, 2016, the utilities reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:


Electric Utility Water Utility Wastewater Utility
Deferred


Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of


Resources


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of


Resources


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of


Resources


Differences between expected
and actual experience $ 17,236 $ 217,499 $ 6,411 $ 76,611 $ 6,765 $ 85,916


Changes in assumption 422,315 - 149,893 - 166,680 -
Net differences between


project and actual earnings
on pension plan 72,308 - 25,470 - 28,563 -


Changes in proportion and
differences between
employer contributions and
proportionate share of
contributions - 3,747 - 1,336 - 1,478


Employer contributions
subsequent to the
measurement date 64,055 - 25,032 - 25,158 -


Total $ 575,914 $ 221,246 $ 206,806 $ 77,947 $ 227,166 $ 87,394


Page 70







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


At December 31, 2015, the utility reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:


Electric Utility Water Utility Wastewater Utility
Deferred


Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of


Resources


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of


Resources


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of


Resources


Differences between expected
and actual experience $ 21,858 $ - $ 8,031 $ - $ 8,592 $ -


Changes in assumption 73,010 - 26,827 - 28,702 -
Net differences between


project and actual earnings
on pension plan - - - - - -


Changes in proportion and
differences between
employer contributions and
proportionate share of
contributions - 1,063 - 390 - 418


Employer contributions
subsequent to the
measurement date 64,065 - 22,566 - 25,307 -


Total $ 158,933 $ 1,063 $ 57,424 $ 390 $ 62,601 $ 418


Deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the WRS Employer’s contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability (asset) in the subsequent
year ended December 31, 2017. $64,055, $25,032, and $25,158 are reported for the electric, water, and
wastewater utilities, respectively. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:


Electric Utility Water Utility Wastewater Utility


Year Ended
December 31


Deferred
Outflow of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of
Resources


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of
Resources


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of
Resources


2017 $ 133,178 $ 53,589 $ 46,911 $ 18,876 $ 52,608 $ 21,169
2018 133,178 53,589 46,911 18,876 52,608 21,169
2019 133,178 53,589 46,911 18,876 52,608 21,169
2020 111,088 53,438 39,130 18,823 43,882 21,109
2021 1,237 7,041 1,911 2,496 302 2,778
Thereafter - - - - - -


Total $ 511,859 $ 221,246 $ 181,774 $ 77,947 $ 202,008 $ 87,394


Page 71







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2015, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:


Actuarial valuation date December 31, 2014
Measurement date of net pension liability (asset) December 31, 2015
Actuarial cost method Entry age
Asset valuation method Fair market value
Long-term expected rate of return 7.2%
Discount rate 7.2%
Salary increases


Inflation 3.2%
Seniority / Merit 0.2% - 5.6%


Mortality Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table
Post-retirement adjustments 2.1%


* No post-retirement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment return, actuarial experience
and other factors. 2.1% is the assumed annual adjustment based on the investment return assumption and the post-retirement
discount rate.


Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2012 using experience from
2009 – 2011. The total pension liability for December 31, 2015 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability
calculated from the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation. 


Long-term expected Return on Plan Assets. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:


Core Fund Asset Class
Long-term Real
Rate of Return


Target
Allocation


US Equities 4.7% 23.0%
International Equities 5.6 22.0
Fixed Income 1.6 37.0
Inflation Sensitive Assets 1.4 20.0
Real Estate 3.6 7.0
Private Equity/Debt 6.5 7.0
Multi-Asset 3.8 4.0


Total Core Fund 4.5% 120.0%


Variable Fund Asset Class
Long-term Real
Rate of Return


Target
Allocation


US Equities 4.7% 70.0%
International Equities 5.6 30.0


Total Variable Fund 5.0% 100.0%


Page 72







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (cont.)


Single Discount rate. A single discount rate of 7.20% was used to measure the total pension liability. This
single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.20% and a
long term bond rate of 3.56%. Because of the unique structure of WRS, the 7.20% expected rate of return
implies that a dividend of approximately 2.1% will always be paid. For purposes of the single discount rate,
it was assumed that the dividend would always be paid. The projection of cash flows used to determine
this single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution
rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
(including expected dividends) of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.


Sensitivity of the utilities's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount
rate. The following presents the utilities’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated
using the discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the utilities’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(6.20 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate. 


The sensitivity analysis as of December 31, 2016 follows:


1% Decrease
to Discount


Rate (6.20%)


Current
Discount Rate


(7.20%)


1% Increase
to Discount


Rate (8.20%)


Electric Utility's proportionate share of
the net position liability (asset) $ 724,899 $ 103,350 $ (382,091)


Water Utility's proportionate share of
the net position liability (asset) 255,338 36,404 (134,588)


Wastewater Utility's proportionate
share of the net position liability
(asset) 286,347 40,825 (150,932)


The sensitivity analysis as of December 31, 2015 follows:


1% Decrease
to Discount


Rate (6.20%)


Current
Discount Rate


(7.20%)


1% Increase
to Discount


Rate (8.20%)


Electric Utility's's proportionate share
of the net position liability (asset) $ 425,350 $ (150,770) $ (605,768)


Water Utility's's proportionate share of
the net position liability (asset) 156,292 (55,400) (222,586)


Wastewater Utility's's proportionate
share of the net position liability
(asset) 167,213 (59,271) (238,138)


Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in separately issued financial statements available at http://etf.wi.gov/Publications/cafr.htm.


Page 73







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES


Long-Term Contracts - WPPI Energy


The electric utility is one of 51 WPPI Energy member municipalities located throughout the States of
Wisconsin, Iowa, and Michigan. On December 1, 1989, each initial WPPI Energy member commenced
purchasing electric service from WPPI Energy under a long-term Power Supply Contract for Participating
Members (long-term contract). Under the long-term contract, WPPI Energy is obligated to provide and
sell, and each member is obligated to take and pay for, the electric power and energy required for the
operation of each member's electric utility. 


The long-term contract requires all WPPI Energy members to pay for power and energy requirements
supplied or made available by WPPI Energy at rates sufficient to cover WPPI Energy's revenue
requirement including power supply costs, administrative expenses, and debt service. WPPI Energy's
subsequent year's operating budget and rates are approved annually by its Board of Directors, consisting
of representatives from each member. The members have agreed to charge rates to retail customers
sufficient to meet their WPPI Energy obligations. The long-term contract provides that all payments to
WPPI Energy constitute operating expenses of the utility payable from any operating and maintenance
fund established for that system.


In 2015, a majority of WPPI Energy members ratified an eighteen year extension to their existing
contracts. All but two of the remaining members ratified the same extension in 2016. The new contract
expires at midnight on December 31, 2055.


WPPI Energy's outstanding debt service obligation to be paid by its members through their wholesale
power charges through the remainder of the long-term contract is $411 million as of December 31, 2016.


Claims and Judgments


From time to time, the utilities were party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the
outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and the
utilities' legal counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material
adverse effect on the utilities' financial position or results of operations.


NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT


Wisconsin Municipal Insurance Commission (WMIC)
 Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC)


                       
The WMIC is an intergovernmental cooperation commission created by contract under Section 66.30 of
the Wisconsin Statutes. It was created in August, 1987 for the purpose of facilitating the organization,
establishment, and capitalization of the CVMIC, and has numerous municipalities as members.


The CVMIC is a municipal mutual insurance company established on September 14, 1987 under Section
611.23 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The CVMIC provides liability insurance coverage to the municipalities
which make up the membership of the WMIC.


The CVMIC is self-insured up to a maximum of $2,000,000 of each insurance risk. Losses paid by CVMIC
plus administrative expenses will be recovered through premiums to the participating pool of
municipalities. The municipality's share of such losses is approximately 1%.


Page 74







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT (cont.)


Wisconsin Municipal Insurance Commission (WMIC)
 Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) (cont.)


Management of each organization consists of a board of directors or officers comprised of representatives
elected by each of three classes of participants based on population. The municipality does not exercise
any control over the activities of the agencies beyond the election of the officers and board.


Financial statements of WMIC and CVMIC can be obtained directly from CVMIC's offices. 


The municipality shows the general obligation bond that it owes to WMIC in the insurance internal service
fund (governmental activities column of government-wide statement of net position). The transactions of
the organization are not included in these financial statements.


NOTE 12 - SELF INSURANCE 


In 2015, the utilities were part of the municipality's self-funded health insurance program with claims
processed by an administrative firm on behalf of the municipality. A separate fund was established into
which deposits were made and actual claims are paid out. As part of the plan, a reinsurance policy had
been purchased which covers claims in excess of $45,000 per individual up to a maximum of $1,000,000.
Deposits to the self-insured fund in excess of the claims and other costs paid are retained by the
municipality. The utilities' total contributions to the program during 2015 were $262,239. The plan was not
continued in 2016. Details of the plan can be found in the basic financial statements of the City of
Stoughton. 


NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS


The utilities evaluated subsequent events through April 24, 2017, the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued, for events requiring recording or disclosure in the financial statements. 


West Substation Project


The PSCW provided authorization for the electric utility to construct a new substation and five feeders on
the west side of the City of Stoughton in order to reliably serve planned and expected load growth. The
estimated cost of the project is $2.77 million.


Rate Adjustment


New electric rates were approved by the PSCW effective April 1, 2017. The new rates are designed to
earn a 5.0% rate of return.


Page 75







STOUGHTON UTILITIES


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


NOTE 14 - CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF A CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE


The utilities adopted GASB Statement No. 68 effective January 1, 2015. The cumulative effect of
implementation is reflected as a change in net position at December 31, 2015 as follows:


Electric Utility
Net pension liability (asset) January 1, 2014 $ 239,787
Deferred outflows January 1, 2014 60,880


Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle $ 300,667


Water Utility
Net pension liability (asset) January 1, 2014 $ 88,109
Deferred outflows January 1, 2014 22,370


Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle $ 110,479


Wastewater Utility
Net pension liability (asset) January 1, 2014 $ 94,265
Deferred outflows January 1, 2014 23,933


Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle $ 118,198


Additional information required for retroactive implementation was not provided by the pension plan.


Page 76







 


R E Q U I R E D  S U P P L E M E N T A R Y   I N F O R M A T I O N 


 
 


  







Proportionate
Utilities' Share of the Net Plan Fiduciary


Proportion Proportionate Pension Liability (Asset) Net Position
of the Net Share of the as a Percentage as a Percentage


Fiscal Pension Liability Net Pension Covered of Covered of the Total Pension
Year Ending (Asset) - City Liability (Asset) Payroll Payroll Liability (Asset)


12/31/16 0.04597674% 180,579$            1,643,602$     10.99% 98.20%
12/31/15 0.04486493% (265,441)             1,372,152       19.34% 102.74%


Contributions in
Relation to the Contributions


Contractually Contractually Contribution as a Percentage
Fiscal Required Required Deficiency Covered of Covered


Year Ending Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll


12/31/16 114,245$           114,245$            -$                    1,730,985$                      6.60%
12/31/15 111,938             111,938              -                      1,643,602                        6.81%


For the Year Ended December 31, 2015


SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) - 


SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016


The required supplementary information presented below represents the proportionate information for the enterprise 
funds included in this report.


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
Page 77







 


See independent auditors’ report. 
Page 78 


 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 


 
 
 WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 
The amounts determined for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that occurred 
within the fiscal year. 
 
The Utilities’ are required to present the last ten fiscal years of data; however accounting standards allow 
the presentation of as many years as are available until ten fiscal years are presented. 
 
Changes in benefit terms. There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating employer in the 
Wisconsin Retirement System. 
 
Changes in Assumptions. There were no changes in assumptions. 







 


S U P P L E M E N T A L   I N F O R M A T I O N 


 







 


ELECTRIC UTILITY 







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Balance Balance
1/1/16 Additions Retirements 12/31/16


TRANSMISSION
Land and land rights $ 1 $ - $ - $ 1
Poles and fixtures 5,035 - - 5,035
Overhead conductors and devices 9,984 - - 9,984


Total Transmission 15,020 - - 15,020


DISTRIBUTION
Land and land rights 220,796 - - 220,796
Structures and improvements 44,389 9,612 1,167 52,834
Station equipment 4,315,695 21,090 - 4,336,785
Poles, towers and fixtures 3,203,919 137,335 22,214 3,319,040
Overhead conductors and devices 5,761,558 92,288 23,698 5,830,148
Underground conduit 498,258 40,555 - 538,813
Underground conductors and devices 2,997,775 707,196 2,498 3,702,473
Line transformers 2,988,463 122,880 13,620 3,097,723
Services 1,781,830 43,121 2,174 1,822,777
Meters 662,502 10,441 1,021 671,922
Street lighting and signal systems 523,217 66,793 24,875 565,135


Total Distribution 22,998,402 1,251,311 91,267 24,158,446


GENERAL
Structures and improvements 1,649,974 6,685 - 1,656,659
Office furniture and equipment 215,401 - - 215,401
Computer equipment 191,677 - - 191,677
Transportation equipment 310,127 - - 310,127
Stores equipment 9,984 - - 9,984
Tools, shop and garage equipment 81,791 - - 81,791
Laboratory equipment 60,822 - - 60,822
Power-operated equipment 1,213,502 - - 1,213,502
Communication equipment 92,122 - - 92,122
Fiber optic equipment 279,453 - - 279,453
Miscellaneous equipment 4,990 - - 4,990


Total General 4,109,843 6,685 - 4,116,528


TOTAL ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT $27,123,265 $ 1,257,996 $ 91,267 $28,289,994


Page 79







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of Electricity
Residential $ 5,245,492 $ 5,039,326
Rural 2,860,599 2,834,039
General service 1,563,722 1,629,740
Large commercial and industrial 1,358,269 1,389,421
Large power 914,513 885,980
Industrial 2,742,903 2,814,381
Public street and highway lighting 121,306 132,627
Interdepartmental 174,133 180,843


Total Sales of Electricity 14,980,937 14,906,357
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 35,433 38,202
Other 99,834 112,469


Total Operating Revenues 15,116,204 15,057,028


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Other Power Supply
Purchased power 11,588,139 11,656,672


Transmission
Operation supervision and engineering 3,431 6,966
Station 34,522 40,006
Overhead lines 51,527 74,826
Underground lines 32,928 48,139


Total Transmission 122,408 169,937
Distribution


Street lighting and signal system (17) 3,509
Meter 19,196 47,976
Customer installations 109 468
Miscellaneous 70,220 58,623
Maintenance


Supervision and engineering 21,774 -
Station equipment 18,992 7,278
Overhead lines 206,090 197,521
Underground lines 56,207 37,602
Line transformers 2,659 2,234
Street lighting and signal system 6,342 2,404
Meters 27,199 6,519
     Total Distribution 428,771 364,134


Customer Accounts
Meter reading 3,900 4,315
Customer records and collection 261,008 248,349
Miscellaneous 19,486 2,007


Total Customer Accounts 284,394 254,671


Page 80







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES (cont.)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
OPERATING EXPENSES (cont.)


Operation and Maintenance (cont.)
Administrative and General


Salaries $ 261,330 $ 320,666
Office supplies 54,679 46,455
Outside services employed 23,697 48,825
Property insurance 30,397 26,749
Injuries and damages 36,826 27,400
Employee pensions and benefits 255,655 115,050
Regulatory commission 2,783 8,842
Miscellaneous 500 1,470
Rents 11,680 11,354
Maintenance 57,664 38,000


Total Administrative and General 735,211 644,811
Taxes 170,684 171,185


Total Operation and Maintenance 13,329,607 13,261,410
Depreciation 996,954 965,661


Total Operating Expenses 14,326,561 14,227,071


OPERATING INCOME $ 789,643 $ 829,957


Page 81







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


RATE OF RETURN - REGULATORY BASIS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


Electric
2016 2015


Utility Financed Plant in Service
Beginning of year $ 24,260,890 $ 23,775,259
End of year 24,962,668 24,260,889


Average 24,611,779 24,018,074


Utility Financed Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning of year (11,973,321) (11,183,405)
End of year (12,808,857) (11,973,321)


Average (12,391,089) (11,578,363)


Materials and Supplies
Beginning of year 129,405 130,091
End of year 163,294 129,405


Average 146,350 129,748


Regulatory Liability
Beginning of year (177,284) (199,444)
End of year (155,124) (177,284)


Average (166,204) (188,364)


Customer Advances for Construction
Beginning of year (225,387) (14,350)
End of year (27,141) (225,387)


Average (126,264) (119,869)


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE $ 12,074,572 $ 12,261,226


OPERATING INCOME - REGULATORY BASIS $ 597,291 $ 569,058


RATE OF RETURN (PERCENT) 4.95 4.64


This schedule is computed based on Public Service Commission of Wisconsin regulatory accounting
which differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America due to GASB
No. 34 as well as PSC order 05-US-105.


Page 82







 


WATER UTILITY 







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY PLANT
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Balance Balance
1/1/16 Additions Retirements 12/31/16


SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Land and land rights $ 11,635 $ - $ - $ 11,635
Wells and springs 595,730 - - 595,730


Total Source of Supply 607,365 - - 607,365


PUMPING
Structures and improvements 604,891 20,920 - 625,811
Other power production equipment 278,732 - - 278,732
Electric pumping equipment 584,896 - - 584,896


Total Pumping 1,468,519 20,920 - 1,489,439


WATER TREATMENT
Structures and improvements 13,671 - - 13,671
Water treatment equipment 77,092 - - 77,092


Total Water Treatment 90,763 - - 90,763


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION
Land and land rights 13,206 - - 13,206
Structures and improvements 1,611 - - 1,611
Distribution reservoirs and standpipes 1,955,851 - - 1,955,851
Transmission and distribution mains 10,429,182 1,317,437 25,966 11,720,653
Services 2,352,357 261,967 5,230 2,609,094
Meters 738,250 59,891 23,258 774,883
Hydrants 1,297,824 188,639 12,328 1,474,135
Other transmission and distribution plant 973 - - 973


Total Transmission and Distribution 16,789,254 1,827,934 66,782 18,550,406


GENERAL
Structures and improvements 410,390 2,431 - 412,821
Office furniture and equipment 62,497 - - 62,497
Computer equipment 55,313 - - 55,313
Transportation equipment 63,006 - - 63,006
Stores equipment 2,187 - - 2,187
Tools, shop and garage equipment 47,309 - - 47,309
Power-operated equipment 102,034 - - 102,034
Communication equipment 37,858 - - 37,858
SCADA equipment 458,421 - - 458,421
Miscellaneous equipment 89 - - 89


Total General 1,239,104 2,431 - 1,241,535


TOTAL WATER UTILITY PLANT $20,195,005 $ 1,851,285 $ 66,782 $21,979,508


Page 83







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of Water
Unmetered $ 79 $ -
Metered


Residential 876,749 805,271
Multifamily residential 65,660 56,463
Commercial 156,718 134,225
Industrial 296,674 268,342
Public authorities 18,747 18,485
Interdepartmental 1,918 2,208


Total Metered Sales 1,416,466 1,284,994
Private fire protection 38,842 29,373
Public fire protection 498,439 446,666


Total Sales of Water 1,953,826 1,761,033
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 6,309 4,610
Other 40,989 18,773


Total Operating Revenues 2,001,124 1,784,416


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Source of Supply
Maintenance


Wells and springs 4,675 8,640
Pumping


Fuel or purchased power for pumping 128,913 130,964
Pumping labor 15,995 818
Miscellaneous 2,498 2,076
Maintenance


Structures and improvements 19,526 26,003
Pumping equipment 34,724 7,578
     Total Pumping 201,656 167,439


Water Treatment
Chemicals 14,569 17,962
Operation labor 44,842 36,615
Maintenance


Structures and improvements 900 750
Water treatment equipment 8,267 2,727


     Total Water Treatment 68,578 58,054


Page 84







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES (cont.)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
OPERATING EXPENSES (cont.)


Operation and Maintenance (cont.)
Transmission and Distribution


Transmission and distribution lines $ 14,316 $ 6,590
Meters 25,178 21,709
Miscellaneous 40,808 65,299
Maintenance


Reservoirs and standpipes 53,069 49,895
Mains 51,540 45,609
Services 51,644 32,824
Meters 510 676
Hydrants 16,191 22,324
Miscellaneous 9,386 2,037
     Total Transmission and Distribution 262,642 246,963


Customer Accounts
Meter reading 7,522 4,023
Accounting and collecting labor 92,476 85,373


Total Customer Accounts 99,998 89,396
Administrative and General


Salaries 157,264 156,259
Office supplies 14,581 12,379
Outside services employed 28,928 43,771
Property insurance 11,054 9,728
Injuries and damages 12,621 9,968
Employee pensions and benefits 112,281 49,491
Regulatory commission 4,991 2,192
Miscellaneous 470 473
Rents 4,247 4,129
Maintenance 5,948 8,322


Total Administrative and General 352,385 296,712
Taxes 22,271 18,566


Total Operation and Maintenance 1,012,205 885,770
Depreciation 428,084 408,632


Total Operating Expenses 1,440,289 1,294,402


OPERATING INCOME $ 560,835 $ 490,014


Page 85







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


RATE OF RETURN - REGULATORY BASIS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


Water
2016 2015


Utility Financed Plant in Service
Beginning of year $ 13,552,786 $ 12,555,894
End of year 14,600,959 13,552,786


Average 14,076,873 13,054,340


Utility Financed Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning of year (4,515,479) (4,205,739)
End of year (4,786,329) (4,515,479)


Average (4,650,904) (4,360,609)


Materials and Supplies
Beginning of year 29,831 34,597
End of year 34,812 29,831


Average 32,322 32,214


Regulatory Liability
Beginning of year (273,828) (308,056)
End of year (239,600) (273,828)


Average (256,714) (290,942)


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE $ 9,201,577 $ 8,435,003


OPERATING INCOME - REGULATORY BASIS $ 318,087 $ 236,548


RATE OF RETURN (PERCENT) 3.46 2.80


This schedule is computed based on Public Service Commission of Wisconsin regulatory accounting
which differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America due to GASB
No. 34 as well as PSC order 05-US-105.


Page 86







 


WASTEWATER UTILITY 







STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016


Balance Balance
1/1/16 Additions Retirements 12/31/16


COLLECTING SYSTEM
Land and land rights $ 100 $ - $ - $ 100
Collecting mains 8,450,708 868,844 18,028 9,301,524
Interceptor mains 1,864,084 - - 1,864,084
Force mains 48,951 - - 48,951


Total Collecting System 10,363,843 868,844 18,028 11,214,659


COLLECTING SYSTEM PUMPING
Structures and improvements 67,381 38,857 - 106,238
Electric pumping equipment 312,284 293,597 - 605,881
Other power pumping equipment 21,399 - - 21,399


Total Collecting System Pumping 401,064 332,454 - 733,518


TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL
Structures and improvements 5,364,072 - - 5,364,072
Preliminary treatment equipment 1,542,566 - - 1,542,566
Primary treatment equipment 1,150,534 - - 1,150,534
Secondary treatment equipment 529,291 - - 529,291
Advanced treatment equipment 1,930,493 - - 1,930,493
Chlorination equipment 366,162 - - 366,162
Sludge treatment and disposal equipment 3,921,749 - - 3,921,749
Plant site pumping 685,498 - - 685,498
Flow metering and monitoring equipment 25,166 - - 25,166
Other treatment and disposal equipment 38,818 - - 38,818


Total Treatment and Disposal 15,554,349 - - 15,554,349


GENERAL
Structures and improvements 238,607 3,039 - 241,646
Office furniture and equipment 64,900 - - 64,900
Computer equipment 118,386 - - 118,386
Transportation equipment 427,383 - - 427,383
Communication equipment 433,162 - - 433,162
Other general equipment 32,512 58,625 - 91,137


Total General 1,314,950 61,664 - 1,376,614


TOTAL WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT $27,634,206 $ 1,262,962 $ 18,028 $28,879,140


Page 87







STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


WASTEWATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015


2016 2015
OPERATING REVENUES


Wastewater Revenues
Residential $ 1,405,052 $ 1,399,906
Commercial 434,012 416,771
Industrial 135,789 150,898
Public authorities 23,174 25,331
Interdepartmental sales 516 486


Total Wastewater Revenues 1,998,543 1,993,392
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 4,692 4,915
Miscellaneous 32,767 39,528


Total Operating Revenues 2,036,002 2,037,835


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Operation
Supervision and labor 50 353
Power and fuel for pumping 85,390 92,495
Sludge conditioning chemicals 10,710 10,110
Other operating supplies 26,766 43,329


Total Operation 122,916 146,287
Maintenance


Collection system 104,074 49,081
Treatment and disposal plant equipment 118,943 125,867
General plant structures and equipment 75,878 97,420


Total Maintenance 298,895 272,368
Customer Accounts


Accounting and collecting 145,249 136,974
Administrative and General


Salaries 103,307 107,396
Office supplies 36,385 23,563
Outside services employed 25,019 64,852
Insurance 28,788 23,911
Employees pensions and benefits 142,767 152,995
Miscellaneous 22,719 23,823
Rents 65,298 62,420


Total Administrative and General 424,283 458,960
Taxes 28,955 27,572


Total Operation and Maintenance 1,020,298 1,042,161
Depreciation 796,285 777,150


Total Operating Expenses 1,816,583 1,819,311


OPERATING INCOME $ 219,419 $ 218,524


Page 88







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
COMMUNICATION TO THOSE CHARGED  
WITH GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 


 
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016 


 
  







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 


 
 
 Page No. 
 
Required Communication of Internal Control Related Matters Identified in the 
 Audit to Those Charged with Governance 1 
 
 Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 2 
 
Communication of Other Control Comments, Recommendations and Informational Points  
 to Management that are not Material Weaknesses or Significant Deficiencies 3 – 6 
 
Other Communications to Those Charged with Governance  
 
 Two Way Communication Regarding Your Audit 7 – 8 
 
Required Communications by the Auditor to Those Charged with Governance 9 – 11 
 
 Summary of Corrected Financial Statement Misstatements  
 
 Management Representations   
 
  







REQUIRED COMMUNICATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL RELATED MATTERS 
IDENTIFIED IN THE AUDIT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 


 
  











  


Page 2 


Auditing standards require that we perform procedures to obtain an understanding of your utilities and its 
internal control environment as part of the annual audit. This includes an analysis of significant 
transaction cycles and an analysis of the utilities’ year-end financial reporting process and preparation of 
your financial statements. 
 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
Properly designed systems of internal control provides your organization with the ability to process and 
record monthly and year end transactions and prepare annual financial reports. 
 
Our audit includes a review and evaluation of the utilities’ internal controls relating to financial reporting. 
Common attributes of a properly designed system of internal control for financial reporting are as follows: 
 


> There is adequate staffing to prepare financial reports throughout and at the end of the year. 


> Staff is able to perform all financial reporting functions. 


> Material misstatements are identified and corrected during the normal course of duties. 


> Complete and accurate financial statements, including footnotes, are prepared. 


> Financial reports are reviewed by an individual who is not the preparer for completeness and 
accuracy. 


 
Our evaluation of the utilities’ internal controls relating to financial reporting has identified control 
deficiencies that are considered a material weakness surrounding the preparation of complete and 
accurate financial statements and footnotes, and adjusting journal entries to correct misstatements. This 
is due to the timing of the Finance Director leaving the position near year end. The majority of the audit 
adjustments resulted from year end accruals, reconciliations, and closing capital work orders.  
 
As a result of these deficiencies, in the current year, management is unable to prepare financial 
statements that are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. We do not anticipate 
these deficiencies to continue with the hiring of a new Finance Director. 
 







 


 


COMMUNICATION OF OTHER CONTROL COMMENTS, RECOMMENDATIONS  
AND INFORMATIONAL POINTS TO MANAGEMENT THAT ARE NOT  


MATERIAL WEAKNESSES OR SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES 
  







 


Page 3 


 
OPERATIONAL RESULTS 


 
 ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING RESULTS 
 
The electric utility’s operating income decreased in 2016 to $790,000 compared to $830,000 in 2015. 
Electric operating revenue increased slightly due to a 3% increase in kilowatt hours sold compared to 
2015. Operating expenses increased due to an increase in GASB 68 pension expense due to actual 
results versus actuarial assumptions and an increase in depreciation expense from additional 
development in the last year. 
 


 WATER UTILITY OPERATING RESULTS 
 
The water utility’s operating income increased in 2016 to $561,000 compared to $490,000 in 2015. 
Operating revenues increased $217,000 due to the rate increase effective May 1, 2016. In addition, 
operating expenses increased due to the increase in GASB 68 pension expense and additional 
maintenance, such as a well rehabilitation.  
 


 WASTEWATER OPERATING RESULTS 
 
The wastewater utility’s operating income stayed the same in 2016 and 2015 at $219,000. 
 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS 


 
 COMPLETE SEGREGATION OF DUTIES NOT FEASIBLE 
 
A properly designed system of internal control includes adequate staffing as well as policies and 
procedures to properly segregate duties. This includes systems that are designed to limit the access or 
control of any one individual to your government’s assets or accounting records, and to achieve a higher 
likelihood that errors or irregularities in the utility’s accounting processes would be discovered by your 
staff in a timely manner.  
 
At this time, due to staffing and financial limitations, the utility does not have proper internal controls in 
place to achieve ideal segregation of duties. As a result, errors or irregularities could occur as part of the 
financial process that may not be discovered by the utility.  
 
Procedures, designed to improve controls, have been established by management including: 
 


 Authorization of official depository. 


 Review and acceptance of the audit report and management letter. 


 Authorization of capital expenditures. 


 Approval of annual budgets. 


 Cross training of personnel and rotation of duties entailing custody of certain liquid assets. 
 
These procedures are helpful in assuring that management is knowledgeable of and involved with the 
day-to-day system operations. 
 
There are also key controls, which are listed below, that are not currently in place at the utility related to 
significant transaction cycles. These key controls are important in reducing the risk of errors or 
irregularities in the utility’s accounting processes.  
 


 Review of the reconciliation of open work orders to the construction balance in the ledger. 


 Complete segregation of billing and receipting for miscellaneous services. 







 


Page 4 


 
INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS (cont.) 


 
 COMPLETE SEGREGATION OF DUTIES NOT FEASIBLE (cont.) 
 
Although we would like to see additional layers of internal review we understand that the size of the 
organization limits the ability to accomplish this and that management has segregated transactions from 
reconciliations.  
 
Since these key controls are not currently in place, errors or irregularities could occur as part of the 
financial process that may not be discovered by the utility. Our review of internal control disclosed a 
control deficiency in that segregation of duties is not feasible due to the limited number of staff in the 
office. For example, many reconciliations are prepared by a person who is also involved in the day to day 
transactions. Although we do not feel this is a material weakness or significant deficiency we do believe it 
is important that the Committee is aware of this fact. 
 
This situation necessitates an increased amount of management involvement in the day-to-day operation 
of the system. This is not unusual in utilities of your size, but management should continue to be aware of 
this condition and realize that the concentration of duties and responsibilities in a limited number of 
individuals is not desirable from a control point of view. 
 
 
INFORMATIONAL POINTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 


 
WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND GASB NO. 68 
 


As you begin your second year reporting your pension activity under the requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 68, let’s review how this information affects your financial statements. 
 
Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) pension information is reported on a one year lag in your financial 
statements, so current year balances are the WRS amounts reported for the plan year ended December 
31, 2015. The following is a summary of the status of the WRS for the current and previous year 
(amounts are in billions). 
 


 Current  
Year 2015 


 Previous Year 
2014 


  
Change 


      
Total Pension Liability $ 90.1  $  89.7  $  0.4
Net Assets Available for Benefits   88.5    92.1    (3.6)


      
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $  1.6  $  (2.4)  $  4.0


 
As noted above, for the current year, WRS reports a net pension liability compared to a net pension asset 
for the previous year. Although 2015 contributions to WRS from employers and employees was 
consistent with the 2014 amounts, net investment income for 2015 decreased from $4.9 billion to a net 
loss of $0.7 billion, a $5.6 billion swing. This decrease in net investment income was primarily due to 
declines in investment returns and market values as a result of the 2015 market closing at its lowest point 
since 2008. In addition, benefit payments increased $0.3 billion or 6.3% from 2014 to 2015 partially as a 
result of an additional 6,200 retirees receiving benefits. Your government’s proportionate share of the 
current year net pension liability is reported in your financial statements.  
 
It should be noted that since the net pension liability (asset) is heavily dependent upon the market value 
of the net assets available for benefits, increases and decreases in the market can and will significantly 
change the amounts reported on your financial statements in the future. 
 
  







 


Page 5 


 
INFORMATIONAL POINTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (cont.) 


 
CYBER SECURITY  


 
It’s no surprise that cybersecurity continues to be a top concern for management and those charged with 
governance across utilities and governments of all sizes and types. Protecting citizen’s data is critical for 
any utility. In addition, there have been several incidents of critical malware or ransomware threats to 
communities of various sizes.  
 
We recommend performing a cyber-risk assessment to identify the types and location of data on your 
system as well as considering the sensitivity or potential regulations associated with your data. In 
addition, a formal procedure should be in place for testing the backup media on a regular basis. This will 
allow you to make informed decisions about spending on cyber risk mitigation. 
 
Our professionals are also available to assist with your cybersecurity questions, assessments, and 
programs.  


 
OBSERVATIONS FROM PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION (PSC) WATER RATE CASES 


 
PSC reviews of rate applications are very thorough and require diligence in application preparation. Even 
if you are not considering a rate increase in the near term, below are some items to be aware of to assist 
down the road.  


 Contributions in Aid of Construction (CIAC) – The PSC requests a reconciliation of CIAC revenue 
to CIAC plant additions. The utility should prepare a reconciliation since the last full rate case. 
Timing differences, if any, should be documented and reviewed annually so that proper 
allocations between utility financed and contributed plant are made before a rate application is 
submitted.  


 Construction Authorizations (CA) – The PSC is: 


 Reviewing all projects that require a CA to make sure there was an authorization 
obtained. This includes the PSC taking a look back of all utility projects since the last rate 
case. If a CA was not obtained the PSC will suggest one is filed now. Without a CA, 
these costs may not be allowed in rate base.  


 Comparing original authorized costs to actual costs and requiring an amended 
construction authorization to be filed for additional costs over a certain percentage. 


 Reviewing account coding and retirement values for all projects and reclassifying 
additions or revising retirements retroactively.  


 Retirements – The PSC reviews retirement values and asking for support from the utility. Support 
for retirements should be from your Continuing Property Records (CPRs) or documentation of a 
reasonable estimate.  


 Expenses – The PSC reviews expenses looking for particular items such as: 


 Unallowable costs i.e. credit card fees and lobbying costs  


 Unusually large miscellaneous accounts for reclassification  


 Support for shared costs with the municipality 


 Well Maintenance and Replacement Costs – During the average life of many assets, there is a 
certain amount of maintenance that will be required. The PSC has been reviewing repair and 
replacement costs generally capitalized to the wells plant account, such as well rehabilitation, and 
suggesting these be moved to expense for rate making purposes. We suggest the utility review 
its capitalization policy related to this account and consider following the PSC policy to avoid 
differences in annual reporting.  
  







 


Page 6 


 
INFORMATIONAL POINTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (cont.) 


 
OBSERVATIONS FROM PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION (PSC) WATER RATE CASES (cont.) 


 
It is important that your utility start planning now and begin preparing these items in advance of your next 
rate increase. Even if you don’t anticipate needing a rate increase in the near future these items could 
significantly impact your approved rate and prolong your rate case process. We are available to discuss 
any of these items with you and in addition help you get started with documenting these items. 
 
  REVENUE BOND RESOLUTION REQUIREMENTS 
 
The various revenue bond resolutions in the electric, water and sewer utilities require several separate 
and distinct accounts to be established and used as follows: 
 


1. Redemption fund – a monthly sinking fund used to pay principal and interest on the bonds. The 
utilities are required to make a monthly payment into this account of 1/12th of the next principal 
payment and 1/6th of the next interest payment on the bonds so funds are available when the 
payment comes due. 


2. Reserve fund – an investment of one year’s debt service used to provide security on payment of 
principal and interest. This should remain on deposit for the life of the bonds. Please note this 
reserve requirement only applies to the electric and water revenue bonds. The sewer Clean 
Water Fund bonds do not have a reserve requirement. 


3. Depreciation fund – used to restore deficiency in the special redemption or reserve account. If the 
special redemption and the reserve account are sufficient, then the money can be used for 
repairs, replacements or extensions to the system. 


4. Replacement fund – used for the replacement of certain mechanical equipment in the wastewater 
treatment plant.  


 
During the audit, we noticed some accounts were over/under funded in the current year. A summary of 
funding of the required restricted accounts is as follows: 
 


   Required Amount  
  Actual Balance at Over (Under)  


Fund  Balance Year-End funded  
        
Electric Reserve Account  $ 649,338 $ 460,722 $ 188,616  
Electric Redemption Account   486,538  528,148  (41,610 ) 
Water Reserve Account   244,677  252,000  (7,323 ) 
Water Redemption Account   267,550  223,349  44,201  
Wastewater Redemption Account  365,599 298,358 67,241 
Wastewater Replacement Account  1,096,288 1,110,991 (14,703) 
        


 Total Amount Overfunded      $ 236,422  
 
The overfunding is mostly due to debt being paid off or refunded, which would decrease the requirement. 
We recommend the accounts be reviewed and amounts unrestricted or restricted as necessary. We 
would be happy to assist the utilities with making sure all necessary accounts are established and 
properly funded to be in compliance with bond resolutions. 
  







  


 


OTHER COMMUNICATIONS TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 
 


  







  


Page 7 


 
TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT  


 
As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the 
audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisting 
the auditor and you with more information relevant to the audit. 
 
As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have learned to begin the planning process for next 
year’s audit. It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our 
next audit: 
 


a. We address the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, through 
our detailed audit procedures. 


b. We will obtain an understanding of the five components of internal control sufficient to assess the 
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud, and to 
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient 
understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design of controls 
relevant to an audit of financial statements and to determine whether they have been 
implemented. We will use such knowledge to:  
 
> Identify types of potential misstatements. 
> Consider factors that affect the risks of material misstatement. 
> Design tests of controls, when applicable, and substantive procedures. 
 
We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or 
compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant programs.  


c. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate, 
are important for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles while other matters are not important. In performing the audit, we are 
concerned with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the 
financial statements. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance that material misstatements, whether caused by errors or fraud, are detected. 


 
We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here: 


 
a. We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise. 


b. We understand that the utilities committee has the responsibility to oversee the strategic direction 
of your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity. Management has the 
responsibility for achieving the objectives of the entity. 


c. We need to know your views about your organization’s objectives and strategies, and the related 
business risks that may result in material misstatements. 


d. Which matters do you consider warrant particular attention during the audit, and are there any 
areas where you request additional procedures to be undertaken? 


e. Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies? 


f. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements? 
  







  


Page 8 


 
TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT (cont.) 


 
Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness, and actions of the utilities 
concerning: 
 


a. The utilities’ internal control and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with 
governance oversee the effectiveness of internal control? 


b. The detection or the possibility of fraud? 
 
We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws, 
accounting standards, governance practices, or other related matters, or in response to previous 
communications with us. 
 
With regard to the timing of our audit, here is some general information. If necessary, we may do 
preliminary financial audit work during the months of November or December. Our final financial fieldwork 
is scheduled during January to best coincide with your readiness and report deadlines. After fieldwork, we 
wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office and may issue drafts of our report for your review. 
Final copies of our report and other communications are issued after approval by your staff. This is 
typically 6-10 weeks after final fieldwork, but may vary depending on a number of factors.  
 
Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit, 
it does not change the auditor’s sole responsibility to determine the overall audit strategy and the audit 
plan, including the nature, timing, and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence. 
 
We realize that you may have questions on what this all means, or wish to provide other feedback. We 
welcome the opportunity to hear from you. 







  


 


REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS BY THE AUDITOR TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 
  







 


Page 9 


To Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Stoughton Utilities 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
 
Thank you for using Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP as your auditor. We have completed our audit of the 
financial statements of Stoughton Utilities for the year ended December 31, 2016, and have issued our report 
thereon dated April 24, 2017. This letter presents communications required by our professional standards. 
 


OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED  
  IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA  
 


The objective of a financial statement audit is the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. We 
conducted the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. These standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than 
absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight 
are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud. Our audits included examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. Our audits do not relieve management or the Utilities Committee of their 
responsibilities. 
 
As part of the audits we obtained an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal 
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the 
nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures. The audit was not designed to provide assurance on 
internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control. 


 
 OTHER INFORMATION IN DOCUMENTS CONTAINING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
Our responsibility does not extend beyond the audited financial statements identified in this report. We do 
not have any obligation to and have not performed any procedures to corroborate other information 
contained in client prepared documents, such as official statements related to debt issues. 
 
 PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT  
 
We performed the audits according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our city 
wide letter about planning matters. 
 
 QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY’S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES 
 
  Accounting Policies 


Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the 
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies 
and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the utilities are described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, Stoughton Utilities changed accounting 
policies related to financial reporting for investments by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting 
Standards (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application in 2016. The accounting 
change resulted in increased disclosure within the footnotes and had no impact on the financial statements. We 
noted no transactions entered into by the Stoughton Utilities during the year that were both significant and 
unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which 
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 







To Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Stoughton Utilities 
 
 


Page 10 


 QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY’S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES (cont.) 
 
  Accounting Estimates 


Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future 
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements were the accrual of compensated 
absence, the fair value of the ATC investment, and the net pension asset and related deferrals. We have 
reviewed managements’ assumptions and methodologies for these estimates in determining they are 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  
 
  Financial Statement Disclosures 


The disclosures in the notes to the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
 DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit. 
 
 CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  
 
Management has corrected all such misstatements in 2016. 
 
Management has chosen to record additional depreciation expense and miscellaneous receivables related to 
2015 in 2016. Had these adjustments been recorded in 2015 the effect in 2016 would have been a decrease to 
revenues of $2,283, a decrease to expenses of $16,671, and an increase to current year income of $14,388.  
 
 DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audits. 
 
 CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has 
all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
 MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter. These representations follow this required communication. 
 
  











 


 


SUMMARY OF CORRECTED FINANCIAL STATEMENT MISSTATEMENTS



































 


 


MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS 
 
 

























		5a-R-93-2017-Audit report and management letter.pdf

		5b-Utilities- Audit report and management letter.pdf

		2017-05-09 5.1- Financial Statements.pdf

		Title Page

		TOC

		Summary of SAP

		Deposits and Inv

		Custodial Credit Risk

		deposits - gasb 40

		Interfunds and transfers

		Advances to other funds

		Changes in capital assets

		Long-term obligations

		Net assets

		Commitments and contingencies

		Self insurance

		Restatement of net assets

		electric front.pdf

		BalSheet

		Inc State

		SOCF



		Stoughton Water front.pdf

		BalSheet

		Inc State

		SOCF



		wastewater front.pdf

		BalSheet

		Inc State

		SOCF



		electric back.pdf

		Elec Plant

		Elec R&E

		ER&E

		ER&E

		ER&E

		ER&E

		ER&E

		ER&E

		ER&E

		ER&E

		ROR



		Stoughton Water back.pdf

		Wtr Plant

		Wtr R&E

		WR&E

		WR&E

		WR&E

		WR&E

		WR&E

		WR&E

		WR&E

		WR&E

		ROR



		wastewater back.pdf

		Swr Plant

		Swr R&E









